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Pearson at a glance

Financial highlights

€@ To read abourt our KPIs go to pl4

Sales

£49bn
+29%

by Geography
North America £2 974m

Core £F 154m

Growih £746m

2014

by Line of Business

School £2,027m
Highe r Educaton £1 695m
Professional £1 52m

Adjusted operating profit
{excluding Mergermarkert)

£/20m
+89%

o

2014

by Geography

MNorth America £469m
Core £152m
Growth £35m
Penguin
Random House £69m

2014

by Line of Business

School £236m
Higher Education £309m
Professional £106m
Penguin
Random House £69m

Average annual growth In
headline terrms 2009-2014

Adjusted earrungs per share

+04%

Operating cash flow

-6.67%

Ddend

+/.5%
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Throughout this report growth rates are stated on a canstant exchange rate {CER) basis unless otherwise stated Where quoted, underlying growth rates exclude
both currency movements and parifolio changes Unless otherwise stated, sales excdude Penguwin and Mergermarket while adjusted operaung profitsinciude
Penguin Penguin Random House and Mergermarket Continuing operaueons exclude bath Penguin and Mergermarket
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About Pearson

0l

Strategic report

Pearson is the world’s leading
learning company, with 40,000
employees in over /0 countries
working to help people of all ages to
make measurable progress in their
Ives through all kinds of learning,

We provide learning materials,
technologies, assessments and
services to teachers and students

in order to help people everywhere
aim higher and fulfil their potential.

We put the learner at the centre
of everything we do.

Responding to new recommendations and best practice, every effort has
been made to ensure this report s far, balanced and understandable
MNotably, our ‘Responsible business' section has been reshaped around
our "Social impact’, to reflect a new and broader commitment to making
a positive contribution to society

Together with *Our business’ and ‘Our performance’, these three sections
of this document (p2-56) form our strategic report, which was approved
for issue by the board on 9 March 2015 and signed on its behalf by

RAL

Robin Freestone Chief financial officer
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Chairman'’s introduction

Glen Moreno
Chairman

“The most difficult phase of our
transformation has now been
completed... one which has laid
the foundations to strengthen
our position as the world’s
largest education company.”

Share price performance

+32.09%

FTSE 100 +2 0%
FTSE All Share +2 3%

Performance over 12 months 10 announcement of
prehrmnary results (dlose of 27 February 2015)

Source Datastream

Read our full Governance section p57-112©
LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS p60-69 ©
ACCOUNTABILITY pr0-77 Q
ENGAGEMENT p78-81 ©
REMUNERATION p82-106 ©
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES plO7-12 Q@

Dear shareholders,

We continue to make this report as helpful as possible

to ourshareholders and everyone interested in our
company We are guided by the IIRC and FRC'’s principles,
and wherever possible, we will continue to move towards
those over the next few years Our ambituon this year is
to tell a more transparent, conase, and joined-up story
of the journey we are on to create value

In 2013 we made a series of commitrnents designed to
measure and Increase the company’s IMpact on learning
outcomes around the world In 2014, John Fallon and fus
leadership team have embedded efficacy — the idea that
each product or service we invest in is judged by the
outcomes it helps learners achieve — as the defining
principle around which Pearson 1s organised We also,
as an organisation, reaffirmed the values that we stand
for, which John talks about in more depth on page 4
This reportis the story of how these commitments wall
resultin a more sustainable and profitable company

Read more about this In our Chuef executive’s strategic
overview on p4-9, and our Efficacy secuion on p38-43

Transforming for long-term success

The most difficult phase of our transformation has now
been completed This has been one of the most significant
restructures in our long and varied history, one which has
laid the foundations to strengthen our position as the
world's largest educaton company The benefits of this
restructure are already being felt, as Pearson becomes
more digital, more service-driven, and more capable

of mproving education in the world's great economies
They are also visible in the way we are organised, the
strategies behind which we are marshalled, and our
emerging culture This 1s explaned and exemplified
throughout this report

Transformations of this scale cannot succeed without

the commitment of all our stakeholders, and | am very
grateful to our shareholders and employees for the
confidence and patience they have placed in our long-term
vision Although in 2014 our share price saw some
volatility, at the time | write this (having just announced
our preliminary results) it has recovered significantly,
nsing 32% over the last 12 months Over the ten years to
December 2014 it had almost doubled (89 3%), during
which ume the total shareholder return has increased

by 182 6% Moreover, I'm delighted that, for the 23rd
consecutive year we've been able to increase our dividend
pershare We have confidence that these trends will
continue, thanks to the steps we have takenin the last
two years
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Share price performance

QOne year % change

Pearson | -H 3%
FTSE 100 [ ] 27%
FTSE All-Share | 21%
FTSE All-Share Media [ | 08%
STOXX 600 Meda ] 73%
Fwve years % change

Pearson [ 336%
FTSE 100 [ 21 3%
FTSE All-Share [ ] 28 0%
FTSE All-Share Meda NG 00 5%
STOXX 600 Media [N 70 5%
Ten years % change

Pearsen [ ] 89 3%
FTSE 100 I 36 4%
FTSE All-Share [ ] 46 5%
FTSE All-Share Medw [ 75 2%
STOXX 600 Meda S EENENEINER 367%
Scurce Datastreamto 31 December 2014

Total shareholder return {TSR)

One year % change

Pearson | 7%
FTSE 100 | 07%
FTSE All-Share B 2%
FTSE All-Share Media I 35%
sToxX 600 Mediz [N Hgs
Five years % change

Pearson L] 62 0%
FTSE 100 I 448%
FTSE All-Share s 51 8%
FTSE All-Share Mecia [T 1221%
sTOXX 600 Medz | 107 5%
Ten years % change

Pearson T 52 6%
FTSE 100 ] 96 1%
FTSE All-Share ] 107 6%
FTSE All-Share Media NN 137 0%
STOXX 600 Meda NN 971%

Source Datastream to 31 December 2014

TSR 1s one of our KPls

Moreonpl4 @

Building a balanced and strong team

Though our immediate transformauon has been
completed, we will, of course, continue to adapt and
Improve to ensure our ongolng success We continue to
build a balanced, expenenced team, welcoming Elizabeth
Corley and Tim Score to the board, and a number of
highly regarded industry specalists to the executive
management team

This year we have also held our triennial external board
review, and alongside that we have established a process
for long-term succession planming, which we'll undertake
annually Iwould hke to take this opportunity to thank our
chief financial officer, Robin Freestone, for his enormous
contribution to Pearson over the last ten years We look
forward to Coram Williams joiming us in that role on

I August 2015 Read more about our board on page 60,
and the executive team on page 9

Looking forward

These are exaiting ttimes for everyone inveolved at Pearson,
as we begin to see the opportunities created by two

years of very substanual transformauon ithasbeena
challenging journey at times, but worth it We now move
Into our next chapter, better prepared than ever to help
people all over the world progress in their lives through
learning, and In so doing, create a growing sustainable
company for the benefit of our shareholders

M.Aé-\%

Glen Moreno, Chairman
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Chief executivess strategic overview

John Fallon
y Chief executive

"For education to really work it needs
to not only provide access, but
ensure progress... by standing at the
intersection of new technology and
good teaching practices, we can help
to make learning more accessible
and more relevant for more people
around the world.”

Short stories of impact

Rozanna's story

MIDRAND

SRAGUATE FMRRITUTE

Dear shareholders,

Pearson's purpose 1s to empower people to progress in
therr lives through learning, and that means we putthe
learner at the heart of everything we do Through this
review, you'll see five stories from students that illustrate
how we've been doing over the last year

Each story demonstrates the commutment and ability
of the young woman involved, each a great source of
inspiratien to all of us Each showcases one of Pearson’s
most commercially successful products (MG, BTEC,
Connections, Wall Street English, MyLabs) of recent
years And they all lustrate that the bigger Pearson's
socialimpact — In improving access to good quality
educauon and ensuring that translates into meaningful
learming outcomes for far more people — the more we
can create a faster growing and more profitable company,
and do soIn a sustainable manner

Last October Malala Yousafzai accepted her Nobel Peace
Prize on behalf of the 66 million girls around the world
who don’t go to school In this same spirt, I've chosen five
stories that are about the achievements of young women
around the world You'll find more stories reflecting the
full diversity of what we do at www pearson com

Positioned to make a greater impact |

The transformauon programme we launched in February
of 2013 1s now complete Over the course of two years, ‘
we carried out as much restructuring, in terms of actvity
and costs incurred, as we'd carried outin the previous six

Rozanna has beaten overwhelming odds Borninto a
family in Zimbabwe in which neither parent had taken
A-levels, let alone attended uriversity, she was nota
typical candidate for higher educauion Insecurity, lack
of access to technology, and fear about personal safety
were some of the barners she faced But her thirst
foreducation led her to enrolin Pearson s Midrand
Graduate Insutute (MGI) in South Africa Rozannais
now a third-year psychology major with a drive for
achievernent that has inspired us all at Pearson She
prases her lecturers, and credits much of her success with
the personalised learning technology she uses at MGl



Section t Our business 05

That programme has been all about setting Pearson up
to be able to demonstrate the impact of what we do in
education arcund the world It 1s about enabling us to

do right across Pearson the thing that we have done
increasingly well in many parts of the company, and which
our stories of people learning all help to demonstrate
Thats, we stand at the intersecuon of new technology
{withits ability to engage, personalise and diagnose) and
new, more effective, ways of teaching This position allows
us to develop products and services that enable the
benefits of richer, deeper learning to be more widely felt

We've had to conduct this accelerated programme of
change whilst deahing with cyclical and policy related forces
In our biggest markets, which | described in last year's
report, and which continued to hurt usin 2014 In spite

of these challenges, I'm pleased to report that we did
meet the financial expectations that we set publicly for
the company at the start of the year Overall, ata tme

of much internal disruption and upheaval, we putina
generally good competitive performance There were

a couple of areas of under-performance, too, and we're
working hard to do better in these acuviiies in 2015

kv wasn't just Pearson’s education related businesses that
performed well through this period of change Penguin
Random House, the company we own with Bertelsmann,
turned in a best-selling performance whilst integrating the
two companies And the Financial Times, now part of our
professicnal education business, continued to deliver the
world's best news and information to its audiences whilst
accelerating its own digital transition

Short stories of impact

Bethany's story

In 2015, we expect Pearson’s profits to start to grow
again, as the forces that have been working against us
over the last two years start to ease, and as we benefit
from the cost savings achieved by our restructuring and
the revenues generated by our new investments

A growing global demand

We'llbe working hard with our customers to tackle what
we think 1s one of the most important challenges in the
world today For globalisation and the disruptive powers
of technology mean we live in a ‘Second Machine Age’

in which, as my colleague, Lionel Barber (editor of the
Financial Tirnes) puts it, “leverage in the workplace 1s best
achieved through knowtedge " This means that equipping
every global ciuzen with what are sometimes described as
‘2lstcentury skills' 1s more important than ever In other
words, for education to really work, it needs to not only
provide access, but ensure progress

To prosper in career and college, all young people need to
leave school iterate and numerate, with good knowledge
of saence, technology and the liberal arts, and being able
to apply that knowledge to solve real world problems
They also need to be proficient in the kinds of less tangible
skifls that will help them succeed in the workplace —cnucal
thinking, adaptability, team-working, and digital fluency

They need the grit, resilience and determination to
persevere and succeed —and, most of all, they need
the capacity to carry on learning throughout their lives
These are all chings that can be taught

Bethany s a UK student who did not take A-levels, but
instead went after a BTEC qualfication She ke so
many recent BTEC applcants, appiied to university with
a different skillset, but not with any less determinanon
or ability Her hard work and credentals were
recognised when she was accepted to study Psychology
and Linguistics at Oxford University Bethany's story
highlights that a skills-based qualification ke a BTEC 1s
nota lesser credential butone that can seta student
up for success in higher education and a career
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Chief executive's strategic overview continued

2015 prioriues

Meeting the need

For the two billion people learning English as a foreign
language, or the 300-400 mullion more people enrolling n
higher education over the next 30 years, and all the other
students of all ages around the world, the need for effective
and relevant teaching and learning will continue to grow

Of course, there are challenges to meeung this need
Fragmented and siloed approaches to education, changes
In government policy and regulations, and widely diverse
econormic and social conditions, make our work, and that
of educators worldwide, much more complex Butwe

are confident that by standing at the intersection of new
technology and good teaching practices, we can help to
make learning more accessible and more relevantfor more
people around the world

In 2015, five prionites, outlined here, are guiding our work

Educauon revenues 2013 ($bn)

37 don
T | i $40bn
I oo Group $3 Son
- Benesse Education %3 4bn
T <ol (Graham Holdings) $2 lbn
_ Cengage Learrings $1 8bn
I Corinthian Colleges $1 5bn
_ Houghton Mifflin Harcourt $14bn
_ McGraw Hilt Global Education 31 2bn
S (= Oriental Education & Technology $1 Ibn
* Esumate

Short stortes of impact

Zuriels story

.
le:f'h
;l 3 5

X%
s zugvist
Ry

CONMNECTIONS
@ACADEMY”

A business model focused on helping more
people achieve better learning outcomes

Our efficacy intiative, first outlned in last year's report, 1s
no longer justa framework Efficacy 1s now at the centre
of our business model and a major part of how we create
value This year, we'llembed it even more deeply into the
fabric of everything we do so that it reaches more products
influences more people and transforms more processes
As our customers become ever more focused on achieving
better returns on education refated spending, Pearson s at
the forefront of a great global growth opportunity And it
enables us to put our sooat impact at the very heart of our
business This applies to our Project Literacy campaign
(page 54) and the renewed investmentin our Pearson
Affordable tearming Fund (page 56), just as it does to the
research and development of new products and services
and the way we engage with our customers each day

[t1s the means by which we ensure that education is

more accessible, impactful and affordable, and delivers
those outcomes to people regardless of location

Our business model

Qurr efficacy programme,
as5essing and ywnproving
the impact of our
products 15 crucalto our
valua ¢t ealion mode!

LEARNER
QUTCOMES

Zuriel s an ambitious 12-year old documentary
filmmaker, onginally from Nigeria, who now lives in
Calforria She s enrclled in Pearson's enurely online
Connections Academy, which she says allows her 1o
“do extracurricular acuvities even when travelling
overseas creating documentaries, and Interviewing
African leaders,” without missing important
schoclwork Zunel recently launched the "Speak Up
Stand Up* project to inspire girts on the African
continent to “stay in school, get a good education,
and also to accomplish therr dreams ™ We can safely
say she s leading by example
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2 New digital products

To further this work, we'll be launching new global
products to meet the need for much better learning
outcomes They connect content with assessment and
feedback They use analytics and big data to personalise
learntng — making 1t a far more collaborative and effecuve
expenence for students and teachers They alidraw on
world-class research inte the science of teachung and
learning In the end they'll all be mobile first and device
neutral And they are all designed to take full account of
Justhow ‘messy’ education can be, how importantitis
to deliver large and complex projects, and how to deal
with ‘last mile’ 1ssues Qur customers all know that the
real problem in education ts not finding a great teacher
or areally good school, but being able to rephcate that
excellence at scale All our new digital products are
focused on meeting that need

QOur priorities

Blended and virtual schocls  Blended and wrtual Blended and virtual

{e.g. Connecuons Educavon)  hugher educationfearning  English language learmung
Siscemas e g COCY feg CTh (e g Wall Street English)
Large scale assessment Online programme Pearson VUIE
services {e g TestNav) management (2 g our Global Scale of English
World class quahfications garmf_,rsmp WIBIAMZON  4nd Progress

NIversity «
(e 8 Edexcel, BTEC) A‘;S Cnihine) ki Next-generation

courseware (e g
MyEnglksh Lab ELT World
Tep Notch)

Digrtal chnical portfoho
(eg Q Interactive)
Next-generauon
courseware {e g
enVisionMATH Pearson
System of Courses
Realize)

Next-generauon
courseware (e g REVEL)

Short stores of impact

Jubas story

Al

3 A more focused company

We're building these products in a modular and scalable
way, and deploying therm on a smaller number of global
platforms This improves the customer experience,
makes it much easier to share assets and resources across
the whole company, and 1s also much more cost effecuve
It ts one example of how we are simplifytng our company
We've already reduced the number of applications and
systems used across the company by 10%, and we will
continue that work this year We have already sold a
number of businesses where either we lacked scale or
we saw limited scope for us to have a more direct impact
onlearning outcomes This work will continue, aswe
focus our resources and energy on the biggest education
challenges we see around the world Itis where we can
make the biggest mpact, and where, by running Pearson
as one company, we see the biggest opportumty

Owur operaung structure

We operate aglobal
model focused on
learner need at different
ages and stages, locally
adapted and defivered,
and abways with the
learner at the centi e

PEARSON

Fearon Eecutr'®

Julia s fearning English at one of Pearson’s Wall Street
Enghsh centres in Shanghar Fmet with her during my visit
there and was inspired by her drive She now lives far
from her parents’ farm in south China, and far from

the norms of rural life jula’s decision to leave home to
continue (n higher educauon might have come as a shock
to her famuly, but she 1s determined to improve her
English language capabiiues n order to further her career
prospects and oneday find work with a global company
She likes to engage on social media with frends she s met
virtually around the world —and she wants to use her
Enghish language skills to spread the word that, as she
puisit, “there’s more to my country than ar poliution
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Chref executive’s strategic overview continued

2015 prioriues conuinued

4 A more consistently high

performing culture

At its best, Pearson has always championed high
performance, we're now taking a whole series of

actions (including how we recruit, appraise and reward
everyone who works for Pearson) to make this a feature
of everything we do We've reaffirmed, and amplified,
our fong held values of ‘brave, imaginative and decent’,
which are particularly iImportant at a ume of great change
(Ofthe top 100 executives in the company, 70 are, in the
fast two years, new to their roles or to the company )
We've also added ‘accountable’ as a fourth core value
Thts 15 important to ensure that, in our new more ‘matrix’
style organisation, we all actively help each other to
achieve our collective goals Italso recogrises how
Important it 1s to be accountable to the public trust

for all we do in education around the world

IMAGINATIVE

BRAVE
N353

ACCOUNTABLE

Short stories of impact

Taylor's story

MyStatsLab

& online tools

5 A stronger brand

This accountability extends to our wallingness to engage
in the public debate Educauon s one of the most
important areas of public hfe and evokes strong
emotions and optnions in a field where data and
evidence as to ‘what works can be difficult to come
by Our focus on educationalimpact and learning
outcomes —and our openness and transparency in
holding ourselves to accountin achieving these goals —
15 vital to address these concerns Today, public
awareness of Pearson as the world’s leading learning
campany, 15 stll relauvely imited if we are going to
achieve our full potential, we need 1o build Pearson,

as a global education brand that s known for our work
In empowering more people to progress in their lives
through learning This means, for example, thatwe
need to be much less muted in our engagement in the
arca 78 milhon-voice strong ‘global conversation’ that
our research telis us1s currently taking place around the
topics of ‘education’ and ‘learning” And we also need
to organise our product marketing so that we position
Pearson, especially online and through social media,

in a much more coherent way

Taylor is a student at the Unwversity of North Texas
who was not thrilled that Stausucs was a required
course for her major She lacked confidence in math
and nearly let that fear cause her to change course
and quit her degree programme altogether 'l thought
I didn’t have the ability to do maths,” she told us

Taylor was then introduced to Pearson’s MyStatstab
and decided to push through her fear Instead of falure
she found success through using the tool to reinforce
learming and pracuce in difficult areas She completed
her Stausucs class with the highest possible grade
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Looking ahead

In accepting her Nobel Peace Prize, Malala Yousafzai said
‘lam many 1{am not raising my voice, itis the vorce of
those 66 million girls* At the same event, her fellow
reapient, Kailash Satyarthi set us all the task of
‘universalising knowledge’

All 40,000 Pearson colleagues are tackhing these priorines
in that spint of ‘| am many, working with each other and
with the millions of students, teachers and schools we
serve We'll grow by helping more of our fellow citizens
to grow, by umiversahsing the knowledge (and the skills)
they'll need to succeed in this increasingly human capital
driven world Working with the communites nwhich
we operate, we'll combine new technology and new
teaching to enable the world to earn afar greater return
on the $5 trillion and more that s spent on education
each year As we succeed, we'll grow our market
opportunity and help many more people make progress
in their hves through learning As a result, we'll startto
grow again in 2015, and more mportantly, it will setus
up to be a faster-growing, leaner, more profitable and
cash-generative company for years to come We'llbe a
company deploying less capital, and capable of earning
higher returns

My executive team

Lines of Business

Doug Kubach, President, School

Tim Bozik, President, Higher Educaton
John Ridding, President, Professional

Geographies

Don Kilburn, President, North America
Rod Bristow, President, Core

Tamara Minick-Scokalo, President, Growth

| thark alf my colleagues for their hard work and
commutment And | thank our shareholders for their
support and patience We are already better placed to
help more learners around the world to achieve thewr
own personal aspirauons

A Qe

john Fallon Chief executive

Enabling functions

Robin Freestone, Chieffinancial officer

Coram Williams, Chief financial officer from fst August 2015

Michael Barber, Chief educaton adviser

Kate James, Chief corporate affairs officer

Luyen Chou, Chief product officer

Albert Hitchcock, Chief nfformation officer

Mehnda Wolfe, Chief human resources officer

Phil Hoffman, Chief corperate finance & strategic development officer
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Financial overview

“In 2014, revenues were up 2% at
constant exchange rates to £4.9bn,
and level in underlying terms, but
declined 4% in headline terms due to
the negative impact of exchange rates.”

Robin Freestone, Chief financial officer 1014 2013 HEADLINE CER  UNDEREYING
Business performance (m Em  GROWTH GROWTH GROWTH
Sales 4,874 5,069 (4% 2% 0%
Adjusted operating profit
(excluding Mergermarket) 720 710 1% 8% 5%
Adjusted operating profit 722 736 (2% 5% 5%
Sales (at CER) —

Ad|usted earnings

| zcy per share 667 T0lp (5%
O 649 588 10%

Operating cash flow
Free cash flow 43 269 54%
Adjusted earnings per share Free cash flow per share 5090 333p 53%
_5% Return on Jnv;;;ed capital 56% 54% 0 2%prts
Netdebt 1639 1379 (19)%
Cperating cash flow Statutory results
+ I O(y Sales 4874 5069 (4%
O O—peraung pragf-‘l: 398 458 (13)%
Profit before tax 305 382 (0% T

Dividend per share —

O Basic earnings per share 58 1p 666p (13)%
+ 6/0 Cash generated in

operations 704 684 3%
Diwvidend per share S510p 480p 6%
Note

3} Growth rates are stated o a constant exchange rate (CER) basis unless otherwase stated YWhere
quoted undertying growth rates exclude both currency movements and porifolio changes Unless
otherwise stated sales exclude Penguin and Mergermarket while adjusted operaung profits include
Penguin Penguin Random Heuse and Mergermarket. Conunuing operawons exclude both Penguin
and Mergermarket

b) The business performance’ measures are non-GAAP measures andreconcifiations to the equivalent
statutory heading under IFRS are incfuded in notes to the consohdated financial statements 2 6 7 8
and 34 and the corporate and oper ating measures

<} For comparability purposes we have iIncluded an addinonal adjusted operating profitmeasure that
excludes the results of Mergermariet butincludes those of Penguin In 2014 Mergermarker contnbuted
anly one month of profit {£2m) whilst it contrbuted a full year in 2013 (£26m) Although Penguinis a
disconunued business the results are now effectively included within our assaciate share of PRI
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Profit & loss statement

In 2014, Pearson sales declined £195m, 4% in headline
terms, to £4 9bn Total adjusted operaung profit fell
£14m, 2% 0 headhine terms, ©o £722m after £44m of
net restructuring charges (2013 £135m)

Currency movements, primarily from the strength of
Sterling relative to the US Dollar during the year, reduced
sales by £272m and operating profits by £49m At
constant exchange rates (ie stripping out the impact of
those currency movements), our sales and adjusted
operating profit grew 2% and 5%, respectively

Acquisiions and disposals contributed £79m to sales and
a net zero to operating profits at constant exchange rates
This includes integration costs and investments related

to our newly-acquired companies, which we expense
Penguin Random House was reported post tax for the

full year in 2014, compared to only the second half in 2013
following the combination of Penguin with Random House
on | July 2013, and resulted in a £7m reduction in the
contribution to operating tncome with an equal benefit

to our tax charge

Stripping out the impact of portfolio changes, Penguin
Randorm House and the impact of currency movements,
revenues were level in underlying terms while adjusted
operating profit (excluding Mergermarket) grew by 5%

Net nterest payable in 2014 was £64m, compared to
£72min 2013 This decrease 1s matnly due to the impact
of foreign exchange translation and additional interest
recervable on cash balances held overseas which offset
the effect of higher average net debt levels in the period

Our tax rate in 2014 was 17 9% compared to 14 6% 1n
2013 reflecting tax settlements in 2013

Adjusted earnings per share were 66 7p (2013 70 Ip)

Restructuring

Net restructuring charges were £44m (2013 £135m)

and included portfolio, utle, markeung and technology
ratonalisation in North America, the consohdation and
integration of our operavions in certain Growth markets
and a move to a distributor model in South Korea, the
exit of non-strategic business ines in certain Core and
Growth markets, and, across all of our businesses,
technology platform and operations simplification and the
ongoing transformaton of our supply chain and customer
contact operations Gross restructuring costs were £84m
in 2014 (2013 £176m) offset by esumated net benefits
in-year of £40m (2013 £41m)

Cash generation

Headline operating cash flow increased by £61m to
£649m benefiung from improved working caprtal from
deferred revenue growth and an increased dividend

from Penguin Random House, partly offset by increased
investment levels and ongoing restructuring charges

Free cash flow Increased by £144m to £413m, additionally
reflectung lower tax payments Our average working
capital to sales ratio improved by a further | | percentage
points to |12 3% helped by lower inventory levels and the
absence of Penguin

Return on invested capital

QOurreturn on average invested capital was 5 6% (2013
5 4%) Despite lower reported profit, ROIC benefited
from lower cash tax paid We expect ROIC to start to
improve again in 2015
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Financial overview continued

Statutory results

In 2014, our statutory operatng profit was £398m after a
£77m write down of the balance sheet value of intangibles
in our Indian business, a £38m loss on disposal of our
stake In Nook Media and a £40m gain on the disposal

of our stake 1n Safar Books Online and CourseSmart
Cur statutory earnings were £470m, nduding a £198m
gain from the disposal of Mergermarket and a £2%m
adjustment to the Penguin dispasal, primanly in relation
to pensions

In 2013, our statutory operating profit was £458m
Our statutory earnings were £539m, induding a £217m
gain from the disposal of Pengumn

Balance sheet

Our net debtincreased to £1,639m (£1,379mn 2013)
pnimanly reflecting the strengthening of the US dollar
relative to Sterling and the acquisiion of Grupo Mult
partly offset by the disposal of Mergermarket, fewer
restructuring charges, improved working capital, the
growth in deferred reverwie and an increased dividend
from Penguin Random House Pearson’s net debt/
EBITDA rato increased from | 6xin 2013 to | 9xin 2014
and our interest cover increased from 10 2xto | 3x

Dividend

The board is proposing a dvidend increase of 6% to 51 Op,
subject to shareholder approval 2014 will be Pearson’s
23rd steaight year of ncreasing our dvidend above the
rate of inflation Over the past ten years we have
increased our dividend at a compound annual rate of

7%, returning more than £2 9bn to shareholders VWe
have a progressive dvidend policy we intend to build

our dividend cover to around 2 Ox over the long term,
increasing our dividend more in line with earnings growth
from then

2015 outlook

In 2014, we completed the major restructuring and
product nvestment programme, mitiated in 2013,
designed to accelerate Pearson's shift towards significant
growth opportuniues in digital, services and fast-growing
economies We believe this will provide Pearson with a
significantly larger market opportunity, a sharper focus
on the fastest-growing markets and stronger financial
returns In 2015, we are returning to more normal levels
of restructuring expenditure

Based on 2l January 2015 exchange rates, we expectto
report adjusted earnings per share of between 75p and
80pin 2015 The major factors behind this gurdance are
as follows

Trading conditions

We continue to expect that cyclical and policy related
factors stabilise in 2015

In North America, our largest market, we expect growth
in online tugher education services and VUE and, with
more stable college enrolments and a slower new edition
year, learning services to be broadly level Inschool,
while the possibility of further policy related disrupuon
remains, we expect greater stability in learning services
and assessments with growth in virtual schools

In our Care markets (which include the UK, ltaly and
Austraha), we expect trading conditions to stabilise In the
UK, growth in Inside services to broadly offset declines in
learning services in Austraha, and sustatned share in Italy
following share gains in 2014 We expect the Financal
Times to continue to benefitfrom, and invest in, its

digrtal transition
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In our Growth markets (which include Brazil, China, India
and South Africa), we expect good growth in China in
our English Language Learning adultand test preparation
businesses and continued stability in learning services, in
Brazil, we expect a better year in our Sistemas business
and good growth in our English Language Learning
franchises, and in South Africa we expect a more stable
year in learning services with modest growth in higher
education direct delivery

Portfolio changes

We benefited for many years from the synergies

created by integrating Penguin into our shared services
operations Following the transiuon of Penguin from
Pearson services during 2014, some shared services

costs remain with Pearson without associated revenues
We estimate these shared services costs at approxirmately
£30m We can reduce this somewhat over tme which
will be captured in aur normal levels of restructuring

Pearson has initiated a process to explore a possible sale
of PowerSchool and our other Student Infermation
Systerns businesses including PowerSchool SMS,
Gradespeed, and e5I5 Forms This process 1s at an early
stage and there 15 no certainty that itwill lead to a
transacuon In 2014, PowerSchool contributed $97m of
revenues and $20m of operating income Our guidance
assumes ownership of PowerSchool for all of 2015
Pearson has appointed Evercore to advise on the process

Currency mavements

Pearson generates approximately 60% of its sales in the
US A five cent move in the average £ $ exchange rate for
the full year (which i 2014 was £1 $1 65) has an impact of
approximately | 3p on adjusted earrungs per share

The benefit from the weakening of Sterling against the
US dollar on our reported operating income will be
partly offset by the strength of Sterling against a range of
non-US dollar currencies, induding the euro, Australian
dollar and certain emerging markets currencies, and a
higher interest charge as Sterling weakness against the
US dollar increases the Sterling value of our US dollar
denominated debt and interest payments

Restructuring

We will benefit from the absence of £44m of exceptional
net restructuring charges expensed in 2014 and we sl
expect to generate £45m ofincremental cost savings

in 2015

These benefits will be partly offset by normal levels of net
restructuring of approximately £30m in 2015

Interest and tax

We expectour interest charge to be higher than 2014,
reflecung hugher average net debt levels, primarily as a
result of the strength of the US dollar against Sterling

We expect a tax rate of approximately |7% on our total
profit before tax {which includes the post-tax contribution
from Pengum Random House)
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Key performance indicators
Five-year performance

Financial objecaves KPRl Performance
H H Sales 3 7(y
Ma‘lnta’l n Sales rose 2% at CER in 2014 and have grown over the last + . (o]
Iong_term five years atan average annual rate of over 3%, reflecung
good long-term growth in digital and services businesses and Learn more about Iink to
grOWth acquisitions 1n the global education market partally offset by a remuneration on p86

shuft to subscription revenues, recent cyclical and policy factors
and adverse exchange rate movements

Total adjusted operating profic

Toral adjusted operating profic rose 5% in 2014 at CER and has
fallen at a compound annual rate of 3 4% since 2009 reflecting
good long-term growth in digital & services offset by the sale of
businesses, exceptional restructuring costs in 2014, recent cychceal
and pohcy factors and adverse exchange rate movements

-3.4%

. Total adjusted earnings
Del ver Total adjusted earnings per share 1s down 5% year-on-year n
2014 reflecung portfoho changes exchange rate movements
sustal nable and a higher tax rate Over five years EPS has grownatan
returns average annual rate of O 4% reflecting good long-term growth

i our digital and services businesses offset by declines in prnt,
portfolio changes recent exceptional restrticturing costs cycheal
and pohicy factors and adverse exchange rate movements

Return on Invested capita!

ROIC grew 0 2% to 5 6% m 2014 and was affected by lower
reported profit and 2 higher tax charge ROIC has fallen from

8 9% 1n 2009 We expect ROIC to start to improve againin 2015

Total shareholder return

TSR in 2014 was -7% which compares to a |% return on the
FTSE 100 Index of large UK hsted comparies Over five years,
Pearson has retwurned approximately 62% well ahead of the
return on the FTSE 100 Index of 45% over the same period

Dividends per share
We increased dividends in respect of 2014 by 6% 1o 51p, our
23rd straight year of increasing our dividend above the rate

+0.4%

Learn more about link to

remuneration on p86é o

-3.3

percentage points

Learn more about ink to
remuneration on pBé

+619%

Learn more about ink to
remuneration on p8é

+/.5%

ofmflaton
Operating cash flow (o)
M aEage our Operating cash flow rose to £64%min 2014 up more than 10%, - 6 . 6/)
cas oslition benefiting from lower restructuning charges improved working
P capttal deferred revenue growth and an increased dividend from Learn more about hnk to
effectlve I)/ Pengum Random House, partly offset by ncreased investment remuneratton on pB6

levels Over five years operaung cash flow has declined atan
average annual rate of over 6% per annum reflecting good long
term growth in our digital and services businesses offset by dechines
in pring, portfolio changes recent excepuonal restructuring costs,
cycheat and policy factors and adverse exchange 1 ate movements
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Strategic objectives
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Data/Progress

Sales 2009-20(4 £m
6000
ol
3000

2000

1000

0 o9 10 1 2 13 14

. e G

Adjusted operating profit 2009-2014 £m
1000 " .#.m.\

800 o—s
&00
400
20
0 09 10 kH 12 13 4

Adjusted earrings per share Pence

EIRR -
EE IR 7 '/

ECE N ¢: >
o T
T /7 5>
I 5 >

Return on invested capital %

S
2013 5 4%
T
ET R - 0

EZ R 5%

R

TSR Five-year change %

Pearson 620%

448%

51 8%

122 1%

STOXX 400 Media 107 5%

Dividend per share paid in fiscal year Pence

EXN, | o
EIE - o
FIR - o
ECTT R - o
Er :: 7

Operating cash flow £m

2014 £549m
2003 £583m
788
£983m

2080 £1057m

£913m

Tran sform Revenue share
to digital and EE“ FES% £3 O b N
services ok .
20i4~62 1%
Grow Revenue share
presence in 2010 - 109% m
£496m £794
emerging 2014 - 16 3%
markets

Non financial measures

» Review programme on track
DEIWer > Plans to report first pilot impact
measur‘able results n 2016 on target
im pact Efficacy reviews
completed
(Efficacy) 200
Dellver Gender diversity
d o T 7 MEN WOMEN
genaer Board 7 % 3 30%
balance Senior managers
{excl execuuve
board directors) &4 65% 35 35%
All_ernployees 17064 41% 23470 58%
Global GHG emissions
Reduce our Metric tonnes CO.e
carbon 2014
footprint 129,742 -11%
2013
145718
Malntain Community investment spend {m
2014 £14.4m
community g
investment EXT i
€3 1m
2010 £10 5m
EE I < 7
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Section 2 Our performance

Developing for access, delivering for outcomes

Our strategy centres on a significant and exciting
long-term opportunity: the sustained and growing
global demand for greater affordability, access, and
achievement in education. We can meet this demand
by accelerating our shift to digital, to services and to
fast-growing economies, and committing to deliver
measurably improved learning outcomes through
our efficacy framework.

Our primary segments for management reporting
are Geographies (North America, Core and
Growth) as this is how we drive business
performance. This is how we reach learners, through
content and digital services in individual classrooms:
through broad partnerships with public and private
education institutions and, in certain markets, by
directly expanding capacity through our own schools
and colleges.

This geographical structure is wholly dependent upon
a parallel product developmenit strategy, in which we
organise by learning ages and stages — School, Higher
Education and Professional.

By focusing our product development around the
needs of the learner, we are able to centre evidence
and expertise where it can be best applied to
improving outcomes for people.
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Section 2 Qur performance

Operating performance continued

Geography

g
=
North
A ' 5
Sales Ad)usted operating profit
o]
£3.0bn £464m BE
Revenues declined 3% in headline terms, due -g
to the strengthening of sterling against the >
US dollar, but increased by 2% at both CER a
and in underlying terms Revenue growth in
Connections Education, VUE, Clinical and
Higher Education was parually offset by
declines in School learning services and State 0
Assessments Adjusted operating profits "
declined 2% in headline terms due to currency 8
movements, but grew 5% at both CER and .
underiying, reflecting revenue mix, lower §
returns provision, reduced US pension costs -
and lower restructunng charges
In our statutory results, we recognised a £38m
loss on disposal of our 5% stake in Nook Media P
and a £40m gain on the disposal of our stakes g
i Safar Books Online and CourseSmart. ;z'
2
4 & >
N >
Our new operating and reporung structure %
z

North America Qur largest market, accounting
for 61% of revenues in 2014

Learn more about Our operaung structure on p7 o
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Operating performance continued

North America
continued

School

In School, good growth n Connections Education, our
wvirtual schools business, was offset by declines in our

State Assessments business due to the impact of legislative
changes in Texas and California, and in learning services,
due to some loss of market share (as reported at the half
year), revenue deferral on blended programmes and
softness in the Open Terntores

Connections Education served over 62,000 Full Time
Equivalent students during 2014 through full-ume virtual
and blended programmes, up more than 15% from 2013
Three new full-time virtual public schools were launched In
2014 and an additional one will aunch in 2015 Atfull-ome
virtual schools supported by Connections Education,
students consistently outperform their virtual school
peers on state standardised tests Students at College
Park Academy, a blended school in Maryland using the
Connections Education curniculum, scored significantly
higher than their in-state peers in reading and math in

the Maryland School Assessment (MSA) for 6th and

7th Grades

In State and National Assessments, high stakes online test
volumes grew strangly, up 40% on 2013 to || mullion, as
customers transitioned to computer-based testing Paper-
based high stakes test volumes declined 17% to 32 million,
in part due to the growth of computer-based testing, but

CONNECTIONS
ACADEMY?®

£
Connecuons Education served over 62,000 (+15%) full ume
equivalent students during 2014 through full-ume virtual and
blended programmes At full-ume virwal schools supported
by Connections Educanon students consistently outperform
their virtual school peers on state standardised tests

Learn more at connectonseducation com

@mw

1 . -
ey L
it S e

also the impact of legislative changes in Texas and Calformia
We were awarded contracts to admunister Partnership for
Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC)
assessmentsn || states and extended our contracts

to admiruster Virginia Standards of Learning (SOL)
Assessments and the Maryland High School Assessment
We will continue 1o adrmirsster the Flonda Comprehensive
Assessment Test (FCAT) untl summer 2016

Clinical Assessment grew strongly, benefiung from the
launch of the fifth edivon of the Wechsler Intelligence Scale
for Children (WISC-V} and strong growth in Q-Interacuve,
where early studies are showing good improvements in
mental health professional praductvity and student
engagement levels

PowerSchool supported almost 13 million students {in
more than 70 countries), broadly level with 2013, while
lcensed Schoolnet student counts rose more than 10%to
over I0milien In New Jersey we launched Schoolnet in 27
school districts, with 14 more implementations in progress,
and have delivered over 400,000 assessments since launch

Learning services revenues declined due to the impact of
revenue deferrals from blended digital programmes and
a loss of market share, with a weaker performance in
Grades 6-8 Science and Math in Texas, and Grades 6-12
Literature and Grades 6-8 Math in Florida only partly
offset by a stronger performance in K-6 Math in Texas,
Grades 6-12 Soaial Studies in Tennessee and Grades

K-6 Mathin California We won an estimated 25% of
the total new adoptions market (of $910m i 2014)
enVisionMATH, which now has the largest installed base
of elementary students in the US, contnues to drive
significant improvements in student computation and
prcblem solving

F L. Mok iy b P

o
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Higher Educauon

In Higher Education, total college enrolmenis fell, as
expected, by 1 3% Career enrolments in two-year public
{community} and four-year for-profit colleges declined
3%, with nsing employment rates and regulatory change
affecting the for-profit and developmental learning sectors

Learning services grew modestly, prnimarily due to market
share gains, continued growth in digital courseware
registratcns, a stronger new edition cycle and less
pronounced seasonality MyLab registrations in North
America grew 3% to almost I millon Lecturer generated
case studhes indicate that the use of MyLab programmes,
as part of a broader course redesign, can support
improvements in student test scores (http //pear sn/
1ZxLE) We launched REVEL, which combines trusted
content with interactive videos, quizzes, a mobile user
interface, study tools, assignment calendar and
performance dashboard for 17 humanities and social
suences subjects The launch of REVEL is the first of
numerous product lines taking advantage of our new
cloud-based, mebile-ready, and data analytics capabilites
New editions launched in 2014 included Tro, The Structures
and Properties of Chermistry, Acemoglu, Laibson and List,
Economucs, and Pearson Whtter, an application built for
mobile devices that helps students in developing writing
skills We published a range of dignal utles for The Boy
Scouts of Amenca and implemented a new digital
curriculum incorporatng enhanced Merit Badge
programmes in subjects including Robotcs, igital
Technology and First Aid for the organisation’s 2 7 million
youth members

Pearson On Line Services, where we run fully online
undergraduate and graduate learning programmes and
earn certain revenues based on the success of the students
and the institution, grew course enrolments by 22% during
the year with continued strong growth in programmes

at Arizona State University Online and University of
Flonda Online We signed new programmes with

Bradley University, to create five online graduate degree
programmes in nursing and counseling, and University of
Texas at Austin, Dana Center where we are partnering for
the web delivery of math courses for its New Mathways
Project (NMP), which will become part of a state-wide
reform initative 1n a collaboration between Dana Center
and the Texas Association of Community Colleges

We expanded our collaboratuon with the Amencan
Health Information Management Association (AHIMA)

to administer its online education business, which serves
AHIMA's 71,000 members including 10,000 higher
education students each year We now provide our
learring management system hosting 100 courses based
on AHIMA content, technical support, a next generation
Virtual Lab Product, and are launching a Coding Basics
course combining AHIMA and Pearson content

Professional

At VUE, global test volumes grew 9% year-on-year to
almost 13 muflion boosted by continued growth in IT,
State Regulatory and Professional ceruficatons

New contracts include a deal to adrunister the Microsoft
Cerufied Professional (MCP) Program globally, which
significantly expands our existing partnership with
Microsoft through Ceruport’s Microsoft Office Speaialist
{MOS) and Microsoft Technology Associate (MTA) exams

In 2014, we launched REVEL combimng trusted content
wath rich mteracuvity and content across |7 humaniues
and socal sciences subjects REVEL 1s the first of our
product Iines taking full advantage of our new cloud-based
mobile-ready, and data anatytics capabiities

Learn more at pearsonhighered com/revel

M L b registrations in North Amernca
y d grew 3% to almost |} mulion
Lecturer generated case studies indicate that

the use of MylLab programmes can support
IMprovements in test scores

Learn more at pearsonmylabandmastering com
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Section 2 Our performance

Operating performance continued

Geography

Core

¥ Sales Adjusted operating profit

£1.2bn £152m

Revenues declined by 8% in headline terms and
by 5% at both CER and in underlying terms
Modest growth in ltaly and good growth at

b VUE was offset by declines in UK assessment

revenues, due to the impact of policy changes
on our UK school qualifications business, and
reduction In partner market revenues, due to
divestments and a move to distributor models
implemented in 2013, FT revenues were
broadly level at CER, with digital content
growth offset by declines in print content and
adverusing Adjusted operaung profit (excluding
Mergermarket) increased by £32m to £152m,
driven by the benefits of restructuning acuons
taken over the last two years in all markets and
by profitgrowth at the FT

Our new operating and reporung structure

Core QOurbiggest Core markets are the UK Austraka Germany,
France, Benetux and haly Addisonally we have around 100 partner
markets where we do not have scale ourselves, so we collaborate
with others

Learn more about Our operaung structure on p? °
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Operatng performance continued

Core continued

Ve continue to mvest to build Pearson College in the
UK, and graduated our first 32 students during the year
Pearsen College was one of only four private colleges to
pass Quality Assurance Agency (QAA) review first ime

Learn more at pearsancollege com

School

In the UK, qualifications have been impacted by
government policy, where changes to accountability
measures and a shift to end of course assessmentsin
GCSE have led to a 21% decline n BTECs and | 1% decline
in General Qualifications In the year We marked almost
four million National Curriculum Tests, up 24% on 2013
Our contract to administer the National Curriculum Test
{(NCT) was extended to 2017 More than 4,600 schools,
with almost 850,000 children, now subscnbe to at least
one of the Bug Club services, our primary schoolblended
reading programme

In Austraha, we benefited from a stronger adoption year
and the launch of the locally standardised version of the
Wechsler Pre and Primary Scales of Intelhgence (fourth
edition) In ltaly, we gained share in both primary and
secondary with new tiles combined with professional
development and online cross-curricula support

In primary, we developed Top Secret and adapted

Our Discovery Island English Language Learring
programmes in secondary, we extended our market
leadership in the Humanities

Revenues declined significantly in our partner markets due
to challenging market conditons in Africa and Scandinavia
and the move to a distnbutor model in certain markets
We disposed of our local schools Iists in the Canbbean

as we continue to focus on our largest global geographic
opportunities

Higher Education

In the UK, cur learning services revenues declined,
primarly due to enrolment centracticn following policy
changes in the vocational markets Ve contmnue to
invest to build Pearson College and graduated our first

Bu lub

More than 4,600 schools in the UK, with
almost 850,000 children, now subscribe
to at least one of the Bug Club services,
our primary school reading programme

Learn more at bugclub co uk
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32 students during the year Pearson College was one
of only four private colleges to pass Quality Assurance
Agency (QAA) review first ime

In Australia, learning services revenues grew modestly
benefiung from growth in core subjects, such as Biology,
and direct-to-insutution sales of digital learning products
offset by our exit from vocational publishing Menash
Online, our collaboration with Monash University,
continues to show good growth and will launch additional
courses n the second half of 2015 In addition we
collaborated with another leading university in Austraha
to provide course development, recruitment, enrolment,
and student support services for post-graduate courses

Professional

At VUE, test volumes grew strongly following the
successful launch of a new contract with CPA Australka

to deliver Professional level exams and continued good
growth in UK Driving Theory testvolumes We will
continue to deliver our UK contract to adrminister the
Driving Theory test for the DVSA untl September 2016
VUE entered into ten year partnerships with the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants (CIMA)
and the Associaton of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) inthe UK to transform a selection of their exams
from pen and paper to computer-based testing

The contribution from The Economist Group was lower
due to a decline in advertising revenue, a wealker US dollar
and lower profits at CQ Roll Call The circulavion of The
Economist remans robust at | 6§ miflion, with an increase
of 23% in digital subscriptions The Economust’s new daily
app, Espresso, was downloaded almost 400,000 umes
The Group's content marketing services continue to
grow, with revenue increasing by 20% at CER

Forsti

8¢ bricted befare breakfast

DR P

Financral Times’ product innovations
include the FT Weekend web app,
and FirstFT, a daily emait briefing

of must-reads from its website and
cther sources

Learn more at ft com

Financial Times Group

At the Financial Times Group, the FT grew its total
arculanen by 10% year-on-year to a record high of
nearly 720,000 across printand online Digital
subscriptions increased 21% year-on-year to almost
504,000 and now represent 70% of the FT's total
paying audience The strong digital circulation growth
offset conunued structural dechnes in print content
and adverusing, where the FT continues to take
market share

Product innovanon and launches, including an FT
Weekend app, daily FirstFT briefing with editors’
selecton of essential news and comment from across
the web, ‘follow the author’ alerts and a new FT
Android App continue to result in steady growth in
mobile usage and ume spenton FT com Mobiles
the fastest growing thannet We launched the FT |IE
Corporate Learntng Allrance, a joint venture with IE
Business School, which provides premium custom
learming to business leaders around the globe The
partnership connects the academic excellence of
prominent business schools with the FT's award-
winning journalism and nsight into real worid and
real-ume business challenges

FT digital subseripuons
increased

+21%

504,000
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Operating performance continued

Growth

o Sales Adjusted operaung profit

£./746m £ 35m

Revenues grew |% in headline terms, despite the strength of
sterling against key emerging market currencies, grew by 1% at
CER, benefiting from the acquisiion of Grupo Multi; and were
down |% in underlying terms, primanly due to the phasing of
purchasing and a stronger School textbook adoption in South
Africain 2013 Growing English Language Learning enrolments in
China and college enrclments 1n Saudi Arabia and South Africa
were offset by a smaller School textbook market in South Africa,
and lower revenues in Brazil from Sistemas, and ELT and Higher
Sducation textbooks. Excluding the textbook impact in South
Afnca, revenues grew 4% in underlying terms  Adjusted operating
profit declined by £3m to £35m reflecting a benefit from the
acquisition of Grupo Mult offset by a slower adoption year in
South Africa, launch costs associated with our new vocational
colleges and a contract provision in Sauds Arabia, and weaker
revenues and restructunng costs in Brazil

FONYHNOIN3L ¥NO

In our statutory results, we wrote down the balance sheet value of
our Indian business by £77m largely reflecting the reduced value of
online tutoring which was prmarily focused on the US market

Our new operatng and reporting structure

Growth Our growth markets are made up of Brazil South Afnca, China India and other
fast-growing economies Arcund one third of our employees now work in these countries

Learn more about Our operating structure on p7 €

-
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Operating performance continued

Growth continued

School

In Scuth Africa, we performed well, competiively
maintaining our market share of the School textbook
market, but volumes declined significantly to more normal
levels following a large adoption year, and significant share
gains,in 2013

In Brazil, enrolments in our Sistemas were down 3% to
481,000 with growth in our public Sisternas (NAME)
offset by declines in our private Sistemas as we combined
our three sales forces into one 72% of the municipalities
that adopted NAME for lower secondary education
showed improvement in their IDEB score, Brazl's
federally established measure of educational quality

InIndia, DigiClass, our mulumedia teaching solution is
now nstalled in more than 26,000 classrooms, up more
than 10% on 2013 We partnered with IBM to further
accelerate our deployment across the country

Higher Educaution

In South Africa, student enrolments in CTI/MGI, our
private network of higher education institutions, grew
by 15% to 13,400 across I3 campuses

In Mexico, our fully accredited online university
partnership, UTEL, increased the number of students
enrolled from under 5,000 last year to more than 9,000
in 2014 as a result of improved consumer marketing
efforts and better student retention

In India, Higher Education revenues declined due to
hugh levels of returms

DigiClass, our mulumedia teaching solution is
now installed in more than 26,000 classrooms
in India up more than 10% on 2013

Learn more at digrelass in

Professional

In Pearson Enghsh, good growth in direct deliveryin
China and inside services in Brazil due to the acquisiion
of Grupo Multiwas partly offset by declines inlearning
services in Brazl and Mexico

Global student registrations for MyEnghshLab grew
15% to more than 460,000 with strong growthin
Latin America

We launched the Global Scale of English (GSE), a new
global standard for scoring English language proficiency
ona precise, numenc, universal scale for businesses,
governments and academic institutions  The scale s being
embedded into all Pearson English products and services

In China, English direct delivery enrolments grew at
both Wall Street Enghsh (WSE), up 2% to 66,000, and
Global Educauon, up 7% to 117,000 To support long-
term growth, we consolidated cur ERP systems in Chuma
and deployed a Salesforce com CRM system in WSE
We divested our online vocauonal traimng operations

In Braz!, we completed the acquisition of Grupo Mult,
the largest provider of private language schools in
Brazil We successfully integrated the business despite
challenging market conditions and disruption caused
by the World Cup and Presidential elections

M
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Student enrolments in CTI/MGI, our
universities across South Africa grew
by 15% to 13,400 across |3 campuses

Learn mere at ¢t ac za and mg) ac za
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Penguin Random House

Pearson owns 47% of Penguin Random House, the first
truly global consumer book publhistung company Penguin
Random House was reported post-tax for the full year in
2014, compared to anly the second half in 2013 following
the combination of Penguin with Random House on

| July 2013, which resulted in a £7m reducuon in the
contribution to operating income with an equal benefit
to our tax charge

Penguin Random House performed well in 2014,
benefiting parucularly from a strong publishing
performance in Children’s around the world and
mulu-millon-copy film and television tie-ins

The US business published 760 New York Tirnes printand
ebook bestsellers in 2014 (2013 full year pro forma 790),
enjoying exceptional success in children's publishing with
John Green's The Fault in our Stars (29 weeks at number
one on the New York Times bestsellers hist and nearty eight
milon copies sold) and four mullion copies of his backlist
ntles, vie-in wtles from Disney's Frozen film (more than

17 milkon copies sold), Dashner’s The Maze Runner,
Forman'’s If I Stay and continued strong sales of LEGO®
movie tie-in ttles Notable Adult tites included Grisham's
Gray Mountain, Child’s Personal, Monk Kidd's The Invention
of Wings, Follett’s Edge of Eternity, Bush's 4/ A Portrart of
My Father, along with strong film and television tig-ins,
such as Flynn's Gone G, Hillenbrand’s Unbroken, and
Martins's Song of Fire and Ice novels The UK business

I ot

GLOBAL SCALE

published 206 Sunday Times bestsellers (2013 pro forma
207}, also enjoying outstanding sales of john Green,
along wath the continued strength of Kinney's Wimpy
Kid franchise Key Adult utles ncluded Brown's Inferno,
Olver's jamie’s Comfort Feod and Girf Onfine by YouTube
sensaton Zoella, which became the fastest-selling debut
UK novel ever.

Pengun Random House has a strong pubhishing
programme for 2015, Including new tales from John
Grisham, Jamie Oliver; Toni Morrison, James Patterson,
Sylvia Day, Lee Child, Nick Hornby, Harlan Coben,
Danielle Steel, John Sandford, Janet Evanovich, Gayle
Forman, Emily Giffin and Nora Roberts, as well as film
ve-ins for 50 Shades of Grey, John Green's Paper Towns,
the sequel to James Dasher's The Maze Runner, and

Star Wors

The integration of the two businesses Is progressing

well and 15 on track to deliver net benefits in 2015 and
beyond Organisational structures have been aligned,
systems integration i1s well underway and consolidation
of North American warehousing will be completed in
the first half of 2045 In March 2014, Penguin Random
House acquired Sanullana Ediciones Generales, a leading
trade book publisher in Spain, Portugal and across

Latin America, consohidaung its leadership in Spanish
language publishing

A

GRUPO

of Enghsh

We launched Global Scale of English, a new
global standard for scoring English language
proficiency to be embedded into all Pearson
Enghsh products and services

Learn more at enghsh com/gse

Student enrolments at Walt Street English

in China grew 1o 66,000 (+2%)

Learn more at wallstreetenglish com

MULTI

We completed the acquisiuon of
Grupo Multy, the largest provider of
private language schools in Brazil
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Other financal information

Net finance costs

All figures in £ millions 2014 2013

Net interest payable (64) (72)

Finance income/{costs)
in respect of employee

benefit plans i 3}
Other net finance costs (30) {1
Total net finance costs (93) (76)

Net interest payable in 2014 was £64m, compared to
£72min 2013

Although our fixed rate policy reduces the impact of
changes in market interest rates, we were still able to
benefit from low average US dollar and sterhing mterest
rates during the year Year-on-year, average three-month
IiBOR (weighted for the Group’s net borrowings in US
dollars and sterling at each year end) feliby 0 1%6t0 0 2%
This decrease in floating market interest rates, along with
the impact of foreign exchange translation and addit:onal
interest recevable on cash balances held overseas, more
than offset the effect of higher levels of average net debt
inthe period These factors contributed to the overall
decrease in the Group's average net interest payable
from 4 8% to 3 6% The Group's average net debt rose
by £260m, largely as a result of net acquisiion actvity
and the translation of our predominanty US dollar debt

Finance income and costs relating to retrement benefits
have been excluded from our adjusted earnings as we
believe the ncome statement presentation does not
reflect the economic substance of the underlying assets
and habihtes Also included in the statutory defintion of
net finance costs (but not in our adjusted measure) are
finance costs on put options and deferred consideration
associated with acquisitions, foreign exchange and

other gains and losses Finance costs for put options

and deferred consideration are excluded from adjusted
earnings as they relate to the future potential acquisibon

of nen-controlling interests and don't reflect cash
expended Foreign exchange and other gains and losses
are excluded from adjusted earnings as they represent
short-term flucruations in market value and are subject
to significant volatiity Other gains and losses may not
be reahsed n due course as 1t1s normally the intention
to hold the related instruments to maturity

In 2014, the total of these items excluded from adjusted
earnings was a loss of £29m compared to a loss of £4m

in 2013 Both the losses in 2014 and 2013 manly relate to
foreign exchange differences on un-hedged cash and cash
equivalents and other financial instruments

Funding position and hquid resources

The Group finances its operations by a mixture of cash
flows from operations, short-term borrowings from
banks and commercial paper markets, and longer-term
loans from banks and capital markets Our objectve is

to secure continuity of fundimg at a reasonable cost from
diverse sources and with varying maturiwes The Group
does not use off-balance sheet special purpose entities as
a source of iquidity or for any other financing purposes
The net debt position of the Group 1s set out below

Allfigures in £ millions 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 530 729
Marketable securities 16 6
Net dervative assets 40 76
Bonds {2.173) (2,168)
Bank loans and overdrafts (42) (47)
Finance leases (10) (n
Net debt {1,639) (1,415)
Net cash classified as

held for sale - 36
Total net debt (1,639) (1.379)
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Net acquisition activity and foreign exchange rate
movements are the largest contnbutors to the increase

in the Group's net debt Reflecting the geographical and
currency split of our business, a large proportion of our
debtis denominated in US dollars (see note |9 for our
policy} The strengthening of the US dollar against sterling
during 2014 (from $1 66 to 31 56 £1) increases the sterhing
equivalent value of our reported net debt

The Group’s credit ratings remained unchanged during
the year The long-term ratings are Baal from Moody’s
and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the short-term
ratngs are P2 and A2 respectively In January 2014,
Moody's changed the outlook on its short-term and
long-term ratings from “Stable’ to ‘Negative’ In May 2014,
the Group accessed the capital markets, raising €500m
through the sale of notes maturing in May 2021 and
bearing interest at | 875% The notes were swapped

to floating rate in LS dellars to conform with the

policy described in note |9 The Group hasa $1,750m
committed revolving credit facility which was

refinanced in August 2014 and matures in August 2019

At 31 December 2014 this facility was undrawn The
facility 1s used for short-term drawings and providing
refinancing capabiities, including acting as a back-up for
our US commercal paper programme This programme
1s pnmarily used to finance our US working capital
requirements, in particular our US educational businesses
which have a peak borrowing requirement in June

At 3| December 2014, no commercial paper was
outstanding The Group also maintains other commutted
and uncommitted facilites to finance short-term working
capital requirements in the ordinary course of business
Further details of the Group’s approach to the
management of financial risks are set out innote 19

to the financial statemenits

Taxation

The effective tax rate on adjusted earnings in 2014 was

17 9% as compared to an effectve rate of 14 6%1n 2013
Our overseas profits, which anse manly in the US, are
largely subject to tax at higher rates than that in the UK
{which had an effective statutory rate of 21 5% n 2014
and 23 25%n 2013) These higher tax rates were largely
offset by amorusaton-related tax deductions and by
adjustments arising from settlements with tax authorities
Both these items were less significant in 2014 than they
had been in 2013

The reported tax charge on a statutory basis in 2014 was
£63m (20 7%) compared to a charge of £87m (22 8%) in
2013 The decrease in the statutory rate 1s manly due to
tax benefits anising on the increase inintangible charges
only partly offset by the factors affecung the adjusted rate
as described above

Tax paid In 2014 was £163m compared to £246m in 2013
Tax paid in 2013 was unusually high as a resuft of the
permitted deferral of US tax payments in 2012 following
Hurnicane Sandy These payments were subsequently
made in 2013 and were accompanied by additional
payments arising from settlements with tax authorities,
including £55m relating to prior year disposals

Discontinued operations

In October 2012, Pearson and Bertelsmann announced
an agreement to create a new consumer publishing
business by combining Penguin and Random House
The transaction completed on | July 2013 and from that
point, Pearson no longer controlled the Penguin Group
of companies and has equity accounted for its 47%
assoctate interest in the new Penguin Random House
(PRH) venwre
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Other financial information contnued

The loss of control resulted in the Penguin business being
classified as held for sale on the Pearson balance sheetat
30June 2013 and a subsequent gan on sale of £202m was
reported in the second half of 2013 Included in the gan
reported in 2013 was a provision for amounts payable to
Bertelsmann upon settlement of the transfer of pension
habiliues to PRH During 2014, it was decided that this
transfer would not go ahead as planned and the costs have
been credited back in the £29m gain reported against the
disposal in 2014

The results for Penguin in the first half of 2013 and the
gains reported in both 2013 and 2014 have been included
in discontinued operations The share of results from the
associate interest in the PRH venture anising in the second
half of 2013 and in 2014 has been included in operating
profitin continuing operations

Adduonally, on 29 November 2013 we announced

the sale of the Mergermarket Group to BC Partners

The sale was completed on 4 February 2014 and resulted
in a gain of £198m after tax The Mergermarket business
was classified as held for sale on the balance sheet at

31 December 2013 and the gain and the results for both
2013 and 2014 to the date of sale have been ncluded in
discontinued operations

Non-controlling interest

There are non-controfling interests in the Group's
businesses in South Africa, China and India although none
of these are matenal to Group numbers Dunng 2013
sorme of the minorities in South Africa and india were
bought out, further reducing the impact of these interests
n2014

Other comprehensive income

Included in other comprehensive Income are the net
exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations
The gain on translavuon of £175m 10 2014 compares to 2
loss in 2013 of £217m and 1s pnncipally due to movements
in the US dollar A significant proportion of the Group's
operations are based in the US and the US dollar
strengthened in 2014 from an opening rate of £1 $1 66

to a closing rate at the end of 2014 of £1 $1 56 Atthe end
of 2013 the US dollar had weakened in comparison to the
opening rate moving from £| $1 63 to £1 $1 66

Also included in other comprehensive income in 2014 1s
an actuartal gain of £8m (after offsetting a £15m loss in
respect of associates) in relation to post-reurement plans
Thus gain anises from changes in the assumpuons used 10
value the liabiliues and from returns on plan assets that are
in excess of the discount rate The gain compares to an
actuarial gainin 2013 of £79m

Dividends

The dividend accounted for in cur 2014 financial
statemnents totathng £397m represents the final dividend
in respect of 2013 (32 Op) and the interim dividend for
2014 (17 0p) We are proposing a final dvidend for 2014
of 34 Op, bringing the total paid and payable in respect
of 2014 to 51 Op, a 6% increase on 2013 This final 2014
dividend which was approved by the board in February
2015, 1s subject to approval at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeung and will be charged agamst 2015 profits
For 2014, the dvidend 1s covered | 3 tmes by adjusted
earnings

We seek to maintain a balance between the requirements
of our shareholders for a rising stream of dividend income
and the reinvestment opportunities which we identify
around the Group and through acquisitions The board
expects to raise the dvidend above inflation, more in ine
with earnings growth, thereby maintaming dividend cover
at around two times earnings in the long term

Post-retirement benefits

Pearson operates avariety of pension and post-
reurement plans Our UK Group pension plan has by
far the largest defined benefit section We have some
smaller defined benefit sections in the US and Canada but,
outside the UK, most of our companies operate defined
contribution plans In addien to pension plans we also
operate post-retirement medtcal benefit plans (PRMBs),
the most significant of which 1s in the US In 2014 we
amended the eligibility critera for the US PRMB plan
This amendment resulted in a curtallment gain and a
reduction in the ongoing service cost of the plan
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The charge to profit in respect of worldwide pensions and
returerment benefits for continuing operations amounted
1o £83m in 2014 (2013 £96m) of which a charge of £84m
{2013 £93m) was reported In adjusted operating profit
and an income of £1m (2013 charge £3m) was reported
against other net finance costs The reduced charge n
201415 in part due to the US PRMB curtalment gain

and also to a reducuon In costs relating to our defined
contribution plans

The overall surplus on the UK Group pension plan of
£86m at the end of 2013 has increased to a surplus of
£190m at the end of 2014 The movement has arisen
principally due to continuing asset returns and deficit
funding which was only partially offset by an unfavourable
movement In the discount rate used to value the habilities
In total, our worldwide deficit in respect of pensions and
other post-retirement benefits decreased fromanet
defiait of £56m at the end of 2013 to a net asset of £27m
at the end of 2014

Acquisitions and disposals

The acquisiicn of Grupo Mult, Brazil's leading adult
Enghsh language training company, for £437m (plus £49m
in net debt assumed) was announced in December 2013
and completed on || February 2014 There were no
other significant acquisiions in the year We recorded
£240m of goodwill on the Grupo Mults transacuon
together with £254m of intangibles relating to trade
names, content, franchises and technology In total,
acquisitions completed in the year contnbuted an
addiwenal £70m of sales and £29m of adjusted
operating profit

The sale of the Mergermarket group of companies to

BC Partners for £375m was completed on 4 February
2014 and reahsed a profit before tax of £244m In addition
our North America business disposed ofits joint venture
interests in Safan Books Online and CourseSmart,
realising a profit before tax of £40m, and its investment

in Nook Media, realising a loss before tax of £38m

Return on invested capital (ROIC)

Our ROIC 15 calculated as total adjusted operatng profit
less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of average gross
nvested capital ROICincreased from 54%1n 2013 to

5 6% n 2014 Increased profitand reduced tax payments
are the main reasons for the movement

Related party transactions

Transactions with related partes are shown in note 37
of the financral statements

Post balance sheet events

There were no significant post balance sheet events

SSINISNT ¥NC

o]
=
>
o
m
bod
m
o
»
X
p 3
Zz
In]
m

LOVdW] IVIDOS ¥NO

IDNYNYIAOD [

SLINIWIALYLS TVIDNVYNI I



34 Pearson ple Annual report and accourts 2014

Principal risks and uncertainties

Idenufying and assessing risk

Our principal risks and uncertainties are cuthned below
These are the most significant nsks that may adversely
affect our business strategy, financial positon or future
performance The risk assessment process evaluates the
probability of the risk materialising and the financial or
strategic impact of the nsk Those risks which have a
higher probability and significant impact on strategy,
reputation or aperauons, or a financial impact greater
than £40m are idenufied as principal risks

The risk assessment and reporting critena are designed

to provide the board with a consistent, Group-wide
perspective of the key nsks The reports to the board,
which are subrmitted twice per year, include an assessment
of the probability and impact of risks materialising, as well
as nisk mingauon iniwatives and their effectiveness

The identificauon of the princtpal Group risks i1s informed
by discussions with each Line of Business, Geography and
key enabling funcuons, identifying key nisks and assessing
the adequacy of mitigating controls

The Pearson executive members have oversight of risks
relevant to each of their areas of responsibiity Thisis now
included in their goals and objectives

The audit commuttee provides oversight and reassurance
to the board with regard to the procedures for the
identificaton, assessment and reportng of nisk See page
71 for the committee’s risk-related actviues during 2014,
including deep dives into selected principal risks

Management is responsible for considering and executing
the appropnate acton to mitigate these risks whenever
posstble Itis not possible to dentify every risk that could
affect our businesses, and the actions taken to mitigate the
risks described below cannot provide absolute assurance
that a nsk will not materialise and/or adversely affect our
business or financial performance

Risk appetite There are certan areas where we do not
have any appetite to take risks, such as complying with
laws on anti-bribery and corruption or the safety and
security of learners in other areas, such as strategy and
change, we recognise the importance of managed nisk-
taking in order to achieve business objectives and goals
During 2015, further work is being done to define risk
appetite and tolerance and to embed this more formally
into deciston-making and day-to-day business actvities

QUR PRINCIPAL GROUP RISKS

QOutlined here are the most significant
risks that may affect our future. We
assess the probability of the risk
materiahsing and the financial or
strategic impact of the nsk The risks
with greatest potential impact are
identified as principal nsks.

Learn more about Principal risks
and uncertainties on p36-37 Q)

@ Government regulation and decisions
€) Digital and services evolution and market forces
€ Acquisitions, divestments and joint ventures

o Business transformaton and change

© Talent

STRATEGY AND
CHANGE

O Customer facing systems

€ Tesungfailure

RISKS

© safety, safeguardingand protection

© Tax

RISKS

@ Intellectual property

L (@ Data privacy and cyber security

o

LEGALAND FINANCIAL QPERATIONAL

(® Anu-bribery and corruption

COMPLIANCE



Our principal risks

Risk categories To aid in the identfication of risks and
development of associated mitigating actions, risks are
categorised into four main areas strategy and change,
operational, financial, and legal and complhance

Key changes to Group risks in 2014 As set outin the ‘our
performance’ section, 2014 was a year of considerable
change across the Group These changes provide the
foundaton for significant mitigation of strategic and
market risks, including the shift to digital and services

But with change there can be anincrease inrisk in the
short-term Addiional governance and oversight was
put in place to miigate these change-refated risks Asthe
new organisation structure stabilised, there was resulting
clarity in roles and responsibikues This, together with the
appointment of management and staff to key positions,
assisted in mitigaung risk in a number of key areas

Secuion 2 Our performance 35

With the increased focus on growing our direct delivery
business activities, there has been a need to improve

the effective management of related operational risks
This includes the safety and security of our learners, which
is reflected as a new principal sk Specific roles have been
created and filled to ensure there is expertise to deal

with these areas and this will continue to be a focus area

in 2015

With the acceleraung shift to digital products, we
contnue to look at ways that we can improve our
customers' experience of our products and services

Thus s particularly the case for products where there are
pericds of peak demand on our systems, such as ‘back to
school tmes A dedicated cross-business task force has
been putin place to ensure that root causes are addressed
and improvements implemented

Learn more about Risk Governance on p76 ©

RISK ASSESSMENT

IMPACT
{financial reputauonal, strategic, operational}

PROBABILITY — ——y
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

STRATEGIC & CHANGE RISKS

Risk

Government regulation and deasions
Changes in funding, policy and/or regulations
impact business modeland/or content
decisions across all markets

Digital and services evolution and market
forces Fallure to successfully investinand
deliver the night products and services

Acquisiuons, divestments and joint ventures
Failure to generate anticipated revenue
growth, synergies and/oi cost savings from
acquisitions, mergers and other business
combinations could lead to goodwill and
intangible asset impairments

Business transformaton and change

The pace and scope of our business
transformaucninitiatives increase the
execution risk that benefits may notbe fully
reahsed costs of these changes may ncrease
or that our business as usual actviues do not
performinline with expectauons

Talent Failure to attract, retain and develop
staff, ncluding adapung to new skill sets
required to run the business

Mritigation

In the US we acuvely monitor changes through parugipation in adwisory
boards and representation on standard setting committees Our customer
relationship tearns have detailed knowledge of each state market We work
through our own carporate affairs team and our industry trade associauons
including the Association of American Publishers We are also monitoring
municipal funding and the impact on our educaton recewvables

In the UK we mamtam refationships with those government departments and
agencies that are responsible for policy and funding We work proacuvely
with them to ensure our programimes meet exisung and new government
objectives at the right quahty level

Across all of our other markets iocal management monitor and respond
to potential and acwat changes in regulations, suppoarted by our global
corporate affairs team This includes Growth markets of China India
Brazil and South Africa

Qur global educauon strategy will drive a faster move 1o digital and services,
recognising that this is a significant opportumity for Pearson aswellasa
potenual risk We are transforming our products and services for the

digital environment along with managing our printinventories

Our content 15 being adapted to new technologies across our businesses
and is priced to drive demand We develop new distnbuuion channels by
adapung our product offering and investing in new formats

As set out on page 38-43 our focus on efficacy 18 driving our decsions on
how and where we investin products and services

We per form pre-transacuon due diigence and closely monitor actual
performance to ensure we are meeung operational and financal targets

Any divergence from these plans will result in managementaction 1o improve
performance and mimmise the risk of any impairments  Executive managernent
and the board receive regular reports on the status of acquisitions and
mergers, with aformal review onice per year

Asnotedin the Chairman's introduction, the most difficult phase of our
transformation has now been completed There reman a number of
important change initiatives in progress, such as the Enabling Programme
which will deliver sustamable improvements in finance humanresources and
eperations Inaddinon to usual good practices in place for project and change
management there is enhanced governance, monoring and reporung in place
for these most significant change initatives

Through the changes during 2013 and 2014, we have been successful in
promoting our bestinternal tatent and recruiting individuals who are globat
leaders in their specific field

As partof our transformaton, we have made and continue to make
improvements in a number of areas that a1 e key to nuugating talent risk
Thesenclude clear employee objectives and development plans anall-
employee engagermnent survey, with acuon plans as appropriate, succession
planning and talent management and compentive remuneraton plans

See page 65 for details of the board’s talentreview

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Rusk

Custormer facing systems Failure tomaintamn
and supportcustomer facing services
systems and platforms, including quahty
and umely execution of new products

and enhancements

Miugation

Effecuve project management disciphines are in place to ensure that
enhancements and new products meet the required standards Real-ume
monitoring and reportng of operational performance is used to idenufy
any 1ssues and direct appropriate responses

A Qualny Task Force (QTF) 15 1n place to oversee Improvements Lo ensure
our customers’ experience ts one thatis expected from a digital business
This iInsauve has afready delivered significant tacucal improvements and

15 driving longer-term, strategic improvements




OPERATIONAL RISKS
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Risk

Tesung falure A contro! breakdown or
service falure mour school assessment
and qualficatiens businessas could result
n financial loss and reputatonal damage

Our professional services and school
assessment businesses involve complex
contracwal relavonships with both
government agencies and commercial
customers for the provision of various
testng services Cur finanaial results,
growth prospects and/or reputation may
be adversely affected if these contracts
and relauonships are poorty managed

Safety safeguarding and protecuon
Failure to adequately protect children
andiearners, particularly n our direct
delivery businesses

FINANCIAL RISKS

Mitigavon

Ve seek to minimuse the risk of a breakdownin our student marking with the use
of robust quality assurance procedures and controls and oversight of contract
performance combined with our investment in technology, project management
and skills development of our people

In additon to the internal business procedures and controls implemented to
ensure we successfully deliver on our contractual commitments we also seek
to develop and mamta:n good relationships with our customers to minimise
associated risks

Ve also look to diversify our portfolio to rinimise reliance on any single
contract

Recognising the importance of managing evolving risks assocated with our direct
delivery business models we created and filled the role of a head of safeguarding
and protecuion See page 49 for further details

Risk

Tax Risk that changes i tax law or
perceptions oh tax planning strategtes
lead to higher effective tax rate or
negative reputanonal impact

LEGAL RISKS

Mitigauon

QCur tax st ategy reflects our business strategy and the locauons and finanang
neads of our operauons In cornmon with many companies, we seek to manage
our tax affairs 1o protect value for our shareholders, in line with our broader
fiduciary dunies We are commuited to complying with all statutory obhgations
to undertake full disclosure to tax authoriies and to follow agreed policies and
procedures with regard to tax planning and strategy

Oversight of tax strategy is within the remut of the audit committee, which
receives a reparton this oprc at least once a year All of the audit committee
members are independent non-executive directors The chief financial officer 1s
responsible for tax strategy the conduct of our tax affairs and the management
of tax risk are delegated to a global team of tax professionals

Risk

Intellectual property if we do not
adequately protect ourintellectual
property and proprietary rights our
competitive position and resulys may be
adversely affected and limit our abdity
1o grow

Data privacy and cyber secunty Falureto
comply with data privacy regulauons and
standards or weakness i information
secunty, including a farlure to preventor
detect amahicious attack on our systems,
could resultin a major data prvacy breach
causing reputational damage to our brands
and financial loss

Antt-bribery and corruption Falure to
effectvely manage risks associated with
comphance 1o global and local ABC legistation

Miugauon

We seek to miugate this type of risk through general vigilance, co-operation
with other publishers and trade associatiens, advances in technology, as well
asrecourse to law as necessary Digital mghts management standards and
moenitoring programmes have been developed We have a piracy task force
todentfy weaknesses and remediate breaches YWe monitor activities and
regulauons in each market for developments in copyright/intellectual property
law and enforcement and take legal action where necessary

Through our global enterprise informaton security and complhiance programme,
we have established a governance model secunty and privacy framework and
pelicies, a global secunity and privacy organisauonal model, and standard-based
information security and privacy controls and practices

We constantly test and re-evaluate our data security procedures and controls
across all our businesses with the aim of ensuring personal data is secured and
we comply with relevant legislaton and contractual requirements We pursue
appropriate privacy accreditatons e g TRUSTe Privacy and Safe Harbor Seal
We regularly monitor regulation changes to assess the impact on exisung
processes and programmes VYWe have established a global secunty operatons
centre that provides ongoing monitoring of potential makeious attacks on our
infrastructure and systems

Our ABC compliance programme was rofled outin 2011 to support compliance
with UK Bribery Act, nline with adequate procedures gudance Our zero
tolerance’ approach is also designed to comply with all other global and local
ABC laws and regulations We have a risk-based programme of training (online
and face-to-face) Our ABC policy 1s communicated 1o third-parues and forms
part of our contraciual terms for higher-risk third-paruies
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Efficacy

|. Introduction

“A deceptively simple but incredibly
powerful idea that every product
we sell can be measured and judged
by the outcomes it helps the learner
to achieve.” John Fallon, Chief execuuve

Measurmg outcomes

At the time of writing last year’s Annual report, we had
|ust announced a new commitment to what the company
calls efficacy The goal was simple, but also incredibly
challenging we would move to define measurable learner
outcomes for Pearson products and services, and to
report publicly on the learner outcomes delivered by

our products in early 2018

We were also extremely aware that efficacy in educauon 1s
not a challenge we can tackle alone VWe will need to share
what we are finding out, and be prepared to hsten to all

the feedback Andwe will need to be willing to learn from
others as they pursue their own methods We remain
absolutely committed to tus community approach

Review process and result

When we began, efficacy was merely a conceptand a

lofty goal We had developed a framework which could
evaluate the likelihood that a product or service will deliver
its intended outcomes, and had designed a process to
apply the framework within the Lines of Business via
efficacy reviews Since 2012, we have completed 200
reviews This process has provided snapshots of the state
of efficacy in different parts of Pearson, as well as what
Investments we need to make in order to move towards
greater efficacy, ata product and service level

Reporting on efficacy progress

We are committed to reporting on learner outcomes by 2018
Publshedin 2013 The incomplete gurde to defivening legrner outcomes
explaned the programme and its transformative potenual The response
was overwhelmingly posiuve from internal and external stakeholders,
and over the past year we've made further strides Alongside this Annual
report we are publishing On the read to delivering
leamer outcornes which reports

this progress

Read the reports onhine at
efficacy pearson com

2. Making the change

Developing our strategy

The commitment to efficacy has emerged as the central
theme to Pearson’s strategy and culture Our employees
are driven by the mission of helping learners make progress
in thew hves, € provides meaning to our work Thereisalso
a clear business and commeraal case for the learner-centric
approach we are now taking to run our company Pearson’s
scale means we arein the strongest position in the global
market to evaluate the effectiveness of different educanonal
products across many populations, and to develop and
implement new evidence-based models We are the first

in the market to commit to reporting on product efficacy,
and the first to engage outside partners who will
independently validate the ngour and objectvity of our
efficacy measurement This feedback loop will make our
products better and strengthen our relationships with
customers and end learners, and will yield meaningful
results for the business in the coming years We also hope
that through this approach we will Influence the education
sector more broadly

Embedding efficacy

Culture We also know that our commitment to efficacy 1s
much more than a strategy —to be truly effective it needs to
become a way of working for every one of our employees
To make this happen we have put in place a global efficacy
network of Pearson experts who are dedicated, most of
them full-ime, to embedding efficacy into the way we do
business as a company Theirefforts will ensure all cur
employees are driven by the mission of helping learners
to make progress in their lives The team is matched to
Pearson’s new organtsational structure, we have efficacy
leaders in each global Line of Business as well as the

Making the change in 2014

200

Efficacy reviews

20,150

Employees have engaged in efficacy traming

38

Efficacy leaders across Pearson
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Geographies, working cross-functionally to impact global
and local product development and the way we market,
sell and measure our products and services

Training Efficacy depends on the comrutment of every
employee — not only those occupying these new positions
So we have also rolled out broadscale efficacy training on
the topic throughout the company We have created an
onhne course on efficacy, which was added to the new
hire orientation package and 1s avalable to everyone in
the company via our internal learming portal Over 20,000
employees have taken the course In additon, efficacy
leaders are running workshops and trainings in person

all over the world to build awareness and understanding

External engagement We know that going this alone 1s
notan option The solutions to the efficacy challenge will
emerge from many corners, from different professions,
and also from different sectors That’s why we have
contnued our public engagements, to help play our part

in this global commurity of changemakers We partnered
with the RSA in the UK on a series about learner
outcomes, and contributed to the Shared Value Initative's
conference on the Role of Business in Education We have
emphasised efficacy m our presence at innovation events
such as New School Venture Fund's annual conference
and SXSWedu Efficacy 1s also a central part of our
commitment to the Global Partnership for Education,

of which Pearson 1s the only corporate member, we will
be offering n-kind workshops and efficacy reviews to
member countries, and giving GPE members access to
our growing body of research on learner cutcomes

“Before hearing about efficacy,
| thought my job was just to drive,
| thought, 1sn't it the same to
be a truck driver who delivers
books and a truck driver
who delivers alcoholic
drinks or tobacco?.

LEADERSHIP: EFFICACY EXPERTS

“Efficacy 15 the reason why lwork in education - long
before |'d ever even heard of that word As a South
African, | ive in one of the most wonderful but also
one of the most unequal countries in the world
Everyday | am confronted with examples of how
people have ether benefited from a strong education
or been severely disadvantaged by the lack of one
Through offering good quality educauon,

with measurable mprovement of
learner outcomes, we can help bring
about change ”

Marion Smallbones
Efficacy director, School

“To me, efficacy means that we care enough about the
customer experience and the trust they place in us,
that we're willing to reorganise our cormpany to make
sure we deliver the outcomes we're promising [t
means being personally accountable for my acuons,
and asking myseif each day, "How can|

make a difference to students and

teachers today?”

Karen Mullane w
Vice president, Efficacy results ¢ -
Pearson North America

Learn about our operating structure on p7 €@

“ Now | realise my job has to do with
education | am a part of the educational
process in my country My children,
and even my grandchildren, will be
benefited by the jobldo™

Juan Hernandez, a Pearson truck driver who participated
inaworkshop called Eficacia paratodos’, facilitated by
Veronica Valdes, Efficacy manager, Latin America Hub
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Efficacy continued

3. Efficacy in action

Efficacy 1s changing the way we
operate and develop our business,
alongside our employees, customers,
and the broader education market.
We have early evidence of the
impact of the products and services
we deliver to customers.

Efficacy approach and activities
Define intended learner outcomes

Review products to ensure they are positioned to
deliver on those outcomes, and putin place efficacy
Improvement programimes

Conduct research to measure the efficacy of products
and feed insights baclk into product development

Support customers to effectively implement the
products to get the best outcomes possible

Starung from outcomes

In 2014 we further defined the standards for these
assessmenits of our products, creating a more detailed
descniption of the outcomes Pearson products and services
deliver as well as the relative strengths of different types
of evidence used in our studies The table opposite shows
our proposed framework for the types of outcomes that
customers desire

Efficacy review framework

Our efficacy framework examines different
aspects of our product performance

| Qurcomes 2 Evidence

3 Planning and

4 Capacity to deliver
implementaton

Qurefficacy framework is also being used by others {with our support)
and their feedback has helped torefine it View our online tocl at
efficacy pearsen com/our-path-to-efficacy/how-to-review

Efficacy reviews, studies and implementation

Our efficacy review process provides a rigorous way to
evaluate whether a given product or service 1s positioned
to deliver learner outcomes and to identify how it should
be improved Itis being used in every Line of Business
{see framework below) Efficacy studies evaluate the
efficacy of a product or service in the market, conducted
in partnership with customers, learners, and increasingly
third-party academic institutions We are starting to work
with customers to ensure that Pearson products and
services are used and implemented in ways that maxirnise
their efficacy based on this research

Efficacy in the product Iifecycle

Pearson products at afl stages of maturity will be
incorporating efficacy into therr development via a formal
global product lifecycle which s being rolled out across
the business New products or features will need to be
justified by educational research supporting their design,
products in growth mode will be gathering increasingly
robust evidence that the product is improving learner
outcomes and evolve accordingly Mature products

will continue to sustain and monitor efficacy evidence
alongside financial metrics Further, efficacy requirements
are now incorporated into our acquisitions and
investments processes, from the Pearson Affordable
Learning Fund to traditional M&A

Shaping Pearson products

In addition to the huge strides on culture and processes
described above, we have a plan in place to quickly impact
arange of Pearson products and to prepare the company
to report publicly on efficacy n 2018

Making the change in 2014

“We are enthusiastic supporters
of the efficacy approach
In 2014 it became the
way we work and plan
It's not a review
process, It 1s a way
of doing business ™

Caspar de Bone
Managing director Financal Times B2B
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EFFICACY: TYPES OF OUTCOMES

Level of aspiration

Category and value
bt
Access Uity
The learner access
and experience
| Usage rhythm
Completion g

The umeliness
of completon

Achievement

Competencies

and skills
The standard of achievement achieved
or level of competence
: ‘Door
Progression Door

Learner progresston

Making the change in 2014

Defimuon

The degree to which learners can
access a product {e g access to
technology and socio-economic
access)

The level of learner satisfaction

The level of mouvanon and
confidence that the learner gains

The progress that the learner
makes through the course

The time taken to achieve the
standard or competence

Qualificauon gained

The level of performance ona
standardised test

Course-specfic competencies
demonstrated

The acquisition of speaific skills

Ability of learner to progress to
next course of study, training
or employment

Example outcomes

Alltearners can access digital
learming materials from a
personal computer, tablet
orsmart phone atanyume

Learners have a positve
learning experience

Learners complete course of
work within one semester

Learner earns a bachelors
degree

Thelearnerwill be able to
demonstrate mastery of
the English course material

Learner gets gainful
employment infield of study

' Akey client was delighted to hear about our interestin
helping him focus on achieving the outcomes he had set
Although he wasn't used to having such a conversation
with a publisher {hus admission] he was very open about
whiat they need to do with the various schools and
programmes they manage Through the course of our
conversation, he made iz clear that he wanted to build a
new ‘premier’ partnership with us What really struck
me 15 how a conversation on efficacy and outcomes
created analmost kid-in-a-candy-store response from
such a seasoned executive "

“What really struck me
Is how a conversation
on efficacy and outcomes
created an aimost
kid-in-a-candy-store
response.”

Bruce Bergwall
Business development directar
Higher Education
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Efficacy conunued

4. Early impact in 2014

The first wave

In 2014 we identified a *first wave' of products with

which to iniiate our work in efficacy The list was chosen
based on a set of business and efficacy critena, including
market position, product and data maturity, strategic
importance, and the scale of customer base and revenue
The products and services represent a mix of geographies
and target learner populations They will be the focus of
the first externally-audited efficacy reportin 2018

Key achievements so far

We've achieved the following milestones in our imeline for
impactng the full range of Pearson products and services

All of the ‘first wave’ products have defined the learner
outcomes they are positioned to delver, as well as the
metrics they will use to measure those outcomes

Pearson products in all categores are steadily progressing
through efficacy reviews, we are devetoping mechanisms
for classifying and tracking products’ progress on efficacy
throughout the company next year

A majority of the products which have undergone efficacy
reviews are on the path to efficacy, meaning they are
conunually working to complete the actions idenufied
during efficacy reviews to increase the efficacy of the
product, are demonstratng progress on gathering
efficacy evidence, and arerefining their efficacy plans
through follow-on reviews and dialogue with customers

Each Line of Business has at least one ‘first wave’ product
that s 1n a posiion to report on efficacy iImpact wath a
view towards external reporting n 2018 We are sharing
these publicly alongside this Annual report

Learn about our Lines of Business in
our operating structure on p7 @

EFFICACY: PRODUCT PROGRESS IN 2014

As evidence of the progress we have made, we are
publicly sharing details of efficacy progress for five of
our products on an online site This data is preliminary
we do not yet have fully validated evidence of outcomes
with customers, because of the lead time that ngorous
studkes require We are eager, however, to test early
results with our customers and other stakeholders to
inform the development of our research and reporting
processes We invite you to read the full reperts at
efficacy pearson com/progress

enVisionmath 2 015 a comprehensive next-generation elementary
mathematics curniculum that has research-based instructional
practices and s based on the highly successful enVisionMATH that
reaches over six million learners enVisionMATH users achieve
signsficantly greater grawthin math proficiency compared to other
programmes as evidenced by an independent randemised control trial

Wall Street English provides premsm English language programmes
fer young professionals In-depth efficacy reviews of operations were
carred outn four countnies and have lad to a vanety of improvements,
from helping learners to better define their goals to measuring their
progress aganst these

MyEnghshbtab provides learners in secondary school and higher
educauon with interacuve online pracuce, homework and
assessments and teachers with a range of diagnostic tools for English
language blended-learming programmes More than 450,000 new
learnersin 25 countries used MyEnghshLabs in 2014 The efficacy
review has led to a vantety of improvements frem UX to curricutum
desygn Efficacy studies were also complered with more than

25 insututions arcund the world

MasteringChemistry for General Chemistry is an online homewor k
witonial and assessment programme serving up to 250,000 learners
annually in the United States with 30,000 learners annually across

60 other countries For seven years, our product team and the efficacy
results team in MNorth America have worked with educators to collect
evidence about the impact of MasteringChemistry onlearning and
have generated |7 sets of user-generated results Inaddiuon, several
independent peer-reviewed academic arucles have documented the
efficacy of MasteringChemistry both i and outside the US Weare
mobilising a wider set of efficacy actevities in 2015 wo support further
product improvements and document impact on learner outcomes
across a broader setof gecgraphies

CTland MGl provide pathways for the emergent nuddle class 1o gain
access to higher education in Soush Africa and the economic and
personal advancement opportunities that this provides Currently
they serve 14 000 students across 12 CTiand 13 MGl campuses Qur
efficacy efforts provide objective evidence of these opportunities o
date and our ongomng efficacy programme s focused on constantly
improving opportunives for our students and graduates
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5. Momentum

Maintaining progress through 2015

We take the view that 2015 is a ertical year for making
progress on operationalising efficacy Our prionity will
be on delivering efficacy in our strategic products, from
endto end

Key aims for 2015

The *firstwave of products wili continue to make
demonstrable progress on the path to efficacy

We are continually working to complete the actions
identfied during efficacy reviews to increase the
efficacy of the product, demonstraung progress

on gathening efficacy evidence and refiing their
efficacy plans through follow-on reviews and
diafogue with customers

Read the first reports online at
efficacy pearson com/progress

We will dentfy the next set of products to
be the focus for efficacy efforts

This will be the ‘second wave’, and the relevant teams
will have idenufied clear outcomes to be delivered

by their products as well as having gone through
efficacy reviews

We will have evidence of ncreased awareness
and adopuion of efficacy internally

Thus will cover all functions and geographies, and we
wiil have reworked major internal processes to align
with the efficacy agenda (including. for example,
partnerships, acquisitions, and product strategy)

We will continue to increase the external
awareness of efficacy

through our ongoing work with stakeholders, and to
promote the adoption of outcormes-based approaches
to education in the market

A global research programme

A successful future for Pearson hinges on insight into — and
response to —fundamental questions in educaton For
that reason, we are building global research capabiiies
This will enable us to participate deeply in the woridwide
conversation about learner outcomes, and to inform
business leaders of effecuve educavonal practices

In addition to efficacy studies and market research, which
are based in business units, our new research capabilities
willlook into broad and global education themes, that
could in turn drive specrfic preduct innovations

The global research team will aim to uncover clear and
replicable findings 1o eight key unanswered questions in
education, ranging from the micro (how children learn)
to the macro (how education systems work effectively)

Learn more at research pearson com

Exploring Effecuve Pedagogy m
Primary Schook
Ewvidence from Reiearch
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Our social
Mpact




Section 3 Qur socal impact

The single most important contribution that Pearson can
make to society is to equip people with the access and
skills they need to progress. Our commitment to efficacy,
{p38) is the means through which we will achieve this.

Learning empowers people, and it defines our company
purpose. Acting responsibly is central to achieving this
purpose and to our business strategy, and how we deliver
IS as important as what we achieve.

It shapes the decisions we make, the cufture and values
we promote and sustain, the relationships we foster,
and the ways we treat our planet. Ultimately, operating
responsibly helps us to better deliver outcomes for
people, and to better meet the expectations of all

of society.

%@—f

Robin Freestone Chief financial officer
(and board member responsible for corporate responsibility}

Our social impact strategy

In 2014, we reviewed and redefined our social impact strategy.
Ve have identified three organising ideas that structure our reporting:

Standards Impact Innovation

Our standards work sess We plan 1o make a significant Through innovation we will
us continue to investin our contributien through partner 1o help find solutions
people and to work hard to campaigning and programme to some of the biggast unmat
reduce our envircnmenial activity with a particular focus educational needs.
footprint. onliteracy.
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Overview

Standards

Our commeraal success Is
dependent on us operating in a
responsible way We report our
approach and the progress we
are making across five areas:

Standards
l Our responsibility Seepd7 @
2 Our values and behaviour Seepd8 Q
3 Cur relationships See pd9 ©
4 Qur planet Seep52 @
Seep53 Q)

5 Qur performance

Also inthis section

Impact Project Literacy
Social innovation
We will report on our progress in all these areas

in our 2014 Soaial Impact report available on
pearson com/social-impact

|. Our responsibility

Definiuens

Pearson has adopted a broad definition of responsible
business and has established a set of commitments
across a range of social, community and human nights
prinoiples to

Ensure that our products and services are inclusive
appropriate in content to the age, location and ability
of the learner, and are easy and safe to use and access

Respect and protect how we use and share data
entrusted to us by learners and our customers

Inform, support and equip colleagues to work
collaboratively

Encourage and reward high performance, nurturing talent
and creating a culture where all are able to realise therr
ndividual potential

Prowvide a safe and healthy workplace for our employees
and the learners of all ages we directly serve

Extend our commitments onlabour standards, hurman
rights and environmental responstbility to include our
suppliers and business partners

Provide opporturities for Pearson pecple 1o be good
ciizens and to get involved in their local communities

Delrver aganst our targets on our response to chmate
change and to make more efficient use of resources

Responsibility at Pearson

Environment and supply chain

Climate change

Responsible resource use

Responsible procurement

Orange = part of our risk and comphance agenda
Seep7| ©
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Based on these commitmenits, the broad ‘responsible
business’ 1ssue map for Pearson s set out below It reflects
a series of priorities that are common across many sectors
and individual companies These are the issues that we
focus on when thinking about responsible business

Some of these ssues are central to our business success,
others may be small based on our commeraal operations
but have the potential to significantly affect our impact
and reputation The prioriues i orange already form

part of our risk and complhance agenda described on p/|
The relative significance of 1ssues varies based on country
operatocnal, political and regulatory environments as well
as learner expectauons The premise of our social Impact
strategy is that, in moving towards a single operating
company model, this 1s underpinned by dear, consistent,
global policies and standards across the entre responsible
business agenda

Governance

Corporate responsibility cannot be separated from
our business and reputation QOur board of directors
has ulumate responsibility for considering issues of
responsibility as part of setung business strategy

People lﬁ Learners A

Corporate culwre and values Affordability and pricing

Dwversity and inclusion Editonal ndependence

and integnty

People recruitment and
development

Agppropriateness and
accesstbility of content

Remuneration and
compensaton

Safeguarding and protection

Health & safety Data privacy and security

The reputaton & responsibility cammittee, a formal
committee of the board provides ongoing oversight,
scrutirty and challenge across the enure responsible
business agenda In addition, the board considered a
detalled review of the corporate responsibility strategy
atthe June 2014 meetng Learn more on p78 @

The Pearson executive drives implementaton of business
strategy, including our response to the key 1ssues and
opportunities we face

This year, we established a single responsible business
leadership business council to oversee the development
and implementation of our overarching responsible
business strategy on behalf of the board 1tis chared by
our chief corporate affars officer and comprises senior
executives from across the global business

Stakeholders

Public and private sector customers regularly seek
wformation from us about how we go about our business,
while many learners and employees want to understand
our approach to sustatnability Socially responsible
investors, and non-governmental organisations look

at Issues such as supply chain standards and ethics

Our approach to responsible business 1s informed by

the prionities and views of our many stakeholders

Values and
governance

Communities . '””r

Acuve citizenship Tax

Erhical conduct
(Code of Conduct)

Campagns and parinerships

Paliical engagement Combatung corruption

{Ant-brnbery and corruption)
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Standards conunued

2. Our values and behaviour

Pearson employee survey

In 2014, Pearson putin place a new organisational structure
for the company that reflects our arm to shift from a
portfolio of businesses towards a single operating model
with standard systems, clear accountability, a flatter,

more mertocratic culture and quicker deasion-making

Change can be both exhilarating and inspining, but

also brings operational risk We recogrused this and
throughout the year we contnually tracked reaction to
change to understand how best to support our people

Most notably, we asked colleagues to tell us how they
felt about working at Pearson, and over 24,000 people
completed the engagement survey We then shared
the findings The key messages are outlined in the

next column

Code of Conduct

Our values are reinforced by our Code of Conduct that
covers among other things, individual conduct, learners,
employees, community, the environment and our social
obligauons We make sure everyone is aware of the Code
and this forms part of the induction process This year, we
started a process to review the Code to make sure that it
provides the level of guidance and case study support that
our employees need to live by the standards we set for
ourselves The updated Code will be circulated early in
2015 to everyone working at Pearson and they will be
asked to confirm they have readit, understand it and
provide a check that the company complies with it

Issues and concerns

We operate a free, confidenual telephone helpline and
website for anyone who wants to rase a concern and we
have a clear non-retaliation policy in place to encourage
people to share the issues they have In 2014, we had 112
concerns raised through the ethics reporting process
These were investigated and where possible the outcome
shared with the whistleblower This year, as in most years,
the majonty of the concerns related to HR pracuces
Matenal concerns raised are reported to the Pearson
audit committee

Pearson employee survey Our people told us

That our purpose to empower human progress

through learning was clear and compeliing, and
that our focus on efficacy 1s Improving our products
and services Over $0% of our employees agreed that
the work of Pearson to improve the lives of others was
impertant to them But, we could do more to be
clearer about how we achieve that purpose and how it
wanskates into every day planning and investment

That values and behaviour are critical to our

success We responded to feedback from the
survey through a global programme of focus groups
and consultation with the executive team to look at
our current values to be brave, imagimnative and decent
in hight of our organisational structure Our aim was to
understand how we could help our people to apply.
bring alive and extend the values as the touchstone
on how we behave act and work together

That in this ume of change, our leaders and

managers could do more to communicate more
often and more dearly their expectauons of working
togetherina more joined-up way Wewill seta
performance goal for each Pearson executive member
to improve on the results of the 2014 survey and will
continue to support teams and support leaders to be
role models for our values and behaviours as they
embed new ways of working Qur performance
assessment process has been identfied as a means to
embed our values and behaviours and help people
create clear career paths

More work s needed to express how the new
structure works and to challenge that it
1s helping deliver for learners Consequently, we are
doing more work on the Pearson brand to clarify
who we are and how our products are effectve
atimproving learning In ways that promote
human progress
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3. QOur relationships

Helping learners to learn and
progress Is both the focus of our
business strategy and the single
most important contribution
we can make to society.

Learners and customers

Our section on efficacy describes the commitments and
progress we are making on our responsibiities towards
the learner A global challenge 1s to extend access to
affordable quality educaton

Animportant new way of working introduced this year 1s
the Pearson product iifecycle framework for managing all
Pearson products, services and platforms This introduces
a common language and vocabulary to help us take a view
on mvesting in our proaducts This is part of a wider focus
on product and customer expenence that will allow us

to better hsten and respond to what our learners and
customers need As part of this approach, we introduced
the Net Promoter Score system into Pearson, one of the
most recoghised methods for measuning customer loyalty
We used this to assess how customers viewed some of
our most important products, along with a global brand
survey through which we will measure ourselves annually

Aswe increasingly own and operate learning institutions,
so we are actuve In serving learners of all ages including
children, young people and vulnerable adults This
introduces new responsibilities to safeguard and protect

Arizona State University — Starbucks - Pearson

In June, ASU and Starbucks
announced a unique partnership to
offer opportunities for the more than
100,000 Starbucks employees to
access affordable higher education.

ASU onhne offers Starbucks employees who work more than
20 hours a week affordable access to over 40 undergraduate
degree programmes in a service powered by Pearson

the best interests of our learners — providing a safe,
supportive and age-approprate learning environment
whether in a classroom or online This year, we adopted
a global policy on safeguarding and protecton and
appointed a new head of safeguarding to lead this
important new area of work

Qur people

We continued our focus on our broader responsibilities
as an employer During the year

We introduced for the first ume a single global

approach to performance assessment Thisis
designed to help our employees know what s expected
of thern and to incentivise people to act consistently with
our values and business strategy VVe cascaded goals from
the top down with the executive team sharing their 2014
objecuives with all employees

We consolidated the use of Milo as our single platform
to deliver raining, to provide access to learning and
development, and to support performance assessment
This 1s the first bme that Pearson has used a single
platform for these activities

Employees completed approximately 110,000 courses,
with the new "one Pearson - Exploring how we work’
being the most popular Through Milo, we delivered a
new global employee inducton called "Welcome to
Pearson’, popular programmes on ‘Efficacy for Everyone’
and a suite of management modules on performance
conversations Employees and managers also used Milo
to record thetrindvidual goals, monitor their progress,
and assess their performance

100,000

Starbucks employees
to access affordable
higher education

40

Undergraduate
degree programmes
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Standards contnued

3. Our relationships continued

As part of our commitment to helping our employees

be safe, resilient and productive, we introduced a
common global incident reporting system for health
& safety Qur overall goalis to achieve zero harmto
emplayees, working hard through traiming and
communication to prevent inadents before they occur
Our performance is reviewed by the audit commiitee

We made sure that our people understand how we

are doing as a company, Including how world and
sector trends might affect thermn and the business We
provide comprehensive, relevant informanon including
presentations, messages and webinars with senior
executives and consult where appropriate so that we
can learn and take into account the perspectives of our
people In developing our brand strategy, we opened a
survey te all our employees with 13,000 sharing their
views on the direction we should take

Diver sity and inclusion

We are committed to attracting, retaining, engaging and
developing the best people We know that creating and
sustaining an inclusive work environment s criucally
important, offering equal opportunity from the
boardroom down regardless of race, gender, gender
identity or reassignment, age, disability, religion or
sexual orentation

On gender diversity, we continue to seek to support
women to advance In management and senior roles
We remain an enthusiastic supporter of the 30% Club
which brings together chairs and CEOs who work to

Diversity performance (as at 3| December 20i4)

encourage a better gender balance across thew
companies Duning 2014, we actively supported the
Mentonng Programme set up by the 30% Club which
provides talented mid-career women access to cross-

company, cross-sector mentoring At board level, Pearson

appointed Elizabeth Corley as a non-executive director
and has exceeded the target to have at least 25% female

directors ahead of the 2015 umeframe set by Lord Davies

We also supplemented the diversity toolkit launch last
year by launching Women in Learning and Leadership
(WILL), a global employee network in Pearson To date,
over 2,000 employers have joined as members of
WILL chapters around the world The ambition of the
12 chapters established in 2014 1s to proactively drive
change in support of women at Pearson

At the end of 2014, 58% of our global workforce was
female VWomen represent 35% of our senior leadership
team The gender balance based on our organisational
structure can be seen in the table below

We continued to progress onsupporting the Leshian,
Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) commurity at
Pearson During 2014, Spectrum was launched as a
global employee resource network dedicated to support
the advancement of LGBT colleagues across Pearson
Pearson again received a perfect score of [00% inthe
2014 Corporate Equality Index recognising excellence

in corporate policies and practice in supporung LGBT
employees in the US, administered by the Human Rights
Campaign In the UK, we are members of the Stonewall
Diversity Champions programme

Community invescment

Women in Pearson (%) 2013 2014 Total community spend

Board of Directors 22% 30% £14 4m

Senior leadership team 2013 £H 4m

(twe reporuing lines from the CEQ) 31% 35% 40 211 5m

Allemployees 57% 58% [T T L FRNE A 13 1m
[(miE - TR A 2 14105m

Employees by gender (number) Men Wamen [z 1£77m

Board of Directors 7 3

Senior leadership team {two reporung Ines

from CEQ excluding Execuuve Board Directors) 64 35

Allemployees 17064 23.470




Section 3 QOur socal impact 51

Disability forms part of our wider commitment to equal
oppertunity We work to ensure that appropriate
pelictes, procedures, training and support are available
for people with disabilities to ensure fair access to career
opportunities to realise their talent

Supply chain and partners

Pearson purchases goods and services valued at over
£2bn each year This totalincludes our investment in
research and development of new digital products and
services as well as advances to authors Pearsonwas a
founder signatory to the UN Global Compact in 2000
We were clear from the outset that we would use our
influence with our suppliers to improve standards for their
employees and the communities in which they operate
Ever since, we have monitored our performance agamst
both the Global Compact principles and a set of
commitments we made to them, reporting annually on
our progress The scope of the UN Global Compact
covers labour standards and human rights, combatung
corruption as well as environmental responsibility Specific
clauses relating to these standards are an integral part of
our contracts for key supplers These standards include
the rejection of forced and compulsory labour, a respect
for diversity, a mimmum age to work on Pearson projects
and comphance with employment laws and regulations.

Communities

Not for profit partners help us to extend our reach and
impact helping further learning — especially for the most
disadvantaged or hard to reach —in ways thatare
complementary to our business objectives We therefore
partner with a number of charitable organisations, and for
a decade, the Pearson Charitable Foundation has been
the largest of these

During 2014, we reviewed our commurnity Investrent
activity and concluded that we could greatly increase our
impact by adopting a more integrated approach that
places social impact at the heart of the business model
The Pearson board approved in June 2014 a new strategy
which established increasing Iteracy rates worldwide as
our anchor social Impact campagn issue for the next five
years Our section on Project Literacy explains more
about our new strategy tn 2014, our community
investment was £14 4m, or 2% of pre-tax profits

As part of this review, we assessed our existing charity
partners and their fit with our new approach and strategy
A number of these, most notably, the Pearson Chantable
Foundation, no longer align with our approach Therefore,
as of 2015, Pearson adwised twould no longer fund the
Foundation as the pnimary vehicle forits philanthropic and
community activities Having been informed of this change
in its funding, In November the Foundation board of
directors passed a resolunon to wind down its operations
and to dose at the end of 2014 Pearson worked with the
charity to ensure that new partners were found wherever
possible for the Foundation programmes
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Standards contnued

4. Our planet

We believe that better education

is crucial to bulding a better world.
To be passtonate about a better
world goes further and we recognise
a shared responsibility to protect
the natural resources needed to
deliver learning today

Clmate change

Pearson continues to be climate neutral for our directly
controlled operations, a commitment we first achieved
in 2009 and have mantained ever since We have set
ambitious targets to reduce our operatonal emissions
by the end of 2020 and we work with employees and
suppliers to measure and reduce carbon emissions in
our value chain — from sourcing of raw materials to the
transport and distnbution of our products

We continue to mantain our commitment to climate
neutrality through carbon reduction, purchase of
renewable energy, renewable energy generation at our
sites and the purchase of carbon offsets We have also
started working on a carbon footprint analysis of our
book publishing in the US and UK to help us target the
most effective reductions

Environment highlights

V22%

Qur target was to reduce cur operauonal emissions
by 20% the end of 2015 based on a 2009 base year
We achieved a 22% reduction n 2014 n partdueto
the creation of Penguun Randem House

ISO1400I

Pearson s certified against ISO14001
in the UK and Australia

Highlights of our actvittes include

Pearson retained global ceruficauon aganst the Carbon
Trust Standard We were the second ever arganisation
to secure the standard which recognises leadership

In measuring, managing and reducing year-on-year
carbon emissions

We mamtained our record of purchasing 100% of the
electricity we use from green power That represented
over |86,000 MWh of electricity in 2014

We opened a new solar installatton at our distribution
centre in South Africa We now have invested in
renewable energy generation at five sites and have

2 6 Megawatts of wind and solar assets instafled

Pearson s cervfied against 1ISO14001 in the UK and
Austraha Qur Hudson Street offices in New York
became the latest to secure LEED ceruvfication, an
internationally recogrused mark of environmental
excellence in faclites management Pearson occupies
740,000 square feetin LEED cerufied bulldings

Pearson invests in forest-based carbon offsets for any
part of our chmate footprint we cannot reduce or avoid
through other means Since 2009, this programme has
seen over },000 hecrares of forest protected in Canada,
Colombia, Costa Rica, the US and the UK

Ourapproach to managing other materially important
emissions ~ such as embedded carbon dioxide in
purchased raw matenals as well as business travel by air—
are detailed in our 2014 Environment report

Green power

00% i

We mamtained our record of
purchasing 100% of the electicity
we use from green power
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Material use forests

As a purchaser of paper and newsprint for our books,
magazines and newspapers, security and sustainability

of supply are very mportant to us Paper use remains

a prionty environmental issue and we continue to focus
on sustainabitity sourcing and being more effictent in how
we use paper We

First adopted and publcly disclosed our paper
environmental sourcing policy i 2003

Collect and map data on the forest of origin, certification
systems apphcable and recycled content for the papers
we purchase

Talk about our gutdelines with our key paper suppliers
when we meet and as part of our contract discussions

Discuss our approach to paper purchasing with
customers, environmental groups, investor analysts and
other interested parttes

Hold Forest Stewardship Counal {(FSC) chain of custody
certfication, allowing books to cacry the FSC label for our
businesses in North America

Are members of industry bodies dedicated to responsible
forest management Ve have been members of the
WWEF forest and trade network for over a decade and
are a founder member of PREPS — the publishers database
for responsible environmental paper sourting —which we
use across our global business

Visit pearson com/environment to learn more @

5. Our performance

Our social impact rankang

One way we assess how we are doing as a responsible
business Is to maintain cur position In key indices and
benchmarks of social responsibiity

Index/year piol]| 2012 2013 2014
Dow Jones Globat Gold Silver Bronze
Sustainability Sector Class Class Class
Indices leader

BITC Corporate Plaunum  Plaunum  Plaunum  Platinum
Responsibility Index {recained) {retained)
Inclusion in

FTSE4Good Yes Yes Yes Yes

Pearson conunues to score highly in the Dow Jones
Sustanability Indices raung For the last decade, we have
been included in the D)SI World index which includes only
the top 10% of companies in each industry and our bronze
class rating recognises companies within 10% of the
sector leader

We welcome feedback on this aspect of the
company as we do on any other Please e-mail
peter hughes@pearson com with any questions
or i[deas youmay have

Global Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions data {(Metric tonnes of CO,¢)

Calendar year  Calendar year

Calendar year  Calendar year

Emuissions from 2013 2014 Intensity ratios 2013 2014
Combustion of fuel and operation of 30,170 25,027 Scopes | and 2 (tonnes CO )/ 281 266
facives (GHG Protocol scope () 17% sales revenue £ (millions) 5%
Electnoty heat steam and cooling 15 548 104,715 Scopes | and 2 {tonnes CO e}/ FTE 319 317
purchased for own use (GHG Protocol -9% no change
scope 2)

Total 145,718 129,742

-11%

Carbon ermissions The scope | and seope 2 carbon emissions are calculated
according to The Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounung and
Reporung Standard (Revised Ediion) together with the latest emussion factors
from recognised sourcesincluding but not bmited 0 DEFRA the International
Energy Agency and the US Ervirenmental Protecuon Agency No materul scope
| orseope 2 emissions have been excluded from the reported GHG emissions

SSINISNG UNO

19INVIWY04Y3d ¥NO ’

o]
[ =
»
23
o]
o
>
-
g
b
>
3]
|

JONVYNYIAOD

SAMIWILVLES TYIDONYNI [




54 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2014

Impact:

Introducing our flagship campaign

Project Literacy

Pearson is committed to maximising
our impact through community
Investment. In 2014 we reviewed our
approach and believe that we can
make more of a difference by focusing
and campaigning on a single 1ssue that
has the potential to transform lives.

A clear focus will allow us to iInspire our people to get
involved, to harness our products and expertise and
to build partnerships and programmes that make a
measurable difference

In June 2014, the Pearson board approved increasing
Iiteracy rates worldwide as our anchor social impact
carmpaign 1ssue for the next five years

Why literacy?

As we fight to end poverty, literacy 1s cntical With words
we can make sense of the world around us, pursue hfe-
changing opportunities and stand up for the rights of
others to do the same

Despite rapid progress in the decade prior, illiteracy rates
for adults and children worldwide have hovered at around
800 milkon since 2000, with 781 milhon people literate
today Ofthose, 123 million are young people under the
age of 24

Global demand for literacy

Woe know too that basic literacy is only part of the story
The skills that individuals and economies need to progress
and to prosper grow increasingly complex in the face

of technology Functional literacy costs the world

$1 19 trilbon per year — equivalent to the GDP of South
Korea or Mexico

Campaign goals

Project Literacy sets out to help make this the last
generation to be held back by poor Iiteracy The new
Sustainable Development Goals, due to be signed at the
United Nauons General Assembly in September 2015,
will set ambitious goals for education for the next 15 years
We believe that itis within reach to ensure that, by 2030,
every child born can grow up to be a literate adult
Furthermore, achteving this will be core to the success

of the other development goals

Pearson’'s contribution

Literacy 1s an area of need where we see clear overlap
between the opportunity for mpact and Pearson's
products, expertise and networks YWe have significant
experience in providing resources to communities around
the world that help improve reading and writing skills
Ourlongstanding heritage in publishing and the history

of our community mvestrment makes ending global
iliteracy stand out for Pearson as an area in which we

can contribute a mux of product, content, employee ume,
energy and interest to drive impact

60m  /8Im

children are not in primary school  people are lliterate today
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We envisage Pearson’s contribution in three broad We also asked that they share 1ssues where increased &

categortes action i1s needed and contribute to our goals by 1ssuing

a challenge to us To date, we've received 18] inspirn
We have a role to play in energising the debate g piring
Iteracy submissions via the website
around literacy We will actto identify, celebrate

and support goed practice to scale, investin research These projects and challenges are fundamental to

to uncover new opportunities and to Increase the informing the new activities, Investenents and partnerships

prominence of Iiteracy in natonal and international which we will be announcingin the course of 2015 and o
c

policy discourse beyond Over time, projectliteracy com will act as the =
s

one-stop shop for the campaign as a whole —sharin =

We have a responsibility to activate our own business pshop P8 g a
research, partnerships and reporting on impact o

assets and influence towards the thematic and z
geographic areas where we see opportunity to Improve In late 2014, we kicked off afirst partnership with GOOD b4

Iteracy We wili place an emphasis on supportng our is GOOD The partnership has begun by 1ssuing iteracy -

employees to participate and contribute to literacy related stories and engaging non-profit organmisations who

initatives around the world, wath the aim of launching understand the challenges of Iiteracy It will also bring

anumber of these opportunities midway into 2015 together Pearson employees and local communiues in

volunteer work
We will invest in partnerships that pursue new
innovasons in lteracy Where relevant, our product Literacy is anissue on which many different not for profit,
development will also take account of and seek to address community and commercial organisations are already
barriers presented by poor hiteracy working hard to make a difference As part of this

campaign we will bring the private and public sectors
together with a single ambition to accelerate progress
QOur Project Literacy campagn kicked off in fate and test new deas

September with a global listening and awareness raising
exercise hosted on projectliteracy com We invited
individuals and organisations already working to
improve literacy to highlight publicly on the website

Progressin 2014
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Visit projectliteracy com to learn more €

the programmes and projects which inspire them 3
5
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Taking Iiteracy to the next level

Our new social iImpact campagn — READ
Project Literacy — builds on existin
’ Y & EOR MY
community activity SCHOOL s -
z
Jumpstart ¢ Read for the Record saw more Read for my Schoel doubled its parucipation We helped Book Aud international support ;
than 2 3 milkon aduits and children jon rates on the previous year with 212 000 pupils the development of bbraries in schools and a
together to read Bunny Cakes by bestselling across England rogether reading 876 000 communities across sub-Saharan Africa =
author and illustrator Rosemary Wells books The competition encourages pupils We were the largest donor giving a third of 4
to read as many books as possible in a two- the | midlion books supplied by the charity 2
o | month penod drawing from an opline free this year 2
s Iibrary of books offered by Pearson and z
r J u mp S*drf Penguin Random House o

Wil Children first

For2G15 wewill review how we repert on our community partnerships in fight of our new approach
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Social iInnovation

Extending access to quality education to the poorest and
most marginahsed families 1s a challenge, parucularly in
the most deprived countries of the world Pearson is
cormmitted to playing our part and 1s active in helping
shape and inform the global debate around education
and learning policy We represent the private sector
and chariable fourdations on the board of the

Global Partnership for Education (GPE) Along with
representatives from developing countries and donor
governments, the GPE aims to strengthen education
systems in developing countries VVe also continue to
champion the role of the private sector in educauon
as a founder member of the Global Business Coalition
for Education

Learn more about these activities at
© www globalpartnership org

© www gbc-education org

Key to our social innovation approach is our belief that
commercial solutions can accelerate access to quahity
education Uncovering, developing and scaling solutions,
especially in places where education standards fall

well behind the bestin the world, can require us to
challenge the way we think about our business

Pearson Affordable Learning Fund (PALF)

In December 2013 the Pearson Affordable

Commeraial solutions might nvolve new business models,
investing in new technology, or testing innovative
partnerships or distribution channels

Social nnovauen in practice — the Pearson Affordable
Learning Fund

The Fund faunchedin 2012 with $15 mifiion of capital

It supports educauon for students from the poorest

and most marginalised families, and sets improvements

in learning outcomes and market-based returns as
condimions of conunued investment The Fund has already
invested in Innovative education start-ups in South Africa,
Ghana, India, and the Prelippines Half of the Fund s
currently invested in comparues with female CEQs

in January 2015 we announced a new $50 million
investment, through which we expect to reach milhons
of additional students and young people by 2020

In addition by prowviding financial backing, good
governance, and operational support to education
entrepreneurs — the Fund aims to foster and scale
innovauon throughout Africa, Asia and Latin America

It 1s also enabling innovation from which governments
can learn, the cost per student in the schools in the Fund
portfehio s generally lower than In government schools

Learming Fund made a $300 000 investment
10 Avant Founded in 2010 Avanu helps

to prepare students from low-income
backgrounds in India {these with an annual
family Income of $5 000 or below) for college
entrance exams focusing on the highly
competitive career paths of engineering and
medicine Avant s approach emphasises peer
Jearning which takes the form of small group
work and concept tests Alongside our financial
investment we have supported Avanu by
reviewing their curriculum and content reacher

Learn more aravantfellows orgo

traning, and helping to appoint a new board
and implement a new governance structure
The results thus far have been extremely
impressive —over 40% of Avant s students
placed in the top 1% on the IIT |EE examination
in 2013 and 2014 with 100% placing in the top
20% The lIT entrance exam s considered the
world s most compettive with over 500 00G
students taking the exam each year fora
university system with onfy 10000 annuat
seats Avanticosts are less than 25% of those
traditional classes with students charged only
$30 per month
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Governance overview

from Glen Moreno, Chairman

Clear board roles and governance
processes offer balance and
experience to our strong, focused
executive team, helping to drive
strategic and performance progress.

In this Governance section

LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS p60-69 ©
ACCOUNTABILITY p70-77 @
ENGAGEMENT p78-81 ©
REMUNERATION p82-106 ©
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES plo7-112 ©

Dear shareholders,

As you may have already seen elsewhere in this report,
2014 was a year in which we completed the restructure of
Pearson, laying the foundatons to strengthen our positron
as the world's largest education company and embedding
efficacy into all we do | wouldlike to take this opportunity
to share with you some tnsights as to how our board

and governance framework has operated and evolved
throughout the year to cormplermnent cur transformation
Learn more about our Transformation on p4-9 ©

Governance principles

Our role and acuvities As a board we organise our work
around four major themes where we believe we can add
value governance, strategy, business performance and
people Qurboard calendar and agenda provide ample
tme to focus on these themes and we have set out some
examples of the business considered by the board, as well
as the governance practices to which we adhere, on the
pages that follow Learn more about Board meetings and
actvivies on p63 €

UK Corporate Governance Code This year, as is required,
we are reporung against the 2012 editron of the UK
Corporate Governance Code (the Code) The hoard
beleves that during 2014 the company was in full
complhance with the Code See page 73 for our position
on audit tendening and rotation A detaled account of the
provisions of the Code can be found on the FRC's website
at www frc org uk and we encourage readers to view

our compliance schedule on the company website at
WWWw pearscn com/governance

Board and management

The Pearson board consists of senior executve
management alongside a strong team of non-executive
directors drawn from successful international businesses
and education institutions with experience of corporate
strategy, education, emerging markets, technology and
consumer marketng

Board changes As 1s best pracuce, we continually

assess and refresh the board to ensure we maintain an
appropriate balance and diversity of skills and experence
We will soon bid farewell to two trusted advisers,

Dawvid Arculus and Ken Hydon, who have signalled




theirintentons to stand down from the board at the
upcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM), having each
served the company for nine years We will miss their
wise counsel and rigour as chairmen of the remuneration
and audit committees respecuvely, and we thank them
for their service to Pearson

During the past year we have also welcomed two new
non-executive directors to our board Elizabeth Corley
jotned us in May 2014 and in January 2015 we welcomed
Tim Score | am debighted to say that Ehzabeth and Tim
are to be appointed as our new remuneraton and audit
committee chairmen respectively, following the AGM in
April 2015 Between them, Elizabeth and Tim bring a
wealth of business, finance and technology experience
to Pearson's board, and will no doubt contribute fresh
perspectves to the board’s deliberations Learn more
about our Board of directors on p60-61 €

Board and execuuve structure and balance Our board
consists primarily of non-executive directors, who

bring a strong independent viewpoint, complementing
the executive perspectives of John Fallon and Robin
Freestone Inaddiion, we invite the Pearson executive to
attend a number of the board's sessions to bring insights
and thoughts frorm across the business Learn more about
the Pearson executive on p9 @

Board evaluation During 2014 we undertook an
externally-facilitated board evaluation process As always,
this assists us in identifying opportunities to refine our
processes, but the overall findings reflected a board which
functions well, s fit for purpose and which has a strong
sense of collegality and support— sometiing which has
served us well through our two-year transformation
Learn more about the Board evaluation on p67 €

Accountability See full section on p70-77 @

Throughout our transformation, our audit committee
has played a vital role in overseeing both risk and
reportung matters Our refocused business has seen the
ntroducton of a new financal reporung structure along
the ines of our pnimary geographic markets, and our
shuft towards digrtal, services and emerging markets

has brought new opportunities and risks — strategic,
operational and financial Learn more about our Principal
risks and uncertainties on p34 @
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Engagement See full sectton on p78-81 ©

Engagerment with shareholders and society as a whole 1s
key to Pearson’s mission to help people make progress in
their lives through learning During the year, recognising
this, we formalised our reputation & responsibility
committee, headed by Vivienne Cox, whose focus
includes our reputauon with stakeholders (including
tnvestors and the education community) and oversight
of Pearson’s public commutmenis to society We also
welcomed a number of shareholders to our Annual
General Meeting which, as always, was a valuable
opportunity for cur board and senior management to
respond to shareholders’ views and questions

Remuneraton See full section on p82-106 (+]

Our remuneration policy was reviewed last year to align
with the company’s strategy and arganisation and was
approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM We continue
to operate executive remuneration in e with the
approved policy and at present do not anticipate seeking
shareholder approval for our policy again unul required to
doso at the 2017 AGM

This year's report on directors’ remuneration refers 1o
the changes we made in hne with policy in 2014 to better
algn executive director compensation with the interests
of our shareholders and, to put our report Into context,
contains a summary of the approved directors’
remuneration policy report from 2013 which 1s not
subject to avote The reportalsc deals with the significant
minority vote against the 2013 annual remuneranon
report which the company received at the 2014 AGM

Conclusion

| hope this report clearly sets cut haw your company Is
run, and how we align governance and our board agenda
with the strategic direction of Pearson We always
welcome questions or comments from shareholders,
either via our website (www pearson com) orin person
atour Annual General Meeung

M«—Aﬁ

Glen Moreno Chairman
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Leadership & effectiveness

Board of directors

Chairman

Executive Directors

<
Glen Morens Chatrman
aged 7|, appointed | October 2005

Chairman of the nomination committee and
member of the remuneration committes

Glen has more than four decades of
experience In business and finance, and

1s currently non-executive director and
charrman designate of Virgin Money Holdings
(UK} plc 2nd non-executive director of
Fidelity Internatronal Limited He s alsoa
senior adviser to HSBC and charrman of

the Global Leadership and Technology
Exchange leadership board Previously,

Glen was deputy chairman of The Financial
Reporting Council Lirmited i the UK,

deputy chairman and senor independent
director at Lloyds Banking Group plc, senior
independent director of Man Group plc and
acung chairman of UK Financial Investrments
Limited, the company setup by HM Treasury
to manage the government’s shareholdings
in UK banks

Pearson board members
bring a wide range of
experience, skills

and backgrounds which
complement our strategy

Digital experience

50%

Emerging market
experience

25%

Educauon/learning
sector expertence

50%

Note Graphicillustrates expertence
of non-executive directors

A

John Fatlon Chief execuuve
aged 52, appointed 3 October 2012

John became Pearson’s chief executive on

I January 2013 Since 2008 he had been
responsible for the company's education
businesses outside North America, and
amember of the Pearson management
committee He joined Pearsonin 1997

as director of communicauons and was
appointed president of PearsonlIne arole
he combined with his communications
responsibiives i 2000 In2003 hewas
appointed CEQ of Pearson’s educauconal
publishing businesses for Europe, Middle
East & Africa (EMA) and gradually took on
abroaderinternational education brief

Prior to joining Pearscn, John was director of
corporate affairs at Powergen ple, where he
was also a member of the company's executive
committee Earlierin his career, John held
senior public policy and communications roles
inUK local government He s an advisory
board member of the Global Business
Coalition for Education

Non-executive Directors

Robin Freestone Chief financial officer
aged 56, appointed 12 June 2006

Robin's experience in management and
accounting includes a previous role as group
financial comtroller of Amersham pie {now
part of General Electric) and senior financial
posiunons with ICI ple Zeneca and Henkel

UK He wasalso a non-executive director and
founder shareholder of eChem Limited unul
May 2014 when the company was sold Robin
joined Pearson in 2004 as deputy chief financeal
officer and became chief financial officer

in fune 2006 He qualified asa chartered
accountant with Touche Ross (now Deloitte)
and currently sits on the Advisory Group of
the ICAEW’s Financial Reporting Faculty and
was, unulDecember 2014 chairman of The
Hundred Group of Finance Directors He ako
sits on the CBI s Economic Growth board

{

-5
Ve
T

Ken Hydon Non-executive director
aged 70, appointed 28 February 2006

Chairman of the audit commuttee and
member of the nominavon and remuneraton
commiiees

Ken's expenence infinance and business
includes working in the electromes retail,
consumer products and healthcare sectors
He is non-executive director of Reckitt
Bencksser Group plc, one of theworld s
teading branded consumer goods companes
m health, hygiene and home Heisakoanon-
executve director of Merhin Entertainments
ple, the world s second largest visior
attraction operator From 2004102013 he
was a non-executive director of Tesco plc
Previously, Ken was chief financial officer

of Vodafone Group ple, the multinational
telecommunications company and financial
director of subsidiaries of Racal Electronics

Josh Lewrs Non-executive director
aged 52 appointed | March 201

Mernber of the nomination and remuneration
committees

Josh's experience spans finance, education
and the development of digital enterprises

He 15 the founder of Salimon River Capital LLC,
aNew York-based private equity/venture
capital firm focused on technology-gnabled
businesses in educanon, financial services

and other sectors Over a 25-year careerin
active principalinvesting he has been involved
In a broad range of successful companies,
including several ploneering enterprises

in the education sector In addiwon, he has
long been acuve in the non-profit education
sector with associations including New
Leaders New Classrooms, and the Bill &
Melinda Gates Foundauon Hes also anon-
executive director of eVestment and Axioma
both finanaal data/technology companies
and Parchment, an education credentials
management company




Non-executive Directors
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David Arculus Non-executive director
aged 68, appointed 28 February 2006

Chairman of the remuneration comnuttes
and mernber of the audit and nomination
committees

Dawvid has experience in banking,
telecommunicauons and publishing in a long
careerin business Currently he s chairman of
Energy UK and Hassium Asset Management
and1sa member of council of Cranfield
University David’s previous roles nclude the
chatrmanship of Aldermore Bank plc, Nurmis
Corporation ple, O2 ple, Severn Trent ple,
{PC Group and the advisory board of the
Briush Library as wellas chiefoperating
officer of United Business Med:a ple, group
managing director of EMAP pk and a non-
executive director of Teleforica § A David
served from 2002 to 2006 as chairman of the
UK government's Better Regulation Task
Force, which worked on reducing burdens
on business

Elizabeth Corley, CBE Non-executive director
aged 58 appointed | May 2014

Member of the nomination and remuneration
committees

Elizabeth is chief executve officer of Alllanz
Global Investors, one of the world's leading
mvestment organisations She was previously
at Mernll Lynch Investment Managers and
Coopers & Lybrand Elizabeth s amember
afthe board of the Investment Associatron,
amember of the European Secunues and
Markets Authority's stakeholder group, an
adwisory council member of TheCitylUK and

15 noh-exacutive director of the Financial
Reporung Counal mthe UK Sheisalsoa
member of the management committee of the
Forum of European Asset Managers, a member
of the CFA Future of Finance Counatand a
member of the Committee of 200 Elizabeth
was appointed Commander of the Order of
the Bnush Empire (CBE) in the 2015 New Year
Honours for services te the financial sector
She s also a fellow of the Royal Society of Arts
and an accompiished crime ficvon author

o,

Vivienne Cox Senor independent director
aged 55 appomnted | January 2012

Chairman of the reputation & responsibihity
committee and member of the audit
normination and remunerauon committees

Vivienne has wide experience in energy,
natural resources and business innovauon
She worked for BP plc for 28 years, in Britamn
and Continental Europe In pasts including
executve vice president and chief executive
of BP s gas, power and renewables business
and its alternative energy unit Shesnon-
executive director of Stena Internauional
and of energy company BG Group ple,

and charrman of the supervisory board of
Vallouree which supplies tubutar systems
for the energy industry She s also lead
independent director at the UK Department
for International Development Vivienne s a
commussioner of the Arrports Commission
which was set up by the UK government to
examine any requirements for additional UK
arport capacity

Lindz Lonimer Non-executive directar
aged 62, apponted | July 2013

Member of the audit, normnation and
reputation & responsibility commitiees

Linda has a deep background in educauon
strategy admirustration and public affarrs Sheis
vice president for Global & Strategic Initiatives
at Yale University, where her duties include
oversight of Yale's Office of Internauonal

Affairs and Office of Digital Dissemination
Over a 30-year career in ugher educauon

she has been responsible for many of Yale’s
administrative services ncluding the university's
public communications alumm relations and
Office of Sustainability Previously, Linda served
as president of Randolph-Macon Woman's
CollegeinVirginia and had earlerworked at
Yale in several serwor roles including assoaate
provost She s a non-executive director of Save
the Children (US) and was chair of the board

of the Association of American Colleges and
Unnersives

Harish Manwant Non-executive director
aged 61, apponted | October 2013

Member of the nomination and reputation &
responsibility committees

Harish has an extensive background inemerging
markets and senior expenence in a successful
global organisavon He was previously chief
operating officer of consumer products
company Unilever, having joined the company
i |976 as a marketing management trainee
mnindia, and held senior management roles
around the world, including North Amenca
Laun America, Europe, Africaand Asia Heis
non-executive chairman of Hindustan Unilever
Lirmited in India, and serves on the boards of
Whirpool Corperation, Qualcomm Ine and
Nielsen NV He s also on the board of the
Indian School of Business and the Economuc
Development Board (EDB) of Singapore

Tim Score Non-executive director
aged 54, appointed | January 2015

Member of the audit and nomimatien
commuttegs

Tim has been chief financial officer of

ARM Holdings ple, the world's leading
seniconductor IP company, for 13 years,
with extensive experence of the technology
sector and in both developed and emerging
markets, particularly China He 1san
experienced non-executive director and
currently sits on the board of The Bnush
Land Company plc He served on the board
of Nauonal Express Group ple from 2005 to
2014, including time as interim chairman and
siX years as the senior independent director
Earlier inhis career Tim held sentor finance
roles with Rebus Group, Wilham Baird,
BTR plc and others
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Leadership & effectiveness

Board governance

Board of directors

Compositon of the board The board currently consists
of the chairman, Glen Moreno, two executive directors
including the chief executive, John Fallon, and eight
independent non-executive directors Following the
2015 AGM, the board will consist of six iIndependent
non-executive directors, following the retirement of
David Arculus and Ken Hyden

Chairman and chief executive There s a defined spiit

of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive The roles and responsibilities of the chairman
and chief executive are clearly defined, set outin writing
and reviewed and agreed by the board annually

Charman’s sigmificant commitments During the course
of 2014, the chairman stepped down from his posmon as
deputy charrman of the Financial Reporting Counall, and
with effect from | January 2015 has been appointed asa
non-executive director and chairman designate of Virgin
Money Holdings (UK) plc

Independence of directors All of the non-executive
directors who served during 2014 were considered by the
beard to be independent for the purposes of the Code

The board reviews the independence of each of the non-
executive directors annually This includes reviewing their
external appointments and any potential conflicts of
mnterest as well as assessing their ndividual carcumstances
inorder to ensure that there are no relatonships or
arcumstances likely to affect their character or judgement.
In addiion to this review, each of the non-execuuve
directors Is asked annually to complete an independence
questionnaire to sausfy requirements ansing from
Pearson’s USlisting

The board has in particular considered the independence
of David Arculus and Ken Hydon who have each now
served for nine years It1s the intention of both David

and Ken to reure as directors at the 2015 AGM, but
nevertheless the board beheves that both directors
continue to provide sufficient chailenge to the
dehberations of the board as awhole, and that they are
sufficently independent in character and judgement to
conunue to serve as independent non-executive directors
for the remander of their terms

Key roles

ROLE MAME RESPONSIBILITY

Chairman Glen Moreno The chairman s pnmarily responsible for the leadership of the board and
ensuring its effectiveness

Chief John Fallon The chief executive is responsible for the operational management of the

executive business and for the development andimplementation of the company's
strategy as agreed by the board and the Pearson executive

Senior Vivienne Cox The seniorindependent director’s role includes meeting regularly with

independent the chairman and chief executive to discuss speafic issues, as well as being

director avallable to shareholders generally if they should have concerns that have

not been addressed through the normal channels

The senior independent director has responsibility for apprassing the
performance of the chairman, including in refation to the effectiveness

of the nomination committee, as part of the annual board evaluation
process The seniorindependent director would be expected to chair
the nomination committee in the event that it was considering succession
to the role of chairman of the board

Gender split of the board

H Men 7
B Women 3

Figures asat 31 December 2014
Followsng 2015 AGM sphtwillbe 6 3

Length of tenure
of non-executive directors

B Under 3years 3
B 3106 years 1
B 7 years or more 2

Figures 25 at 31 December 2014
Foliowing 2015 AGM ratiowilibe4 20




Conflicts of interest Under the Companies Act 2006
(the Act), directors have a statutory duty to avoid conflicts
of interest with the company The company's articles of
association (Arucles) alfow the directors to authorise
conflicts of interest The company has established a
procedure to Identfy actual and potential conflicts of
interest, including all directorships or other appointments
to, or relationships with, companies which are not part

of the Pearson Group and which could give nse to actual
or potential confhcts of interest Once notified to the
chairman or company secretary, such potential conflicts
are considered for authorisation by the board atits next

Board meeungs during the year 2014

Feb 2014 Apr 2014

London

GOVERNANCE

> Annual review
of authonsed
conflicts of
Interest

» Review of dvision
of responsibifiues
between chairman
and chief executive

STRATEGY

» 2014 operaung
plan

»Review of
transformation
to date and plans
for2014

PERFORMANCE

»2013 report
and accounts
and dividend
recommendation

PEOPLE

yReview
remuneration
committee
recommendations

Jun 2014

London Woashington DC

>»Focus on
forthcoming AGM
and review of
shareholderissues

)y Brand, reputation
and US
government policy
Read more on p78

FIOZ 1(HdV ST — DNILITW IVHINID TYNNNY

»Update on new » Overview of
organisational and US business
product strategy
approach

3 Pearson
Technology —view
from new chief
information officer

> Review of Investor
relations strategy
and share pnice
performance

> Trading update

> Rising Stars
breakfast
Read more
on péS

Section 4 Governance
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scheduled meeting The relevant director cannot vote on
an authorisaton resolution, or be counted in the quorum,
in relation to the resolution relating to his/her conflict or
potenual conflict The board reviews any authorisations
granted on an annual basis

Board meetings

The board held six full scheduled meetings in 2014, with
discussions and debates focused on the key strategic
1ssues facing the company Major items covered by the
board in 2014 are shown in the table below

Jul 2014

London

» Strategwc
planupdate

» Systemns, supply
chain and
procurement

3 Interim results and
dvidend approval

» Organisauonat
design and
structure

Oct 2014

London

>Updateon
Pearson
Foundation

Strategic offsite

meetng, focusing

on

» Geographies and
Lines of Business
strategic reviews,
ncluding post-
acquisiion
reviews

yFocus sessions—
Financial Times

and UK education

» Technology
deep dive

> Trading update

» Rising Stars
breakfast
Read more
on péd

Dec 2014

New York

> Approval of
committieé terms
of reference

y Enterprise risk
management
review

> Approval of
schedule of
authority hmits

> Penguin Random
House review

yBusiness portfolio
and transaction
update

» Tradingupdate
and preliminary
view of 2015

> Talent review

Inaddinonto its six formal meewngs the board held one further meeung m February 2014 to approve the 2013 prelimunary results and to make its determination that
the 2013 Annual report was far balanced and understandable The board also undertook discussions throughout the year, asrequired to consider the progress and
terms of corporate transacuons
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Leadership & effecuveness
Board governance continued

The role and business of the board

The board i1s deeply engaged in developing and measuring
the company's long-term strategy, performance and
value YWe believe that it adds a valuable and diverse set
of external perspectives and that robust, open debate
about significant business issues brings a valuable
addiwonal discipline to major decisions

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the board’s
deasion and approvalis avallable on our website, at
WWW pearson com/governance

The board receives timely, regular and necessary financial,
management and other informauon to fulfil its dunies
Comprehensive board papers are circulated to the board
and committee members atleast one week in advance

of each meeting and the board receves regular reports
from the chief executive In addition to meeting papers,
alibrary of current and historic corporate informaton 1s
made available to directors electronically to support the
board’s decision-making process Directors can obtain
independent professional advice, at the company's
expense, in the performance of their duves as directors
All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary

Non-executive directors meet with local serior
management every time board and committee meetings
are held at the locations of operating companies, such

as during the board's 2014 tnp to Washington, DC

This allows the non-executive directors to share their
experience and expertise with senior managers as well
as allowing them to better understand the abilimes and
mouvattons of senior management, which in turn will
help them assess the company’s prospects and plans

for succession

Standing committee

A standing committee of the board has been established
to approve certain ordinary course of business items such
as banking matters, guarantees, intra-Group transactions
and routine matters relating to employee share plans

The committee has written terms of reference, reviewed
and approved each year, which dearly set out its authority
and duties These can be found on the company website
at www pearson com/governance

Culwre and values of the board

As part of its annual evaluation, the board considered its
own culture and dynamics, and how these have evolved
alongside the wider transformation

The board agreed that it has areal sense of collegiality,
with an open and transparent approach where diversity
of opinion and challenge are encouraged and welcomed
As awhole and at an indvdual level, the board feels
wholly committed to Pearson’s values and mission, and
throughout 2014 has received regular updates on the
transformation as ithas progressed Learn more about
our Board evaluation on p67 @

Board attendance

The following table sets out the attendance of the company’s
directors at scheduled board meeungs during 2014

Board

atrended
Chairman
Glen Moreno 6/6
Executive directors
John Fallon 6/6
Robin Freestone 6/6
Non-executive directors
Dawvid Arculus 6/6
Elizabeth Corley* 4/4
Vivienne Cox 6/6
Ken Hydon 6/6
Josh Lewis 6/6
Linda Lorimer 6/6
Harish Manwan 6/6

* Appointed on [ May 2014




Succession planning

The board considers oversight of succession planning —
not only at board and executive management level but
for all key positions throughout the business — as one of
its prime responstbilities At board level, the primary
focus in the latter part of the year has been to identify
surtable candidates for the role of chief financial officer

The company has formal contingency plans in place for
temporary absence of the chief executive for health or
other reasons The matter of chief executive succession
15 a standing item for discussion and review by the
chairman and chief executive annually Succession
planning for the board and chair are also undertaken
annualiy

Talent review

The board dedicated part of its December 2014

meeting to reviewing chief executive succession and the
leadership talent pipeline at Pearson In preparauon for
that, the Pearson executive team undertook a nigorous
talent review programme, assessing performance and
potential of its top 100 executives (their direct reports)
as well as the strength of the succession pipeline for their
own roles and their team's roles

All members of the executive team also took partina
mulu-rater feedback process (360 feedback process),
recewving feedback from direct reports, colleagues
and the chief executive on key leadership traits and
behaviours

At the board meeting, the board discussed chief
executive succession and together they reviewed
the 360 summary reports for the executives, as
well as overall themes from the 2014 employee
engagement survey

This discussion was followed by a session on the

broader talent process, looking into succession for each
executive role, analysing diversity staustics and discussing
key capabilities that will be cnitical for the effecuve
delivery of our strategy (pedagogy, technology and
product management)

As a result of this process, we are designing structured
development plans for the top 100 executives in the
organisation and starting a deeper assessment of our
capabilities in the areas of pedagogy, technology and
product management

Section 4 Governance 65

RISING STARS
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In addition to the board’s
established succession planning and
talent review process for senior
roles throughout the business,

it was decided in 2014 to initiate

a sertes of Rising Stars sessions.

The first of these sessions took place over informal
brealfasts during each of the board's offsite meetings
in YWashington. DC and London The purpose of the
sessions s to provide the board with the opportunity
10 meeta cross-section of junior or mid-level
colleagues from the host country who have been
idenufied by senior executives as showing

real promise The board'sfeedback on these
sessions in 2014 was overwhelmingly posiive —
they valued the opportunity to meet and
hear from colleagues fromall levels,
finding the sessions rch and
mteresting, and taking away a
clearer sense of Pearsons

working culture

Rising Stars
gender spht

B Male 47%
W Female 53%
as at 3| December 2014

‘The Rising Stars offered the directors
ncredible nsights tnto the workings of the
company’s enterprises hese men and
women are a key part of the future of the
company, and we were impressed by their
sagacity and by their passion for the mission
of Pearson — and by their good ideas for our
collective future ™

Linda Lorimer Non-executive director
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance conunued

Directors’ training and induction

Directors receive a significant bespoke induction
programme and a range of informauon about Pearson
when they join the board This includes background
informauon on Pearson and details of board procedures,
directors’ responsibilines and various governance related
issues, Including procedures for dealing in Pearson shares
and their legal obligations as directors The induction
also includes a series of meetings with members of the
board, the Pearson executive and senior management,
presentations regarding the business from senior
executives and a briefing on Pearson’s investor relations
pragramme The induction programmes for Elizabeth
Corley and Tim Score are ongoing, tailored t6 their
specific interests, and relevant to the board committees
they have joined

All directors recerve training in the form of presentations
about the company's operations, through board meetings
held at operatonal locations and by encouraging the
directors to visit local operations and management as and
when their schedule allows, including if they are travelling
1o a country or region on non-Pearson business The
company secretary and general counsel, in conjunction
with the Group's advisers, monitor legal and governance
developments and update the board an such matters as
agreed with the chairman Directors can also make use of
external courses

Directors’ indemnities

In accordance with section 232 of the Act, the company
grants an indemnity to all of its directors The indemnity
relates to costs incurred by them in defending any cvil or
criminal proceedings and in connection with an application
for rehef under sections 661(3) and (4) or secuons I57(1)-
(3) of the Act, so long as monies are repaid not later than
when the ocutcome becomes final if

(1) they are convicted in the proceedings
(n) judgment s given against them or
() the court refuses to grant the relief sought

As permitted by Pearson's articles of association, the
directors have the benefit of an ndemnity whichis a
qualifying third party indemnity prowision as defined
by section 234 of the Act The indemnity was in force
throughout the last financial period and 1s currently
inforce

The company has purchased and maintains directors’ and
officers’ insurance cover against certamn legal habiliues and
costs for clams in connection with any act or omission by
such directors and officers in the execuuon of their dunes

Board committees

The board has established four formal committees

the audit committee, the nomination committee,

the remuneration committee, and the reputation &
responsibility committee, which was formally constituted
In 2014 having operated on an informal basis during 2013
The charmen and members of these committees are
appointed by the board on the recommendation
(where appropriate) of the nominauon committee and
in consultauon with each relevant commttee chairman
Inaddition to these formal board committees, the
standing committee also operates with board level input

More committee information

AUDIT COMMITTEE p70 QO
NOMINATION COMMITTEE p68
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE p82 @
REPUTATION & RESPONSIBILITY

COMMITTEE p78 @

STANDING COMMITTEE

p64 ©

The approach adopted by the board is for commuttees to
focus on their own areas of experuse, enabling the board
meetings to focus on governance, strategy, performance
and people, thereby making the best use of the board's
time together as a whole The committee chairmen
report to the full board at each meetingimmediately
following their sessions, ensunng a good communication
flow whilst retaining the ability to escalate items to the full
board's agenda if appropriate

Roard commuttee attendance

The following table shows attendance by directors at
committee meetings throughout 2014

Reputation &

Audit  Remuneration Nominanon  responsibility

Glen Moreno - 4/4 6/6 -
John Fatton - - 6/6 -
David Arculus 5/5 4/4 6/6 -
Eiizabeth Corley*  — i/1 4/4 -
Vienne Cox 5/5 4/4 6/6 3/3
Ken Hydon 5/5 4/4 6/6 -
JoshLews - 4/4 6/6 -
Linda Lorimer 5/5 - 6/6 373
Harish Manwan - ~' 6/6 3/3

* Joined nomination committee on | May 2014 and remuneration commuttee
on | August 2014




BOARD EVALUATION

A formal evaluation of the board, its committees and
individual directors’ performance was completed at
the end of 2014

It1s recommended by the Code that this process is
facilitated by a third party every three years This
effectiveness review was conducted by external
evaluator, JCA Group In addition te facilitating this
review, {CA Group provided benchmarking and due
diligence services in connection with the appointment
of Elizabeth Corley as a non-execuuve director

JCA Group has no other connection to Pearson
apart from in relation to board evaluation and search
consultancy services

EVALUATION PROCESS

On JCA Group'’s recommendation, the process for
the evaluation was as follows

Iniral briefing An intial brefing on the
company to provide context and insights
into the strategic prioriues for the business
as well as any 1ssues or concerns to address
more specifically

%
Discussion guidehine Development of a
‘discussion guideline’ which was shared with
the parucipants ahead of one-to-one meetings,
to address key topics but not imit the
discussion to only these, such tepics included
the organssation of the board, board and chair
succession, judgement of the strategy and
business performance, the dynarmics and
composiuon of the board and feedback on

the commuttees and individual directors

~
One-to-one meeungs One-to-one meetings
with each board member, both executive
and non-executve, these conversauons
were conducted on a confidential,
un-attributable basis

A
Effectiveness reporc Afull report was
presented to the board, containing the
key findings, recommendations for acttons
and suggested next steps

Section 4 Governance

Conclusion and recommendations

The review concluded that overali the beard and

its committees remain effecuve in fulfiling thewr
responsibilities appropnately Actions agreedasa
result of the evaluanon included ongoing review and
assessment of the strategy and its success, given the
significant transformation being undertaken by the
company The frequency of board meetings was judged
to be appropriate However, bullding on the success of
the recommendation of the chief executive’'s monthly
letter from last year's internal board review, there was
also a suggestion to introduce additional board calls in
between board meetings to keep the board current on
issues and progress In addiuon, it was highlighted that
it 1s essentizl the board pays continuing attention to
ensure all directors are well nformed and have a deep
understanding of the 1ssues for the business and the
broader global education environment in order to
provide appropriate strategic direction and challenge
going forward This might include creating ongoing
opportunites for board members to visit Pearson's
operauons in different global venues

Personal objectives

tn addition to the evaluation of the board as a whole,
executives are also evaluated each year on their
performance against personal objectives under the
company's annual incentive plan Learn more about our
Annual ncentive plan on pl04 Q)

The non-executive directors, led by the senior
independent director, also conduct a review of the
charman’s performance

Committee evaluation

In addition to the review of the board and individual
directors, the audit and remuneraton committees each
undergo an annual evaluation process to review their
performance and effectiveness

The process involves distribution of questionnaires to
audr and remuneration committee members, as well as
key stakeholders in each commitiee, seeking views on
matters including committee roles and responsibilities,
quality and timeliness of meeting materials, opportunity
for discussion and debate, dialogue with management
and access to independent advice Responses are then
evaluated and presented to the respective committee at
a scheduled meetng, with key themes being drawn out
for discussion

67
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination committee role and composition
Chairman

Glen Moreno The commuttee primarily monitors the composition and
balance of the board and its committees, and identifies
and recommends to the board the appointment of new

directors and/or committee members

Members David Arculus, Elzabeth Corley, Vivienne Cox, John Fallon stepped down from the nomination
KenHydon Josh Lewrs, Linda Lorimer, Harish Manwary, committee in December 2014, although he will continue
Glen Moreno and Tim Score to be avallable to attend committee meetings by
invitation Elzabeth Corley and Tim Score joined the
normination committee following their appointments

Key acuvities in 2014 to the board

Objectives Actions Committee meetings and appointrments

Identfy and appoint additional Appointment of

non-executive directors, at Elizabeth Corley and The nomination committee meets at least once a year and
least one of whom to be female  Tim Score at other imes as and when required During 2014, the
Audi commitzee and Appoinument of Tim committee met six imes with its primary focus being to
remuneration committee Score and Ehizabeth consider suitable candidates for the role of chief financial
chair succession Corley as respective

officer and for non-executive positions, including for the

committee chairmen
roles of audit and remuneration committee chairmen in

S;;??;T;:Iffrrf:ef_or new c\iﬁf;:sn;i:;ﬁif;rim preparation for the retirement from the board of Ken
to join board on Hydon and Dawid Arculus during 2015
| August 2013 The non-executive search culminated in the successful
For nomination committee attendance appointment of Tim Score and Elizabeth Corley to the
see overview table on p66 © board, who also joined the audit and remuneration
commuttees respectively and will assume the
chairmanships of those committees following the

AGMin Aprd 201(5.
I Appomtrments ldenufying and nommating

Having considered a range of external and internal
candidates for board vacancies 8 8

candidates, we announced con 27 February 2015 that

2 Balance Ensuring that the board and its committees Coram Wilkams would succeed Robin Freestone as chief
have the appropriate balance of skills, experience, financial officer Coram will join Pearson as CFO designate
independence, diversity and knowledge to on | July 2015 and will replace Robin on the board on
operate effectively | August 2015

3 Succession planning Reviewing the company’s
leadership needs with a view to ensuring the continued
ability of the organisation to compete effectively in

the marketplace

In addition, the committee continued to focus on the
search for a non-executive director with insights into

mobile and digital technology to further complement
our strategy




Pearson uses a number of leading firms in its board

and executve search activiues An external search
consultancy, Odgers Berndtson, was used during the
recruitment process for Tim Score Odgers Berndtson
does not have any other connecuon to Pearson apart
from as a search consultancy

The committee identfied Elzabeth Corley as a potential
non-executive candidate and an external search agency,
JCA Group, provided benchmarking and due diligence
services In connection with Elizabeth’s appointrment

In addiion to these services, JCA Group facilitated
Pearson’s board evaluation in 2014

Learn more about the Board of directors on p60 @
Chairman role

Although the chairman of the board chairs the
nomination committee, he 1s not permitted to char
meetings when the appointment of his successor s
being considered or during a discussion regarding his
performance Atsuch times, the senior independent
director will chair the meetings

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out its authority and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
WWW pearson com/governance

Diversicy

The board embraces the Code's underlying principles
with regard to board balance and diversity, including
gender diversity The nomination commuttee, led by
the chairman, ensures that the directors of Pearson
demonstrate a broad balance of skills, experience and
nationalty, to support Pearson’s strategic development
and reflect the global nature of the Group’s business

The committee and the board always take account of
diversity in its broadest sense when considering board
appointments whilst ensuring that appointments are
made based on merit and relevant expenence

Sectuion 4 Governance 69

Lord Davies has called for companies to target 25%
fernale representanon on boards of FTSE 100 comparies
by 2015 Pearson is committed to having at least 30%
female directors within |_ord Davies’ 2015 umeframe

and currenty has three female directors on its board

of eleven, representing 27% With the forthcoming
retirement of David Arculus and Ken Hydon in the coming
months, this figure 1s expected to increase to 33%

immediately below board level, the Pearson executive,
not including the chief executive and chief financial officer
who are main board directors, has three female members
out of a total of 12 (represenung 25%) Qur senior
leadership team, up to and ncluding two reporting levels
from the chief executive, shows a strong pipeline of
female talent with women representing 35% of our

senior leaders

Pearson considers diversity as an important 1ssue across
the Group, not just at board level One of the key ams
of Pearson’s diversity policy is to iIncrease the number
of leaders coming from a diverse background, including
advancing more women into leadership positrons such
as through our Women in Learning and Leadership
programme for employees

Learn more about Diversity throughout Pearson
onp50 O

Moo

Glen Moreno Charman of nomination committee
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Accountability

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chairman

Ken Hydon
(stands down at
2045 AGM)

u/'

Members David Arculus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon
Linda Lorimer, Tim Score

In my nine years as audit committee
chairman | have learned a lot about
Pearson, its operations, its practices
and its senior management and
have enjoyed the stimulation
generated by so much change

and world class colleagues.

Ken Hydon Chairman of audic committee

For Audit committee meeting attendance
see overview table on p66 (5]

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE
OVERSIGHT OF:

| Reporting The quality and mtegnity of financial
reporting and statements and related disciosure

2 Policy Group policies, including accounting polices,
and practices

3 External audit External audit, including the
appointment, qualfication, independence and the
performance of the external auditor

4 Risk and internal control Risk management systermns
and internal control environment including the
performance of the internal audit function

5 Compliance Comphance with legal and regulatory
requirements in relation to financzl reporting and
accounting matrers

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out its authority and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance @

Audit committee role

The committee has been established by the board
primarily for the purpose of overseeing the accounting,
financial reporung, internal control and risk management
processes of the company and the audit of the financial
statements of the company As a committee, we are
responsible for assisting the board'’s oversight of the
quality and integrity of the company's external financial
reporting and statements and the company's accounting
policies and practices

The Group’s nternal auditor has a dual reporting ine to
the chief financial officer and me, and external auditors
have direct access to the committee 1o raise any matter
of concern and to report on the results of work directed
by the committee | report to the full board at every board
meetng immediately following a committee meeting

As a committee, we also review the independence of the
external auditors, ncluding the provision of non-audit
services (further details of which can be found on page 107
and note 4 to the financial statemenits), ensure that there
15 an appropnate audit relationship and that auditor
objectivity and independence are upheld

Audit committee changes

Linda Lorimer joined the audit committee in January 2014
and we have also recently welcomed Tim Score who
joined the commuttee upen his appointment to the board
on | January 2015 Following nine years with Pearson, and
as chairman of the audit committee, | will step down from
the board at the 2015 Annual General Meeung Tim Score
will take over the chairmanship of the committee
following my retirement and | am sure Tim will bring his
own challenge and ngour to the committee’s deliberations
as an experienced audit committee chairman

Farr, balanced and understandable reporting

We are mindful of the Code's revised principle C | |
relaung to far, balanced and understandable reporting
and accordingly we built in additional steps to our Annual
report umetable to ensure that the full board was given
sufficient opportunity to review, consider and comment
on the report as it progressed Learn more about Farr,
balanced and understandable reporting on pl08 @




Risk assessment, assurance and integrity

A key part of the role of the committee 1s n providing
oversight and reassurance to the board with regard to the
ntegrity of the company’s financial reporting, internal
control policies, and procedures for the identification,
assessment and reporting of risk During 2014 we aligned
our risk and controt processes with the new organisaucnal
structure, and conducted a number of deep dives into
selected prinapal risks

Data security

We view data privacy and cyber security breach as one of
our principal operational risks, and this s a regular tem on
the audit commuttee’s agenda During 2014, a new chief
information officer and a chief information secunity officer
were appointed, and the commuittee met with both
shortly following their appointrnents to receive their initial
assessments on Pearson’s data secunity programme, and
subsequently for progress updates throughout the year
The committee learned that the key areas of focus are to
ensure consistently secure applications and infrastructure
across all parts of the Group, with the aim of adopting
best-in-class practces for our customers and employees

Ant-bribery and corruption

Given our geographic focus and profile, and a number

of recent acquisitions in growth markets, anti-bribery
and corruption (ABC) is a specific nsk for Pearson The
committee conducted a deep dive into ABC risk in 2014,
joined by legal advisers, the SVP general counsel and SVP
internal audrt and compliance The focus of the deep dive
included the increasingly co-ordinated approach taken
by authorties in higher-risk junsidictions in which we
operate, as well as a review of recent enforcement actions
elsewhere in the education sector The committee noted
that Pearson’s ABC policy 1s updated on an ongoing basis
to reflect legistative changes, and learned more about
how the internal ABC training programme continues to
evolve to reflect our new business models and market
specific risks

Health & safety

One year on from the introducton of our global health

& safety palicy, the committee conducted a deep dive
reviewing implementation and findings to date As well
as reviewing findings of audits at Pearsan sites around

the world, the commutiee discussed the Group's health
and safety priorites A primary focus is the safeguarding
and protection of our students and, to this end, a new
global safeguarding officer has been appointed and a
safeguarding and protection policy introduced Our imiuial

Section 4 Governance i

focus has been on our direct delivery businesses —the
areas of greatest risk ~ and a training course s being
developed for those staff who have contact with students
We have also engaged throughout the Group to ensure
that our safeguarding i1s robust whenever we come into
contact with children, young people and vulnerable
adults Corporate security 1s another key area of focus,
particularly in relation to the safety and security of our
staff workang in, or travelling to, tugh-risk desunations
Significant progress has been made in implementation
of the new policies across our businesses, although
there remains work to be done, and the committee

will maintain oversight as we move forward with our
health & safety and safeguarding strategies

Audit committee meetings and activities

The committee met five times during the year with

the following in attendance the chief financial officer,
SVP internal audit and compliance, members of the
senior management team, and the external auditors
Addiionally, the chief execuuve and chairman periodically
attended committee meetings Since the remit of the
SVPinternalaudit and comphance expanded to include
compliance, the internzl audit director and the VP
compliance and risk assurance have also attended
meetings, so the committee has direct contact with
those areas The commuttee also met regularly in
private with the external auditors and the SVPinternal
audit and comphance

Atevery meeting, the commuttee considered reports
onthe acuvives of the Group internat audit function,
including the results of internal audits, risk reviews, project
assurance reviews and fraud and whistleblowing reports
The committee also monitored the company's financial
reporting, internal controls and risk management
procedures, reviewed the non-audit services provided

by PwC and considered any significant legal claims and
regulatory issues in the context of their impact on

financal reporting

Finally, | would like to thank my fellow committee
members, the chieffinanaal officer and the SVP internal
audit and comphance for ther enthusiasm and support

Learn more about the Key actmities of the audit
committee on p72 @

Ken Hydon Chairman of audit committee
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Accountabiity continued

UDIT COMMITTEE

Audit comrmittee meetings during the year

Every Feb 2014 Apr 2014

meetlng
REPORTING
» Accounting » The 2013 Annual yinternm
and techrical reportand accounts management
updates preliminary statement
announcement,

financial statements

» Impact of legal and income statement

claims and » Form 20-F and related
regulatory disclosures including
155UEs ON the annual Sarbanes-
financial Oxley Actsection 404
reportng attestation of financial
reporung internal
controls
poLICY
» Accounting » Tax reporting
matters and process
Group
accounung
pohces
EXTERNAL AUDIT
3 Provision of > Receipt of the external
non-audit auditors’ reporton
services the Form 20-Fand on
by PwC the year end audit
> Reappointment of the
external auditors
> Confirmation of
auditor ndependence
RISK AND INTERNAL CONTRQL
> Internal audit > Assessment of the > Risk deep dive
actmty reports  effectiveness of the tesung nisk
and review of Group's internal
key findings control environment
» Enterprse sk and sk management
managernent systems
> Data security > Review of Group
Interna! audit terms
of reference

COMPLIANCE AND GOVERNANCE

> Fraud >Complance
whistleblowing with the Code
reports and > Comphance with
Code of SEC and NYSE
Conduct requirerments including

matters Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Jul 2014

»Review of the
interim results
and trading
announcement

> 2014 external
audit plan

»Remuneration and
engagement letter
of the external
auditors

»Review opinion on
interim results

» Annual internal
audit plan

> Risk deep dive
business continuity
planning

yRisk deep dive
health & safety

Sep 2014 Dec 2014

» Overview of
2014 Annual
report process

» Annual review and
approval of external
auditor polcy

) Information security
and policy update

» Update on audit

tendering requirements

) Review of the
effectiveness of the
external auditors

» Annual review of
treasury policy
and strategy

> Riskdeep dive » 2015 internal
anu-bribery and audit plan
corrupton > Crisis management
> Risk deep dive tax and ebola
preparedness
> Health & safety

> Review of the committee’s
terms of reference

> Review of the
effecuveness of the
commuittee and the group
internal auditfuncuon




Members

All of the audit committee members are independent
non-executive directors and have financial and/or related
business experience due to the semor positions they hold
or have held in other hsted or publicly traded companies
and/or similar public organisations Ken Hydon, current
charrman of the committee, 1s the company's designated
financial expert He s a Fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, the Assocation of
Chartered Cerufied Accountants and the Assocation of
Corporate Treasurers He also serves as audit committee
chairman for Reckitt Benckiser Group plc and Merlin
Entertainments ple, and untl 2012 for Tesco plc and Royal
Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust Tim Score, who will
assume the chairmanship of the committee during 2015,
15 an Associate Chartered Accountant He also serves as
audit committee chairman for The British Land Company
plc and untl 2014 for Natonal Express Group plc

The qualifications and relevant experience of the other
committee members are detailed on p60-61 (5]

Audit committee meetings during the year 2014

Buring the year, the matters considered by the
committee included those shown on the table opposite

In February 2015, the commuttee also considered the 2014
Annual report and accounts, iIncluding the preliminary
announcement, financial statements, strategic report,
directors’ report and corporate governance comphance
statement

External audit

Based on management's recommendations, the
committee reviews the proposal on the appointment

of the external auditors The committee reviewed the
effectiveness and independence of the external auditors
duning 2014 and remains satisfied that the auditors provide
effective independent challenge to management

The review was conducted by distributing a questionnaire
to key audit stakeholders including members of the audit
commttee, the chief executive, chief financial officer, SVP
company secretanal, SVP internal audit and compliance,
SVP finance for each Geography and Line of Business and
heads of corporate functions Feedback overall was very
positive, indicaung an effective external audit process

The lead audit partner explained to the committee how
PwC were monitoring and reviewing each highlighted area
and confirmed that they would consider how to adapt
their approach in light of specific comments received
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In addition, In accordance with our external auditor pohcy,
Group internal audit performs an annual assessment of
audit fees, services and independence which forms the
basis for a recommendation by the committee to the
board in respect of the appomntment and compensation
of our external auditer Learn more about Auditors’
independence on pl07 €

The committee will continue to review the performance
of the external auditors on an annual basis and will
consider their independence and objecuvity, taking
account of all appropriate gudelines There are no
contractual obligations restricting the committee’s choice
of external auditors In any event, the external auditors
are required to rotate the audnt partner responsible for
the Group audit every five years The currentlead audit
partner rotated onto the Group's auditin 2013

Pearson's last audit tender was in respect of the 1996 year
end resutting in the appointment of Price Waterhouse as
auditors We reported lastyear that a tender process
would commence no later than 2017 to ensure auditors
have been appointed in time for the 2018 year end audit,
following the end of the current lead partner's term, in line
with the FRC's suggested transiticnal arrangements on
audit tendering Developments at an EU level regarding
mandatory audit rotation for listed companies have
changed the UK landscape on audit tendenng and rotation
and, as a result, Pearson would be required to change
auditors no later than the next audit appointment after

17 June 2023 Theaudit committee will continue to monitor
developments in this area and to consider the uming of the
next tender so as to achieve the most efficient and effective
outcome and expects to have concluded on its planned
approachwithin the next year Once the next audit tender
oceurs, the Group willadopt a policy of putting the audit
contract out to tender at least every ten years

Audit committee training

The committee receives regular techrical updates as
wellas specific or personal traming as appropriate In
September 2014, as part of a deep dive into anu-bribery
and corruption (ABC) risk, the commuttee held a
session with legal advisers to better understand global
ABC developments

Committee members also meet with local management
on an ongoing basis in order to gain a better
understanding of how Group policies are embedded

In operations

SSAINISNE ¥NC ]

ADNVHWYOIYId ¥NO I

12VdWITVIDOS YN0 l

FONYNAIAOD

SINIWILVYLS IVIDNYNIE



74 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2014

Accountability continued

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Significantissues

AREA OF FOCUS 155UE

ACTICN TAKEN BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

QUTCOME

New
organisation
structure
and IFRS 8

Impatirment
reviews

Revenue
recognition

Tax

Following the introduction of the
new management structure and
operaung model the Group has
changed its externally reported
segments in 2014 1n accordance
with the gurdance in IFRS 8
Operating Segments’ As part
of the exerase to identfy new
segments and restate financial
reports, undertying cash
generating umts (CGUs) were
also defined

The Group carnes significant
goodwili intangible asset balances
There s judgement exercised in
the Wdentification of CGUs and the
process of allocaung goodwill to
CGUs and aggregate CGUs and in
the assumpuions undertying the
snpairment review

Pearson has a number of revenue
streams where revenue
recognition practices are complex
and management assumptions
and esuMmates are necessary

There are a number of issues

n different countries where
managemnent judgements and
assumptions are made as to the
correcttax ireatment

The committee reviewed restated financals and
discussed the conclusion that the Group's primary
segments were now made up of the businesses within
the three regrons — North America, Core and Growth
The committee confirmed that reporung for the new
segments was consistent with board reporting for
internal purposes The committee also discussedthe
defimion of CGUs and the allocation of goodwillto
these CGUs for the purpose of impairment testing

The committee considered the results of the Group's
annual goodwill impairment review inthe ight of new
and aggregate CGUs The key assumptions are
considered to be the cash flows dertved from strategic
and operating plans, long term growth rates and the
weighted average cost of capital The committee
considered the sensitivities to changes in assumpuons
and the related disclosures required by IAS 36
‘Impairment of Assets’ In particular the committee
reviewed the analysis and disclosure refating to the
Growth CGUs where valuations indicated an impairment
inthe India business and sensitivity to assumptions was
also reviewed in relation 1o other businesses

The committee regularly reviews revenue recognition
practice and the underlying assumptions and estimates
In addition, the commuttee has visibility of internal audit
findings relaung to revenue recognition controls and
processes and routnely monitors the views of external
auditors on revenue recognition 1ssues During the year
the committee reviewed revenue recognition in respect
of services provided to universities and higher education
institutions to facilitate online courses and looked at
signuficant new school testing and teacher certfication
contracts The committee also discussed the impact of
the new revenue recognition standard, [FRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’ and noted that although
the standard would not be adopted by Pearson until
2017 the commuttee would need to understand the
implications of the change well before that date

The committee considered the Group’s approach to tax
provisioning The Group operates in afarge number of
countries and, accordingly, Its earnings are subject to
tax in many Jurisdictions The judgementin relation to
tax provisioning is a combination of the committes’s
assessment of the specific open tax 1ssues and also a
review of the time pertods in which the Group's tax
affairs are open to enquiry by local tax inspectors in
jurisdictions where the Group has a larger taxable
presence The committee addressed this matter
through the presentation of a management report

on the Group’s tax affars by the head of group tax

and through a presentation of the external auditor's
assessment of the Group’s tax provisioning

Segments and
CGUs redefined

Annual
mparment
review

finalised with
confirmation of
an imparrment
inindia and
sufficient
headroomnall
other CGLlUs

Assumptions
underlying
revenue
recogniion were
reviewed and
challenged

The commitiee
was satisfied
with the Group's
approach to tax
provisioning
taking account
of the views of
management and
the assessment
of the external
auduors
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Significant issues continued

AREA OF FOCUS ISSUE ACTION TAKEN 8Y AUDIT COMMITTEE OUTCOME
Grupo Mults  Pearson acquired Grupo Mulk The committee monitored progress on the acquisitian Acquisiian
2CqUISITION in February 2004 for £437m accountng and fair value adjustments proposed with accounting
Management assumptions and particular emphasis on tax and legal provisions and on reviewed and
esumates were necessary in the external valuation of intangible assets significant
establishing fa:r values for the judgements
assets and habHities acquired explained
Disposal Pearson disposed ofts {00% The commuttee reviewed the disposal accounting and Accounting
accounting  nterestin Mergermarket, isjoint  disclosure and considered the main judgementsrelaung  treatments
venture mterest i Safar Books to tax treatments, pension accounting in relation to and valuanons
Online, its 5% investmentin Nook  Penguin and contingent consideration relating to Safan confirmed

Media and made adjustments to

the disposal of Penguin recorded
in 2013

Significant issues

During the year, the committee discussed the planning,
conduct and conclusions of the external audit as it
proceeded

Atthe July 2014 audit committee meeting, the committee
discussed and approved the auditors’ Group audtt plan
and reviewed the key risks of misstatement of the
Group’s financial statements, which were updated at

the December 2014 committee meeting

The table opposite sets out the significant issues
considered by the audit committee together with details
of how these items have been addressed The committee
discussed these ssues with the auditors at the tme of
thetr review of the half year interim financial statements in
July 2014 and again at the conclusion of thewr audit of the
financial statements for the full year in February 2015

All the significant issues were areas of focus for the
auditors Learnmore in the Independent auditors’ report
onpll4-121 @

In December 2014, the committee discussed with the
auditors the status of their work, focusing in particular
on internal controls and Sarbanes-Oxley testing, and
covering the significant Issues outhned above

As the auditors concluded their audit, they explained to
the committee

> The work they had conducted over revenue, working
alongside management to assess several complex
revenue contracts

The committee also discussed the valuation of the Nook
Media investrent at various meetings during the year
prior to its eventual disposal in December 2014

> The work they had done to understand the Group's tax
strategy and identfy business and legislative risks, to
evaluate key underiying assumptions and assess the
recoverability of deferred tax assets

> Their evaluation of the recoverability of digital platforms
and pre-publication assets

» Their focus on segments, CGUs and goodwill impairment
and the impact of the Group's transformation on those

» The results of their controls testing to date for Sarbanes-
Oxley Act section 404 reporting purposes and i support
ofther financial statements audit

» The review of the company’s ‘going concern’ reports
The auditors also reported to the committee the
misstatements that they had found in the course of ther
work, which were insignificant, and the committee
confirmed that there were no matenal items remaining
unadjusted in these financial statements
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Accountability continued

RISK GOVERNANCE AND CONTROL

Internal control and risk management

The directors confirm they have conducted a review

of the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of risk
management and internal controls, including strategic,
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management systems, In accordance with the Code and
Turnbull guidance These systems have been operating
throughout the year and to the date of this report

In September 2014, the Financial Reporting Counal
published updated Guidance on Risk Management,
Internal Control and Related Financial and Business
Reporting, which takes effect for our 2015 year end
reporting The changes were discussed by executive
management and the audit committee and a plan has been
developed to set a clear path to compliance with the new
requirements, ncluding ongoing robust assessment of risk
and preparation of a viability statement

An enterprise risk management {ERM) framework 1s in
place to identfy, evaluate and manage nisks, including key
financial reporting risks Busmess areas undertake semi-
annual risk reviews to identify new or potentually under-
managed risks Throughout the year, risk discussions are
facilitated by the risk assurance team with Group and
business area management to identfy the key risks the
company faces in achieving its objectives, to assess the
probability and impact of those risks and to document the
actions being taken to manage those risks The Pearson
Executive reviews the output of these sessions, focusing
on the key nisks facing the business Management has the
responsibility to consider and execute appropriate action
to mitigate these risks whenever possible The results of
these reviews are reported to the audit committee and
the beard in detail

During 2014, the semi-annual reporting of top risks

was reviewed by executive management as well as the
board and audit committee During the year, the audit
committee considered the oversight of specific selected
princpal risks, through a series of sk ‘deep dives’ Thisis
covered in more detallin the separate report on the audit
committee The key elements and procedures that have
been established to provide effective risk management
and internal contro! systems are described below
During 2014, we aligned these procedures to the new
organisation structure

Learn more about our Principal risks and miugating
factors on p34 @

Control environment

The board of directors has overall responsibility for
Pearson's system of internal control, which 1s designed
to manage, and where possible mitigate, the nisks facing
the Group, safeguard assets and provide reasonable,
but not absclute, assurance against matenal financial
musstatement or loss

Responsibility for monitoring financial management and
reporting and nsk management and internal control
systems has been delegated to the audit commuttee

by the board At each meeung, the audit committee
considers reports from management, Group internal
audit and the external auditors, with the aim of reviewing
the effecuveness of the internal financial and operating
control environment of the Group

The identrfication and mitigation of significant business
risks 1s the responsibility of Group serior management
and the management team for each business area —
being the heads of the Lines of Business, Geographies
and enabling functions Each business area, including
the corporate centre, mamntains internal controls and
procedures appropriate to its structure, business
environment and risk assessment, whilst complying
with Group policies, standards and guidelines

Financial management and reporting

There s a comprehensive strategre planning, budgeting
and forecasting system with an annual operating plan
approved by the board of directors Monthly financial
information, including trading results, balance sheets, cash
flow statements, capital expenditures and indebtedness,
s reported against the corresponding figures for the plan
and prior years, with corrective action outlined by the
appropriate senior executive Group senior management
meet periodically with business area management to
review their business and financial performance against
plan and forecast Major risks relevant to each business
area as well as performance against the stated financial
and strategic objectives are reviewed in these meetings

We have an ongoing process to monitor the risks and
effectiveness of controls in relation to the financial
reporting and consolidation process including the related
information systems This includes up-to-date Group
financial pohaies, formal requirements for finance



funcuions, Group consohdaton reviews and analysis of
matenal variances, Group finance technical reviews,
including the use of technical specialists, and review and
sign-off by senior finance managers These processes are
subject to reviews based on Group internal audit’s risk-
based audit programme The Group finance function also
monitors and assesses these processes, through a finance
compliance function

These controls include those over external financal
reporting which are documented and tested in
accordance with the requirements of section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, whichs relevant to our US hisung
One key controlin this area is the disclosure committee,
which submits reports to the audit committee This
committee is chaired by the SVP internal audit and
compliance, and members include the chief financial
officer, general counsel, SVP investor relations, SVP
company secretarial as well as senior members of
financial management The primary responsibility of
this commuttee 1s to review Pearson’s public reporting
and disclosures to ensure that information provided to
shareholders 1s complete, accurate and comphant with
all applicable legislation and isting regulations

The effectiveness of key financral controls 1s subject
to management review and self-certificatton and
independent evaluation by Group ternal audit

Group internal audit

The Group internal audit function is responsible for
providing iIndependent assurance to management and
the audit committee on the design and effectiveness

of internal controls to mitigate strategec, financial,
operational and compliance nsks The risk-based annual
internal audit plan is approved by the audit committee
Management action plans to improve internal controls
and to miugate nisks, or both, are agreed with each
business area after each audit Formal follow-up
procedures allow Group internal audit to monitor
business areas’ progress in implementing its
recommendations and to resolve any control deficiencies
Group internal audit has a formal collaboration process
in place with the external audrtors to ensure efficient
coverage of internal controls Regular reports on the
work of Group internal audit are provided to executive
management and, via the audit committee, to the board
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The SVP internal audit and compliance oversees
comphance with our Code of Conduct and warks with
semor legal and human resources personnel to invesugate
any reported incidents including ethical, corruption and
fraud allegauions The audit committee 1s provided with
an update of all significant matters received through

our whistle-blowing reporting system, together with

an annual review of the effecuveness of this system

The Pearson anti-bribery and corruption programme
provides the framewaork to support our compliance with
various anti-bribery and corruption regulations such as
the UK Bribery Act 2010 and the US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act

Treasury management

The treasury department operates within policies
approved by the board and s procedures are reviewed
regularly by the audit committee Major transactions

are authonised outside the department at the requisite
level, and there is an appropriate segregation of duties
Frequent reports are made to the chief financial officer
and regular reports are prepared for the audit committee
and the board

Insurance

Pearson purchases comprehensive insurance coverage
where this 1s available on a cost-effective basis Pearson’s
nsurance subsidiary, Spear Insurance Company Limited,
is used to leverage the nisk retention capability of the
Group and to achieve a balance between retaining
insurance risk and transferring it to external insurers
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Engagement

REPUTATION & RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Chairman
Vivienne Cox

Members Vivienne Cox Linda Lormer, Harish Manwani

As Pearson takes a more active role
in education worldwide, we have a
responsibility to our learners and

to our shareholders to grasp new
opportunities which have a positive
impact on society. We are working
to build our brand and to sharpen
our awareness and management

of anything that nsks damaging it.

Vivienne Cox Chairman of reputauon &
responsibiity committee

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES:

| Reputation Pearson’s reputauon among major
stakeholders, including governments, investors,
employees, customers, learners and the
education commurnity

2 Strategy Communications strategres, pohcies and
plans related to reputational issues

3 Social Social iImpact iibatives
4 Brand Brand and cuiture development
5 Ethics Ethical business standards

6 Risk Oversight of reputational risk

Reputation & responsibifity committee role

The reputation & responsibility committee becarne a
formal committee of the board in 2014 This reflects the
board and Pearson executive's growing awareness and
ambition around Pearson’s corporate reputation, and our
beliefin the importance of fuffiling our obligations to the
communities in which we wark, and maximising Pearson’s
positive IMpact on society

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference
which clearly set out its authority and duties
These can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance @

The committee’s responsibilties are shown in more
detall below

For reputation & responsibility committee meeting
attendance see overview table on p66 (]

BOARD VISIT TOWASHINGTON, DC

In June 2014, the board visited
Washington, DC for a three-day
meeting to understand the forces
behind changes in the education
landscape across the US and the
implications for Pearson’s brand
and reputation In our largest, most
successful market. Specifically, the
presentations and discussions
focused on four key areas, outlined
opposite...




Key activities in 2014

In the second year of Pearson’s transformation, the
commuttee acted to scrutinise and challenge the long-term
strategy and approach throughout 2014, meeting three
umes and recemng presentations from business leaders
across a number of key areas

In particular, the committee reviewed and provided
Inputon

» Qur long-term wvision for corporate transparency and
reporting, In particular adopting oversight of our political
contributions policy and spending

» The wind-down of the Pearson Chantable Foundation
and our revised approach to socialimpact activity

» The rationale and future strategy for the Pearson
Affordable Learming Fund

» The review of the Pearson master brand and employee
values, and our approach to tracking the equity of the
Pearson brand globally

| How toincrease producuvity and demonstrate return
on investment in our scheols and colleges, and how to
prepare more students to compete and succeed ina
2lst century global economy

2 Increasing polanisation and politiasauon of educauon
issues and how the explosion of social meda has altered
the public pelicy landscape and the rules of the game

3 Learning to engage with new players and new issues
that come from Increasing private sector investment in
education, particularly from venture capital and
philanthropy, and the shift into new digial and services-led
businesses

4 Growing public scruuny of Pearson’s role in education,
in particular how our size and our success makes Pearson
a target for criics and competitors and how the public
demand for transparency and proof of positive social
impact s posing new challenges —and opportunities —

for companies
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Commuittee aims for 2015

In 2015 the committee will continue to focus on how our
strategy for managing our reputation and maximising our
contribution to socety s changing with the organisation
The committee will adopt oversight of health & safety
management, policy and 1ssues, reflecting its increasingly
significant role in safeguarding our reputation as we
become more active In the direct delivery of education
to students In particular, the committee will review
progress on the integration of social impact mto Pearson's
business following the closure of the Pearson Chanitable
Foundation, the development of our reputation
management approach in our newer markets, and our
progress towards our 2018 efficacy commitment

el Bt s C:Za

S

Vivienne Cox Chairman of reputation &
responstbility committee

The board had a deep dive session examining how
Pearson was building and executing a more robust,
proactive government refatons and reputaton
management capability.

The board spent tme getting a first-hand look at
blended learning in action meeting educators, parents
and learners during a visit to College Park Acadermy, an
innovauve charter schoo! run by our Connections team
in partnership with the University of Maryland's School
of Education

There was an opportunity for the board to engage with
key nauonat opinion teaders, policymakers, reformers
and innovators in education, including Melody Barnes,
former domesuc policy adviser to President Obama,
and Ted Mitchell, US Under Secretary of Education

Finally, the board heard from the Pearson executive
team about how our new operating model was helping
to accelerate our shift to digital and services business
across K-12 and hugher education, followed by an update
on the efficacy iniatve
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Engagement continued

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with shareholders

Pearson has an extensive programme of communication
with all of its shareholders — large and small, institutional
and private

Shareholder outreach In 2014, we continued with our
shareholder outreach programme, seeing approximately
690 instituvonal and private investors at more than 420
differentinstitutions in Australa, Brazil, Brune), Canada,
Greater China, Continental Europe, Japan, Singapore,
South Korea, the UK and the US

Trading updates There are five trading updates each year
and the chief executive and chief financial officer present
our preliminary and interim results updates They also
attend regular meetngs throughout the year wath
investors in the UK and around the world, tallored to
mvestor requirements, to discuss the performance of
the company, the company's strategy, our restructuring
programme, structural changes in our markets and risks
and opportwrues for the future

Chairman meetings The chairman meets regularly with
significant shareholders to understand any issues and
concerns they may have This is in accordance with both
the Code and the UK Stewardship Code The non-
executive directors meet informally wath shareholders
both before and after the AGM and respond 1o
shareholder queries and requests as necessary The
chairman ensures that the board is keptinformed of
principal Investors’ and adwisers’ views on strategy,

and corporate governance

AGM

24 April 2015

8 Northumberland Avenue
London England WC2N 5BY

650

insututional and private
investor meetngs in 2014

Consultauons Dunng the year we also consulted with our
major shareholders and with shareholder representauve
bodies on our directors’ remunerauon policy Read about
Remuneration on p82 @

Seminars We have an established programme of
educational serminars for our institutional shareholders
focusing on individual parts of Pearson These serminars
are available to all shareholders via webcast on

www pearson com @

Private investors represent over 80% of the shareholders
on our register and we make a concerted effort to engage
with them regularly Shareholders who cannot attend the
AGM are invited to emall questions to the chairman in
advance at glenmoreno-agm@pearson com @

We encourage our private shareholders to become
more informed investors and have provided a wealth of
information on cur website about managing Pearson
shareholdings, see www pearson com/investors/
shareholder-informauon htmifor further nformaton,
or turn to page 212 of this report We also encourage all
shareholders, who have notalready done so, to register
their email addresses through our website and with our
registrar This enables them to receive email alerts when
trading updates and other iImportant announcements are
added to our website

See addiuonal Shareholder mformation on p212 @

Our programme of educatonal
seminars s avalable for
insututional investors via
webcast on pearson com



Share dealing

Due to its continued popularity we again provided
shareholders with smaller holdings the opportunity to use
ourregistrar's low-cost share dealing service, giving them
the chance to add to or reduce their stake in Pearson at
significantly reduced dealing rates, or to donate shares to
charity with ease This service proved very popular with
shareholders, and consequently we intend to offer this
service again at a future date

We believe it 1s important that our employees have a
shared interest n the direction and achevermnents of
Pearson and are pleased to say that a large number of
our employees are shareholders in the company

Annual General Meeting

Our AGM, on 24 Apri| 2015, 1s an opportunity for all
shareholders to meet the board and to hear presentations
about Pearson’s businesses and results

Visit pearson com for

Investor relations information Shai e price data

Company announcemerts and Calendar of events
shareholder presentations

Information about cur businesses
webcasts and conference calls

and thenr websies
Past announcements

Corporate responsibiliv
and presentations porate resp Y

nolicies and acuvities
Historical financial performance

Section 4 Governance 8l

WIDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with all stakeholders

We post all company announcements on our website,
WWW DEarson com, as soon as they are released, and
major shareholder presentations are made accessible
viz webcast or conference call Ourwebsite contains a
dedicated investor relattons secuon with an extensive
archive of past announcements and presentations,
historical financial performance, share price dataand a
calendar of events Italso incudes information about all
of our businesses, links to their websites and details of
our corporate responsibility pohicies and activities

Learn more about our approach to corporate
responsibility in the Social impact section on p45-56 @
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Report on directors remuneration

PART | — LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Introduction
Chairman
Dawvid Arculus | am pleased to present our report on directors’

remuneration for 2014

The 2014 annual remuneration report will be put forward
for your consideration and approval by advisory vote at

Members David Arculus, Eiizabeth Corley, Vivienne Cox, the Annual General Meetingon 24 Apnl 2015
KenHydon }osh Lewis and Glen Moreno

In accordance with the UK remuneration reporting
requirements, this report contains

The committee believes that » A summary of the directors’ remuneration policy on p85

’ : . The full policy was approved by shareholders at the
Pearson’s remuneration pOIICY Annual General Meetng on 25 April 2014 and can be

supports the com pany’s strategy found on the Governance page of the company’s website
to deliver sustained performance at www pearson com/governance
and create Iong—term value in the » The annual remuneration report, on p8%-106, describing

all aspects of remuneration practice in 2014
Interests of all stakeholders.

We believe this report clearly demonstrates the link
Dawid Arculus Chairman of remuneration committee

between our remuneration policy and practice, and the
company’s strategy and performance, as well as our
commitment to shareholder engagement

Principles of remuneration polic
In thts remuneration section ples otre policy

PART | LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN  p82 The purpose of the remuneration policy is to

PART 2 REMUNERATION POLICY 85 support the company’s strategy to deliver sustained
P performance and create long-term value in the

PART 3 REMUNERATION REPORT P89 interests of all stakeholders This s summansed in
Terms of reference the panel overleaf
The commuttee’s full charter and terms of reference We continue to keep our remunerauon policy under

review in hght of the prevailing social and economic
condons and the irmpact of these on the company's
objectives and strategy

are available on the Governance page of the
company's website at www pearson com/governance




REMUNERATION POLICY PRINCIPLES

I Sustamnability and affordability We seek a carefuland
sustainable balance between market compeutiveness,
affordability and the long-terminterests of the
company and its shareholders, whilst also being
mindful of pay conditions elsewhere in the Group and
the wider social and economic context The process
for setung levels of execuuve remuneration 1s robust
and transparent

2 Pay for performance A high proportion of total
remunerauon Is delivered as variable pay thats
directly linked 1o both short and long-term
performance of the company, through annual
incentives that reward the achievement of annual
strategic goals and long-term incentives that drive
long-term earnings and share price growth
Performance conditions are sufficiendy stretching
and recogmise individual contribunon as well as the
company's financral results

3 Algnment We encourage executives to acquire
and hold Pearson shares in fine with shareholders’
interests Long-term incentives reward the
achievement of sustainable, long-term value creauon
that wall be benefival to shareholders We acuvely
seek feedback from shareholders on all aspects of
executve remunerauon

Remuneration supporting strategy

Pearson's executive remuneration arrangements
were reviewed last year to align with and support the
company's new strategy Executive remuneration
decisions have been made after consultation with
shareholders, careful consideration of the needs of the
business, the transformation and reorganisation of the
company, changes in roles and responsibilities, the pay
markets in which Pearson operates and pay elsewhere
in the organisation

Pearson's strategy informs our remuneration philosophy
and policy and complements our more traditional financial
goals, which are to achieve sustainable growth on three
key measures (earnings, cash, and return on invested
capital) and to deliver reliable cash returns to cur
investors through healthy and growing dividends
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We believe those are, In concert, good indicators that
we are bunlding the long-term value of Pearson These
measures (or others that contribute to them} therefore
form the basis of our annual budgets and strategic plans
and the basis for annual and long-term incentives

What we did 1n 2014

We consulted with our major shareholders and with
shareholder representatives on the directors’
remuneration policy priortoits publication However,
following publication a number of shareholders expressed
concern that the policy allowed the committee to
exerase discretion to approve remuneration elements
outside of the normal hrmits in exceptional and unforeseen
arcumstances Inresponse to this, prior to the Annual
General Meeung, on9 April 2014, and following further
consultation, we issued a RNS statement to clarify the
basis on which certain elements of the policy would

apply and, n particular, to define and limit when and how
remuneration arrangements outside the normal terms

of the policy might be applied The policy was approved
at the Annual General Meetng on 25 April 2014

Performance in 2014 at a glance

In2014, despite continuing challenging market
conditions, we had a good competitive performance
Overall, we saw

» Growth in sales of 2% and inadjusted operaung profit
of 5% at constant exchange rates

» Anincrease In our dvidend of 6% which was Pearson'’s
23rd straight year of ncreasing our dividend above the
rate of Inflavon

Qver the past ten years we have increased our dividend
ata compound annual rate of 7%, returning £2 9bn
to shareholders

Remuneration in 2014 at a glance

Base salary +2%

Allowances and benefits No change in arrangements

Retirement benefits from 2013

Annual Incentives
Long-term incentives

Pay-out below target
Nif vesting

Note This reflects changes to remuneration for the chief executve and the
chief financial officer, notfor the rest of the Pearson executive
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART | —LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Locking back to some specific aspects of policy
and practice in 2014

» We established maximurm opporturities for each
element of remuneraton

> We changed the werghung of the performance metrics
under the Pearson long-term incenuve plan from one-
third on each measure to half on earnings per share
growth, one-third (no change) on return on invested
capital and one-sixth on relative total shareholder return

> We introduced a mandatory restriction on participants’
ability to dispose of the 75% of vested long-term incentive
shares that are released after three years {other than to
meet personal tax hability) for a further two years and
for the remamning 25% of vested shares to be subject to
continuing employment over the same period

» We increased the mandatory shareholding guidelines to
300% of salary for the CEO and 200% of salary for other
executive directors

> These shareholding guidebnes were also extended to
other members of the Pearson executive at 100%
of salary

» We dlanfied the arrangements for malus and
strengthened the clawback provisions

» The annual bonus share matching plan was ceased
The last award under this plan waill vest or not, subject
to performance, during 2016

» We undertook a regular penodic review of base salares
for 2014 taking inte account general economic and
market conditions, the level of increases made across
the company as a whole, the remuneration of executives
In similar positions in comparable compamies, and
individual performance

» Annual iIncentives paid to executives for 2014 were
below target, as they were in 2013, reflectung below
target performance in a tough trading environment

» There was the second consecutive nil pay-out on long-
term incentives, reflecting below threshold performance
for 2014 against the company's three-year targets for
earnings per share growth, return on invested capital
and relative total shareholder return

» Toincrease alignment with shareholder interests and
the long-term growth of the company, we reviewed the
operation of the long-term incentive plan for the senior
leadership population below the Pearson executive

For 2014 and beyond, awards for this group of employees
will be subject to performance based on an earnings
per share growth target

What we've planned for 2015
Looking forward, for 2015

> We will continue to operate directors’ remunerattion
in ine with the approved remuneration policy and
anticipate putting the policy to shareholder vote next
at the 2017 Annual General Meeting

> As approved in the 2013 directors’ remuneration
report, for performance-refated long-term incentve
awards for 2015 and onwards, the averaging period for
the calculation of relative total shareholder return will
be moved to the period running up to the year end and
the length of the averaging period will be increased to
three months

> On long-term incentives, we have reduced the
proportion of the maximum award that vests for
threshold performance from 30% to 25% in line with
institutional Investors’ preferences

» Based on our guidance for 2015, we will face a challenge
in delivering a pay-out under the long-term incentive
plan award for 2013

The committee welcomes the positive engagement with
shareholders on our approach to this year's report on
directors’ remuneration and, specifically, on the issue of
the vote against our annual remuneration report at the
2013 Annual General Meeting

The committee 1s committed to an ongoing dialogue
with shareholders regarding executive remuneration
and would therefore welcome any observations or
questions that individual shareholders may wish to raise

Fwould like to thank my fellow members of the
committee and the people who have assisted us for
their contribution over the past year

Finally, as | step down from the board and from chairing
the committee, | look forward to handing over the reins
to my successor, Elizabeth Corley

Yours sincerely,

&7&

David Arculus Chairman of the remuneration committee




Section 4 Governance 85

PART 2 - SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Introduction to summary of remuneration policy

The company’s policy on directors’ remuneration was
approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
on 25 April 2014 ‘We issued an RNS statement of further
information on the remuneration policy on9 April 2014,
to clarfy the use of the committee’s discreuon over
certain elements of remuneration in exceptional
clrcumstances

To help shareholders understand the context of
remuneration practice reported in the annual
remuneration report that follows, and speafically the
limits applied to directors’ remuneration, we have
included below some key points and a summary of
perunent sections of the remuneration policy for
information only For further detall, please refer to the
full remuneration policy and the clarfication statement
on the Governance page of the company's website at
Www pearson com/governance

Scope of policy
The policy applies to executive directors, the chairman
and non-executive directors

Reference 15 also made to the remunerauon policy for
cther members of the Pearson executive {currently

12 in number) who are not directors but who fall within
the committee’s remit

Buration of policy

The pelicy took effect on 25 April 2014 and 1s expected to
last until the next binding vote on our remuneration policy
which at present is planned for the 2017 AGM

Use of discretion

The committee has avoided, where possible, including
general discrettons in the policy table However,
exceptional or genuinely unforeseen circumstances may
arise in the future and in those arcumstances it may be
in shareholders’ interests for Pearson to putin place
remuneration arrangements that are outside the terms
of the policy If this happens, the committee will be
permitted to implement remuneration arrangements that
it considers appropriate in the circumstances In these
arcumstances, Pearson would consult in advance with
major shareholders before it does so and would explain
the exercise of this discretion in the following year's
directors’ remuneration report

As clarified in the RNS statement of further information
on the remuneration policy on 9 April 2014, this discretion
would only be used in the very narrow circumstances

articulated in the policy — that s, In exceptional or
genuinely unforeseen arcumstances The committee
considers that these arcumstances would arise highly
infrequently, if at all, in the ifetrme of the policy The
committee would regard reliance on this discretion as a
matter of utmost seriousness and, in relation to our stated
obligation to consult in advance with major shareholders,
would not proceed unless there was clear consensus in
favour among those consulted Further, the committee
would ensure that the value of the remuneration
arrangement put in place inreliance on this discretion
would fall wathin the normal imit (as stated in the policy)
for the element of remuneration to which the
arrangement relates

As part of the approved policy, the committee also has
discretion to award base salary increases, allowances and
benefits, and long-term incentive plan awards in excess of
the normal maximum limits to current or new directors
As clarified in the RNS statement, this discretion will
only be exercised in exceptional circumstances other
than in the case of increases in the cost of benefits that
are outside Pearson’s control and changes in benefit
providers Again, Pearson would consult with major
shareholders before exeraising any such discretion and
such exercise would be imited by reference to the
safeguards described above, including only proceeding
where there was clear consensus in favour among those
consulted in these circumstances, the committee would
ensure that the maximum value of the remuneration
arrangement put m place inreliance on this discretion did
not exceed a margin of 25% over the normal maximum
himit for the element in question (as stated in the policy)

Legacy arrangements

Given the long-term nature of some of Pearson’s
remuneration structures —including obligatons under
service contracts, incentive plans and pension
arrangements — a number of pre-existing obligations
remained in place at the time that the new policy became
effective, including obhgations that are ‘grandfathered’ by
virtue of being in force at 27 June 2012 Pearson's policy 1s
to honour all pre-existing obligations, commitments or
other entitlements that were entered into before the
effective date of this policy

Summary of remuneration policy table

For more information on how remunerauon s operated,
please refer to the full remuneration policy on the
Governance page of the company’s website at

WWW pearson com/governance
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 2 - SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Element of
remuneration

Purpose and hink to stracegy

Performance condioons

Normal hmit

Excepuonal imiz as clarfied in RNS
statement of ¢ April 2014

Base salary

Allowances
and benefits

Reurement
benefits

Annuat
ncentives

Long-term
incentives

Helpsto recruit, reward and
retan

Reflects competiuve market
level role, skills, expenence
andindividual contnibution

Help to recruitand retain
Reftect the local competitive
market

Help to recruit and retain
Recognise fong-term
commitment

Motwvate achievement of
annual strategrc goals
Focus onkey

financial metrics
Rewardindvidual
contribution

Help to recruit reward
and retain

Drive long-term earnings
share price growth and
value creation and align
tnterests of executves
and shareholders
Encourage long-term
shareholding and
COMMItMEnt 1o company
Link management s long-
term reward and wealth
to corporate performance
in a flexible way

None although performance of both
the company and the indmdual are
taken Into account when determiming
an appropnate level of base salary
increase each year

None

None

The committee has the disereton to
select the performance measures,
targets and relanve weighungs from
year to year

Funded by Pearson global annual
finanoal results and wesghted

60% on adjusted earnwngs per share
20% on sales

20% on operating cash flow
Pay-outs take into account indmdual
perforrmance against persenal objectives

The commitree will determine the
performance measures, weightings
and targets governing an award of
restricted shares prior to grant to
ensure conunuing algnment with
strategy and to ensure the targets
are sufficently stretching

Awards vestsubject to the following
performance conditions one-half on
earnings per share growth one-third
on return oninvested capital (ROIC)
one-sixth on relative total shareholder
return (TSR)

Performance tested over three years

Base salary increases are
not ordinarily more than
10% per annum

Total value not ordmnarily in excess
of 15% ofbase salary in any year

As set outinapproved
remuneratien policy

Overalllimit 200% of base salary
2015 maximum opportunity is
180% for the chief executive and
no mare than 170% for other
executive directors and members
of the Pearson execuuve

Maximuim face value of 400% of
base salary

Other than in excepuonal
circumstances on recruitment

itis the company s normal policy
not to award restricted shares to
executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive
without performance condiions

Up to 25% over normal ik in
speafic indradual stuations Including
nternal promouons and matenal
changes to the business or the role

Up to 25% over nommal limit n
specic Indmdual stuatons meluding
changes in indmdual circumstances
such as health status and changes

n the role such as relocation

In excess of 25% over normal liric
in the case of increases in the cost
of benefits that are outside of
Pearson s control and changes

n benefit providers

None

None

Up to 25% over normal limitin
excepuonal arcumstances for
example, for retenuon purposes
or ta reflect particular business
stuations The discrenon to
award restncted shares without
performance condimons to executve
directors will not be used other
than where it 15 approprate to
compensate a new director on a
ike-for-dike’ basis for meentives
foregone at a previous employer

Tota! shareholder return (TSR) 15 the return to shareholders from any growth in Pearson’s share price and rewnvested dividends over the performance period
For long-term incenuve awards TSR is measured refatve to the consttuents of the FTSE World Media Index over a three-year period Companies that drop
outofthe index are normally excluded 1 e only companies in the index for the entire period are counted Share prica 15 averaged over three months at the
start and end of the performance penod Dwidends are treated as reinvested on the ex-dividend date in line with the Datastream methodology The vesting of
shares based on relative TSR1s subject to the commuttee sausfying itself that the recorded TSR s a genuine reflecuon of the undertying financial performance

of the business

Return on invested capital {ROIC) 15 adjusted operaung profic less cash tax expressed as a percentage of gross invested capital {net operating assets plus

gross goodwill)

Adjusted earnings per share (EPS) s calculated by dividing the adjusted earnings attributable to equity sharehalders of the company by the weighted

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year excluding any ordinary shares purchased by the company and held in trust (see note 8 of the financial
staternents for a detaled description of adjusted earnings per share) EPS growth is calculated using the point-ta-point method This method compares

the adjusted EPS in the company’s accounts for the financial year ended prior to the grant date with the adjusted EPS for the financial year ending three years
fater and calculates the impheit compound annual growth rate over the period




Non-executve directors and chairman

Non-executive director remuneration has been
designed to attract and retain high calibre individuals,
with appropnate experience or industry relevant skills,
by offering market competiuve fee levels

The structure of non-executive directors fees with effect
from | May 2014 s as follows

Director Fee
Non-executive director £70,000
Chairmanship of audit committee £27 500
Chairmanship of remuneration committee £22,000
Chairmanship of reputation &

responsibility committee £10,000
Membership of audit commuttee £15,000
Membership of remuneration committee £10,000
Membership of reputation &

respensibility committee £5,000
Senior independent director £22,000

The total fees payable to the non-executive directors are
subject to the hmit set out in the articles of association

of the company {currently £750,000) and are increased
by ordinary resotution from time to time

The chairman’s fees rernain unchanged at £500,000
peryear

For more infformation on non-executive directors’
remuneration, please refer to the full remuneration policy
on the Governance page of the company’s website at
WWW pearson com/governance
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Pay and performance scenario analysis

The remuneration policy approved by shareholders in
2014 required a scenario chart in the format set out
below for 2014 remuneration Although not required,
the company has updated the scenario charts below so
astoapply to 2015 remuneration

Consistent with its policy, the committee places
considerable emphasis on the performance-hnked
elements, 1 e annual and long-term incentives

The chartbelow shows what each director could expect
to receive In 2015 under different performance scenanos,
based on the following definiuons of performance

Performance scenario Elements of remuneration and assumptions

Maximum 2015 base salary, allowances,
benefits, and retirement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as in 2014, maximum individual
annual incentive as per policy,
maximum value of 2014 long-term
Incentive award

Target 2015 base salary, allowances,
benefits, and retirement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as in 2014, target individual annual
Incentive as per policy, target value
of 2014 long-term incentive award
{Towers Watson's independent
assessment of the expected value
of the award, 1 e the net present
value taking into account all

the conditions)

Minimum 2015 base salary, allowances,
benefits, and retirement benefits
atthe same percentage of base
salary asin 2014, no annual or

long-term Incentives

Note The value of long-term incentves does not take into account
dwidend awards that are payable onthe release of restricted shares
nor any changes in share pnce

On this basis, the relauve weighting of fixed and
performance related remuneration and the absolute
size of the remuneraton packages for the chief executive
and the chief financial officer (as represented by the
current incumbent) are as follows on the next page
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Chief execuuve officer £000

Maximum £5,660
Target 31% 2%  48% £3738
Minimum £1158
Chief financial officer £000

Maximum £3479
Target £2 254
Minimum £738

B Base salary allowances 8 Annualincentve

benefits and pension Hl Long term incentives

We will conunue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-linked remuneration on an annual bass,
consistent with our overall polcy

Recruitment

The commuttee expects any new executive directors
to be engaged on the same terms and to be awarded
vanable remuneration within the same normal limits
and subject to the same conditions as for the current
executive directors outlined in the policy As clanfied
in the RNS statement of further information on the
remuneration policy on 9 April 2014, this apphes other
than in the arcumstances set out below where it is
appropriate to take account of the terms of the new
directors’ existing employment and/or their personal
crrcumstances

The committee recognises that it cannot always
predict accurately the arcumstances in which any

new directors may be recruited The committee may
deterrmine that itis in the interests of the company

and shareholders to secure the services of a

particular ndvidual which may require the committee
to take account of the terms of that indidual’s existing
employment and/or their personal arcumstances
Examples of crcumstances in which the committee
expects it might need to do this are outlined in full in the
remunerauon policy on the Governance page of the
company’s website at www pearson com/governance

In light of the various legacy pension arrangements
enjoyed by the incumbent executive directors, in
determining the pension arrangements for any new
recruit, the committee expects to offer a defined

contribution arrangement with company contributions
not exceeding those setin our approved policy on

the Governance page of the company’s website at

www pearson com/governance but would have regard
for the recruit’s existing arrangements, the market norms
in the home country and the existing pension vehicles
available within the company

In making any decision on any aspect of the remuneration

package for a new recruit, the committee would balance

shareholder expectations, current best practice and the

requirernents of any new recruit and would strive not to

pay more than 1s necessary to achieve the recruitment

The committee would give full details of the terms of

the package of any new recruitin the next annual !
remuneraticn report

Pearson expects any new charman or non-executive
dwrector to be engaged on terms that are consistent

with the general remuneration principles outhned in the
relevant secuons of this policy However; in the case of
the chairman, the committee may consider it appropriate
to offer a remuneration package that differs from that of
the existing incumbent if that 1s necessary to attract the
most capable candidate or o reflect the individual's
expected duties

Further informauon on remunerauon pohcy

For further information on the following aspects of the
remuneration policy, please refer to the full remuneration
policy and the RNS statement of further informaton

on the remuneration policy on 9 April 2014 on the
Governance page of the company’s website at

WWW pearson com/governance

» Selection of performance measures and target setting

» Legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

» Remuneraton policy for other employees
»Service contracts and termination provisions

» Employment conditions elsewhere in the company
» Executtve directors’ non-executive directorships

» Shareholder views
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PART 3 — ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Annual remuneration report

The remuneration comrnittee presents the annual
remuneration report, which will be put to shareholders
as an advisory (non-binding) vote at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on 24 Aprl 2015

Remuneration compliance

This report was compiled in accordance with Schedule 8
of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
(Accounts and Reports) {Amendment) Regulauons
2013 and was approved by the board of directors on

9 March 2015

The committee beheves that the company has complhed
with the provisions regarding remuneration matters
contaned within the UK Corporate Governance Code

This report comprises of a number of secuons
VWhere required under current regulations, the tables
marked *audit have been subject to audit

The remuneratton committee and its

actvities on page 90 to 93

Voting outcome at 2014 Annual General

Meetng on page 94

Single figure of total remuneration and

prior year comparison on page 95 *audit
Remuneration paid to the chairrman and

non-executve directors on page 96 Faudit
Reurement benefits on page 96 *audit
Annual incentive on page 97 *audit
Long-term incentives on page 98 *audit
Movements in directors’ interests in share

awards on page 99 *audit
Movements in directors’ interests in share

options on page 100 *audn
Payments to former directors on page 100 *audit
Payments for loss of office on page |01 *audit

Interests of directors and value of
shareholdings on page 102 *audit

Executive directors’ non-executive
directorships on page 102

Historical performance and remuneration
on page 103

Comparauve information on page 104

Information on changes to remuneration
for 2015 on page 104 and 105
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The remuneration cormmittee and its activitres

Composition
Chairman  Dawid Arculus Independent non-executuve
director
Members Ehzabeth Corley
Vivienne Cox Independent non-executive
Ken Hydon directors
Josh Lews
Glen Moreno Chatrman of the board
Internal  John Fallon Chiefexecutive
advisers Robin Freestone  Chieffinanaal officer
Melinda Wolfe Chief human resources
officer
Robert Head VP, executive reward &
global share plans
Stephen Jones SVP, company secretarial
External
advisers Towers Watson

Glen Moreno 1s a member of the committee as permitted
under the UK Corporate Governance Code

Internal advisers provided matenal assistance to the
committee dunng the year They attended meetings of
the commuttee, although none of them was involved in
any decisions relating to his or her own remuneration

To ensure that the committee receives Independent
advice, Towers Watson supplies survey data and advises
on market trends, long-term incentives and other general
remuneraton matters Towers VWatson was selected
and appointed by the committee through a formal
tendering process Towers Watson also advised the
company on health and welfare benefits in the USand

provided consulting advice directly to certain Pearson
operating companies Towers Watson 1s a member of
the Remuneration Consultants' Group, the body which
oversees the Code of Conductin relation to executive
remuneration consulung in the UK

During the year, Towers Watson was paid fees for advice
to the commuttee, which were charged on a time spent
basis, of £95,/100 As part ofits annual review of its
performance and effectiveness, the committee remains
satisfied that Towers Watson's advice was objective and
independent and that Towers Watson's provision of other
services In no way compromises its independence

Committee performance

Annually, the committee reviews its own performance,
constitution, and charter and terms of reference to
ensure 1t 15 operating at maximum effectiveness and
recommends any changes it considers necessary to

the board for approval

The committee participated 1n a survey 1o review Its
performance and effactiveness in July 2014, looking at
areas such as the clanity of roles and responsibilities, the
composition of the commuttee, the use of time, the quality
and umeliness of meeting matenals, the opporwnity for
discussion and debate, dialogue with management and
access to independent advice

The commuittee concluded that it 1s operating effectively
and noted the challenges for the year ahead

The cormmuittee and its members were subject to a
formal third-party external evaluation by JCA Group
of the board, its committees and individual directors’
performance which was completed at the end of 2014




REMUNERATION COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES

SSINISNY ¥NGC i

The committee’s principal duties are to

| Determune and review policy Determine and
regularly review the remuneration pelicy for the
executive directors, the presidents of the prinapal
geographic markets and Lines of Business and other
members of the Pearson executive who report
directly to the CEO {executive management)

This policy includes base salary, annualand long-
term incentives, pension arrangements, any other
benefits and terrminavon of employment

2 Review and approve implementaton Regularly
review the implementation and operation

of the remuneration policy for executive management
and approve the individual remuneration and benefits
packages of the executive directors

3 Approve performance related plans Approve the
design of, and determine targets for, any performance-
related pay plans operated by the company and
approve the rotal payments to be made under

such plans

4 Review long-term plans Review the design of the
company's long-term incentive and other share plans
for approval by the board and shareholders

5 Set terminauen arrangements Advise and
decide on general and specific arrangements

n connection with the termination of employment
of executive directors

6 Review targets Review and approve corporate
goals and objecuves relevant to CEQ remuneration
and evaluate the CEO's performance in ight of
those goals and objectives

7 Determine chairman's remuneration Have
delegated responsibility for determuring the
remuneration and benefits package of the chairman
of the board

8 Appoint remuneration consultants Appoint and
set the terms of engagement for any remuneraton
consultants who adwvise the committee and moritor
the cost of such advice

Section 4 Governance
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19 and 20 February

2014

MARKET

Noted Towers Watson's overview of the
current remuneraton environment and
2013/2014 market data

PERFORMANCE

Noted management’s overview of 2013
and 2014 performance and plans
IMPLEMENTATION

Reviewed and approved the 2013 annual

incentive pay-out and 2014 remuneration
package for John Fallon

Reviewed chairman’s remuneration which
remained unchanged

Reviewed and approved 2013 annual
mcentive plan pay-outs

Reviewed and approved provisional 2011
long-term incentive plan pay-outs (pending
confirmation of TSR performance)

Approved vesting of 2011 annual bonus
share matching awards and release of shares

PART 3 ~ ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Meetings, activittes and decisions in 2014
The remuneration committee met four tmes during 2014, as described below

GOVERNANCE

Noted the actity of the standing

committee of the board in relation
to the operauon of the company’s
equity-based reward programmes

Noted company's use of equity for
employee share plans

POLICY

Reviewed and approved 2013 directors
remuneraton report

Reviewed and approved increases
in base salaries for 2014 for the
Pearson executive

Reviewed and approved 2014 Pearson
annual incentive plan targets

Reviewed and approved 2014 individual
annual incentve opportunities for the
Pearson executive

Reviewed long-term incentive awards
and associated performance conditions
for the Pearson executive

23 April

2014

IMPLEMENTATION

Rewiewed and noted total remuneration
for members of the Pearson executive
for 2013 and 2014

Confirmed mil pay-out under 2011 long-
term incentive plan

Rewviewed and approved 2014 long-
term incentive awards and associated
performance conditons for the
Pearson executve

GOVERNANCE

Reviewed and approved amendments
to plan rules for the worldwide save for
shares and long-term incentive plans

POLICY

Considered approach to 2014 long-term
incentive awards for senior leaders and
mariagers below the Pearson executive

DISCLOSURE

Noted shareholder feedback on 2013
directors’ remuneration report and
RNS statement of further information
on the remuneration policy

REMUNERATION IN ACTION

Shareholding
by executives
supporting
performance
and strategy

Following consultation on our
remuneration pohcy approved

by shareholders in 2014, we
introduced two arrangements
designed to encourage shareholding
by executives and support
performance and strategy

First, under the long-term incentive
plan, we mtroduced a mandatory
restricion on participants’ ability to
dispose of the 75% of shares that vest
based on performance after three

years {other than to meet personal
tax habiliues) for a further two years
Furthermore, parucipants’ nghts to
the release of the remaining 25%

of the vested shares s subject to
continued employment over the
same pertod

Secondly, we increased our
mandatory shareholding gudelines
to 300% of salary for the CEQ and
200% of salary for other executive
drrectors These shareholding




23 July

2014

PERFORMANCE

Noted management’s overview of
2014 performance

GOVERNANCE

Reviewed the committee’s charter and
terms of reference

Reviewed the committee’s performance
POLICY

Noted update on 2014 long-term incentive

awards for senior leaders and managers
below the Pearson executive

STAKEHOLDERS
Reviewed 2014 Annual General

Meeting season, shareholder voung
and engagement strategy

guidelines have also been extended
to other mernbers of the Pearson
executive at [00% of salary

Together, these arrangements clearly
demonstrate the commitment to
sustained performance and long-
term value creation and alignment
with shareholders’ interests

Secuon 4 Governance

4 December
2014

MARKET

Noted update 1o remunerauon aspects
of the UK Corporate Governance Code
and principles of remuneration of the
Investment Management Association

PERFORMANCE

Noted management's overview of
2014 performance

Noted and reviewed the status of the
outstanding long-term mcentive awards
based on the current view of ikely Pearson
financial performance

DISCLOSURE

Norted template and outhne of 2014
report on directors’ remuneration and
considered shareholder engagernent
strategy

IMPLEMENTATION

Noted remunerauon package for new
appointment to the Pearson executive,
effecuve | January 2015

Noted exit arrangements for a member
of the Pearson executive

Reviewed operation of the 2014 annual
ncentive plan particularly with regard to
the Pearson executive

Noted 2014 long-term incentive awards
for senior leaders and managers below
Pearson executive

Considered matter of former CEQ's
double taxauon in the US and UK and
related 1ssues

“Shareholding by senior executives
demonstrates commitment to sustained
performance and long-term value creation
and alignment with shareholders’ interests.”

Dawvid Arculus Chairman of the remuneraton committee
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PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Young outcome at 2014 Annual General Meeting

The following table summanises the details of votes cast in respect of the resolutions on the report on directors’
remuneration at the 2014 Annual General Meeung

Report Votes for Votes against Total votes cast Votes withheld (abstentons)
Remuneration policy 517,308,446 22,905,879 540,214,325 6,004,239
9576% of votes cast 4 24% of votes cast 65 96% of 1ssued
share capital
Annual remuneration 349,696,505 181,521,643 531,218,148 15,000,416
report 65 83% of votescast 34 {7% of votes cast 64 86% ofissued
share capital

The commuttee took this significant vote aganst the 20(3 annual remuneration report very serously and considered the
voung result and shareholder engagement strategy at their April, July and December 2014 meetings

The primary reason for the vote agamnst was clear investors’ objection to the committee exercising its discretion to allow
a portion of Rona Fairhead's 2011 LTIP award to vest without reference to performance The committee acknowledges
that the approved remuneration policy provides a comprehensive remuneration framework with clear mits and

as a result 1ssues of a simular nature will not anse in the future

We consulted on this voting outcome and this disclosure in the 2014 annual remuneraton report with our major
shareholders and sharehclder representative bodies, who were broadly satsfied with both the process for engagement
and the explanation given

As n previous years and as required by law, details of the voting on all resolutions at the 2015 Annual General Meeting
will be announced via the RNS and posted on the Pearson website following the Annual General Meeting
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Single total figure of remuneration and prior year comparison §

Total aggregate emoluments for executive and non-executive directors were £4,206m in 2014 These emoluments are é

included with total employee benefit expense in note 5 to the financial statements (page 141) <

Execuuve directors

The remuneration received by executive directors in respect of the financial years ending 3| December 2014 and

31 December 2013 is set out below

Executive director remuneration

Element of remuneratian John Fallon Robin Freestone Total o)

£000s 014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 S

Base salary 761 750 553 545 1,314 ,295 ®

Allowances and benefits 83 43 15 14 98 57 §
Travel 50 15 12 12 62 27 %
Healthcare 2 3 2 2 4 5 o
Risk 31 25 | - 32 25

Annual incentives 692 463 365 341 1,057 804
Percentage of maximum (36} 51% 34% 39% 37% - -
Percentage of target (%) 1% 62% 78% 74% - - —
Percentage of salary (%) 3% 62% 66% 63% - - 2

Long-term incentives 74 141 63 181 137 322 g
LTiP - - - - - - ;—;
ABSMP - - - - - - 3
Didend equivalents 74 14} 63 181 137 322 §

Returement benefits 285 330 166 163 451 493 -
Defined contnbuuion cost - - 23 22 23 22
Defined benefit accrual 87 135 - - 87 135
Allowances in keu of benefits 198 195 143 141 34l 336

Total remuneration m 1,244 2971

Single total figure of remuneravon In accordance with the regulauons, we show
a single totalfigure of remuneration, which includes revrement benefits and
long-term incentives in addiuon to the other elements of remuneraton that
have been shown in previous reports

Base salary In accordance with policy, the committee considered a report from
the chief executrve and chief human rescurces officer on general pay trends

in the market and the level of pay increases across the company as awhole

For 2014 the company had reiterated its starting prinaiples that base
compensation provides the appropnate rate of remuneration for the job,
taking into account relevant recruitment markets, business sectors and
geographic regions and that total remuneration should reward both shortand
long-term results, delivenng competitive rewards for target performance but
hagher rewards for excepuonal company performance For the USand UK the
budget guidelne rssued at the end of September 2013 for adjustments to base
pay for 2014 was 3% although business units with an Apnl review date operated
to a 2% salaryincrease pool Localinflation rates and market conditions were
taken into account in particular markets

Allowances and benefits Travel benefits comprise company car carallowance
and private use of adriver Health benefits compnise healthcare, heahth
assessment and gym subsidy Rusk benefits compnse addiuonallife cover

and long-term disability insurance In addition to the above benefits and
allowances, executive directors may alsc parucipate in comparty benefit
orpelicy arrangements that have no taxable value

The increase In trave! benefits for John Fallon 15 attmbutable to the first full-year
of reportung of his private use of a driver based on the benefit-in kind charge
for the 201372014 tax year

Annual incenuve For more detail seetable onpage 97 Annual incentves for
the directors are funded by Pearson global annual financial results and pay-outs
take inte account individual performance agasnst personal objecuves

Long termincenuves The single figure of remuneration for 2014 includes all
long-term incentive awards that were subject to a performance condition
where the performance penod ended or was substantally {but not fully}
completed at3| December2014 and awards where the performance
condition has been satisfied but where the release of shares s subject to a
further holding peried The same methodology has been applied for the single
figure of remunerationfor 2013

In2014 the performance conditions for the 2012 LTIP and 2012 ABSMP were
not met so there s nothing to reportin the single figure of remunerauon for
2014 The executive directors both held vested shares under the 2009 LTIP
that were released on | Apni 2014 at the end of the two-year holding period
and these shares were part of the single figure of remuneration for 2012 as
reported inthe 2012 report on directors remuneration However the
dividend-equivalent shares that were awarded and reteased on | Apnl 2014
have been included in the single figure of remuneraton for 2014 as below

Dateof
award Number Share price
Direcror and release of shares Value on release
John Falion | Aprl4 7054 £73 644 1044 0p
Robin Freestone | Apr |4 & 046 £63 120 1,044 0p

Reurement benefits For more detail see table onpage %6
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Chairman and non-executive director remuneration
The remuneration paid to the chairman and non-executive directors in respect of the financial years ending
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013 15 as follows

2014 2013

Director Salary/  Committee  Committee Taxable Salary/  Committee  Committee Taxable

£000s basicfee chaurmanship membership  SID  benefits  Total  basiclee charmanshp membershp  SID  benefts  Total
Glen Moreno 500 - - - - 500 500 - - - - 500
Dawvid Arculus 68 21 14 - 2105 &5 20 9 - | 96
Elizabeth Corley

(appointed

| May 2014) 47 - 4 - | 52 - - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 68 7 22 2 ) 124 65 - 15 20 5 105
Ken Hydon 68 27 8 - 8 i 65 25 5 - 5 160
Josh Lewis 68 - 8 - 9 85 65 - 13 - 9 87
Linda Lorimer 68 - v - 8 93 33 - - - 3 36
Harish Manwani 68 - 4 - 7 79 16 - - - i 17
Total 955 55 77 2 4F 1,149 809 45 43 20 24 94

MNote Taxable benefits refer 1o travel accommodation and subsistence expenses incurred while attending board meetings during 2014 that were pad or reimbursed
by the company which are deemed by HMRC 1o be taxable in the UK The amounts in the table above include the grossed-up cost of UK tax to be paid by the
company on behalf of the directors Total remuneraton for 2013 s re-stated to include these taxable expenses The company has made a voluntary disclosure to
HMRC to settle the tax liability for taxable expenses in prior tax years

Revrement benefits

Details of the directors’ pension entitlerents and pension related benefits during the year are as follows

Valugof  Other pension

Accrued  defined benefit costs to the Other
Normal pension at pension over  company over allowances in - Totalannual
retirement 31 Dec 14 the period theperiod leuofpension  valuein 2014
Director Plans age £000" £0007 £000+ £000™ £000°
John Pearson Group Pension Plan Accrual
Fallon rate of 1/30th of pensionable salary
perannum Taxable and non-
pensionable cash supplement 62 807 867 - 1977 284 4
Robin Money Purchase 2003 section of the
Freestone Pearson Group Pension Plan Taxable
and non-pensionable cash supplement 62 - 226 143 4 1660

Note | The accrued penston at 31 December 2014 1s the deferred pension to which the member would be enuitled on ceasing pensionable service on 31 December
2014 For John Fallon it relates to the pension payable from the UK plan Robin Freestone dees not accrue defined benefits

Note 2 This column comprises the increaseqn the directors’ accrued pension over the period (net of inflazion) muluplied by 20 and from which the directors
contnbutions are deducted

Note 3 Thes column compnises contributions te defined contribution arrangements for UK benefits

Note 4 This column represents the cash allowances paid nbeu of the previous FURBS arrangements for Jjohn Fallon and Robin Freestone

Note 5 Total annuat value 15 the sum of the previous three columns

Note 6 There are no additonal benefits or special arrangements under the retrement plans for directors who retire before their normal reurement date
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Annual iIncentive pay-out in 2014

For 2014, annual incentives were funded by Pearson global annual financial results based on the performance measures
set out below Individual pay-outs take into account performance against personal objecuives Actual performance against
the financial targets for 2014 was as follows

Actual Pay-cut

Threshold Target Maximum  performance m 2014

Measures Weighung for 2014 for 2014 for 2014 n 2014 {% of target)
Group EPS (p) 60% 570 682 795 667 86%
Group sales {£m) 20% 4,695 4,995 5295 4,883 63%
Operating cash flow (£m) 20% 5655 678 6 7917 6489 74%
Total 100% 79%

Note | Pearson's reported financial results for the relevant penod were used to measure performance

Note 2 The annual incentive plan s designed to incentivise and reward underlying performance excluding the effect of foreign exchange and portfoho changes
{acquisiuons and disposals) and other factors that the committee considers relevantin the performance year Targets threshokds and maxima are expressed at
2014 actual exchange rates (£] $1 6488) The targets thresholds and maxima were onginalty set at plan exchange rates (€1 $1 60) and have been adjusted to actual
exchange rates for comparison against actual performance to negate the effect of exchange rate movements

Note 3 No discrevon has been exercised to adjust the resulting undertying pay-outs
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Long-term incentives

The status of outstanding awards under the long-term incenuve plan (LTIP) and the legacy annual bonus share matching
plan (ABSMP) and performance against the performance conditions as at 31 December 2014 are descrnibed in the
table below

For each executive director, detalls of awards under the LTIP and ABSMP that were awarded, vested, released, lapsed
or held during 2014 are summansed in the adjacent table

Status of outstanding awards under the long-term incentive plan and annual bonus share matching in 2014

Share
price % of
Date of  on date Vestng Performance Performance Pay-out at Pay-out at Actual  award
Plan award of award date measures period threshold maximum  performance  vested Status
LTtP I May 2014 1,102 Op | May 2017 Relauve TSR 2014 30%atmedan  100%atupper - = Outstanding
to 2017 quartle subject to
performance
ROIC 2016 30%for ROIC  100% for ROIC
of 6 5% of 7 5%
EPS growth 2016 compared 30% for EPS 100% for EPS
t02013  growthof 6 0% growthof 12 0%
LTIP 1 May2013 1183 0pl May20l6  Relauve TSR 2013 30%atmedian  100% atupper - —  Qutstanding
to 2016 quartile subjectte
fs
ROIC 2015 0%forROIC  100%forROIC periormance
of 8 5% of 10 5%
EPS growth 2015 compared 309% for EPS 100% for EPS
t0 2012 growthof6 0% growthof 12 0%
LTIP  2May20i2 1,161 Op2 May 2015 Relative TSR 2012 30%atmedian  |00% atupper 19th Nil Estimated
to 2015 quartile percentle to lapse
n 2015
ROIC 2014 0% for ROIC  100% for ROIC 56% Nil Willlapse
of B 5% of 10 5% n 2015
EPSgrowth 2014 compared 30% for EPS 100% for EPS -83% Nl Will lapse
to20ll  growthof6 0% growthof 12 0% n 2015
ABSMP I5May 1,206 0p  15May Realcompound 2012 50% of matching 100% of matching - - Qutstanding
2013 2016 annual EPS to 2015 award forEPS  award for EPS subject o
growth growthof30%  growthof 5 0% performance
ABSMP 15May 11520p  15May Real compound 2011 50% of matching 100% of matching -10 5% Nil  Performance
2012 2015 annual EPS 10 2014 awardforEPS  awardfor EPS condition
growth growthof30% growthof 5 0% not met
Will lapse

n 2015
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Movements in directors’ interests 1n share awards during 2014

Dwvidends
Number of awarded Number of
shares as at and shares asat
Plan Date of award  Vesungdate  §Jan 2014 Awarded  Released released Lapsed 31 Dec2014 Status
John Fallon
LT1IP | May 2014 | May 2017 0 274000 - - — 274000 CQutstanding subject to performance
LTie | May2013 | May2016 250,000 - - - — 250,000 Outstanding subject to performance
LTIP 2May 2012 2May 2015 100,000 - - - 100,000 0 Expected to lapse in 2015
LTIP 3Mar2010 3 Mar2013 13,752 - - - - 13,752 Vested and held unul 3 Mar 2015
{75% vested shares released in 2013)
LTIP 3Mar2009 3 Mar2012 29,887 - 29,887 7,054 - 0 Released | Apr 2014
{75% vested shares released in 2012)
ABSMP 15 May 2013 15 May 2016 6083 - - - - 6083 Outstanding subject to performance
ABSMP 15 May 2012 15 May 2015 8917 - - - 8917 0 Wil lapse in 2015
Total 408639 274000 29887 7054 108917 543835
Robin Freestane
LTIP | May 2014 | May 2017 0 162,000 - - — 162000 Outstanding subject to performance
LTip | May 2013 1 May2016 150,600 - - - — 150000 Outstanding subject to performance
LTIP 2May 2012 2May2015 100,000 - - - 100,000 ] Expected to lapse in 2015
LTIP 3Mar2010 3 May2013 11,460 - - - - 11 460 Vested and held untul 3 Mar 2015
{75% vested shares released in 2013)
LTIP 3Mar200% 3 Mar20t2 25617 - 258l7 6046 - 0 Released | Apr 2014
{75% vested shares released in 2012)
ABSMP 15May 2012 15 May 2015 17,833 - - - 17,833 0 Will lapse in 2015
Total 304910 162,000 25617 6046 117833 323460

Note | For allawards, Pearson s reportedfinancial results for the relevant
perad were used to measure performance and no discreuon has
been exercised

Note 2 Vested means where awards are no longer subject to performance
conditions Released means where shares have been transferredto
paruapants Held means where awards have vested but shares are held
pending release on the relevant anniversary of the award date Qutstanding
means awards that have been granted but are sull subyect to the achievernent
of performance condiuons Dmdends refers to dvidend equivalent shares that
have been added without performance conditions to vested shares under the
LTIP and released mnrmedsately on award

Note 3 No variations 1o terms and condiuons of plan interests were made
duning the year

Note 4 Inrelation to the LTIP award made on | May 2014 pay-outs 50% of
maximum for attainment of ROIC of 7%

Note 5 For the LTIP award made on 2 May 2012 and due to vest on 2 May 2015
we have esumated the out-turn of the relauve TSR performance condition
based on performance asat 9 February 2015 atnil factual relative

TSR performance is different on the date of vesung we will set this outin

the annual remuneraton report for 2015

Nate 6 The single figure of remuneration for 2014 includes all awards that were
subject to a performance condition where the performance period ended or
was substantially (but not fully) completed, at 3t December 2014 and awards
where the performance condiuon has been satisfied but where the release of
sharess subject to a further hotding penod The same methodology has been
applied for earlier penods and the single figure for earlier reporung perods has
been restated where necessary

Note 7 The value of shares included in the single figure of rermuneration s the
number of shares muluplied by the share price onrelease

Note 8 The value of the LTIP awards in 2014 for the executive directors i1s shown below based on a share price on the date of award of 1,102 Op

Value for

thresheld

Face value performance

Vestng Number Face value (% of 2014 (% of 2014

Director Date of award date of shares (£) salary) salary)
John Fallon | May 2014 I May 2017 274 0060 £3 019480 397% 119%
Robin Freestone | May 2014 | May 2017 162 000 £1 785240 323% 97%
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Meovements in directors’ interests in share options during 2014

John Fallon and Robin Freestone also held options under the worldwide save for shares plan as follows

Number of shares

uhder option Earliest Value in 2014

Date of held as at Option exercise Expiry single figure

Dhrector grant 31 Dec 2014 price date date £000
JohnFalien 7May 2010 1,930 805 &p 1 Aug |5 | Feb 16 0
30 Apr 2014 1,109 81120 lAugl?  IFfebl8 0

Robin Freestone 4 May 2012 950 909 Op | Aug 15 | Feb 16 0
30Apr2014 1,109 811 2p | Aug |7 | Feb 18 0

Note | No share option awards were vested or were exercised in the year
Note 2 No variauons to terms and condstions of share options were made during the year
Nate 3 Acquisiion of shares under the worldwide save for shares plan i1s not subject to a performance condition

MNote 4 All share options that become exercisable during a year are included in the single figure of total remuneraton for thatyear The value included in the single
figure of total remuneranon is the number of options mutuplied by the difference between the value on grant and the market value on the earliest exercise date

Nao share cptions were exercisable during 2014 and so there s nothing to mclude in the single figure of total remuneration for 2014

Nete 5 The market price on 31 December 2014 was 1,150 Op per share and the range during the yearwas 998 Opto [,340 0p

Payments to former directors

Itis the committee’s Intention to disclose any payments
to past directors, including the release of share-based
awards post-departure

The number of shares retained from the number of
shares originally awarded takes into account fapses due

to performance, releases prior to ceasing to be adirector
and pro-raung for service in the performance period
(where applied)

2012 long-term incentive awards

As set outin the annual remuneration report for 2013,
Marjorie Scardino, Rona Fairhead, John Makinson and
Will Ethridge retained long-term mcentive plan awards
made on 2 May 2012, all subject to performance As
disclosed elsewhere in this report, these awards are
expected to lapse in 2015

Will Ethridge

As set out In the annual remuneraticn report for 2013,
Will Ethndge stepped down from the board on

31 December 2013 He continued to be eligible for the
same base salary, annual incentive and other benefits in
accordance with his service agreerment with the company
until he retired on 3t December 2014 No compensation
for loss of office or severance was paid on his stepping
down from the board, or on his retirement

As alsa reported in the annual remuneration report for
2013, Will Ethridge retained 100,000 {two-thirds) of the
shares awarded on | May 2013 The committee also
approved an award of 116,000 performance related
shares for Will Ethridge for 2014 on the same terms as
the 2014 awards for members of the Pearson executive
In accordance with policy and after having carefully
considered all relevant factors, the committee further
determined in1ts absolute discretion that on his
retrement from the company on 3|1 December 2014,
Wil Ethridge would retain a pro-rata entitlement of
one-third of this award {1 e 38,666 shares) which would
vest or not, subject to performance, in 2017

Marjorie Scardino

Because of payroll processing errors during the years
2007 to 2010, taxes deducted from Marjone Scardino’s
compensation were incorrectly allocated by Pearson
among tax authorities In the UK and the US This resulted
in her being subject to temporary double taxation The
committee has conduded in pnnaple that Pearson should
reimburse {on an after-tax basis) certan costs incurred
by Marjorie Scardino in funding a proportion of the
double-tax obfiigaon Details of any reimbursement will
be included in a subsequent annual remuneration report

Non-executive directors

The company’s voluntary disclosure to HMRC regarding
the taxable reimbursement of expenses for tax years
prior to 2014 includes non-executive directors who are
no longer employed by the company
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Payments for loss of office

As announced to the stock exchange on 24 October 2014 and 27 February 2015, Robin Freestone will be stepping down
from the board on | August 2015 and leaving the company during 2015 There will be no payment for loss of office

At the ume of writing, no further deasions have been made about whether and how the committee might exercise its
discretion under Pearson's discretionary share plans In accordance with policy, the committee will have regard to all
relevant crcumstances including distinguishing between different types of leaver, the arcumstances at the ume the award
was oniginally made, his performance, and the circumstances in which he left employment In the event that discretion i1
so exerased in Robin's favour, the details will be included in a subsequent annual remuneration report

Directors’ mterests in shares and value of shareholdings

Direcrors’ interests
The share interests of the continuing directors and their connected persons are as follows

Number of Numberof  Tatal number of
T irares condmomatsaares Value Gudelne Gudeine
Director ac 31 Dec 14 ac 31 Dec 14 at 31 Dec 14 {% salary) (% salary) met
Chairman
Glen Meoreno 200,000 — - - _ _
Executve directors
John Fallon 282,147 13.752 295,899 549% 300% v
Robin Freestone 504,283 11,460 515,743 1,317% 200% v
Non-executive directors
Dawvid Arculus 17,17 - - — _ _
Elizabeth Corley 468 - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 2,123 - - - - -
Ken Hydon 18,634 — - - - -
Josh Lews 6632 - - - - -
linda Lorimer [,58) - - - _ -
Harish Manwani [.392 - - - - _

Note | Conditional shares means shares which have vested but remain held subject to conunuing employment for a pre-defined holding period

MNote 2 The current value of the executive directors’ holdings of ordinary and conditional shares 1s based on the middie market value of Pearson shares of 1,420p
on 27 February 2015 aganst base salares in 2014 All execunive directors comfortably exceeded the shareholding guidelines The shareholding guidelines do not
apply to the chairmnan and non executve directors

MNote 3 Ordnary shares include both ordinary shares histed on the London Stock Exchange and American Depositary Receipts (ADRs) listed an the New York
Stock Exchange The figures include both shares and ADRs acquired by individuals investing part of their own after-tax annual bonus tn Pearson shares under the
annual bonus share matching plan

Note 4 The register of directors interests fwhich is open 1o Inspection duning normal office hours} contains full details of directors’ shareholdings and eptions 1o
subscribe for shares The market price on 3| December 2814 was | 190 Op per share and the range during the year was 398 Op to | 340 0p

Note 5 There were no movements tn ordinary shares between | January 2015 and a month prior to the sign-ofi of this report

Note 6 Ordinary shares de not include any shares vested but held pending release under a restricted share plan
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fnterests of directors and value of shareholdings

Interests of directors Number of shares (000s)

{ohn Fallon

Robm Freesione NN
¢} 100 00 300 400 500 600

B Ordinary shares M Conditional shares

Shareholding gudelines

Executive directors are expected to build up a substantial
shareholding in the company in line with the policy of
encouraging widespread employee ownership and to
aligr further the interests of executives and shareholders
With effect from 2014, target holding 1s 300% of salary
for the chief executive and 200% of salary for the other
executive directors

Shares that count towards these guidelines include any
shares held unencumbered by the executive, their spouse
and/or dependent children plus any shares vested but
held pending release under a restricted share plan
Executive directors have five years from the date of
appointment to reach the guideline

With effect from 2014, these guidelines have been
extended to include all members of the Pearson executive
at 100% of salary

The shareholding guidelines do not apply to the chairman
and non-executive directors However, a minimum of
25% of the basic non-executive directors’ fee is paid in
Pearson shares that the non-executive directors have
committed to retain for the period of their directorships

Diution and use of equity

We can use existing shares bought in the market, treasury
shares or newly-issued shares to satisfy awards under the
company’s various share plans

For restricted stock awards under the long-term incentive
plan and matching share awards under the annual bonus
share matching plan, we would normally expect to use
existing shares

M Shareholding guidelne

There are imits on the amount of new-1ssue equity we
canuse In any rolling ten-year penod, no more than 10%
of Pearson equity will be 1ssued, or be capable of being
issued, under all Pearson’s share plans, and no more than
5% of Pearson equity will beissued, or be capable of being
1ssued, under executive or discretionary plans

At 3| December 2014, stock awards to be satisfied by
new-issue equity granted in the last ten years under all
Pearson share plans amounted to | 7% of the company’s
1ssued share capital No stockawards granted in the last
ten years under executive or discretionary share plans
will be satisfied by new-1ssue equity

In addition, for existing shares, no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may be held intrust at any tme Against
this imit, shares held in trust at 31 December 2014
amounted to 0 9% of the company’s issued share capital

The headroom available for all Pearson plans, executive or
discretionary pians and shares held in trust is as follows

Headroom 2014 2013 2012
All Pearson plans 83% 84% 83%
Executive or discreuonaryplans  50% 50% 50%
Shares held in trust 41% 38% 38%

Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

Executive directors served as non-executive directors
elsewhere but erther waved or did not receve fees




Historical performance and remuneration

Total shareholder return performance

We set out below Pearson’s total shareholder return
(TSR) performance relative to the FTSE All-Share index
on an annual basis over the six-year period 2008 to 2014
This comparison has been chosen because the FTSE
All-Share represents the broad market index within
which Pearson Shares are traded TSR s the measure

of the returns that a company has provided for its
shareholders, reflecting share price movements and
assuming remnvestment of dvidends (source DataStreamn)

In accordance with the reporting regulations, this section
also presents Pearson's TSR performance alongside the
single figure of total remuneration for the CEQ over the
last six years and a summary of the vanable pay outcomes
relative to the prevailing maximum at the time The table
below summarises the total remuneration for the CEQ
over the last five years, and the outcomes of annual and
long-term incentive plans as a proportion of maximum
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Total shareholder return six years to 31 December 2014

300

- S

./--._____./.

150 /./

L)
100

50 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2044
FTSE All Share

wamm Povarsen

Financial year ending 2009

2010 2011 01r 2013 2014

Total remuneration — John Fallon
(single figure, 000s) -

Total remuneraticn — Marjorie Scardino

(single figure, 000s) 6,370
Annual incentive — incumbent

(% of maximum) 91 3%
Long-term incentive — incumbent

(% of maximum) 80.0%

— - - 1,727 1,895

8,466 8,340 5,330 - -

92 1% 757% 242% 34 3% 50 5%

97 5% 68 3% 367% Nil Nil

Annuahincentive 15 the actual annual ncenuve recerved by the incumbent as a percentage of maximum opportunity

Long termncentive 15 the pay-out of performance related restricted shares under the long-term incentive plan where the year shown s the final year of the
performance periad for the purposes of calculaung the single total figure of remunerauon

Total remuneration - John Fallon john Fallon s total remuneratton oppertunity 1s lower than that of the previous incumbent Variable pay-outs under the annual

and long-term incentive plans refiect performance for the relevant penods
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Comparative informaticon

The following informaton 1s iIntended to provide
addivonal context regarding the total remuneration for
executive directors

Relative percentage change in remunerauon for CEO
The following table sets out the change between 2013
and 2014 in three elements of remuneranon for the CEQ,
in comparison to the average for all employees

While the committee considers the increase in base pay
for the CEQ relative to the broader employee population,
benefits are driven by local pracuces and eligibility is
determined by level and individual circumstances which
do not lend themselves to comparison

Allowances
Base and Annuat
salary benefits  Incentives Total
CEO I 5% 93% 49% 22%
All employees 1% 9% 4% 0%

Note { The figures for all employees reflect average salanes and average
employee numbers each year Annualincentivesindudeall plans including
sales mcentves

Note 2 The increase in allowances and annual incentives for John Fallon 1s
attnbutable respecuvely to (a) the first full-year of reporung of bus private use
of a drver based on the benefit-in-kind charge for the 2013/2014 tax year
and {b) the year-on-year increase in his payout under the Pearson annual
Incentive plan

Relative importance of pay spend

The committee considers directors remuneration in the
context of the company's allocavon and disbursement
of resources to different stakeholders

In parucular, we chose operating profit because this
15 a measure of our abity to remvest in the company
We include dividends because these constitute an
important element of our return to shareholders

Year-on-year change

Lm 2014 1013 £m %
Operating profit 722 736 -4 2%
Dwmdends 397 372 25 7%

Totalwages andsalanes 1,728 1836 -108  -6%

Note | Operating profitis as set out in the financial statements

Note 2 Wages and salaries include continumg operations only and include
directors 2013 isrestated onthe same basis Average employee numbers for
conunuing operations for 2014 were 40,876 (2013 42,115) Further detaslsare
set outin note 5 to the financial statements on page 141

Informanon on changes to remunerauon for 2045

Execuuve directors’ base salaries

We have undertaken a regular pertodic review of base
salanies for 20153, taking into account general economic
and market conditions, the level of Increases made across
the company as a whole, the remuneration of executives
nsimilar positons in comparable companies and
indvidual performance

As aresult of this review, the 2015 base salares for the
CEC and CFO are as follows

John Robin
£000s Fallen Freestane
Base salary at
31 December 2014 £765 £556

£153 £0
Increase

2% 0%
Base salary at
I April 2015 £7803 £ 556

Annual incenuve

The key design principles underlying the company’s
approach to annual incentives for 2015 are the same as
for 2014, namely

> Full abgnment of annual ncentives with the global
education strategy to reinforce a ‘'one Pearson’ focus

» A clear, transparent, coherent, consistent, organisation-
wide approach to incentives and performance
management with a common incentive framework for
Lines of Business, Geographies and enabling funcuons

» The size of the overall annual incentive pay-out will be
linked to overall Pearson performance

For 2015, there will be no change to the overall Pearson
performance measures, namely adjusted earnings per
share (60% weighting), sales (20%) and cash flow (20%)

The Pearson financial targets will be set each year as part
of the normal operating plan process The CEQ and CFO
will recommend the overall Pearson incenuve funding
metrics (including performance measures, targets and
weightings) to the comrittee for approval in the

normal way




There will be no change in iIndvidual annual incentive
opportunities for the executive directors and the
Pearson executive

Annual incentive pay-outs are determined according to a
combination of Pearson-wide performance and individual
goals The sum ofthe CEQ's and the Pearson executives’
‘on-target’ annual Incentive constitutes the incentive pool
for this group which flexes up or down based on overall
Pearson performance Indvdual performance is assessed
aganst goals set at the start of the year Individual pay-outs
up to individual maximum oppertunities and within the
total pool are recommended by the CEO (or by the
chairman in the case of the CEQ huimself} for review and,
in the case of the executive directors, for approval by

the committee

The committee considers the performance targets for
2015 to be commercially sensitve Detads of performance
measures, weightings and targets will be disclosed in the
annual remuneration report for 2015 if and to the extent
that the committee deemns them to be no longer
commercially sensitive

Long-term incentives

The committee will continue to operate the long-term
incentive plan for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive in fine with the
arrangements outlined in the 2013 report on directors’
remuneration

» The weighting of the performance metrics will be half
on earnings per share growth, one-third on retum
on invested capital and one-sixth on relative total
shareholder return

» Performance will be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares will be released at that point However,
there 15 a mandatory restriction on participants’ ability
to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares (other than
to meet personal tax liabilities) for a further two years
Furthermore, partucipants’ nghts to the release of the 25%
of the vested shares 1s subject to continued employment
over the same period

Section 4 Governance 105

» For 2015 and onwards, the averaging period for the
calculation of relauve total shareholder return willbe
maoved to the period running up to the year end and
the length of the averaging penod will be increased to
three months

In addiwon, we will reduce the proportion of the
maximum award that vests for threshold performance
onall measures from 30% to 25% in ine with institutonal
investors' preferences

At the ume of writing, the committee has yet to approve
the 2015 long-term incentive awards and the associated
performance targets for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive

We will set the level of iIndvidual awards consistent with
those seen in recent years and within the policy maximum
taking nto account.

» The face value of individual awards at the tme of grant,
assuming that performance targets are metn full

» Market pracuce for comparable companies and
market assessments of total remuneraton from our
independent advisers

» Individual roles and responsibiities
> Company and individual performance

We will set targets for the 2015 awards that are consistent
with the company’s strategic objectives over the penriod
to 2017

Fult details of indvidual awards for the executive directors
and the performance targets for 2015 will be set outin the
annual remuneration reportfor 2015
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Appointment of CFO

As announced to the stock exchange on 27 February
2015, Coram Williams will join Pearson as CFO designate
on | July, and succeed Robin Freestone as CFO on

| August, when he will also replace Robin on the Pearson
board as an executive director Full details of the terms

of Coram's remuneration package will be included in the
annual remuneration report for 2015

The package will be in accordance with, and within the
liruts of, our approved remuneraton policy and will
compnse inter alia a base salary of £515,000 per year,
an annualincentive opporturity of 85% of salary at target
{up to 170% of salary at maximum) with any pay-out

for 2015 being calculated pro-rata for his service,
miscellaneous and family relocation alfowances and
temporary accommaodation assistance in accordance
with policy, membership of the Final Pay Section of the
Pearson Group Pension Plan with an accrual rate of
1/60th of pensionable salary, subject to the Plan earnings
cap (£145,800 per year for the 2014/2015 tax year), n
accordance with earlier commitments given to him
about the arrangements that would apply should he
rejoin Pearson in the UK having moved from Pearson to
Penguin US and subsequently Penguin Random House,
and elgibility for long-term incentive awards on the terms
normally applicable to executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive Full details of his
award will be disctosed in the 2015 report on directors’
remuneration There will be no compensation for
incentives foregone at his previous employer

In accordance with policy, the peniod of notice he
would be required to give to terminate his employment
would be 6 months and that which he would be enutled
to recetve from the company would be 12 months

In circumstances of termination of employment without
cause, he would be entitled to contractual pay-in-lieu
of notice comprising 12 months’ base salary and annual
cost of providing pension and other benefits (but
excluding annual incentive) Payment in heu may be

paid in instalments and subject to reduction taking into
account alternative employment

Chairman and nen-executive directors

The salary for the chairman and fees for the non-executive
directors remain unchanged for 2015 Full details will be
set out In the annual remuneration report and included

in the single figure of total remuneration for 2015

5:7/%

—

Dawvid Arculus Director
9 March 2015
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Pages 57 to 112 of this document compnse the directors’
report for the year ended 31 December 2014

Other informauon that s required by the Companies Act
2006 (the Act) to be ncluded in the directors’ report,
and which is incorporated by reference, can be located

as follows

Summary disclosures index See more

Dividend recommendation pl2

Financialinstruments and financial nsk management  Note 19

Important events since year end pl93
Future development of the business p06-09
Research and development actvities p43
Employment of disabled persans p50
Employee involvement p48
Greenhouse gas emissions p53

There s no information to be disclosed in accordance
with Listng Rule 98 4

Going concern

Having reviewed the Group’s liquid resources and
borrowing facilities and the Group's 2015 and 2016 cash
flow forecasts, the directors beheve that the Group has
adequate resources to continue as a going concern for at
least the next 12 months For this reason, the finanoal
statements have, as usual, been prepared on that basis
Information regarding the Group's borrowing labilines
and finanaial sk management can be found in notes 18
and 19 on pages |64 to 172

Share capital

Details of share issues are given in note 27 to the
accounts on page |86 The company has a single class of
shares which 1s dvided into ordinary shares of 25p each
The ordinary shares are in registered form Asat

31 December 2014, 819,882,967 ordinary shares were in
issue At the AGM held on 25 Apnil 2014, the company
was authorised, subject to certain condiuions, to acquire
up to 81,903,781 ordinary shares by market purchase
Shareholders will be asked to renew this authonity at the
AGMon 24 Apn! 2015

Information provided to the company pursuant to

the Financiat Conduct Authonty's Disclosure and
Transparency Rules (DTR} s published on a Regulatory
Information Service and on the company’s website

As at4 March 2015, being the latest practicable date
before the publication of this report, the company had
been notified under DTRS of the following significant
voung rights in its shares

Percentage

Number of as atdate of

voung nghts notfication

BlackRock, Inc. 41,458,030 505%

Annual General Meeting

The notice convening the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 24 Apnl 2015 at 8 Northumberland Avenue,
Lendon WC2N S5BY, i1s contained in a arcular to
shareholders to be dated 20 March 2015

Registered auditors

In accordance with sectton 489 of the Act,a
resolution proposing the reappointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (PwC) as auditors to
the company will be proposed at the AGM, at a level
of remuneration to be agreed by the directors

Auditors’ independence

In line with best practice, our relationship with PwC s
governed by our external auditors policy, which 1s
reviewed and approved annually by the audit committee
The policy establishes procedures to ensure the auditors’
mdependence 1s not compromised, as well as defining
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These allowable services are in accordance with relevant
UK and US legislauon The audit committee approves all
audit and non-audit services provided by PwC Certain
categories of allowable nen-audit services have been
pre-approved by the audit committee subject to the
authorities below

> Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorised by
the chief financial officer up to £100,000 per project,
subject to a cumulatve bmitof £500,000 per annum
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» Acquisition or disposal transactions and due diligence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, in hght of the need for confidenuality
Any project/transaction generatng fees in excess
of £100,000 must be specffically approved by the
audit committee

» Tax complance and related activities up to the greater of
£1,000,000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

» For forward-looking tax advisory services we use the
most appropriate adviser, usually after a tender process
Where we deaide to use ourindependent auditors,
authority, up to £100,000 per project subject to a
cumulative limit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to management

Services provided by PwC above these limits and all other
allowable non-audit services, Irrespective of value, must
be approved by the audit committee Where appropriate,
services will be tendered prior to a decision being made
as to whether to award work to the auditors

The audit committee recerves regular reports
summarising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 2014, Pearson spent considerably less on non-
audit fees with PwC compared to 2013, when there was
significant expenditure refated to spectfic assurance and
tax advisory services assoclated with the creation of the
venture between Penguin and Random House For 2014,
non-audit fees represented 37% of external audit fees
(89%1n 2013)

For allnon-audit work in 2014, PwC were selected only
after considerauion that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reasonable fee and within
the terms of our external auditors policy To assist in
ensuring that ndependence and objectivity 1Is mantained,
for forward-looking tax adwiscry and due diligence work
PwC assign a different partner from the one leading the
external audit

Significant non-audit work performed by PwC during
2014 included

» Tax compliance services related to a routine audit by
the US Internal Revenue Service

» Tax advisory work on a number of UK, US and
international tax matters

» Audit-related work in relatton to potential and actual
corporate finance transactions

» Assurance services on a corporate bondissued in
May 2014

A full statement of the fees for audit and services s
provided in note 4 to the accounts on page 140

Farr, balanced and understandable reporung

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements te ensure that all informauon we

report to Investors and regulators s fair, balanced

and understandable A process and umetable for the
production and approval of this year's report was agreed
by the board and audit committee at their meetings in
December 2014 The full board then had opportunity to
review and cormment on the report as it progressed

Representatives from financial reporting, corporate
affairs, company secretamal and internal audit and
comphance are involved in the preparauon of the Annual
report to ensure a cohesive and balanced approach and,
as with all of our financal reporting, our disclosure
committee conducts a thorough verification of narrative
and financial statements

The audit committee 1s also avallable to adwvise the board
on certain aspects of the report, to enable the directors
to fulfil their responsibility in this regard

Directors m office

The following directors were i office during the year and
up untl sigrung of the finanaial statements

G R Moreno

11 Fallon

RA D Freestone

T D G Arculus

EP L Corley (appointed | May 2014)
Vv Cox

K] Hydon

S)Llews

LK Lormer

H Manwaru

T Score (appointed | January 2015)




Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual
report, the report on directors’ remuneration and the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
staternents for each financial year Under thatlaw the
directors have prepared the Group and parent company
financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial statements unless they are
sausfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and the Group and of the profitor
loss of the Group for that peniod

In preparing these financial statements, the directors
are required to

» Select suitable accounting pohcies and then apply
them consistently

» Make judgements and accounting estmates thatare
reasonable and prudent

» State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements

» Prepare the finanaal statements on a going concern basis,
unless It s Inappropriate to presume that the company
and/or the Group will continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accountng records that are sufficient to show and explan
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any tme the financial positon of the company
and the Group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the report on directors’
remuneration comply with the Act and, as regards

the Group financial statements, Aruicle 4 of the |AS
Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregulariues
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The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the company’s website Legislaton in the
UK governing the preparation and dissermination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in

other jJurisdictions

Each of the directors listed above confirms that to the
best of therr knowledge

» The Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unton, give a true and fair view of the assets,
habiities, financial position and profit of the Group
and company

»> The directors’ report contained in the Annual
report includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the
company and Group, together with a description of
the prinaipal risks and uncertainties that they face

The directors also confirm that, for all directors in office
at the date of this report

»So far as the directors are aware, there (s no relevant audit
information of which the company’s auditors are unaware

> They have taken all the steps that they cught to have taken
as directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit information and 1o estabhish that the
company's auditors are aware of that information

In addition, the directors as at the date of this report
consider that the Annual report, taken as a whole,

is far, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the
company’s performance, business model and strategy

Approved by the board on 9 March 2015 and signed onits
behalfby

%

Phiip Hoffman Secretary
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ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Additional information for shareholders

Set out below is other statutory and regulatory
information that Pearson is required to disclose in
its directors’ report

Amendment to articles of associauon

Any amendments to the articles of association of the
company (the Artucles) may be made in accordance with
the provisions of the Act by way of a special resoluuon

Rights attaching to shares

The rights attaching to the ordinary shares are defined in
the Arucles A shareholder whose name appears on the
company's register of members can choose whether
his/her shares are evidenced by share certficates (1 & n
certificated form) or held electronically (1 e uncertificated
form) in CREST ({the electronic settlerment system in

the UK)

Subject to any restrictions below, shareholders may
attend any general meeting of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder (or his/her
representatve) who Is present at a general meeting has
one vote on each resoluuon for every ordinary share of
which they are the registered holder A resolution put
to the vote at a general meeting 1s decided on a show of
hands unless before, or on the declaration of the result of,
a vote on a show of hands, a pollis demanded A poll can
be demanded by the chairman of the meeting, or by

at least three shareholders (or therr representatives)
present in person and having the night to vote, or by

any shareholders (or their representatves) present

n person having at least 10% of the total voung rights

of all shareholders, or by any shareholders (or their
representatives) present in person holding ordinary
shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up of at
least 10% of the total sum patd up on alt ordinary shares
At this year's AGM voting will again be conductedona
poll, consistent with best practce

Shareholders can declare a final dividend by passing an
ordinary resolution but the amount of the dwidend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the board
The board can pay interim dividends on any class of shares
of the amounts and on the dates and for the periods

they deade In all cases the distributable profits of the
company must be sufficient to justfy the payment of the
relevant dividend

The board may, if authorised by an ordinary resolution of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the nght to elect
to receve new ordinary shares, which will be credited as
fully pard, nstead of their cash dividend

Any dividend which has not been claimed for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forfeited and
will then belong to the company, unless the directors
decide otherwise

If the company 1s wound up, the hiquidator can, with
the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, divide among the shareholders all or any
part of the assets of the company and he/she can value
assets and determine how the division shall be carried
out as between the shareholders or different classes of
shareholders The liquidator can also, with the same
sanction, transfer the whole or any part of the assets
to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of

the shareholders

Voung at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company In relation to any general meeting must be
delvered to the company (via its registrars), whether in
written or electronic form, not less than 48 hours before
the time appointed for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes to vote

No shareholder is, unless the board decides ctherwise,
enutled to attend or vote either personally or by proxy at
a general meeting or to exercise any other right conferred
by being a shareholder if he/she or any person with an
interest in shares has been sent a notice under section 793
of the Act {which confers upon public comparies the
power to require information with respect to interests

in their voung shares) and he/she or any interested
person falled to supply the company with the information
requested within 14 days after delivery of that nouce

The board may also decide, where the relevant
shareholding comprises at least 0 25% of the nominal
value of the issued shares of that class, that no dividend

is payable in respect of those default shares and that

no transfer of any default shares shall be registered




Pearson operates two employee benefit trusts to hold
shares, pending employees becoming entitled to them
under the company’s employee share plans There were
7,192 412 shares held as at 3| December 2014 Each trust
has an independent trustee which has full discretion in
relation to the voting of such shares A dwvidend waiver
operates on the shares held in these trusts

Pearson also operates a nominee shareholding
arrangement known as Sharestore which holds shares

on behalf of employees There were 4,709,325 shares so
hield as at 31 December 2014 The beneficial owners of
shares held through Sharestore are invited to submit
voting instructions online at www shareview co uk Ifno
instructions are given by the beneficial owner, the trustees
holding these shares will not exercise the voting rights

Transfer of shares

The beard may refuse to register a transfer of a
certficated share which is not fully paid, provided that the
refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the company
from taking place on an open and proper basis The board
may also refuse to register a transfer of a certificated
share unless (i) the instrument of transfer 1s lodged, duly
stamped (if stampable), at the registered office of the
company or any other place decided by the board, and

Is accomparnied by the certificate for the share to which
itrelates and such other evidence as the board may
reasonably require to show the right of the transferor

to make the transfer, (i) it is in respect of only one

class of shares, and (i) t 1s in favour of not more than

four transferees

Transfers of uncertficated shares must be carried out
using CREST and the board can refuse to registera
transfer of an uncertificated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Varation of rights

Ifat any tme the capital of the company I1s dvided into
different classes of shares, the special rights attaching to
any class may be varied or revoked either

() with the written consent of the holders of at least
75% in nominal value of the 1ssued shares of the relevant
class or

{n) wath the sancuon of a special resolution passed ata
separate general meeting of the holders of the shares
of the relevant class

Section 4 Governance 1]

Without prejudice to any special rights previously
conferred on the holders of any existing shares or class
of shares, any share may be issued with such preferred,
deferred, or other special nghts, or such restrictions,
whether in regard to dividend, voting, return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from time to time by
ordinary resolution determine

Appointment and replacement of direccors

The Arucles contain the following provisions in relation
to directors

Directors shall be no less than two in number Directors
may be appointed by the company by ordinary resolution
orby the board A director appointed by the board shall
held office only until the next AGM and shall then be
elgble for reappointment, but shall not be taken into
account in determining the directors or the number of
directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting
The board may from ume to time appoint one or more
directors to hold executive office with the company for
such period (subject to the provisions of the Act) and
upon such terms as the board may decde and may revoke
or terminate any appotntment so made

The Arucles provide that, at every AGM of the company,
atleast one-third of the directors shall retire by rotation
(or, if their number s not a muluple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) The first directors to retire by
rotation shall be thase wha wish to retire and not offer
themselves for re-election Any further directors so to
retire shall be those of the other directors subject to
retrement by rotation who have been longest in office
since they were last re-elected but, as between persons
who became or were last re-elected on the same day,
those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be deterrmined by lot In addition, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shall retire by rotation at the third AGM after they were
last re-elected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Articles, the board
has resolved that all directors should offer themselves for
re-election annually, in accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resolution remove any
director before the expiration of his/her term of office

In addition, the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangement with any director for the provision of his/her
services to the company
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ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Powers of the directors

Subject to the company’s Articles, the Act and any
directions given by special resolution, the business of the
company will be managed by the board who may exeraise
all the powers of the company, including powers relating
to theissue and/or buying back of shares by the company
{(subject to any statutory restrictions or restrictions
imposed by shareholders in general meeting)

Sigruficant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
entithng the counterparties to exercise termination

or other rights in the event of a charge of control of
the company

Under the $1,750,000,000 revoling credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which matures in August
2019 between, amongst others, the company, Barclays
Bank plc {as faality agent) and the banks and finanaal
insttutions named therein as lenders (the Facility), any
such bank may, upon a change of control of the company,
require its outstanding advances, together with accrued
interest and any other amounts payable in respect of such
Facility, and its commitments, to be cancelled, each within
60 days of notfication to the banks by the facility agent
For these purposes, a ‘change of control’ occurs if the
company becomes a subsidiary of any other company

or one or more persons actng either ndividually or in
concert, obtains control (as defined in section 1124 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010} of the company

Shares acquired through the company’s employee share
plans rank pan passu with shares in issue and have no
special nghts Forlegal and practical reasons, the rules
of these plans set out the consequences of a change of
control of the company
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion
In our opirion

» Pearson plc’s consolidated financial statements and
company financial statements (the ‘financial statements”)
give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of
the company's affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of the
Group's profit and the Group's and the company's cash
flows for the year then ended

» The consolidated financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with Internauonal
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union

» The company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

» The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the Comparnies
Act 2006 and, as regards the consclidated financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Separate opinion In relation to IFRSs as 1ssued by

the IASB

As explained in note | to the financial statements, the
Group, in addition to applying IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, has also apphed IFRSs as 1ssued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)

Cur audit approach
Overview

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
comply with IFRSs as issued by the IASB

What we have audited
Pearson plc's finanaal statements comprise

» The consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2014

» The consolidated income statement and consolidated
statement of comprehensive Income for the year
then ended

» The consolidated and company statements of changes in
equity and cash flow statements for the year then ended

» The notes to the finanaial statements, which include a
summary of sigruficant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

Certain required disclosures have been presented
elsewhere in the Annual report and accounts (the
‘Annual report’) rather than in the notes to the finanaal
statements These are cross-referenced from the
financial statements and are identified as audited

The financial reporting framework that has been

applied in the preparation of the financial statements is
applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union and, as regards the company financial statements,
as appled in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

Materiahity

&
%&i’?"‘ '

Audit scope

profit before tax

> We focused on

» Overall Group materrality £26m, which represents 4% of adjusted profit
before tax as disclosed in note 8 Refer to page 19 for further details

» We conducted work in five key terrtories US, UK, Brazil, China and South
Africa In addiuon we obtained an audit opinion on the financial informaton
reported by the associate Penguin Random House (PRH)

» The territories where we conducted audit procedures, together with work
performed at corporate functions, shared service centres and consolidated
Group level, accounted for approximately 68% of the Group's revenue, 74%
of the Group's statutory profit before tax, and 65% of the Group’s adjusted

—Revenue recognition for multiple element and long-term revenue contracts
- Goodwill and intangible assets impairment reviews

— Provision for uncertaim tax babilities

~Returns provisions

—Recoverability of pre-publication assets and inventories

— Acquistions and disposals




The scope of our audit and our areas of focus

We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)
{ISAs (UK & Ireland))

We designed our audit by determining materiality
and assessing the risks of matertal misstaterent in
the consclidated and company financial statements
In parucular, we looked at where management made
subjective judgements, for example In respect of
significant accounting estimates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are
inherently uncertain Asn all of our audits, we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, Including evaluating whether there was
evidence of bias that represented a risk of matenal
misstatement due to fraud
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The risks of material musstatement that had the greatest
effect on our audit, ncluding the allocation of our
resources and effort, are identified as areas of focus In
the table below. We have also set out how we tallored
our audit to address these specific areas in order to
provide an opinion on the consolidated and company
financial statements as a whole Any comments we
make on the results of our procedures should be read

in this context For each area of focus below, to the
extent relevant, we evaluated the design and tested the
operating effectiveness of key internal controls over
financial reporting set in place by management, including
tesung the operation of IT systems from which financial
information 1s generated Each of the areas of focus
below are also referred to inthe audit committee
report on pages 74 to 75 and in the accounting policies
on pages 128 to 135 This isnot a complete Iist of all risks
(dentified by our audit

Area of focus

How our audit zddressed the area of focus

Revenue recognition for multiple element and long-term revenue contracts

Refer to note | to the consclidated financial
statements There are two types of complex contracts
that require significant judgements and estimates,
which could be subject to either acerdental errors

or dehberate fraud

» Multiple element arrangements, such as the sale of
physical textbooks accompanied by digital content
or supplementary workbooks, where revenue 1s
recogrised for each element as if it were an individual
contractual arrangement requiring the estimation of
its fair value

» Certain long-term contracts that span year end, where
revenue Is recognised using estimated percentage of
completion based on costs These include contracts to
design, develop and deliver testing and accreditation
and contracts to secure students and support the
onhne delivery of their teaching

These complex contracts generate material deferred
revenue and accrued income balances and are areas
where misstatements in the underlying assumputions or
estimation calculations could have a matenal effect on
the financial statements

Where books are sold together with workbooks
delivered later or companion digital materials available
online we assessed the basis for allocation of the
purchase price between each element and then tested
the detailed calculations supporting these revenue
deferrals We used our knowledge of the Group and its
Industry to assess the completeness of identification of
such arrangements We found the revenue deferrals
to be based on reasonable estimates of the relative
fair value of each element and the methods used

to caiculate the deferrals properly calculated and
consistently appled

For a selection of the larger, more judgemental and
more recent long-term contacts, covering both testing
activities and online delivery of teaching, we read the
contracts and assessed the accounting pohcy and
methodologies being applied to calculate the proportion
of revenue being recognised We also tested costs
incurred to date and management’s estmates of
forecast costs and revenues by reference to historical
experience and current contract status, including
examining correspondence where contracts are
experiencing disputes

Our testing showed that revenue recognition practices
are In accordance with Group policies with appropriate
methods for calculating the revenue recognised
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Area of focus

How our audit addressed the area of focus

Goodwill and intangible assets impairment reviews

Refer to note |1 to the consohdated financial
statements At year end the Group has £5,030m of
goodwill and £1,280m of other intangible assets
including software, acquired customer lists, contracts
and relanonships, acquired trademarks and brands and
acquired publishing rights

The carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets are
contingent on future cash flows and there 1s risk that,
these cash flows do not meet the Group's expectations,
the assets rught be impaired The imparment reviews
performed by management contain a number of
significant judgements and estimates indluding cash
generating unit (CGU) identification, revenue growth,
profit margins and discount rate

As part of the Group restructuring during the year,
management identified a new set of aggregated CGUs
and reallocated goodwill accordingly These changes
incfuded a new North America aggregated CGU and
the disaggregauon of the Growth segment into its main
constituent countries (refer to note |1 for details)

For the larger aggregated CGUs management's model
identified significant headroom In respect of the India
CGU management recorded an impairment charge

of £77m

WWe evaluated and challenged management’s
denufication and aggregation of CGUs in light of the new
Group structure and tested the allocation of goodwill
to these aggregated CGUs In our view management’s
decision to disaggregate the Growth segment Into its
main constituent countries appropriately reflects the
relative Independence of these operations For the
aggregated CGUs in North America and Core markets,
management demonstrated reasonable bases for the
aggregations, reflecung therr relatively high levels of
integration and synergies

We tested the mathematical integrity of the forecasts
and carrying values in management’s imparment model
We obtained board approved cash flow forecasts to
agree them to management’s impairment analysis and
challenged key judgements and estimates within them
We assessed the discount rates applied to each
aggregated CGU by companison to third-party data
and to the Group's cost of capital and relevant risk
factors YVe compared short and long-term growth
rates, including cash conversion, to historical trends
and expectations We also considered the accuracy
of prior period forecasts

We performed sensitivity analyses arcund these

key assurnptions to ascertan the extent of change
either individually or collectively that would indicate
impairment We considered the likelhood of such a
movement and the adequacy of the disclosures made
regarding the assumptions and sensitivities

For CGUs where headroom was hmited we assessed
management's sensiivity disclosures to check these
were appropriate

We checked for additional impairment triggers by
reading board minutes, holding regular discussions

with Group and local management, and examining the
performance of recently acquired businesses to identify
underperforming operations We did notidentfy any
further impairments
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Area of focus

How cur audit addressed the area of focus

Provision for uncertain tax labilities

Refer to notes 7 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements The Group is subject to several tax regimes
due to the geographical diversity of its businesses

The directors are required to exercise significant
judgement in determining the appropriate amount 1o
provide in respect of potential tax exposures and
uncertain tax provisions The most significant of these
refate to US tax

Changes in assumptions about the views that might be
taken by tax authorities can matenially impact the level of
provisions recorded in the financial statements and there
are significant jJudgements in estimating the amount of
any provision required

We obtained an understanding of the Group's tax
strategy to identify tax risks relating to business and
legislative developments To assess the adequacy of
the Group’s tax provistons we first recalculated the
valuation of tax provisions and determined whether
the treatments adopted were in Iine with the Group's
tax policies and had been applied consistently

Ve then evaluated key underlying assumptions about
tax authority views on the Group’s tax arrangements,
particularly in the US and in territories with new cross-
border tax structures In doing this we considered the
status of recent and current tax authority audits and
enquiries, the outturn of previous claims, judgemental
positions taken in tax returns and current year
estimates, and developments in the tax environment

We were satisfied that management’s provision
estimates for uncertain tax positions were consistent
with our own assessment of the related risks and
correspondence with the relevant tax authorities

Returns provisions

There are material, judgemental provisions for
anticipated book returns on the balance sheet as at
3| December 2014, particularly in US Higher Education

As the Group transitions from print to digital the returns
profile might change to either decrease (as less books
are shupped) or increase (if bookstores underestimate
the speed of digital change and over-order traditional
textbooks)

We performed testing over returns provisions in a
number of locations, including US Higher Education

Ve tested the calculation of the provisions, assessing
Jjudgements for reasonableness aganst historical
experience and the impact on returns of the ongoing
business transition from print to digital

We also performed detailed testing of shipment and
returns provisioning This induded checking cut-off at
year end and evaluating whether any changes in shipping
volumes around year end might increase the risk of
returns No misstatements were identified

We evaluated changes in esumates to check they were
not indicators of management bias We found the
estimates used by managementn the determination
of the returns prowvisions to appropriately reflect both
past experience and changes in the business
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Area of focus

How cur audit addressed the area of focus

Recoverability of pre-publication assets and inventories

Refer 1o notes 20 and 2} to the consohdated financial
statements The Group has £820m of pre-publcation
assets and £224m of inventories at 3| December 2014
Pre-publication assets represent direct costs incurred
in the development of education programmes and titles
prior 1o their publication and inventories are unsold
stock, usually physical textbooks

Judgement s required to assess the recoverability of
these assets, this is further complicated by the transition
to digital as the Group invests In new, less proven, digital
content and platforms

We first selected a sample of costs deferred to the
balance sheet as pre-publication assets or inventories to
test their appropriateness and magnitude

We then assessed the amortisauon profiles of pre-
publication assets against cash flows to test that the
existing amortisation profiles remained appropriate in
light of the transition towards digital products

We challenged the carrying value of certain pre-
publicatron assets and inventories where sales have been
lower than oniginally anticipated VWe assessed forecast
cash flows against historical experience and obtained
supporting evidence for management’s explanations

We found the Group's pohoes to be appropriate and
consistently apphed While the carrying value of some
assets depends on management’s expectation of growth
in future sales from them, overall we considered the
carrying values of pre-publication assets and inventories
to be reasonable

Acquisitions and disposals

Refer to notes 30 and 31 1o the consolidated financial
statements In February 2014 the Group acquired
Grupo Mulu for £437m, recognising £240m of goodwill
and £254m of intangible assets This 1s a significant
transaction requiring judgement to identify and value
the intangible assets and assess their subsequent
recoverability

As part of the Penguin Random House transaction the
Group recorded an estimated £59m prowision in 2013
for the cost of transferring the pension lability guarantee
for Penguin employees to Bertelsmann It was concluded
during 2014 that Pearson would retain responsibility for
this pension liability The provision has been released
within discontinued operations in the current year

In February 2014 the Group sold Mergermarket for
£375m, resulting in a gain on disposal of £245m pre-tax
and judgemenital classificauon as discontnued
operations

The Group engagement teamvisited Brazil and met
with local management of Grupo Multi to gain an
understanding of the business

We performed detalled testing over the acquisiion
accounting, inctuding fair value adjustments such as
wentfication and valuation of intangible assets Post-
acquisition performance and forecasts were assessed
to identify potential imparrment triggers

We obtained the communication between Pearson

and Bertelsmann confirming that Pearson will retain
responsibility for the pension lability of the legacy
Penguin employees We tested the appropniate reversal
of the provision within discontinued operations

We tested the gain on disposal for Mergermarket by
agreeing the consideration to sales documents and
cash received and agreed the net assets disposed to
underlying records We also evaluated its presentation
in the Annual report

No matenal misstatements were identified by our
testing and we found that relevant disclosures were
included in the Annual report




How we tailored our audit scope

We tailored our audit scope to ensure that we
performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on
the financial statements as a whole, taking into account
the geographic structure of the Group, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the
Group operates

The Group 1s organised into three reportable segments,
being North America, Core and Growth, plus the
investment in associate Penguin Random House

Each segment comprises a number of reporting units
The consolidated financial statements comprise these
reporting units plus the Group's centralised functions

In estabhishing the overall approach to the Group audit,
we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at the reporting units by us, as the Group
engagement team, or component auditors within

PwC UK and from other PwC network firms operating
under our instruction Where the work was performed
by component auditors, we determined the level of
involvement we needed to have in the audit work at
those reporting units to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropnate audit evidence had been obtained
as a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole

During the year the Group engagement team visited
each of the US, Brazihan, Chinese and South African
component audit teams, held a planning meeting
attended by partners from the Group engagement team
and our UK and US component teams, and had regular
dialogue with component teams throughout the year

We idenufied two reporting units in the US and UK that
required an audit of their complete financial nformation
due to size alone, plus a further 13 reporting units in the
US, UK, Brazil, China and South Africa that required
either an audit or specified procedures on certamn
transactions and balances We also obtained an audit
opinion on the financial information of the associate
Penguin Random House The Group consohdation,
financial statement disclosures and corporate functions
were audited by the Group engagement team This
included our work over derivative financial instruments,
hedge accounting, goodwill and intangible assets
impairment reviews, hitigation, pensions and share-
based payments

Secuon 5 Financial statements 19

The reporting urits where we performed audit work,
together with work performed at corporate functions,
shared service centres and consohidated Group level,
accounted for approximately 74% of the Group’s
statutory profit before tax and 65% of adjusted profit
before tax This provided the evidence we needed for
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole

Materiality The scope of our audit was influenced by cur
apphcation of materiality We set certain quantitative
thresholds for materiality These, together with
qualtative considerations, helped us to determine the
scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent

of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
musstatements, both indvidually and on the financial
statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we deterrmined
materiality for the financial statements as a whole
as follows

Opverall group £26m (2013 £32m)

materialty

How we
determined it

4% of adjusted profit before tax
of £658m

Rationale for Note 8 explains that the Group's

benchmark applied principal measure of performance
1s adjusted operating profit
(£722m), which exdudes one-off
gains and losses and acquired
intangble asset amortisation,
in order to present results from
operating activities on a consistent
basis From adjusted operating
profit we deducted net finance
costs of £64m (see note 8) because
these reflect recurring finance
charges To the resulting adjusted
profit before tax we then applied
4% (rather than the usual 5%) as
our materiality calculation was
based on this adjusted measure

We agreed with the audit committee that we would
report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above £2m (2013 £2m) as well as misstatements below
that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
gualitative reasons
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Going concern Under the Listing Rules we are required
to review the directors’ staternent, set out on page 107,
in relation to going concern We have nothing to report
having performed our review

As noted in the directors’ statement, the directors have
concluded that it 1s approprate to prepare the financial
statements using the going concern basis of accounting
The going concern basis presumes that the Group

and company have adequate resources to remain in

Other required reporting

Consistency of other information

operauon, and that the directors mtend them to do
5o, for at least one year from the date the finanaal
statements were signed As part of our audit we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis is appropriate

However, because not all future events or conditions can
be predicted, these statements are not a guarantee as

to the Group's and company’s ability to continue as a
going concern

Cormparves Act 2006 opinion In our opinion, the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

tSAs (UK & Ireland) reporting

Under ISAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report to you If, in our opinion

¥ Information i the Annual report is

- materially nconsistent with the information in the audited

financial statements

We have no exceptions to report
arsing from this responsibility

—apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with,
our knowledge of the group and company acquired in the course of

performing our audit
- otherwise misleading

» The statement given by the directors on page |08, in accordance with
provision C | | of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the ‘Code’), that

We have no exceptions to report
arising from this responsibility

they consider the Annual report taken as a whole to be fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for members to
assess the Group’s and company’s performance, business model and strategy
1s matenally inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and company

acquired in the course of performing our audit

» The section of the Annual report on pages 74 and 75, as required by provision
C 3 8 of the Code, describing the work of the audit commuittee does not

We have no exceptions to report
ansing from this responsibility

appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit commitiee

Adequacy of accountng records and informauon and
explanations received

Under the Compantes Act 2006 we are required to
report to you if, In our opinion

» We have not received all the infformanion and
explanauons we require for our audit

» Adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us

» The company financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remunerauon report to be audited are not in
agreement with the accounung records and returns

We have no exceptions to report arising from
this responsibility




Directors' remuneration

Directors’ remuneration report — Companies Act
2006 opinion In our opinion, the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting Under the
Comparues Act 2006 we are required to report to
you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have
no exceptions te report ansing from this responsibility

Corporate governance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
part of the corporate governance statement relating to
the company's comphance with ten provisions of the
Code We have nothing to report having performed
our review

Responsibilities for the financial statements and
the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibilities set out on page 109, the directors

are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being sausfied that they give a true
and far view

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable
faw and SAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company's members as a body In
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose 'We do not, m giving
these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this
report s shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing
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What an audit of financial statements involves

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from materal russtatement, whether caused
by fraud or error This includes an assessment of

» Whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
group’s and the company’s arcumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

» The reasonableness of signficant accounting estmates
made by the directors

» The overall presentatuon of the financiat statements

We primarily focus our workin these areas by assessing
the directors’ judgements against avallable evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine information, using sampling and
other audiung techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary, to provide a reasonable basis for us to draw
conclusions Ve obtain audit evidence through testing
the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or
a combination of both

In addwion, we read all the financal and non financal
mnformation in the Annual report to identfy material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and
to identify any information that 1s apparently materally
incorrect based on, or materally incensistent wath, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
the audit if we become aware of any apparent material
misstatements or iInconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Stuart Newman (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
London, United Kingdom

9 March 2015

{a) The mamtenance and integnty ofthe Pearson plc website 1s the
responsibility of the directors the work carnied out by the auditors does
not involve consideranon of these matters and accordingly the auditors
acceptno responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the
financial statements since they were imitially presented on the website

() Legislation i the United Kingdom governing the preparauon and
dissernination of financial staternents may differ from legislatron in
other jurisdictions
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Consolidated income statement
Year ended 31 December 2014

All figures in £ millions Notes 2014 2013
Sales 2 4.874 5,069
Cost of goods sold 4 (2.202) (2.312)
Gross profit 2,672 2,757
Operating expenses 4 {2,325) (2.353)
Share of results of joint ventures and assocrates 2 51 54
Operating profit 2 398 458
Finance costs 6 (141) (i
Finance income 6 48 35
Profit before tax 305 382
Income tax 7 {63) (87)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 242 295
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 228 244
Profit for the year 470 539
Atcributable to

Equity holders of the company 471 538
Non-controlling interest {h I
Earnings per share for profit from continuing and discontinued operations

actributable to equity holders of the company during the year

(expressed in pence per share)

—basic 8 58 ip 66 6p
—diluted 8 58 0p 66 5p
Earnings per share far profit from conunuing operations attributable to

equity holders of the company during the year

(expressed in pence per share)

—basic 8 300p 364p
~diluted 8 29 %p 363p




Section 5 Finanaal statemenits 123

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Year ended 3| December 2014

Allfigures in £ millions Notes 2H4 o3 8
Profit for the year 470 539 -
[
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement Z
Net exchange differences on translauon of foreign operations — Group 150 (206) 2
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign operations — associates 25 {an
Currency translation adjustment disposed — Group (2) (I8)
Attributable tax 7 (6) 6
[terns that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of reurement benefit obligations — Group 25 23 79 o
Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligations — associates (15) - a
Attributable tax 7 0 23) 3
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 174 {173) g
Tortal comprehensive income for the year 644 366 E
Attributable to
Equity holders of the company 645 369
Non-controling interest {h (3)
o}
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

Allfigures wn £ millions Nates 2014 2013

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 10 334 342
Intangible assets I 6,310 5,801
Investments In joint ventures and associates 7] [.118 1,092
Deferred income tax assets i3 295 250
Financial assets ~ dervative financial instruments 16 90 [l
Retirement benefit assets 25 (90 86
Other finanoal assets 15 54 94
Trade and other recevables 22 82 70

8,473 7,846

Current assets
Intangible assets — pre-publication 20 820 717
Inventories 21 224 224
Trade and other receivables 2 1,310 1,173
Financial assets — dervative financial instruments 16 24 13
Financial assets — marketable securities 14 {6 6
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 17 530 729
2,924 2,862
Assets classified as held for sale 32 - 223
Total assets 1,397 10,931
Liabilinies
MNon-current habilities
Financial habilities — borrowings 18 (1,883) (1.693)
Financial habilities — derivative financial instruments 16 {73) (48)
Deferred income tax habilities 13 (714) (612}
Retirement benefit obligations 25 (163) (142)
Provisions for other labilities and charges 23 {82) 77
Other labilities p1) (310) (257}

(3.225) (2.829)
Current habilities

Trade and other habiliues % {1.601) (1,505)
Financial habilities — borrowings 18 (342) (533)
Financial labiities — derivative financial instruments 16 (h -
Current iIncome tax labilities (190 (164}
Provisions for other habilities and charges n {53) (112}

(2,187) (2.314)
Liabilties directly associated with assets classified as held for sale n - (82)
Total habllives (5,412) {5.225)

Net assecs 5,985 5,706
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Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 31 December 2014
Al figures in £ millions Notes 2014 2013 g
Equity -
c
Share capital 27 205 205 2
Share prermum 27 2,579 2,568 rﬁ",
Treasury shares 28 (75) (98)
Translation reserve 70 (103)
Retained earnings 3,200 3,128
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5979 5,700
Non-controlling interest 6 6 -
Total equity 5,985 5,706 g
These financial statements have been approved for 1ssue by the board of directors on 9 March 2015 and signed on its =
behalf by 2
x
Robin Freestone Chief financial officer z
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 3| December 2014

Equity attributable to equity holders of the company

Share Share  Treasury Translaton  Retaned comr:ﬁ:g- Total
Al figures m £ mullions capial  premwm  shares  reserve  earmings Total  intersst  equity
At | January 2014 205 2,568 (98) (103) 3,128 5700 6 5706
Profit for the year - - - - 471 47 (1) 470|
Other comprehensive Income - - - 173 ! 174 ~ |74 |
Total comprehensive income - - - 173 472 645 (N 644
Equity-settled transactions - - - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - 3 (3) - (3)
Issue of ordinary shares under
share opution schemes - I - ~ - H - I
Purchase of treasury shares - - (%) - - (9 - (9
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (37 - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - - - 2 2
Dividends - - - - (399  (397) (n (398)
At 3| December 2014 205 2579 (75) 70 3200 5979 6 5985
Equny attributable to equity holders of the company Non.
Share Share  Treasury Translation  Retained controling Total
Allfigures in £ millions captal premwrn  shares  reserve  earnings Total  mterest  equity
At | January 2013 204 2555 (103) 128 2902 5,686 24 5710
Profit for the year - - - -~ 538 538 | 539
Other comprehensive expense - - - {231 62 (169 4 ( 73)1|
Total comprehensive iIncome ~ - - (23N 600 369 (3) 366
Equity-settled transactons - - - - 37 37 - 37
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - - - - -
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes | I3 - - - i4 - 14
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47) - - 47 - (47)
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - 13 13 (15) (2)
Dwwvidends - - - - (37 @72 - (37
At 31 December 2013 205 2,568 (98) (103) 3,128 5,700 6 5706

The translation reserve includes exchange differences anising from the translation of the net investment in foreign

operations and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments Changes
in non-controlling interest in 2014 relate to the disposal of a non-controlling interest in a Chinese business In2013,
the group purchased non-controliing interests in the South Afnican and Indian businesses
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 3| December 2014

Allfigures n £ millians Notes 2014 2013 o
Cash flows from operating activities =
Net cash generated from operations 14 704 684 %
Interest paid (86) (82) 2
Tax paid (163) (246)

Net cash generated from operaung activities 455 356

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 30 (448) (48)
Acquisition of joint ventures and associates (12) (10 o
Purchase of investments (3) (64) %
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (75) (118) %
Purchase of intangible assets {107) (64 g
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed 3 327 (132) é
Proceeds from sale of associates 39 2
Proceeds from sale of investments 9 2
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 34 9 28
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 2 o
Proceeds from sale of liquid resources 12 13 E
Loans to related parties (10} (44) ;3
Loans advanced (2) (5) g
Investment in hquid resources {22) (14) g
Interest received i3 9 B
Dividends received from joint ventures and assoclates 120 64

Net cash used in investung activities {143) (379

Cash flows from financing activities =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 27 I 14 %
Purchase of treasury shares 28 & (47) ?
Proceeds from borrowings 404 319 E
Repayment of borrowings (538) (225)
Finance lease principal payments 4 8
Dividends paid to company's shareholders 9 (397) (372)
Dwmdends paid to non-controlling interest (1 -
Purchase of non-controlling interest 3 - {(76) -
Net cash used in financing activities {534) (395) g
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (2) 21 2
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {229) (397) ;‘.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 740 1.137 é
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ” 511 740 g

The consolidated cash flow statement includes discontunued operations (see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General mformation

Pearson plc (the company), its subsidiaries and
associates (together the Group) are international
businesses covering education, business information
and consumer publishing

The company 15 a public imited company incorporated
and dormuailed in England The address of its registered
office 1s 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

The company hasits primary hsting on the London
Stock Exchange and 1s also histed on the New York
Stock Exchange

These conschidated financial statements were approved
for 1ssue by the board of directors on 9 March 2015

| Accountng policies

The prinapal accountng policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below

a Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
and IFRS Interpretations Committee interpretations as
adopted by the European Union (EU) and with those
parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies
reporting under IFRS In respect of the accounting
standards applicable to the Group there is no difference
between EU-adopted and IASB-adopted |FRS

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets and
habilties (iIncluding dervative financial instruments)
to fair value through profit or loss

| Interpretauons and amendments to published
standards effecuve 2014 The following amendments
and interpretations were adopted in 2014

» Amendments to IFRS |0, IFRS 12 and IAS 27,
‘Investment Entities’, effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after | January 2014 These
amendments provide an exempuon from consohdation
of subsidiaries for entitres which meet the definition of
an nvestment entity

» Amendments to 1AS 39, ‘Novauon of Dervatves and
Conunuation of Hedge Accounung’, effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | January 2014
The amendments mean there would be no need to
discontinue hedge accounting if a hedge derivative was
novated and certain cnitena met

» Amendments to IAS 32, ‘Financial Instruments
Presentation’, effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after | January 2014 The amendments
clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financial
assets and financial habilities on the balance sheet

> IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’, effective for annual reporung periods
beginning on or after | January 2014 This detalls the
accounting for an obligation to pay a levy thatis not
Income tax

The adoption of these new pronouncements from
| January 2014, does not have a materal impact on the
consohdated financial statements

2 Standards, interpretations and amendments

to published standards that are not yet effective The
Group has not early adopted the following new
pronouncements that are not yet effective

> IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, effectve for annual
reporting pertods beginning on or after | January 2018
The new standard details the requirements for the
classification, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and habilives The Group is yet to assess the full
impact of IFRS 9

y»IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,
effecuve for annual reporting periods beginning on
orafter | January 2017 The new standard specifies
how and when an entity will recognise revenue, and
requires more detalled disclosure Adopuon of the
new standard s likely to have an impact on the Group
and management s currently assessing the impact

3 Crncal accounting assumptions and judgements The
preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
assumptions It also requires management to exercise

its Judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies The areas requiring a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
staternents, are discussed in the relevant accounting
policies under the following headings and in the notes

1o the accounts where appropriate




| Accounting policies continued

a Basis of preparation continued

Consolidation Business combinations — determination
of fair values

Consolidation Business combinations - classification
of nvestments

Intangible assets Goodwill

Intangible assets Pre-publication assets

Taxation

Employee benefits Pensions

Revenue recognition

b Consolidaucn
{ Business combinations The acquisition method of
accounting s used to account for business combmnauons

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary 1s the fair value of the assets transferred, the
habihties incurred and the equity Interestissued by the
Group The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or hability resulting from a contingent
constderation arrahgement Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred in the operating expenses line
of the income statement

Idenufiable assets and contingent assets acquired and
identifiable habihties and conungent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date The determination of far
values often requires significant judgements and the use
of esuimates, and for material acquisitions, the fair value
of the acquired intangible assets I1s determined by an
independent valuer The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisiion date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the far
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill

See note le(l) for the accounting pelicy on goodwill
If this 15 less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recogrised directly in
the income statement
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On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controling interestin the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

Management exercises jJudgement in determining the
classification of 1ts investments In 1S businesses, in line
with the following

2 Subsidiaries Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control The Group controls an entity when
the Group I1s exposed to, orhas rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date
on which controlis transferred to the Group They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

3 Transacuons with non-controfling interests
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do

not result In loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, that s as transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners Any surplus or deficit arising
from disposals to a non-controlling interest s recorded
Inequity For purchases from a non-controlling interest,
the difference between consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity

4 Joint venwures and associates Joint ventures are
entities in which the Group holds an interest on a long-
term basis and has rights to the net assets through
contractually agreed sharing of control Associates are
entities over which the Group has significant influence
but not the power to control the financial and operating
pohcies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting nghts Investments
IN jomnt ventures and associates are accounted for by
the equity method and are initially recognised at the far
value of consideration transferred

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ and associates’
post-acquisition profits or losses Is recognised in the
Income staternent and 1ts share of post-acquisition
movements In reserves Is recognised In reserves
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

| Accounting policies conunued

b Consolidation continued

The Group's share of its joint ventures” and asscciates’
results is recognised as a componerit of operating profit
as these operanons form part of the core publshing
business of the Group and are an integral part of
existing wholly-owned businesses The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment When the Group's share of
losses in a joint venture or associate equals or exceeds
its Interest in the joINt venture or associate, the Group
does not recognise further losses unless the Group has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
joint venture or associate

5 Contribution of a subsidiary to an associate or joint
venture The gain or loss resulting from the contribution
ot sale of a subsidiary to an associate or a joint venture
I1s recognised in full Where such transactions do not
involve cash consideration, significant judgements and
estimates are used in determining the fair values of the
consideration received

¢ Foreign currency transfation

| Funcuional and presentation currency items included
in the financial staternents of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment In which the entity operates

{the "functional currency’) The consohdated financial
statements are presented in sterling, which is the
company’s functional and presentation currency

2 Transactions and balances Foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulung
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and habiliies denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised In the iIncome statement, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying net investment hedges

3 Group compames The results and financial positon
of all Group companies that have a funcuonal currency
different from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows

1) Assets and habiliues are translated at the closing rate at
the date of the balance sheet

it} Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates

) All resutting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity

On consclidauon, exchange differences arising frorm
the translation of the net Investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders’ equity The Group treats specific
inter-company loan batances, which are not intended
to be repaid In the foreseeable future, as part of its net
investment When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

The principal overseas currency for the Group 1s the
US dollar The average rate for the year against sterling
was $1 65 (2013 $1 57) and the year end rate was

$1 56 (2013 $1 66)

d Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation Costincludes the ongnal
purchase price of the asset and the costs attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for intended
use Land s not depreciated Depreciation on other
assets Is calculated using the straight-lne method to
allocate their cost less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows

Buildings (freehold)
Buildings (leasehold)

20-50 years
over the penod of the lease

Plant and equipment  3—10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if approprate, at each balance sheet date

The carrying value of an asset s written down to 1ts
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the asset
is greater than its estmated recoverable amount

e Intangible assets

| Goodwill For the acquisition of subsidiaries made on
or after | January 2010, goodwill represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controliing interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date far value of any previous equity interestin the
acquiree over the fair value of the identffiable net assets
acquired For the acquisitton of subsidiaries made from
the date of transition to IFRS to 31 December 2009
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
netidentifiable assets acquired Goadwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries i1s included i intangible assets Goodwill
on acquisttion of associates and joint ventures represents
the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair
value of the Group's share of the netidentifiable assets




I Accounting pelicies continued

e Intangible assets continued

acquired Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and
joint ventures Is Included In investments In associates
and joint ventures

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses An impairment
loss i1s recognised to the extent that the carrying value

of goodwill exceeds the recoverable amount The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value inuse These calculations require the
use of estimates and significant management judgement
A description of the key assumptions and sensitvities 1s
included in note 11 Goodwill is allocated to aggregated
cash-generating units for the purpose of iImpairment
testing The allocation 1s made to those aggregated cash-
generatng units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose

Gatns and losses on the disposal of an enuty snclude the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entty sold

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ has not been applied
retrospectively to business combinations before the
date of transition to IFRS

2 Acquired software Software separately acquired for
internal use 1s capitalised at cost Software acquired in
material business combinations is capitalised at its fair
value as determined by an independent valuer Acquired
software 1s amortised on a straight-lne basis over its
estmated useful life of between three and eight years

3 Internally developed software Internal and external
costs incurred during the prelminary stage of developing
computer software for internal use are expensed
asincurred Internal and external costs incurred to
develop computer software for internal use during

the applicaticn development stage are capitalised

if the Group expects economic benefits from the
development Capitalisation in the application
development stage begins once the Group can reliably
measure the expenditure attributable to the software
development and has demonstrated 1ts intention to
complete and use the software Internally developed
software 1s amortised on a straight-line basts over 1ts
esumated useful life of between three and eight years
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4 Acquired intangible assets Acquired intangible assets
include customer hsts, contracts and relationships,
trademarks and brands, publishing nghts, content,
technology and software rights These assets are
capitalised on acquisition at cost and included in
intangible assets Intangible assets acquired in material
business combinations are capitahised at their fair value
as determined by an independent valuer Intangible
assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives
of between two and 20 years, using an amortisation
method that reflects the pattern of their consumption

5 Pre-publication assets Pre-publication assets
represent direct ¢osts incurred in the development

of educational programmes and utles prior to their
publication These costs are recognised as current
intangible assets where the title will generate probable
future economic benefits and costs can be measured
rehably Pre-publication assets are amortised upon
publication of the title over eshmated economic hves
of five years or less, being an estimate of the expected
operaung life cycle of the ttle, with a higher proporuon
of the amorusation taken in the earlier years

The investment in pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash generated from operations in
the cash flow statement (see note 34)

The assessment of the recoverability of pre-publication
assets and the determination of the amortisation profile
mvolve a significant degree of jJudgement based on
historical trends and management esumation of future
potential sales An incorrectamortsation profile could
result in excess amounts being carried forward as
intangible assets that would otherwise have been
written off to the Income statement in an earher period

Reviews are performed regularty to estimate
recoverability of pre-publication assets The carrying
amount of pre-publication assets 1s set out 1n note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financial assets, designated as available for sale
Investments, are non-derivatve financial assets
measured at estimated fair value Changes in the farr
value are recorded in equity in the far value reserve
On the subsequent disposal of the asset, the net fair
value gains or losses are taken to the income statement
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements continued

t. Accounting policies continued

g Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Costis determtned using the firstin

first out (FIFO) method The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour,
other direct costs and related production overheads
Net realsable value 1s the estimated selling price in

the ordinary course of business, less estmated costs
necessary to make the sale Prowvisions are made for
slow moving and obsolete stock

h Royalty advances

Advances of royalties to authors are included within
trade and other receivables when the advance is paid
less any proviston required to adjust the advance to

its net realisable value The realisable value of royalty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
in determining the profitability of ndividual author
contracts If the esumated reabsable value of author
contracts Is overstated, this will have an adverse effect
on operating profits as these excess amounts will be
written off

The recoverability of royalty advances is based upon an
annual detailed management review of the age of the
advance, the future sales projections for new authors
and pror sales history of repeat authors

The royalty advance 1s expensed at the contracted or
effective royalty rate as the related revenues are earned
Royalty advances which will be consumed within one
year are held in current assets Royalty advances

which will be consurned after one year are held in
non-current assets

i Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
include cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks,
other short-term highly iquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts are included in borrowngs in current
habilities in the balance sheet

Short-term deposits and marketable securiuies with
maturities of greater than three months do not qualify as
cash and cash equivalents Movements on these financial
instruments are classified as cash flows from financing
activiies In the cash flow statement where these
amounts are used to offsat the borrowings of the Group
or as cash flows from invesung actvites where these
amounts are held to generate an investment return

t Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly attributable to the 1ssue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares) the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental
costs, net of Income taxes, I1s deducted from equity
attributable to the company’s equity holders untl the
shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any
considerauon received, net of any directly attributable
transaction costs and the related income tax effects,

i1s included in equity attributable to the company's
equity holders

k Borrowings

Borrowings are recogised initially at fair value, which
Is proceeds received net of transaction costs incurred
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amorused cost
with any difference between the proceeds {netof
transaction costs) and the redemption value beng
recognised in the Income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method
Accrued interest is included as part of borrowings
Where a debt instrumentisin a fair value hedging
relationship, an adjustment s made to its carrying value
in the iIncome statement to reflect the hedged risk
Interest on borrowings 1s expensed In the Income
statement as incurred

I Dervative financial instruments

Dervatives are recogrused at farr value and remeasured
at each balance sheet date. The fair value of dervatives
1s determined by using market data and the use of
established estimauon techniques such as discounted
cash flow and opuon valuation models The Group
designates certain of the dervative instruments within
its portfolio to be hedges of the fair value of its bonds
{far value hedges) or hedges of netinvestments in
foreign operauvons (net investment hedges)

Changes in the fair value of derivauives that are
designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded
in the iIncome statement, together with any changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or kability that are
attributable to the hedged risk




| Accounting palicies continued

| Derivative financial instruments continued

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derwvatives that are designated and qualify as net
investment hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive ncome Gains and losses accumulated
in equity are included in the income statement when
the corresponding foreign operation i1s disposed of
Gains or losses relating to the ineffective portion are
recognised immediately in finance income or finance
costs in the income statement

Certain derivatives do not qualify or are not designated
as hedging instruments Such derwatives are classified
at far value and any movement in their farr value 1
recognised immediately in finance income or finance
costs in the income statement

m Taxation

Current tax is recognised on the amounts expected to
be paid or recovered under the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax s provided, using the hability
method, on temporary differences anising between
the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying
amounts Deferred iIncome tax s determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset s realised or
the deferred income tax habilty 1s settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
Is probable that future taxable profit will be avanable
against which the temporary differences can be utihsed

Deferred income tax s provided in respect of the
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries other than where
it 1s intended that those undistributed earnings will not
be remitted in the foreseeable future

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the income
statement, except when the tax relates to items charged
or credited directly to equity or other comprehensive
income, in which case the tax is also recognised in equity
or other comprehensive Income

The Group 1s subject to Income taxes in nuMerous
jurisdictions Significant jJudgement s required in
determining the estimates in relation to the worldwide
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provision for iIncome taxes There are many transactions
and caleulauons for which the ulumate tax determination
Is uncertain duning the ordinary course of business

The Group recognises habilites for anticipated tax
auditssues based on estumates of whether additonal
taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these
matters 1s different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the perod in which such
determination 1s made.

Deferred tax assets and habihties require management
judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised
In particular, significant judgement 1s used when assessing
the extent to which deferred tax assets should be
recognised with consideration given to the timing and
level of future taxable income together with any future
tax planning strategies

n Employee benefits

i Pensions The retirement benefit asset and obligation
recogrised in the balance sheet represents the net of
the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets at the balance sheet date
The defined benefit obligauon is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
method The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting estimated future
cash flows using yields on high quality corporate bonds
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms
of the related habiity

When the calculation results in a potenuial asset, the
recognition of that asset 1s Imited to the asset celling —
that s the present value of any economic benefits
avallable in the form of refunds from the plan ora
reduction in future contributions Management use
judgement to determine the level of refunds avallable
from the plan in recognising an asset

The determination of the penston cost and defined
benefit obligauon of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the selection of certan
assumptions, which include the discount rate, inflation
rate, salary growth and longevity

Actuarial gans and losses ansing from experience
adjustments and changes in actuanal assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements continued

| Accounting policies continued

n Employee benefits continued

The service cost, representing benefits accruing over
the year, 1s included in the income statement as an
operating cost Netinterest s calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit obligation
and s presented as finance costs or finance income

Obligations for contribuuens to defined contribution
pension plans are recognised as an operating expense
in the Income statement as incurred

2 Other post-retrement obligations The expected
costs of post-retirement medical and hife assurance
benefits are accrued over the period of employment,
using a similar accounting methodology as for defined
benefit pension obligations The habilities and costs
relating to significant other post-retirement cbligations
are assessed annually by ndependent qualfied actuanies

3 Share-based payments The fair value of options or
shares granted under the Group's share and option plans
1s recognised as an employee expense after taking into
account the Group's best estimate of the number of
awards expected to vest Fair value 1s measured at the
date of grant and 1s spread over the vesting period

of the option or share The fair value of the opuions
granted 1s measured using an option model thatis

most appropriate to the award The fair value of shares
awarded is measured using the share price at the date
of grant unless another method 1s more appropnate
Any proceeds receved are credited to share capital
and share premium when the options are exercised

o Provisions

Provisions are recognised if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it1s more likely than not that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated Prowisions are discounted to
present value where the effect s matenal

The Group recognises a provision for deferred
consideration at fair value Vhere this 1s contingent
on future performance or a future event, jJudgement
15 exercised in establishing the fair value

The Group recognises a provision for onerous lease
contracts when the expected benefits to be derived
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract

The provision is based on the present value of future
payments for surplus leased properues under non-
cancellable operating leases, net of estmated sub-
leasing income

p Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the considerauon
recewved or recervable for the sale of goods and services
net of sales taxes, rebates and discounts, and after
eliminating sales within the Group

Revenue from the sale of books 1s recognised when title
passes A provision for antiopated returns s made based
primarily on historical return rates If these estimates

do not reflect actual returns in future periods then
revenues could be understated or overstated fora
particular period

Circulation and advertising revenue is recognised
when the newspaper or other publication 1s published
Subscription revenue is recognised on a straight-ine
basis over the hfe of the subscription

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two or
more separate elements that can be provided to
customers either on a stand-alone basis or as an
optional extra, such as the provision of supplementary
materials or online access with textbooks and mutuple
deliverables within testing or service cantracts, revenue
1s recognised for each element as if it were an individual
contractualarrangement

Revenue from multi-year contractual arrangements,
such as contracts to process qualifying tests for indmvidual
professions and government departments, I1s recognised
as performance occurs The assumpuons, risks, and
uncertainties inherent in long-term contract accounting
can affect the amounts and tming of revenue and related
expenses reported Certain of these arrangements,
either as a result of a single service spanning more than
one reporting period or where the contract requires
the provision of a number of services that together
constitute a single project, are treated as long-term
contracts with revenue recognised on a percentage of
completion basis Percentage of completion is calculated
on a cost basis using the proportion of the total
estumated costs incurred to date Losses on contracts
are recognised in the period in which the loss first
becomes foreseeable Contract losses are determined
to be the amount by which estmated total costs of the
contract exceed the estimated total revenues that wil}
be generated by the contract




| Accounting policies continued

p Revenue recognition continued

On certain contracts, where the Group acts as agent,
only commussions and fees receivable for services
rendered are recognised as revenue Any third-party
costs incurred on behalf of the principal that are
rechargeable under the contractual arrangement are
not included in revenue

Income from recharges of freight and other activities
which are incidental to the normal revenue generaung
activies 1s included in other income

q Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases Finance leases
are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at

the lower of the fair value of the leased property and
the present value of the minimum lease payments

Each lease payment s allocated between the hability

and finance charges to achieve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
financial habiiues — borrowings The interest element of
the finance cost s charged to the iIncome statement over
the lease perod to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaiming balance of the hability for each
period The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases by the lessee Payments
made under operating leases (het of any incentives
recewved from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the pericd of
the lease

r Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Group's financial
statements in the period in which they are approved
by the company's shareholders
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s Assets and hiabilties held for sale

Assets and labilities are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell if itis hughly probable that the carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use No
depreciaton 1s charged in respect of non-current assets
classified as held for sale Amounts relating to non-
current assets and liabihities held for sale are classified
as discontinued operations in the Income statement
where appropriate

t Trade receivables

Trade recevables are stated at fair value after provision
for bad and doubtful debts and anticipated future sales
returns (see also note | p)

2 Segment information

From | January 2014 the Group has reorgamsed and 1s
reporting new segmental analyses to reflect the new
structure and operaung model The primary segments
for management and reporting are geographies as
outlined below In addition, the group separately
discloses the results from the Penguin Random House
(PRH) associate

Continuing operations

North America School, Higher Education and
Professional businesses inUS and Canada

Growth School, Higher Education and Professional
businesses in emerging markets which are investment
priorities, including Brazl, China, India and South Africa

Core School, Higher Education and Professional
businesses m more mature markets including UK,
Australia and ltaly

In addition the Group separately discloses the results
of the Penguin Random House {PRH) assccate

The results of the Mergermarket business to 4 February
2014 are shown as discontinued in the relevant years
The results of the Penguin business to 30 June 2013 are
also shown as discontinued in 2013

Figures for 2013 have beenrestated to reflect the
new segments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued

For more detall on the services and products included in each business segment refer to the strategic report

2044
North Discontinued
Al figures i £ millions Notes  America Core  Growth PRH  Corporate  operations Group
Conunuing operauons
Sales 2974 [.154 746 - - - 4874
Ad)justed operating profit 464 152 35 6% - - 720
Intangible charges {110 (22) (132) (54) - - (318)
Acquisiion costs (2) n 3) s - - (6)
Other net gains and losses 2 - - — - - 2
Operatung profit/(loss) 354 t29 (100) I5 - - 398
Finance costs 8 (141)
Finance income 6 48
Profit before tax 305
Income tax 7 (63)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 242
Segment assets 6.646 1,566 1,407 - 660 - 10,279
Joint ventures 12 | 9 3 - - - I3
Associates 12 | 9 - 1,095 - - I 105
Total assets 6,648 1.584 1,410 1,095 660 - 11,397
Other segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates 2 - 19 3) 35 - - 51
Capital expenditure T 97 48 49 - - - 194
Pre-publication investment 20 209 77 72 - - - 358
Depreciation 10 41 |7 6 - - - 74
Amortisation I 20 309 112 t21 - - - 542
Impairment " - - 77 - - - 77
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2 Segment information continued

o
2013 =
Nerth Disconunued E
Alifigures in £ millions Notes  Amenca Core  Growth PRH Corporate  aperations Group z
Continuing operations g
Sales 3,073 1,258 738 - - - 5069
Adjusted operating profit 474 120 38 50 - - 682
Intangible charges (108) (27) (33) (30) - - (196)
Acquisition costs (2) 3 ) - - - (12)
Other net gains and losses - (16) - - - - (16) g—
Operaung profit/(loss) 366 74 (2) 20 - - 458 z
Finance costs 6 {n g
Finance income 6 35 g
Profit before tax 382 5
Income tax 7 (87
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 295
Segment assets 6,326 1,450 981 - B59 223 9,839 :Cc:
Jointventures i I - 2 - - - 3 §
Associates R I I8 - 1,070 - - 1,089 Z
Total assets 6,328 468 983 1,070 859 23 10,931 §
g
2
Other segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates ) | 26 €y 31 - - 54
Capital expenditure 19 1t 95 46 33 - - I 175 méw
Pre-publication investment 20 202 90 72 - - - 364 %
Depreciation 10 46 i9 16 - - I 82 g
Amorusation 1120 287 143 103 - - 2 535 m
Imparrment - - - - - - -

For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8

Included in other net gains and losses in continuing operations in 2014 are gains on the sale of joint venture interests

in Safari Books Online and CourseSmart (£40m) and a loss on disposal of an investment in Nook Media (£38m)

Included in other net gains and losses in 2013 1s a loss on the disposal of the Japanese school and local publishing assets

Both operating profit and adjusted operating profitin 2014 are stated after the following restructuring charges North
America £37m, with estimated in year benefits of £2Im, Core £22m, with estimated in year benefits of £10m, Growth
£6m, with estimated in year benefits of £2m, Penguin Random House £19m, with estimated in year benefits of £7m

Both operating profit and adjusted operating profitin 2013 are stated after the following restructuning charges North
America £77m, with estimated in year benefits of £24m, Core £63m, with estimated in year benefits of £13m, Growth
£36m, with estimated in year benefits of £4m
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements conunued

2 Segment information continued

In 2014, sales from the provision of goods were £2,71Im (2013 £2,867m) and sales from the provision of services
were £2,163m (2013 £2,202m) Sales from the Group’s educational publishing, consumer publishing and newspaper
business are classified as being from the provision of goods and sales from its assessment and testing and other service
businesses are classified as being from the provision of services There were no material inter-segment sales

Corporate costs are allocated to business segments including discontinued operations on an appropriate basis
depending on the nature of the cost, therefore the segment result is equal to the Group operating profit Segment
assets consist of praperty, plant and equipment, intangible assets, inventortes, receivables, deferred taxation and other
financial assets and exclude cash and cash equivalents and denvative assets Corporate assets comprise cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securities and denivative finanaal instruments Capital expenditure comprises additons to
property, plant and equipment and software (see notes |0 and [I)

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets acquired through business combination were £263m (2013
£202my} (see note 30) In 2013, capital expenditure, depreciation and amortisation included amounts relating to
discontinued operations

The Group operates in the following man geographic areas

Sales Non-current assets
Al figures in £ mithons 2014 2013 2014 2013
Conunuing operations
UK 610 649 1,056 1,068
Other European countries 347 366 180 200
S 2826 2,913 5,243 5,026
Canada 1o 128 288 301
Asia Pacific 598 624 416 495
Other countries 383 389 661 215
Total continuing 4,874 5,069 7.844 7.305
Disconuinued operatcns
UK 4 97 - -
Other European countries - 49 - -
us 4 369 - -
Canada - 24 - -
Asia Pacific | 74 - -
Other countries - 8 - -
Total disconunued 9 621 - -
Total 4.883 5,6%0 7.844 7,305

Sales are allocated based on the country in which the customer 15 located This does not differ materially from the
location where the order s received The geographical spht of non-current assets 1s based on the subsidiary’s country
of domicile This s not matenally different to the location of the assets Non-currentassets comprise property, plant
and equipment, mtangible assets, nvestments in joint ventures and associates and trade and other receivables




Section 5 Financal statements 139

3 Discontinued operations

o}

Discontinued operatons relate to Penguin and Mergermarket é
An analysis of the results and cash flows of disconunued operations is as follows 2

2014 2013 @
Al figures in £ millons Pengun  Mergermarket Total Penguin  Mergermarket Toul
Sales - 9 9 513 108 621
Operating profit - 2 2 28 24 52
Finance income - - - i - I o
Profit before tax — 2 2 29 24 53 3
Income tax - (N {n 9 (%) (18) »
Profit after tax - | | 20 5 -
Profit on disposal of Penguin 29 - 29 202 - 202 z
Attnbutable tax benefit - - - IS - 15 m
Profit on disposal of Mergermarket - 244 244 - - -
Attributable tax expense - (46) {(46) — - -
Mergermarket transaction costs - - - - 8 (8)
Profit for the year from discontinued e
operations 29 199 228 237 7 244 o
Operating cash flows - 2 2 36 2 58 &
Investing cash flows - - - (6) (2) (8) ;
Financing cash flows - - - (8) (29 37 E
Total cash flows - 2 pi 22 (9) 13 -
Included within the cost of disposal of Penguin in 2013 are amounts in respect of the settlement of lingation related to
the agency arrangement for eBooks Also included in cost of disposal for Penguin for 2013 was a provision for amounts
payable to Bertelsmann upon settlement of the transfer of Penguin's UK past service pension habilites to the new PRH _
venture During 2014, it was decided that this transfer would not go ahead as planned and the costs have been credited 3
backin the £29m gain reported against the disposal in 2014 i
4 Operating expenses ::;
Al figures i £ millions 2014 2013 m
By function
Cost of goods sold 2,202 2312
Operating expenses
Distribunion costs 87 90
Selling, marketing and product development costs 963 1,027
Administrative and other expenses 315 1,162 %‘
Restructuring costs 84 176 %
Other net gains and losses (2) 16 z
Other income (122) (118) g
Total net operating expenses 2,325 2,353 =
Total 4527 4665 B

included in other income 1s service fee Income from Penguin Random House of £41m (2013 £28m) Included in
administrative and other expenses are research and efficacy costs of £22m (2013 £5m)
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4 Operating expenses continued

All figures in £ mulhons Notes 2014 2013
By nature

Royalues expensed 242 256
Other product costs 686 735
Employee benefit expense 5 1,978 2,100
Contract labour 185 194
Employee related expense 146 177
Promotional costs 169 167
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment i 74 8l
Amorusation of intangible assets — pre-publication 20 292 308
Amorusation of ntangible assets - software Il 63 59
Amortisation of Intangible assets — other I 187 166
Impairment of intangible assets I 77 -
Property and facilities 218 229
Technology and communications 139 104
Professional and outsourced services 264 259
Other general and adrministrative costs (28 119
Capitalised costs {203) {199)
Acquisition costs 6 12
Other net gains and losses (2} 16
Otherincome (122) (118)
Total 4,527 4,665
During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group's auditors

Al figures in £ mllions 2014 2013
The audit of parent company and consolidated financial statements 5 4
The audit of the company's subsidiaries 2 2
Total audit fees 7 6
Other assurance services | |
Total other assurance services | |
Tax compliance services | 2
Tax advisory services - 2
Total tax services | 4
Total non-audit services 5

Total
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4 Operating expenses contnued

Reconciliation between audit and non-audit service fees is shown below

All figures in £ millions 2014 2013
Group audit fees including fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 7 )
Non-audit fees 2 5
Total 9 I

Fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are allocated between fees payable for the audits
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts Non-audit fees for 2013 includes £3m for assurance and tax services related
to the Penguin Random House transaction

5 Employee information

All figures en £ millions Notes 2014 2013

Employee benefit expense

Wages and salares {including termination benefits and restructuring casts) 1,728 1,836
Social secunity costs 134 136
Share-based payment costs 2 32 35
Retirement benefits — defined contribution plans 25 69 66
Reurement benefits — defined benefit plans 25 26 27
Other post-retirement benefits 25 (n -
Total 1,978 2,100

The details of the emoluments of the directors of Pearson plc are shown in the report on directors’ remuneration

Average number employed 014 2013

Employee numbers

North America 21,204 22,146
Core 7.887 8.807
Growth I'1,603 10,975
Cther 182 187
Conunuing operations 40,876 42,115

The employee benefit expense relating to discontinued operations was £5m (2013 £168m) and the average number
employed was 73 (2013 3,592).
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6 Net finance costs

Al figures in £ millions Notes 2614 2013
Interest payable {82) (82)
Net finance costs In respect of retirement benefits 25 - 3
Finance cost of put options, deferred consideration associated with acquisitions

and other interest charges related to transacuons - %
Net foreign exchange losses {(53) -
Other losses on financial nstruments not in a hedging relatonship

- derivatives (6) (17
Finance costs (141 {arn
Interest receivable 18 10
Net finance iIncome In respect of retrement benefits 25 | -
Net foreign exchange gains |7 20
QOther gains on financial instruments 1n 2 hedging relationship

~fair value hedges - [
Other gains on financial instruments not in a hedging relavionship

—derivatives 12 4
Finance income 48 35
iNet finance costs (93) (76)
Analysed as

Net interest payable reflected in adjusted earnings (64) (72)
Other net finance costs (29) 4
Total net finance costs (93) (76)

Included in interest receivable 1s £1m (2013 £ nil) of interest recevable from related parties The net movement
of £nil on fair value hedges in 2014 (2013 net gain of £1m) comprises a loss of £27m (2013 gain of £95m) on the
underlying bonds, offset by a gain of £27m (2013 loss of £94m) on the related dervative financial instruments

For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8
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7 Income tax
Allfigures in £ ailtions Notes 2014 2013
Current tax
Charge in respect of current year (103) (129)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 30 @
Total current tax charge 73 (136)
Deferred tax
In respect of temporary differences 8 14
Other adjustments in respect of prior years 2 35
Total deferred tax credit 13 t0 49
Total tax charge (63) (87
The adjustments in respect of prior years in both 2314 and 2013 mainly relate to changes in estimates arising from
uncertain tax posttions following settlements with tax authorities in the year
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the UK tax rate
as follows
Al figures in £ msllions 2014 2013
Profit before tax 305 382
Tax calculated at UK rate (2014 2f 5%, 2013 23 25%) (66) (89)
Effect of overseas tax rates (12) (13)
Joint venture and associate Income reported net of tax I i3
Net expense not subject to tax ) (14)
Loss on sale of businesses not subject to tax - (6)
Uulisation of previously unrecognised tax losses and credits - I
Unutilised tax fosses (19) )
Adjustments in respect of prior years 32 28
Total tax charge (63) 87
UK (6) (13)
Overseas (57) {74)
Total tax charge (63) (87)
Tax rate reflected in earnings 207% 22 8%
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7 Income tax continued

The tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings s calculated as follows

Allfigures in £ millions 2014 2013
Profit before tax 305 382
Adjustments
Other net gains and losses (2) 16
Acquisition costs 6 12
Amorusaton of acquired intangibles 318 196
Other net finance costs 29 4
Adjusted profit before tax — continuing operations 656 610
Adjusted profit before tax — discontinued operations 2 54
Total adjusted profit before tax 658 664
Total tax charge (63) 87
Adjustments
Tax charge on other net gains and losses [ 32
Tax benefit on acquisition costs (1) 2
Tax benefit on intangible charges (73) (5N
Tax benefit on other net finance costs 5 (n
Tax amortsation benefit on goodwill and intangibles 24 30
Adjusted income tax charge — continuing operations (117 79)
Adjusted income tax charge — discontinued operations (n (18)
Total adjusted iIncome tax charge {118) (97)
Tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings 17 9% 4 6%
For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8
The tax (charge)/benefit recognised in other comprehensive income 1s as follows
Allfigures in £ miflions 2014 2013
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations (n (23)
Net exchange differences on transtation of foreign operations (6) 6
) (7

Atax charge of £3m (2013 tax charge £nil) relating to share-based payments has been recognised directly in equity




Section 5 Financial statements 145

8 Earnings per share

o)
<
Basic o
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dviding the profit attributable to equity sharehclders of the company by the %
weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the m
company and held as treasury shares .
Diluted
Diluted earnings per share 1s calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares to take account
of all diluuve potential ordinary shares and adjusting the profit attributable, if applicable, to account for any tax
consequences that might anise from conversion of those shares
All figures in £ midlions Notes 2014 1013 g
Profit for the year from continuing operations 242 295 g
Non-controlling interest ) [ (n g
Earnings from continuing operations 243 294 g
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 228 244 E
Earnings 471 538
Weighted average number of shares (millions) 8109 8078
Effect of dilutive share options {millions) 10 o o
Weighted average number of shares {millions) for diluted earmings 819 8089 E
8
Earnings per share from conunuing and discontinued operations E
Basic 58 Ip 66 6p §
A
Diluted 58 0p 66 5p -
Earnings per share from conunuing operations
Basic 300p 364p
Diluted 299 363p -
Earnings per share from discontinued operations g
Basic 28 lp 302p z
>
Diluted 28 Ip 302p 5
Adjusted

In order to show results from operating activities on a consistent basis, an adjusted earnings per share is presented
The company's definuon of adjusted earnings per share may not be comparable to other simifarly titled measures
reported by other companies

Adjusted earnings includes the results from continuing and disconunued operations The following items are excluded
from adjusted earnings

Other net gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, joint ventures,
associates and other financial assets that are included within contnuing or discontinued operations but which distort
the performance of the Group

Amortsation of acquired intangibles, acquisitton costs and movements In CONtingent acquisition consideration are
also excluded from adjusted earnings as these items are not considered to be fully reflective of the underlying
performance of the Group
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8 Earnings per share continued

Other net finance income/costs include finance costs in respect of retirement benefits, finance costs of put options
and deferred considerauon and foreign exchange and other gains and losses Finance costs relaung to reurement
benefits are excluded as the consolidated income statement presentation under IAS 19 (revised) does not reflect the
economic substance of the underlying assets and habiities Finance costs of put options and deferred constderation
are excluded as they relate to future earn outs and simifar payments on acquistitons and do not reflect cash expended
Foreign exchange and other gains and losses are excluded as they represent short-term fluctuations in market value
and are subject to significant volatiity Other gains and losses may not be realised in due course as it1s normally the
intention to hold the related instruments to maturity Other net finance costs of Group companies are included in
finance costs or finance Income as appropriate Other net finance costs of joint ventures and associates are included
within the share of results of joint ventures and associates within operating profit

Tax on the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also excludes the benefit from
recogrusing previously unrecognised pre-acquisition and capital losses The Group includes the benefit of tax
amorusation of goodwill and intangibles as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax charge with the
expected rate of cash tax payments

Non-controlling interest for the above items I1s excluded from adjusted earnings The following tables reconcile
statutory earnings to adjusted earnings

2014

Stawrtory Other net Other net Tax Adjusted
income  Discontnued gains and Acqunsiion Intangible finince  amorusaton income

All figures in £ muthons statement cperatons losses costs charges  incomeltosts benefiv statement

Operating profit 398 2 2 6 318 - - 722

Net finance costs (93) - - - - 29 - (64)

Profit before tax 305 2 (2) 6 318 29 - 658

Income tax (63) {H [ (1 (73) 5 24 {118)

Profit for the year from

continuing operations 242 I (1) 5 245 24 24 540

Profit for the year from

discontinued operatiens 228 n (227) - - - - -

Profit for the year 470 - (228) 5 245 24 24 540

Non-controlling interest ! - - - - - = |

Earnings 4714 - (228) 5 245 24 24 541

Weighted average number

of shares (millions) 8109 8109

Weighted average number

of shares (mifiions) for

diluted earnings 8119 8119

Earnings per share (basic) 58 Ip 66 7p

Earnings per share {diluced) 58 Op 66 6p
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8 Earnings per share continued
2013
Stawtory Other net Other net Tax  Adusted
mcome Discontnued  gamsand  Acquison  Incangible finance  amorusation income
Allfigures in £ mifions statement  operations losses costs charges income/costs benefit  statement
Operating profit 458 54 16 12 196 - - 736
Net finance costs {76) - - - - 4 -~ (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 16 12 196 4 - 664
Income tax (87) (18) 32 {2) 1)) {n 30 (97)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 567
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 244 (36) {209) - 2 nH - -
Profit for the year 539 - {tal) 10 147 2 30 567
Neon-controlling interest (N - - - - - - (N
Earnings 538 - {t6l) 10 147 2 30 566
Weighted average number
of shares {millicns) 8078 8078
Weighted average number
of shares {millions) for
diluted earmings 8089 8089
Earnings per share (basic) 66 6p 701p
Earnings per share (diluted) 66 5p 70 0p
9 Dividends
All figures in £ mull:ons 2014 2013
Final paid in respect of prior year 32 Op (2013 30 0p) 259 242
Interim paid in respect of current year |7 0p (2013 16 Op) 138 130
397 372

The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of 34 Op per
share which will absorb an estimated £276m of shareholders’ funds It willbe paid on | May 2C15 to shareholders
who are on the register of members on 7 April 2015 These financial statements do not reflect this dividend
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

10 Property, plant and equipment

Land and Plantand Q‘u‘:‘: of

All figures in £ millians buildings equipment construction Totaf

Cost

At January 2013 352 597 18 967

Exchange differences %) (14) - (19}
Additions 33 58 22 13

Disposals (13) (78) - n
Acquisition through business combination - 3 - 3

Disposal through business disposal Q)] 7)) - 3
Reclassifications 9 (N (8) -

Transfer from software - 3 - 3

Transfer from assets held for sale - 9 - 9

Transfer to assets held for sale - (7 - @
At 3| December 2013 375 568 32 975

Exchange differences I 17 - 28

Additions 10 58 19 87

Disposals 9 (46) (2) {57)
Acquisition through business combination - 2 - 2

Disposal through business disposal - {(n - (N
Reclassifications I 3 4 -

Transfer to software - - (16) {16)
At 3] December 2014 388 601 29 1018
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10 Property, plant and equipment continued

0
<
Assetsin =
Land and Plantand course of "C"
All figures in £ milhians buildings equipment construction Total v
z
Depreciation o
At | january 2013 {195) {445) - (640)
Exchange differences 3 13 - 16
Charge for the year (25) (57) - (82)
Disposals 7 64 - 71
Acquisition through business combination - (P - ) e
Transfer from assets held for sale - (N - H =
Transfer to assets held for sale - 5 - 5 %
At 31 December 2013 (210) (423) - (633) %
Exchange differences (7) {15) - (22) %
Charge for the year (23) (51 - (74) ™
Disposals 9 36 - 45
At 3| December 2014 (231) (453) - (684)
Carrying amounts —_
o)
At | January 2013 \57 152 18 327 =
At 31 December 2013 165 145 32 342 §
At 3| December 2014 157 148 29 334 F
z
Depreciation expense of £16m (2013 £24m) has been included in the Income statement in cost of goods sold and 5
£58m (2013 £57m)in operating expenses In 2014 £nl (2013 £1m) refates to discontinued operations
The Group leases certain equipment under a number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of leased
plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £13m (2013 £1im})
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Notes to the consoldated financial statements continued

Il Intapgible assets

Acquired
customerhsts  Acqured  Acquired Other
contracts and  trademarks publishing  intangbles

All igures m £ mullions Goodwill  Software relationships  and brands nghts  acquired Total
Cost

At | January 2013 5,077 466 729 258 207 394 7,131
Exchange differences (122) 6) (25) (8) (12) () {184)
Addiuons —internal development - 38 - - - - 38
Additions — purchased - 24 - - - - 24
Disposals - (50 - - - - (50)
Acquisiion through business combinauon (133) - 190 -~ 3 7 67
Disposal through business disposal (6) - - - - (N @
Reclassifications - - (10) (N - Hl -
Transfer to PPE - (3) - - - - (3)
Transfer to assets held for sale (159) - (29) (12) - (2) (193)
At 31 December 2013 4,666 469 855 237 198 398 6,823
Exchange differences 198 17 34 5 - 14 268
Impairment (67) - - - - - (67)
Additucns —internal development - 54 - - - - 54
Additions —purchased - 53 - - - - 53
Disposals - (7) - - - - (7)
Acquisiion through business combination 238 - 5 69 - 186 498
Dhsposal through business disposal (5) (5) - 3) {n - (14)
Transfer from PPE - 16 - - - - 16
At 31 December 2014 5030 597 894 308 197 598 7.624
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Il Intangible assets conunued

Acqurred

customerlsts  Acquired  Acquired Other

contractsand  trademarks  pubkshing  intangibles
Al figures m £ millions Goodwill  Software relationships  andbrands rghts  acquired Total
Amorusation
At | January 2013 - (312) (204) (86) (139) {172) (913)
Exchange differences - ) 10 4 6 7 33
Charge for the year - (59 (78} 20 (15) (54) (227)
Disposals - 49 - - - - 49
Disposal through business disposal - - - - - I I
Transfer to assets held for sale - - 23 10 - 2 35
Ac 31 December 2013 - (316) (249 (93) (148) (216)  (1,022)
Exchange differences - {13) {rn (3) - (12) (39
Impairment - - (6) (2) - {2) (10}
Charge for the year - (63) (83) (25) (12) (67) {250)
Disposals - 5 - - - - 5
Disposal through business disposal - | - I - - 2
At 3] December 2014 - (386) (349) (122) {160) {297y () 314)
Carrying amounts
At | January 2013 5077 154 525 172 68 222 6,218
At 31 December 2013 4,666 153 606 144 50 182 5.801
At 31 December 2014 5030 211 545 186 37 301 6,310
Goodwill

The goodwill carrying value of £5,030m relates to acquisiuons completed after | January 1998 Priorto | January 1998
all goodwill was written off to reserves on the date of acquisition For acquisitions completed between | January 1998
and 31 December 2002 no value was ascribed to intangibles other than goodwill and the goodwili on each acquisitton
was amortised over a period of up to 20 years On adoption of IFRS on | January 2003, the Group chose not to restate
the goodwill balance and at that date the balance was frozen (1 € amortisation ceased} If goodwill had been restated
then a sigrificant value would have been ascribed to other intangible assets, which would be subject to amorusation,
and the carrying value of goodwill would be significantly lower For acquisiions completed after | January 2003 value
has been ascribed to other intangible assets which are amortised

Other intangible assets
Other intangibles acquired include content, technology and software rights

Intangible assets are valued separately for each acquisition and the primary method of valuation used is the discounted
cash flow method The majority of acquired intangibles are amorused using an amorusaton profile based on the
projected cashflows underiying the acquisition date valuauon of the intangible asset, which generally results in a larger
proportion of amortisation being recognised in the early years of the assets’ ife The Group keeps the expected
pattern of consumption under review

Amorusation of £12m (2013 £15m) isincluded in the iIncome statement In cost of goods sold and £238m (2013
£210m) in operating expenses In 2014 £nil {2013 £2m) of amortsation relates to discontinued operations

$SINISNT YNO I

1294 IYID0S8 ¥NO | FONVIWHOIYAd ¥NO |

JDONVNYIAOO l

]
Z
>
z
a
>
z
]
>
-1
m
4
m
z
-
L)




152 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2014

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

[l Intangible assets continued

The range of useful economic hves for each major class of intangible asset {excluding goodwill and software)

1s shown below

Class of intangible asset

2014

Useful econormic Iife

Acquired customer lists, contracts and relationships 3-20 years
Acquired trademarks and brands 2-20 years
Acquired publishing rights 5-20 years
Other intangibles acquired 2-20 years
The expected amortisation profile of acquired intangible assets is shown below

2014

One to Sixta Mare than

Adl igures in £ mulions five years ten years ten yetrs Toul
Class of intangible asset
Acquired customer lists, contracts and relationships 340 148 57 545
Acquired trademarks and brands 97 54 35 i86
Acquired publishing rights 34 3 - 37
Other intangibles acquired 219 72 |0 301

Impairment tests for cash-generating units (CGUs) containing goodwaill
Impairment tests have been carried out where appropriate as described below

Following a reorganisation of the business effective | January 2014 goodwall was allocated to CGUs, or aggregation
of CGUs where goodwill could not be reasonably allocated to individual business units Impairment reviews were

conducted on these CGUs summarised below

All figures n £ millions 2014 2013
North America 3,422 3.239
Core 618 624
Growth (includes China, Brazil, india and South Africa) 612 447
Pearson VUE 327 306
Financial Times Group Si 50
Total 5,030 4,666

The recoverable amount of each CGU 1s based on value in use calculations Goodwill 1s tested for impairment annually
Other than goodwill there are no intangible assets with indefinite lives The goodwill is generally denominated in
the currency of the relevant cash flows and therefore the Impairment review Is not materially sensitive to exchange

rate fluctuations
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Il Intangible assets continued

Impairment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill contunued

Following deterioration in the market conditions for the Group’s online tutoring business based in India, it was
determined in the course of the iImpairment review that the value in use of the India CGU no longer supported the
carrying value of the goodwill in that CGU Animpairment of £67m was booked, thereby bringing the carrying value
of goodwill in the India CGU down to £mt Animpairment of £10m was also booked in respect of other acquired
intangibles in that CGU, bringing their carrying value to £mil The India CGU mncorporates all the Group’s trading
operations in India A pre-tax discount rate of 13 6% was used to determine the value in use of the India CGU

No previous assessment had been made of the value in use of that CGU as the Group's India operations, prior to
the 1 jJanuary 2014 reorganisation, were previously part of a larger Emerging Markets aggregated CGU

Key assumptions
The value in use calculauons use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering
afive-year period The key assumptions used by management in the value in use calculations were

Eiscount rates The discount rate s based on the risk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for a risk premium
to reflect the increased risk ininvesting in equities The risk premium adjustment s assessed for each specific CGU
The average pre-tax discount rates range from 9 0% to 16 4% Discount rates are lower for those businesses
which operate in more mature markets with low inflavon and higher for those operating in emerging markets
withhwgher inflavon

Perpetuity growth rates A perpetuity growth rate of 2 0% (2013 2 0%) was used for cash flows subsequent to the
approved budget period for CGUs operating in mature markets This perpetuity growth rate 1s a conservative rate
and s considered to be lower than the long-term historic growth rates of the underlying ternitories in which the CGU
operates and the Jong-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates CGU growth rates
between 5 0% and 5 8% were used for cash flows subsequent to the approved budget period for CGUs operating

in emerging rarkets with high inflaton These growth rates are also below the long-term historic growth rates in
these markets

The key assumptions used by management in setting the financial budgets for the imiial five-year period were
as follows

Forecast sales growth rates Forecast sales growth rates are based on past experience adjusted for the strategic
direction and near-term investment priorities within each CGU Key factors include the proportion of revenue
expected to arise in emerging markets, the proporton of revenue expected to come from digital and services
businesses relative to traditional print-based businesses and the changing product mix as a resutt of product
investment The five year sales forecasts use average nominal growth rates between | 1% and 3 3% for mature
markets and between 8 3% and 15 7% for emerging markets with high inflation

Operating profits Operaung profits are forecast based on histonc experience of operating margins, adjusted for
the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving tnitiatives, including the iImpact of the global restructuring
programme undertaken in 2013 and 2014

Cash conversion Cash conversion is the ratio of operating cashflow to operating profit Management forecast cash
conversion rates based on historic experience, adjusted for the impact of product nvestment priorities and the shift
to digital and service based business

Sensiuvities

The Group's impairment review Is sensitive to a change in assumptions used, most notably the discount rates and the
perpetuity growth rates Based on the Group’s sensitivity analysis, a reasonably possible increase of 0 8% pts in the
discount rate or a decrease of | 0% ptin the perpetuity growth rate could cause an impairment in respect of Brazil
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

12 Investments in jont ventures and associates

The amounts recogrised in the balance sheet are as follows

Al figures in £ raillians 2014 2013
Assocrates 1,105 1,089
Jointventures 13 3
Total (118 1,092

The amounts recagnised in the income statement are as follows

All figures in £ millions 2014 2013
Associates 54 56
Joint ventures (3) (2)
Total 51 54

Investment n associates
The Group has the following material associates

Prncpalplace  Ownership Matureof — Measurement

of business Interest relatanship method
Penguin Random House Ltd UK/Global 47% Note | Equity*
Penguin Random House LLC us 47% Note | Equity*
The Economist Newspaper Ltd UK 50% Note 2 Equity*

*None of the associates has a quoted market price

Note | —On | July 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the completion of an agreement between

Pearson and Bertelsmann to merge their respective trade publishing companies, Penguin and Random House, with
the parent companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respectively The shareholder agreement
Includes protection rights for Pearson as the minority shareholder including rights to dividends Management considers
ownership percentage, board composition and the additional protective rights, and exeracises judgement to determine
that Pearson has significant influence over Penguin Random House and Bertelsmann has the power to direct the
relevant activities and therefore control

Note 2 — The Group has a 50% interest in The Economist Newspaper Ltd, publisher of one of the world’s leading
weekly business and current affairs magazines The Economist has a unique structure of "A”, “B” and Trustee shares,
which was established to ensure its iIndependence from proprietorial control Pearson, as holder of the “B” shares,
has never controlled the Ecenomust by virtue of its shareholding or influence, and management assesses that it has
significant influence over the company
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12 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

Investrment in associates continued
The summarised financial informauon of the material associates i1s detalled below

155

014 2013 restated
Pengun Pengun

Al figures in € millions Randem House Economist  Random House Economist
Assets
Current assets 1,355 1o 1,210 103
Non-current assets 1,429 166 1,382 163
Liabiivies
Current iabilities {(1,113) {190) (905) (190
Non-current habiliues {424) (88) (455) (60)
Net assets +,247 - 1,232 lé
Sales 2416 320 1,315 340
Profit from continuing operations 74 42 66 52
Other comprehensive (expense)/income (1) (20) (34) 9
Total comprehensive income 63 22 32 61
Dividends received from associate 95 21 43 21

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the associates, adjusted for fair
value and simitar adjustments The tax on Penguin Random House LLC is settled by the partners For the purposes
of clear and consistent presentation, the tax has been shown in the associate line tterns in the consohdated income
staternent and consolidated balance sheet, recording the Group’s share of profit after tax consistently for the Penguin

Random House associates
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

12 Investments in joint ventures and associates continued

Investment in associates continued
A reconaliaucn of the summarised financial information to the carrying value of the material associates
15 shown befow

2014 2013 restated
Penguin Penguin

Alifigures in £ millions Random House Economist  Randem House Economist
Opening net assets 1,232 6 - -
Exchange differences 52 - (68) -
Profit for the period 74 42 66 52
Other comprehensive (expense)/income (1 (20) (34 9
Dividends, net of tax paid {100} (42) o@n (41)
Additions - - 1.359 -
Dustribution from associate in excess of carrying value - 4 - -
Reversal of distribution from associate in excess of carrying value - - - (4)
Closing net assets 1,247 - 1,232 16
Share of net assets 586 - 579 8
Goodwill 509 - 491 -
Carrying value of associate 1,095 - 1,070 8

In 2013 the Group determined the fair value of the Penguin Random House venture for the purposes of accounting

for the transaction A valuation of the Penguin Random House ventures was determined during the negotation of

the transaction between Bertlesmann and Pearson This valuation of the business was calculated using the income
approach, discounting future cash flows to the present value Cash flow projections were prepared for both businesses
by country taking inte account the front and backbist trends and extrapolated using long term growth rate assumptions
The cash flows were discounted using discount rates with risk premiums specific to each geographic region A discount
to the Group's share of the total value to reflect the Group’s non-controlling minority ownership was applied

The Group finalised its acquisition accounting for Penguin Random House in 2014 and an adjustment to the opening
positton with respect to deferred tax and goodwill was made The overall carrying value of the associate in 2013
was unchanged however the additions and goodwill balances in the table above have been restated to reflect the
final accounting

information on other Individually immaterial associates is detaled below

All figures in £ milhons 2014 2013

Loss from continuing operattons (2) (n

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive expense (2) (N
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[2 Investments tn joint ventures and associates continued

Transactions with material associates

The Group has loans to Penguin Random House which are unsecured and interest 1s calculated based on market rates
The amount cutstanding at 31 December 2014 was £54m (2013 £44m) The loans are provided under a working
caprtal facility and fluctuate during the year The loan outstanding at 3| December 2014 was repad in its entirety in
January 2015

The Group also has a current asset receivable of £41m (2013 £27m) from Penguin Random House arising from the
provision of services Included in other income {(note 4) s £4Im (2013 £28m) of service fees

Investment 1n joint ventures
Information on joint ventures, all of which are individually immatenial, 1s detailed below

All figures in £ millons 014 2013

Loss from contuinuing operations (3) (2)

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive expense (3) (2)

13 Deferred income tax

Allfigures n £ millions 2014 013
Deferred income tax assets 295 250
Deferred income tax habilities {714) (612)
Net deferred income tax {419) (362)

Substantially all of the deferred income tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax assets and labilities may be offset when there 1s a legally enforceable right to offset current
Income tax assets against current income tax labiiues and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority At 31 December 2014 the Group has unrecognised deferred income tax assets of £4m (2013 £4m) in
respect of UK losses, £14m (2013 £11m) in respect of US losses and approximately £44m (2013 £36m) in respect of
losses In other terntories None of the unrecognised UK losses have expiry dates associated with them The US losses
relate to state taxes and therefore have expiry periods of between five and 20 years

The recogniuon of the deferred income tax assets 1s supported by management's forecasts of the future profitability
of the relevant business units

The movement on the net deferred iIncome tax account is as follows

All figures wn £ millions Notes 2014 2013
At beginning of year (362) (372
Exchange differences (22} 9
Income statement benefit 7 10 47
Acquisition through business combination 0 - (37
Disposal through business disposal n (H -
Tax charge to other comprehensive iIncome or equity (18) (35)
Transfer to/from current tax (26) 25

Transfer to assets held for sale - i
At end of year {419) (362)

Included in the Income statement above for 2014 1s a £nil charge (2013 £2m charge) relating to discontinued
operations
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13 Deferred income tax continued

The movement in deferred income tax assets and habiiies during the year is as follows

Retrement

Trading Returns benefit
Allfiguresin £ millons losses pravisions obligations Other Total
Deferred income tax assets
At | January 2013 18 45 47 M9 229
Exchange differences - (N (n 6] {®)
Acquisition through business combination 21 - - - 21
Income statement (charge)/benefit (24) (5 25 22 18
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity - - (36) - (38)
Transfer to current tax - - - 25 25
Transfer from assets held for sale - - 7 ) -
Transfer to assets held for sale - - - (N (N
At 3| December 2013 i5 39 42 154 250
Exchange differences | 2 4 5 12
Acquisition through business combination 2 - - - 2
Income statement benefit 10 3 7 35 55
Tax benefit/(charge) to other comprehensive income
or equity - - 10 ) 3
Transfer to current tax - - - (26) (26}
Disposal through business disposal - - (n - ()
At 31 December 2014 28 44 62 161 295

Other deferred income tax assets include temporary differences on share-based payments, inventory and other
provisions

Goodwilland

All figures in £ mulbons intangibles Other Total

Deferred income tax habilites

At | January 2013 (475) (126) (601)
Exchange differences 13 P t5

Acquisition through business combination el 3 (58)
Income statement {charge)/benefit {61} 90 29

Tax benefit to other comprehensive income or equity - I |

Transfer to assets held for sale - 2 2

At 3| December 2013 (584) (28) (612)
Exchange differences (30) (4 (34)
Acquisition through business combination (2) - {2)
Income statement benefit/(charge) 18 (63) (45)
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity - (21) 20
At 3| December 2014 (598) (116) (714)

Other deferred income tax habihues nclude temporary differences in respect of depreciation and royalty advances
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14 Classification of financial instruments

o
c
The accounung classificaton of each class of the Group's financral assets and financial habiliues, together with therr z
carrying values and market values, 15 as follows §
2014 a
Fair value Amortised cost
Deorwvatives Denvatives Total Total
Avallable  decerned held in hedging Other Loans and Crhar carrying market
All figures i £ millions Notes for sale fertrading  relavonships labifiies  receivables  habilities value value
Investments in listed securities 15 9 - - - - - 9 9
Investments in unhsted securities 15 45 - - - - - 45 45 <
Cash and cash equivalents 17 - - - - 530 - 530 530 5
Marketable securities 16 - - - - - 16 16 =
Denvative financal instruments 16 - 6 108 ~ - - 114 il4 %
Trade receivables 2 - - - - 989 - 989 989 %
Total financial assets 70 6 108 - 1519 - 1,703 1,703 "
Derwvatve financal instruments 16 - 33 4 - - - {74) (7%
Trade payables p2] - - - - - (329)  (329) (329)
Bank loans and overdrafts F: - - - - - (42) (42) (42) -
Borrowings due within one year 18 - - - - - (305) (305) (319 S
Borrowings due after more than §
one year 18 - - - - - (1878) (1.878) (!.888) >
Total financial habilities - (33) 41) - - (2.554) (2.628) (2,652) é
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14 Classification of financial instruments continued

2013
Fair value Amorused cost
Dervvauves  Dearivatves Total Total
Avalfable deemedheld in hedging Other Loans and Other carrying rnarket
All figures in £ mithons Nates for sale fortrading  relatignshups labiimes  recewvables  habihties value value
Investments in unhsted securies
— CONtINUING operations 15 94 — - — - - 94 94
Cash and cash equivalents —
CONUNUING OPerarions 17 - - - - 729 - 729 729
Cash and cash equivalents
classified within assets held
for sale 2 - - - - 36 - 36 36
Marketable securiues 6 - - - - - 6 6
Derivative financial instruments 16 - 4 120 - - - 124 124
Trade recevables — continuing
operatons pr} - - - - 882 - 882 882
Trade recevables classified
within assets held for sale - - - - 25 - 25 25
Total financial assets 100 4 120 - }.672 - 1,89 1,89
Derwauve financal mstruments s - {16) (32) - - - (48) (48)
Trade payables - continuing
operations 24 - - - - - (316) (3le) (316)
Trade payables classified within
liabiliues held for sale - - - - - hH (H (1
Bank loans and overdrafts —
continuing operations 1 - - - - - (47 (47) (47)
Borrowings due within one year 18 - - - - - (508) (508 (519
Borrowings due after more than
one year 18 - - - - — (1.671) (1,671) (1,683)
Total financial habilities - (16) (32) - — {(2543) (2.591) (2.609)

Certain of the Group's derivative financial instruments are classified as held for trading either as they do not meet the
hedge accounting critenia specified in |AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ or as the Group
has chosen not o seek hedge accounting for these instruments None of these denvatives are held for speculauve
trading purposes Transactions in dervatve financial instruments are only undertaken to manage risks arising from
undertying business activity, in accordance with the Group’s treasury policy as described in note |9

The Group designates certain qualifying dervauve financial nstruments as hedges of the farr value of its bonds
{far value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments are recorded in the income
statement, together with any change In the fair value of the hedged hability attributable to the hedged risk

The Group also designates certain of its borrowings and dervauve financial instruments as hedges of its investments
in foreign operations (net Investment hedges) Movements in the fair value of these financial instruments (to the extent
they are effective) are recogrised in other comprehensive Income

None of the Group's financial assets or habilities are designated at fair value through the income statement upon

initial recognition

More detall on the Group’s accounting for financial instruments is included in the Group’s accounting polictes
The Group's approach to managing risks in relacon to financial instruments i1s described in note 19




I5 Other financiat assets
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Al figures m £ culhions 2014 2013
At beginming of year 94 31
Exchange differences 6 -
Acquisition of investments 12 63
Disposal of investments (58) -
At end of year 54 94

Other financial assets comprise histed securities of £9m (2013 £ml) and unhsted securities of £45m (2013 £94m)

16 Dervatve financial instruments

The Group's approach to the management of financial risks 1s set outinnote 19 The Group's outstanding dervauve

financial Instruments are as follows

2014 2013
Gross notional Gross notional

All figures in £ mitlions amounts Assets Leabilities amounts Assars Liabilmes

Interest rate derivatives —

in a fair value hedge relationship 1 607 84 (5) 1,439 8| (32)

Interest rate dervauves — notin

a hedge relationship 673 - (7 634 4 (16)

Cross-currency rate derivatives —

in a hedge relationship 889 24 (36) 220 39 -

Cross-currency rate derivatives —

notin a hedge relationship 451 ) (2¢) - - -

Total 3,620 14 {79) 2,293 124 (48)

Analysed as expiring

In less than one year 200 24 (N 312 13 -

Later than one year and not later

than five years 1,386 67 (8) 1,377 11 -

Later than five years 2,034 23 (65) 604 - (48)

Tozal 3.620 I't4 (74) 2293 124 {48)
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l6 Dervauve financial instruments continued

The carrying value of the above derivative financial instruments equals their fair value Fair values are deterrmined
by using market data and the use of established estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation models

Atthe end of 2014, the currency split of the mark-to-market values of rate derivatives, including the exchange of
prinopal on cross-currency rate derivauves, was US dollar £(607)m, sterling £214m, euro £430m, Braziban real £4m
and South African rand £ril (2013 US dollar £{150}m, sterling £243m, euro £nil, Brazihan real £nil and South African
rand £{16)m)

The fixed interest rates on outstanding rate derivative contracts at the end of 2014 range from | 10% to 14 48%
(2013 1 10% to 9 28%) and the floating rates are based on LIBOR in US dollar, euro and sterhing

The Group's portfolio of rate dervatives is diversified by maturity, counterparty and type Natural offsets between
transactions within the portfolio and the designation of certain dervatives as hedges significantly reduce the risk

of iIncome statement volatility The sensitivity of the portfolio to changes in market rates 1s set outin note 19
Dervative financial assets and habilities subject to offsetting arrangements are as follows

014 2013

Gross Gross  Necdenvatuve Gross Gross  Metdervatve

derivative derivative assetsf derwative derivative assets/

All figures in £ milhons asgers hatulives habitities assets habibues habiiwes

Counterparties in an asset position 94 (28) 66 122 (12) 1o
Counterparties in a hability position 20 (46) (26) 2 (36) (34)

Total as presented in the balance sheet 14 (74) 40 124 (48) 76

All of the Group's derivative financial nstruments are subject to enforceable netting arrangements with individual
counterparties, allowing net settlement in the event of default of either party Offset arrangements in respect of cash
balances are shown in note |7

Counterparty exposure from all derivatives s managed, together with that from deposits and bank account balances,
within credit Iimits that reflect published credit ratings and by reference to other market measures (e g market prices
for credit default swaps) to ensure that there is no significant risk to any one counterparty No single derivauve
transaction had a market value {positive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded 3% of the Group’s
consclidated total equity

In accordance with IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ the Group has reviewed all of its
matenal contracts for embedded derivatives that are required to be separately accounted for If they do not meet
certain requirements, and has concluded that there are no material embedded derivatives
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I7 Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts)
Allfigures in £ millions 2004 2003
Cash at bank and in hand 483 521
Short-term bank deposits 47 208
Conunuing operatons 530 729
Cash at bank and in hand classified within assets held for sale - 36
530 765
Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates
At the end of 2014 the currency split of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 18% (2013 28%), sterhng 13%
(2013 18%), euro 3% (2013 5%), renminbi 28% (2013 27%) and other 38% (2013 22%)
Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to their carrying value due to their short-term nature
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement
Allfigures in £ miflions 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents — continuing operations 530 729
Cash at bank and in hand classified within assets held for sale - 36
Bank overdrafts — conunuing operations {19) (25)
51 740
The Group has the following cash pooling arrangements in US dollars, sterling and euro, where both the company
and the bank have a legal right of offset
2014 2013
Offset Cffsec Met offset Offset Offser Net offset
All figures in £ millions asset Inbiliey assetMabidiy asset liabibey  asset/hability
USdollars 267 (266) I 298 (299) 4)]
Sterling 430 {427) 3 1,018 (1,027) %
Euro 9 (8) | 6 ) |
Total for continuing operations as
presented in the balance sheet 5 (%)

At the end of 2013, the Group had offset US dollar, sterling and euro asset balances of £Im, £16m and £nil respectively

in respect of discontinued operations

Offset arrangements in respect of denivauves are shown in note 16
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

18 Financial habdities — borrowings

The Group's current and non-current borrowings are as follows

All figures in £ millions 2014 2013
Non-current
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 {nominal amount £300m) - 299
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 {nominal amount $350m) 231 221
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 (nominal amount $550m) 390 375
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 (norminal amount $300m) 210 202
| 875% Euro notes 2021 {nominal amount €500m) 408 -
3 75% US dollar notes 2022 (nominal amount $500m) 319 283
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 (nominal amount $500m) 315 286
Bank loans and overdrafts 5 22
Finance lease liabihities 5 5
1,883 i,693
Current
Due within one year or on-demand
5 7% US dollar bonds 2014 (nominal amount $400m) - 248
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 (normunal amount £250m) - 254
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 (nominal amount £300m) 300 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 37 25
Finance lease habilities 5 6
342 533
Total borrowings i 2,225 2,226
Included in the non-current borrowings above is £13m of accrued interest (2013 £9m) Included in the current
borrowings above 1s £lm of accrued interest (2013 £4m)
The maturity of the Group’s non-current borrowing i1s as follows
Allfigures in £ millions 2014 2013
Between one and two years 239 303
Between two and five years 602 821
Over five years 1.042 569
}.883 1,693




Section 5 Financial statements 165

I8 Financial labilities — borrowings continued

o]
The carrying amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows é
014 2013 2
Effecuve Carrying Market Carrying Market a
Allfigures in £ millions interest rate valye value value value
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 42 42 47 47
5 7% US dollar bonds 2014 588% - - 248 246
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 720% - - 254 262
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 627% 300 314 299 325 —
4 0% US dollar notes 2016 426% 231 233 221 223 g
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 6 46% 390 397 375 376 g
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 469% 210 205 202 195 2
| 875% Euro notes 2021 2 04% 408 407 - - 4
3 75% US dollar notes 2022 394% 319 327 283 286 °
325% US dollar notes 2023 336% 315 314 286 273
Finance lease habiities n/a 10 10 I I
2,225 2,249 2,226 2,244 S
o)
The market values stated above are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available, %
on the quoted market prices of comparable debt issued by other companies The effective interest rates above relate 8
to the underlying debt instruments -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies §
Allfigures in £ milliens 2014 013 B
US dollar [ 491 |.645
Sterling 303 559
Euro 408 - o
Other 23 2 2
2,225 2,226 g
g]
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I8 Financial habihties — borrowings continued

The Group has the following undrawn capacity on its committed borrowing faciliies as at 3| December

Al figures in £ millions 2014 2013

Floating rate
—expiring within one year - -

—expiring beyond one year 1,122 1,057

[,122 1,057

In addition to the above facilities, there are a number of short-term facilities that are utilised in the normal course
of business

All of the Group's borrowings are unsecured Inrespect of finance lease obligations, the rights to the leased asset
revert to the lessor in the event of default

The maturity of the Group's finance lease obhigations s as follows

All figures in £ mullions 2014 2013

Finance lease habilities — minimum lease payments

Not later than one year 5 6
Later than one year and not later than two years 3 4
Later than two years and not later than three years | I

Later than three years and not later than four years I -
Later than four years and not later than five years - -
Later than five years - -

Future finance charges on finance leases - -

Present value of finance lease labilities 10 Il

The present value of finance lease liabilities s as follows

Allfigures ins £ millions 2014 2013
Not later than one year 5 6
Later than one year and not later than five years 5 5

Later than five years - -

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease obligations approximate their fair value
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{9 Financial risk management

The Group's approach to the management of financial risks together with sensitivity analyses of its financial
nstruments 1s set out below

Treasury policy

The Group holds financial instruments for two principal purposes to finance its operations and to manage the interest
rate and currency risks ansing from 1ts operations and its sources of finance The Group finances its operatons by a
mixture of cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper markets, and
longer-term loans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows principally in US dollars, euros and sterling,

at both floatng and fixed rates of interest, using derivative financial instruments ('derivauves’), where appropriate,

to generate the desired currency profile and interest rate basis The dervatives used for this purpose are principally
rate swaps, rate caps and collars, currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts The main risks anising
from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, hiquidity and refinancing risk, counterparty risk and foreign
currency risk These risks are managed by the chief finanaal officer under policies approved by the board, which are
summarised m this Note All the treasury poliaies rematned unchanged throughout the year, except for revisions to
the Group's bank counterparty risk imits and a clarfication of the Group's intention to maintain its credit ratings as
outlined below

The audit committee receives regular reports on the Group’s treasury acuvities, policies and procedures
The treasury departmentis not a profit centre and its actvities are subject to regular internal audit

Liquidity and refinanang risk management

The Group's objective 15 to secure continuity of funding at a reasonable cost To do this it seeks to arrange committed
funding for a variety of maturives from a diversity of sources The Group's policy objective 1s to maintain the weighted
average maturity of its core gross borrowings (treating short-term advances as having the final maturity of the facities
available to refinance them) to be between three and ten years At the end of 2014 the average maturity of gross
borrowings was 4 7 years (2013 4 2 years) of which bonds represented 97% (2013 97%) of these borrowings

The Group believes that ready access to different funding markets also helps to reduce its hquidity nisk, and that
published credit ratings and published financial policies improve such access The long-term ratings are Baal from
Moeady's and BBB+ from Standard & Poor’s, and the short-term ratings are P2 and A2 respectively All of the Group's
credit ratings remained unchanged during the year, although in January 2014, Moody's changed the outlook on their
short-term and long-term ratings from ‘Stable’ to "Neganve’ The Group's policy Is to strive to maintain a raung of
Baal/BBB+ over the long term The Group also uses a range of ratios to monitor and manage its finances internally
These include interest cover, net debt to operating profit and cash flow to debt measures The Group also maintains
undrawn committed borrowing faclities At the end of 2014 the committed faciities armounted to $1,750m (£1,122m)
and their weighted average maturity was 4 6 years

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure 1o interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings 1s managed by borrowing on a fixed rate basis
and by entering into rate swaps, rate caps and forward rate agreements The Group also ams to avoid undue
exposure to a single interest rate settng Reflecting this objective, the Group has predomnantly swapped its fixed rate
bond 1ssues to floatng rate at their launch This creates a group of derivatives, under which the Group 1s a recerver of
fixed rates and a payer of floating rates

The Group's policy objective has continued to be to set a target proporton of its forecastborrowings (taken at the
year end, with cash netted against floating rate debt and before certain adjustments for |A5 39) to be hedged (1 e fixed
or capped at the year end) over the next four years, subject to a maximum of 65% and a minimum that starts at 40%
and falls by 10% at each year end At the end of 2014 the fixed to floating hedging ratio, on the above basis, was
approxtmately 38% 62% Steps will be taken in early 2015 to bring the Group back into compliance with this policy
objective A simultaneous 1% change on | January 2015 in the Group's variable interest rates in US dollar and sterling,
taking into account forecast seasonal debt, would have an £11m effect on profit before tax

SSANISNE ¥NO *

1I3VdWIIVIDOS ¥NO ‘ FINVWHOLIHI HNO l

IINYNAIACD ’

ud
z
>
zZ
o
>
-
%]
-
>
-
m
X
m
z
-
©




168 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2014

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

19 Financial risk management continued

Interest rate risk management continued

The policy described above creates a further group of derwvatives, under which the Group is a payer of fixed rates
and a recewver of floaung rates The Group's accounting objective in relation to its use of interest rate derivatives Is

to minimise the Impact on the income statement of changes in the mark-to-market value of its derivauve portfolio

as awhole It uses duration calculatons to estimate the sensiuvity of the derivatives to movements in market rates
The Group also identifies which denivatives are eligible for fair value hedge accounting (which reduces the income
statementimpact of changes in the market value of a derivative) The Group then balances the total portfolio
between hedge-accounted and pooled segments, so that the expected movement on the pooled segment s minimal

Financial counterparty risk management

Counterparty credit imits, which take published credit rating and other factors into account, are set to cover the
Group’s total aggregate exposure to a single financial institution The himits applicable to published credit ratings bands
are approved by the chief financial officer within guidelines approved by the board Exposures and imts applicable to
each financial institution are reviewed on a regular basis

Foreign currency risk management

Although the Group 1s based in the UK, it has its most significant investment in overseas operations The most
significant currency for the Group 15 the US dollar The Group’s policy on routine transactional conversions between
currencies (for example, the collection of recewvables, and the settlement of payables or interest) remains that these
should be transacted at the relevant spot exchange rate The majority of the Group’s operations are domestic within
their country of operation No unrermitted profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts, as the company judges
it inappropriate to hedge non cash flow translational exposure with cash flow instruments However, the Group does
seek to create a natural hedge of this exposure through its policy of aligning approximately the currency composition
of its core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate derivatives) with its forecast operating profit
before depreciation and amortisation This policy aims to soften the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on
consolidated interest cover and earnings The policy above applies only to currencies that account for more than 15%
of Group operating profit before depreciation and amortisauon, which currently is only the US dollar The Group still
borrows small amounts in other currencies, typically for seasonal working capital needs The Group policy does not
require existing currency debt to be terminated to match declines in that currency’s share of Group operating profit
before depreciation and amoertisation In addition, currencies that account for less than 15% of Group operating
profit before depreciation and amortisation can be included in the above hedging process at the request of the

chief financial officer

Included within year end net debt, the net borrowings/(cash) in the hedging currencies above (taking into account
the effect of cross-currency swaps) were US dollar £2,005m and sterhing £36m

Use of currency debt and currency derivatives
The Group uses both currency denominated debt and derwvative instruments to implement the above policy

Its intention 1s that gains/losses on the dervatives and debt offset the losses/gains on the foreign currency assets
and income Each quarter the value of hedging instruments 1s monitored against the assets in the relevant currency
and, where practical, a decision is made whether to treat the debt or derivative as a net investment hedge
(permitting foreign exchange movements on 1t to be taken to reserves) for the purposes of IAS 39
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19 Financial risk management continued
Analysis of Group debt, including the impact of dervatives
The following tables analyse the Group's sources of funding and the impact of derivatives on the Group's
debtinstruments
The Group's net debt position is set out below
All figures n £ millons 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 530 729
Marketable securities 16 6
Dervauve financial instruments 40 76
Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes (42) (47)
Bonds {2.173) (2.168)
Finance lease liabilities {10} {n
Continuing operations (1,639) (1,415)
Cash and cash equivalents classified within assets held for sale - 36
Net debt {1639 {1.379)
The split of net debt between fixed and floating rate, stated after the impact of rate derwatves, 1s as follows
All fgures n £ millions 2014 2003
Fixed rate 597 612
Floating rate 1,042 767
Total 1,639 1,379
Gross borrowings, after the impact of cross-currency rate derivauves, analysed by currency are as follows
Allfigures in £ milbions 2014 2013
US dollar 2,099 1.849
Sterling 104 339
Other 22 38
Total 2,225 2,226

As at 3| December 2014 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes when the borrowings

re-price is as follows

Less than Oneto More than
All Agures in £ milions one yer five years five yoars Toul
Re-pricing profite of borrowings 342 842 1,041 2225
Effect of rate derivauves [,254 (225) (1.029) -
Total | 596 617 iz 2,225
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Notes to the consolidated finanaial statements continued

I9 Financial sk management continued

The maturity of contracted cash flows associated with the Group's financial iabdities are as follows

2014
All figures in € mulbions usD GaP Other Total
Not later than one year 398 i60 99 657
Later than one year and not later than five years 877 - - 877
Later than five years [,126 - - 1,126
Total 2,401 f60 99 2660
Analysed as
Bonds 1711 38 439 2,468
Rate derivatives —inflows (379) (656) (537) {1572)
Rate derivatives — outflows 893 444 98 1435
Trade payables 176 54 99 329
Total 2,401 160 99 2,660

2013
All figures n € miflions usD GEP Other Total
Not later than one year 434 316 3 863
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,000 106 - 1,106
Later than five years 648 - - 648
Total 2,082 422 113 2617
Analysed as
Bonds 1,918 604 - 2,522
Rate dervauves —inflows (350) (248) - (598)
Rate derwatives — outflows 359 i I6 376
Trade payables 155 65 97 317
Total 2,082 422 113 2617

Al cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floating rate are

calculated using Interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Where this 1s not possible, floating rates are based
onnterest rates prevailing at 3| December in the relevant year All derivauve amounts are shown gross, although the

Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facilities and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the matunity date
of the relevant facility, with interest calculated as payable in each calendar year up to and including the date of maturity

of the facihty




Secuon 5 Finanaal statements 171

19 Financial risk management continued

Finaneial instrumenits — fair value measurement
The following table provides an analysis of those financial instruments that are measured subsequently to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into levels | to 3, based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable

Level | fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or habiliies,

Level 2 far value measurements are those derived from inputs, other than quoted prices included within level |,
that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derwed from prices), and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuaunon techriques that include inputs for the asset or hability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

2014 2013
Al figures 1n £ mullions Level | Level2  Levell Toul Level | Levet2  Level3 Total
Financial assets at fair value
Derwvative financia) assets - 14 - I 14 - 124 - 124
Marketable securities - 16 - 16 - 6 - 6
Available for sale financial assets
Investments in listed securitses - 9 - S - - - -
Investments in unlisted securities - - 45 45 - - 94 94
Financial habilities at fair value
Derivauve financial liabilities - (74) - 74) - (48) - (48)
Total - 65 45 10 - 82 94 176

The followtng table analyses the movements in level 3 fair value measurerents

2014 w013

Investments Ocher Investments Other

inunbsted financial inunfisted financial

Al figures in £ mullions seourines liabives securives babihues
At beginming of year 94 — 31 (68)
Exchange differences 6 - - 9
Addiuons 3 - 63 -
Fair value movements - - - (8}
Disposals (58) - - 67
At end of year 45 - 94 -

The fair value of the investments in unhsted securiues is determined by reference to the financial performance of the
underlying asset and amounts realised on the sale of similar assets
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Notes to the consolidated finanaal statements continued

|9 Financial nisk management continued

Financial instruments — sensitvity anaiy5|s

As at 31 December 2014 the sensitivity of the carrying value of the Group's financial instruments to fluctuations

In interest rates and exchange rates 1s as follows

(mpactof 1% Impactof 1% Impactof 0%  Impacc of 10%
Carryng icreasen  decreasein  screngcheming  weakeming in
Al figures in £ millions value  Inzerestrites  Interest rates n scerling sterhng
Investments in histed securities 9 - - (1 |
Investments in unlisted securities 45 - - (4) 5
Cash and cash equivalents 530 - - (67) 82
Marketable securiies 16 - - - -
Derwative financial instruments 40 {66) 85 i6 (19
Bonds (2.173) 71 (84} (170) 208
Other berrowings {52) — - 6 {(7)
Other net financial assets 660 - - (53) 64
Total financial instrumentcs (925) 5 I (273) 334

The table shows the sensitivities of the fair values of each class of financal instruments to ansolated change in
aither interest rates or foreign exchange rates The class 'Other net financial assets’ comprises trade assets less

trade habihties

The sensitvities of dertvative nstruments are calculated using established estimation techniques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuanon models Where modelling an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negative interest rates,
these points on the yield curve were adjusted to 0% A large proportion of the movements shown above would impact
equity rather than the iIncome statement, due to the locauon and functional currency of the entities In which they arise
and the avalability of net investment hedge treatment The changes in valuations are esumates of the impact of changes
in market variables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses
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20 Intangible assets — Pre-publication
Altfigures n £ millions 2014 2083
Cost
At beginning of year [ 933 1,876
Exchange differences 80 (46)
Additions 358 364
Disposal through business disposal - (29)
Disposals (234 (234)
Acquisition through business combination | 2
At end of year 2,138 1,933
Amortisation
Atbeginning of year {1.216) (1,210}
Exchange differences (60) 46
Charge for the year {292) (308)
Disposal through business disposal - 23
Disposals 234 234
Acquisition through business combination - (N
Transfer to recevables 16 -
At end of year (1,318) {1,216}
Carrying amounts
At end of year 820 717

fncluded in the above are pre-publication assets amounting to £546m (2013 £480m) which will be realised in more

than one year

Amortisation 1s included in the income statement in cost of goods sold The was no amortisation within discontinued

operations in either year

2i Inventories

Al figures in £ millions 2014 2013
Raw matertals 9 I5
Work in progress 10 13
Finished goods 205 196

224 224

The cost of inventones relating to conunuing operations recognised as an expense and included in the income
statement In cost of goods sold amounted to £387m (2013 £472m) In 2014 £38m (2013 £53m) of inventory
provisions was charged in the income statement None of the inventory 1s pledged as security
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Notes to the consoldated financial statements continued

22 Trade and other receivables

All figures i £ millions 2014 2013
Current
Trade recevables 963 863
Royalty advances 18 23
Prepayments and accrued income 107 101
Other receivables 222 186
1,310 1,173
Non-current
Trade recevables 26 9
Royalty advances 8 B
Prepayments and accrued income 30 33
Other receivables 18 10
82 70
Trade recevables are stated at fair value, net of provisions for bad and doubtful debts and anticipated future sales
returns The movements on the provision for bad and doubtful debts are as follows
All figures in £ millions 2014 2013
At beginning of year (58) (55)
Exchange differences - 5
income statement movements 20 (27)
Uthsed 17 18
Acquisition through business combination {n -
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale - |
At end of year 73 (58)

Concentrations of credit misk with respect to trade receivables are imited due to the Group's large number of customers,

who are internationally dispersed
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22 Trade and ather recewables continued

The ageing of the Group's trade receivables is as follows %
All figures in £ milions 2014 2013 %
Within due date 869 783 g
Up to three months past due date 203 194
Three to six months past due date 40 36
Six to nine months past due date 15 22
Nine to |2 months past due date ] 9
More than |2 months past due date I I o
Total trade recevables I 153 1,045 %
Less provision for sales returns {164) (163) %
Net trade recevables 989 882 g
The Group reviews its bad debt provision at least twice a year following a detailed review of receivable balances and 5
historic payment profiles Management believe all the remaining receivable balances are fully recoverable
23 Provisions for other habilives and charges
Deferred Dusposals Legal
All figures in £ melhons consideration Property and clasures and other Total _
At | fanuary 2014 58 X 67 53 83 °
Exchange differences 4 - - i 5 §
Charged to income statement - I - 10 I >
Released to income statement - (" {43) {4 (48) %
Acquisition through business combinaton - - - 14 14 ﬁ
Utiised (5) ) G (23) (36}
At 3t December 20i4 57 7 20 51 135
Analysis of provisions -
2014 E):
Ocferred Disposals Legal %
Alifigures in £ mullins consideravon Property  andclosures and other Toua z
Current 7 4 20 22 53 Q
Non-current 50 3 - 29 82
57 7 20 51 135
2013
Current 5 10 67 30 12
Non-current 53 | - 23 77
58 I &7 53 189

Deferred consideration primarily relates to the formation of a venture in a North America business in 2011

Disposals and closures include habilities related to the disposal of Penguin In 2013 a provision was established for
amounts payable to Bertelsmann upon settlement of the transfer of Penguin’s UK past service pension habiliues to the
new Penguin Random House venture During 2014 1t was decided that this transfer would not go ahead as planned and
therefore the provision has been released
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Legal and other mcludes legal claims, contract disputes and potential contract losses
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24 Trade and other habilities

Allfigures in £ mifions 2014 2013
‘Trade payables 329 316
Social secunty and other taxes 21 23
Accruals 501 478
Deferred income 801 698
Interest payable 28 22
Other habilinies 231 225
1,91} 1,762

Less non-current portion
Accruals 22 25
Deferred income 201 155
Interest payable 19 2]
Other habilities 68 56
310 257
Current portion I 601 1,505

The carrying value of the Group’s trade and other liabilities approximates s far value

The deferred income balance comprises principally multi-year obligations to deliver workbooks to adopuon
customers in school businesses, advance payments in assessment, testing and training businesses, subscripuon
income in school, college and newspaper businesses, and obligations to deliver digital content in future years

25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations

Background
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans throughout the world

The largest plan 1s the Pearson Group Pension Plan (UK Group plan) in the UK, which 1s sectionalised to provide both
defined benefit and defined contribution pension benefits The defined benefit section was closed to new members
from | November 2006 The defined contribution section, opened in 2003, 1s open to new and existing employees
Finally, there 1s a separate section within the UK Group plan set up for auto-enrolment The defined benefit section of
the UK Group plan s a final salary pension plan which provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed leve!
of pension payable for life The fevel of benefits depends on the length of service and final pensionable pay The UK
Group plan s funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK Group plan i1s administered

in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules in the interests of its beneficiaries by Pearson Group Pension

Trustee Limited

At 3! December 2014 the UK Group plan has approximately 26,500 members, analysed in the following table

% Active Deferred Pensioners Total
Defined benefit 2 25 32 59
Defined contribution 18 23 - 41

Total 20 48 32 100
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Background continued

The other major defined benefit plans are based in the US These are also final salary pension plans which provide
benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed pension payable for life, with the level of benefits dependent on
length of service and final pensionable pay The majority of the US plans are funded

The Group also has several post-retirement medical benefit plans (PRMBs), prinaipally in the US PRMBs are unfunded
but are accounted for and valued simifarly to defined benefit pension plans

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuaral risks, such as life expectancy, inflation risks, and
investment risk including asset volatility and changes in bond yields The Group 1s not exposed to any unusual,
entity specific or plan specific risks

Assumptions
The principal assumptions used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average
assumptions have been shown for the other plans, which primarily relate to US pension plans

2014 2013
UK Group Other UK Group Gther

% plan plans PRMB plan plans PRMB
Inflavion 30 25 25 34 25 25
Rate used to discount plan labilities 36 37 37 44 44 44
Expected rate of increase in salaries 35 39 40 39 39 40
Expected rate of Increase for pensions in

payment and deferred pensions [ 9to505 - - 23w51 - -
Iniwal rate of iIncrease in healthcare rate - - 70 - - 75
Ulumate rate of Increase in healthcare rate - - 50 - - 50

The UK discount rate is based on corporate bond yields adjusted to reflect the duration of iabilities The US discount
rate Is set by reference to a US bond portfolio matching model

The inflation rate for the UK Group plan of 3 0% reflects the RPl rate In line with changes to legislanonin 2010 certain
benefits have been calculated with reference to CPl as the inflationary measure and in these instances a rate of 2 0%
has been used

The expected rate of increase in salarres has been set at 3 5% for 2014 with a short-term assumption of 2 0%
for three years

For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumptions have been derived from the SAPS ‘all pensioners’ tables for
males and the SAPS 'normal health pensioners’ tables for females, adjusted to reflect the cbserved experience of the
plan, with CMI model improvement factors A | 5% long-term rate improvement on the CMI model 1s applied for
males, and | 25% for females

For the US plans, the mortahity table (RP ~ 2014) and 2014 Improvement scale (MP — 2014) with no adjustments have
been adopted for 2014, reflecung the mortality assumption most prevalent in the US In 2013 the RP2000 table
projected to 2020 was used
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Notes to the consolidated financial statermments continued

25 Reurement benefit and other post-retrement obligations continued

Assumpuions continued

Using the above tables, the remaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the balance

sheet date for the UK Group plan and US plans 1s as follows

UK us

2014 2013 2014 2013
Male 244 243 216 192
Female 245 244 238 2h 1

The remaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 15 years after the balance sheet date,

for the UK and US Group plans s as follows

UK us
2014 2013 2014 2013
Male 266 259 233 192
Female 26 4 259 255 211
Although the Group anucipates that plan surpluses will be utibsed during the life of the plan to address member
benefits, the Group recognises its pension surplus in full in respect of the UK Group plan on the basis that it s
management’s jJudgement that there are no substantive restrictions on the return of residual plan assets in the
event of a winding up of the plan after all member obligations have been met
Financial statement information
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows
2014
Defined
UK Group benefic Defined
Allfigures in £ millions ptan other Sub.total  contribution PRMB Total
Current service cost 20 2 22 69 2 93
Curtallments {5) - (5 - (13} (18)
Administration expenses 4 - 4 - - 4
Tortal operating expense 19 2 21 69 (1t} 79
Interest on plan assets {103) (7) {(110) - - (110)
Interest on plan habilities 98 8 106 - 109
Net finance (income)/expense 5) ! 4 - (N
Net income statement charge/(income) 14 3 17 &9 (8) 78
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25 Renrement benefit and other post-reurement obligations continued
Financial statement information continued
2013
Defined
UK Group benefit Defined
Allfigures in £ millions plan other Sub-total contribution PRMB Total
Current service cost 22 3 25 72 4 101
Curtalments — - - — G “
Administration expenses 4 - 4 - - 4
Total operating expense 26 3 29 72 - 101
Interest on plan assets (95) {6) (101) - - (101)
Interest on plan iabihties 94 7 101 - 3 104
Net finance {income})/expense " I - — 3 3
Net income statement charge 25 4 29 72 3 104
Included within the 2014 results are discontinued operations consisting of a £5m credit (2013 £2m charge) relatng
to defined benefit schemes and a £nil m charge (2013 £6m charge) relating to defined contribution schemes
The amounts recognised i the balance sheet are as follows
2014 2013
Other Other Other Cther
UK Group  funded  unfunded UKGroup  funded  unfunded
All figures in £ millions plan plans plans Total plan plans plans Total
Fair value of plan assets 2714 |64 - 2878 2353 156 ~ 2509
Presentvalue of defined benefit obligation  (2524)  (196) (23y (2743 (2267) (I171) (20) {(2.458)
Net pension asset/(habihity) 190 (32) {23) 135 86 {15) 20 51
Other post-retirement medical benefit
obligation (81) @7
Other pension accruals (27} (30}
Net retirement benefit asset/(obligation) 27 {56)
Analysed as
Retrement benefit assets 190 86
Retirement benefit obligations (163) (142)
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MNotes to the consolidated finanaial statements continued

25 Retirement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Financial statement information contnued
The following gains/(losses} have been recognised in other comprehensive income

Allfigures in £ mullzons 2014 2013
Amounts recognised for defined benefit plans 36 70
Amounts recognised for post-retirement medical benefit plans (13) 9
Toral recognised n year 23 79
The fair value of plan assets comprises the following

2014 203

Orher Other

UK Graup funded UK Group funded
% plan plans Toral plan plans Tosal
Equities 26 2 28 28 2 30
Bonds 42 3 45 40 3 43
Property 9 - 9 9 - 9
Other 17 I i8 17 I 18

The plan assets do not include any of the Group's own financial instruments, or any property occupled by the Group

The table below further disaggregates the UK Group plan assets into additional categories and those assets which have

a quoted market price in an active market and those that do not

2014 2013
Quoted Mo queted Quoted  No quoted
% market price market price market price  market price
UK equities 5 | 6 |
Non-UK equities 20 2 20 3
Fixed-interest securities 19 - 19 —
Index-linked securities 26 - 24 -
Property - 9 - 9
Other - 18 - 18
Total 70 30 69 EY
The hquidity profile of the UK Group plan assets is as follows
% 2014 2013
Liguid — call <I month 72 72
Less hquid — call 1-3 months 2 2
Ligud —call > 3 months 26 26
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25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

o

Financial statement information continued E
Changes in the values of plan assets and habilities of the reurement benefit plans are as follows %

2014 2013 &

UK Group Other UK Group Other

Allfigures n £ mullions plan plans Total plan plans Total
Fair value of plan assets
Opening fair value of plan assets 2,353 156 2,509 2162 165 2,327.
Exchange differences - 4 4 - (2) @
Interest on plan assets 103 7 110 95 6 101 g
Return on plans assets excluding interest 286 9 295 103 6 109 g
Contribuuons by employer 62 4 66 77 5 82 -9:
Contributions by employee 2 - 2 2 - 2 %
Benefits paid (92) (16) (108) (86) (24) (1ey m
Closing fair value of ptan assets 2714 |64 2,878 2,353 156 2,509
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligaticn (2,267) (191 {2.458) (2.181) (220) 2401y
Exchange differences - (5) (5) - 4 4 e
Current service cost (20) (2) (22) (22) 3 (25) g
Administration expenses (4} - {4) )] - 4 g
Curtailments 5 - 5 - - - x
Interest cost (98) ®  (106) (94) %) aeny A
Actuarial gains/{losses) —experience [ {n 10 5 | 6
Actuarial gains/(losses) —demographic - (8 (8 - f [
Acwarial gains/(losses) —financial (241} (20) (261} (55) 2 {46) L
Contribunions by employee (2) - (2) (2) - 2 9
Benefits paid 92 16 108 86 24 10 g
Closing defined benefit obligatton (2.524) (219) (2.743) (2.267) (191 (2.458) %

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligauonis 16 5 years for the UK and 9 7 years for the US

2
Z
>
r4
o
>
-
%)
—
>
]
m
X
m
Zz
f
w




{82 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2014

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

25 Retrement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Financial statement information continued
Changes in the value of the US PRMB are as follows

Allfigures in £ millons 2014 2013
Opening defined benefit obligation 77 {89)
Exchange differences (4) !
Current service cost 2 4
Curtallments i3 4
Interest cost 3) (3)
Actuanrial gains/({losses) — demographic {7 -
Actuarial gains/(losses) —financial (6) 9
Benefits pad 5 5
Closing defined benefit obhigation (81) 77
Funding

The UK Group plan s self-administered with the plan’s assets being held independently of the Group in trust The
trustee of the plan is required to actin the best interest of the plan's beneficiaries Assets of the plan are divided into
two elements matching assets, which are assets that produce cash flows that can be expected to match the cash flows
for a proporuon of the membership, and include UK and overseas bonds, inflation inked property and infrastructure,
return seeking assets, which are assets invested with a longer-term horizon to generate the returns needed to provide
the remaining expected cash flows for the beneficiaries, and include equities, property and alternative asset classes
The benchmark affocauon 1s 60% matching and 40% return seeking assets

The most recent trienmial actuarial valuation for funding purposes was completed as at | January 2012 and this
valuation revealed a funding shortfall The Group has agreed that the funding shortfall will be ehminated by June 2017

In 2014 the Group contributed £43m (2013 £56m} towards the funding shortfall Following the completion of the
trienmal funding valuation the Group has agreed to contribute £4lm per annum until 2017 (n excess of regular
contributions In addition, a mecharsm has been agreed for the Group to make supplementary payments up to a
maximum of £15m per annum if certain conditions are met If such payments are made they are expected to accelerate
the end date for exunguishing the deficit Regular contributions to the plan in respect of the defined benefit secuons
are estimated to be £17m for 2015

The Group expects to contribute $10m in 2015 and $1Imin 2016 to its US defined benefit pension plans




Section 5 Financal statements

25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations continued

Sensitivities

183

The effect of a one percentage paint Increase and decrease i the discount rate on the defined benefit obligation and

the total pension expense is as follows

2014
Al figures in £ millions 1% increase 1% decrease
Effect
(Decrease)/increase in defined benefit obhigation — UK Group plan (371 467
(Decrease)/ncrease in defined benefit obligation — US plan (19 22
The effect of members fiving one year more or one year less on the defined benefit obligation 1s as follows

2014

| year | year

All figures in £ millions Increase decrease
Effect
Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation — UK Group plan 88 (85)
Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation —US plan 7 (6)
The effect of a half percentage point increase and decrease in the inflation rate Is as foltows

2034
Albfigures in £ midbeons 05% incre1se 0 5% decrease
Effect
Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation — UK Group plan [ (104)

Increase/(decrease) in defined benefit obligation — US plan -

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumpuon while holding all other assumptions constant,
although in practice this 1s unlikely to occur and changes in some assumptions may be correlated When caleulating
these sensitivities the same methad has been applied to calculate the defined benefit obligation as has been apphed

when calculaung the hability recogrnised in the balance sheet This methodology is the same as prior periods
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

26 Share-based payments

The Group recognised the following charges in the iIncome statement in respect of its equity-settled share-based
payment plans

All figures in £ millions 2004 2013

Pearson plans 32 35

Share-based payment charges included in discontinued operations amounted to £nil (2013 £2m) The Group operates
the following equity-settled employee option and share plans

Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Since 1994, the Group has operated a Save-As-You-Earn plan for UK employees

In 1998, the Group introduced a Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Under these plans, employees can save a portion
of their monthly salary over periods of three or five years At the end of this period, the employee has the opuon to
purchase ordinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to B0% of the market price prevailing
at the ume of the commencement of the employee’s partcipation in the plan Options that are not exercised within
six months of the end of the savings period lapse unconditonally

Employee Stock Purchase Plan In 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows all
employees i the US to save a portion of their monthly salary over six-month periods At the end of the peniod, the
employee has the option to purchase ADRs with their accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 85% of the
lower of the market price prevailing at the beginning or end of the period

Long-Term Incentive Plan This plan was first introduced in 2001, renewed in 2006 and againin 2011 The plan consists
of restricted shares The vesting of restricted shares 1s normally dependent on continuing service over a three to five-
year period, and in the case of senior management upon the satisfaction of corporate performance targets over a
three-year period These targets may be based on market and/or non-market performance criteria Restricted shares
awarded to senior management in May 2014 and May 2013, vest dependent on relauve total shareholder return, return
on invested capital and earnings per share growth Restricted shares awarded to senior management in November
2014 vest dependent on earnings per share growth Other restricted shares awarded in 2014 and 2013 vest depending
on conunuIng service over a three-year period

Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan This plan permits executive directors and senior executives around the Group

to invest up to 50% of any after tax annual bonus in Pearson shares If these shares are held and the Group meets an
earnings per share growth target, the company will match them on a gross basis of up to one matching share for every
invested share, te the maximum number of matching shares 1s equal to the number of shares that could have been
acquired with the amount of the pre-tax annual bonus taken in invested shares Awards under this plan ceased in 2013

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options granted under the Group's plans are as follows

2014 2013
Weughted Weightad

Number of average Number of average

share OPCIOI'\S exgrcise price share OptIOI"IS exercise price

000s £ 000s 3

Qutstanding at beginning of year 2792 873 3,373 824
Granted during the year {,985 BII 763 914
Exerased during the year (727) 824 (820) 712
Forferted during the year (538) B76 (516) 875
Expired during the year (5) 743 (8) 575
Qurstanding at end of year 3,507 848 2,792 873

Options exercisable at end of year 43 824 35 695
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26 Share-based payments continued

Options were exercised regularly throughout the year The weighted average share price during the year was £11 41
(2013 £12 42) Early exercises anising from redundancy, retrement or death are treated as an acceleration of vesting
and the Group therefore recognises in the iIncome statement the amount that otherwise would have been recognised
for services received aver the remainder of the original vesting period

The options cutstanding at the end of the year have weighted average remaining contractual ives and exercise prices
as follows

2014 2013

Weighted Weighted

Mumber of average Mumber of average

Range of exercise prices share eptians  contractual life shareopuons  contractual life
£ 000s Years 000s Years
0-5 - - - -
5-10 3.507 268 2,792 231
>10 ~ - - -
3,507 268 2,792 231

In 2014 and 2013 options were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The weighted average estmated
fair value for the options granted was calculated using a Black-Scholes option pricing model

The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows

2014 013
Weighted Weighted

average average

Fair value £2 41 £227
Weighted average share price £1109 £1171
Weighted average exercise price £8 11 £9 14
Expected volatility 21 27% 22 05%
Expected Iife 3%9years 38years
Risk free rate | 3% 0 53%
Expected dividend yield 433% 384%
Forferture rate 34% 33%

The expected volatlity 1s based on the historic volatility of the company's share price over the previous three to seven
years depending on the vesting term of the options

The following shares were granted under restricted share arrangements

2014 2003

Weghted Weighted

Number of average fair Number of average far

shares value shares value

000s £ 000s £

Long-Term incentive Plan 5,875 [l 44 3,482 1152
Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan - - 99 1206

The farr value of shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest unconditionally 1s determined using the
share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vest s adjusted, based on historical experience,

to account for potential forfertures Restricted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan are valued
using the share price at the date of grant Participants under both plans are entitled to dividends during the vesting
period and therefore the share price 1s not discounted
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Notes to the consolidated financal statements continued

26 Share-based payments continued

Restricted shares with a market performance condition were valued by an independent actuary using a Monte Carlo
mode} Restricted shares with a non-market performance condition were fair valued based on the share price at the
date of grant Non-market performance conditions are taken into consideration by adjusting the number of shares
expected to vest based on the most likely outcome of the relevant performance criteria

27 Share capital and share premium

Number of Crdinary Share

shares shares premium

000s £m £m

At | fanuary 2013 817,043 204 2,555
Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes }537 | 13
At 3| December 2013 818,580 205 2,568
Issue of ordinary shares —share option schemes 1,303 - I
At 31 December 2014 819,883 205 2,579

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2013 25p per share} Allissued shares are fully paid All shares
have the same rights

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt (see note [8), cash and cash equivalents (see note 17} and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves and retained earnings

The Group reviews its capital structure on a regular basis and will balance its overall capital structure through
payments of dividends, new share issues as well as the 1ssue of new debt or the redemption of exasting debtin fine
with the financial risk policies outhined in note 19

28 Treasury shares

Pearson plc
Number of
shares
000s £m
At | January 203 10,102 103
Purchase of treasury shares 4,111 47
Release of treasury shares (4.931) (52}
At 3] Decernber 2003 9,282 g8
Purchase of treasury shares S07 9
Release of treasury shares {2,997) (32)
At 3| December 2014 7,192 75

The Group holds Fearson plc shares in trust to satisfy its obligations under its restricted share plans (see note 26)
These shares, represenung O 9% (2013 1 196) of called-up share capital, are treated as treasury shares for accountng
purposes and have a par value of 25p per share

The neminal value of Pearson plc treasury shares amounts to £1 8m (2013 £2 3m)

At 3| December 2014 the market value of Pearson plc treasury shares was £85 ém (2013 £124 4m)
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29 Other comprehensive Income

o
C
2014 =
w
Attributable to equity holders of the company N E
on- =
Translanon Retained controlling r%:
Allfigures in £ millions reserve earnings Total inzerest Total @
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations — Group 150 - i50 - 150
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
Operations — associate 25 - 25 - 25
o)
Currency translation adjustment disposed — subsidiaries (2) - 2) - (2) =
Axtributable tax - (&) (6) - {6) m
=
[tems that are not reclassified to the mcome statement 2
4
Remeasurement of reurement benefit cbligations — Group - 23 23 - 23 >
2]
Remeasurement of reurement benefit cbhgations — associate - (15) {15} - (15) m
Attributable tax - {1 {(n - (1)
Other comprehensive expense for the year 173 I 174 - 174
2
2013 =
o
Arttnibutable to equity holders of the company o
Non- )
Translation Retained controlling }“;
Allfigures in £ rllions reserve earnings Total Interest Total z
o
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement P-4
-
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations — Group (202) - (202) ® (206}
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operations —assoclate (1) - (n - an
[
Currency translation adjustment disposed — subsidiaries (18) - (18) - (18) 9
m
Attributable tax - 6 6 - 6 z
>
ltems that are not reclassified to the iIncome statement z
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations — Group - 79 79 - 79 "
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations — associate - - - - -
Attributable tax - (23) (23) . (23)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (231} 62 (169) &) (173)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

30 Business combinations

On il February 2014, the Group acquired |00% of Grupo Muit, the leading adult English language traiming company
in Brazil Fair values for the assets and liabihties anising from the Grupo Mutt acgquisiion and other smaller acquisitions
completed in the year are set out below There were no material adjustments to prior year acquisitions There were
no significant acquisiions in 2013 Adjustments were made in respect of prior year acquisitions 1n 2013 and included

the recognition of intangibles of £185m on the EmbanetCompass acquisttion

Fair values for the assets and liabilities arising from acquisinons completed in the year are as follows

2014 2013
Grupo Mult Qther  Tomalfur  Totalfar
Al figures in £ millions Notes  farvalue  far value value value
Property, plant and equipment 10 | [ 2 I
Intangible assets " 254 6 260 200
Intangible assets — pre-publication 20 { - ! |
Inventories 4 - 4 |
Trade and other receivables 35 I 36 9
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 3 - 3 2
Financial labiities — borrowings 49 - (49) -
Net deferred income tax assets/{liabilities) 13 2 (2) - (37)
Prowvisions for other labilities and charges 23 (13) (n (14) -
Trade and other labiliues (21 3) (24) N
Current ncome tax habiliues (20 - (20 -
MNet assets acquired at fair value 197 2 199 170
Goodwill 1 240 (2) 238 (133)
Fair value of previously held interest arising on stepped acquisiuon — - - [¥j]
Total 437 - 437 30
Sausfied by
Cash (437) - {437) 3n
Deferred consideration - - - (2)
Net prior year adjustments - - - 3
Total considerauon (437) - (437} (30)

The goodwill arising on these acquisitions results from cost and revenue synergies and from assets and benefits that

cannot be separately recognised

Goodwill of £240m arsing on 2014 acquisitions 1s expected to be deductible for tax purposes (2013 £6m)

Intangible assets acquired in 2014 have the following useful economic lives customer lists, contracts and relationships
four years, trademarks and brands 20 years, and other acquired mtangibles 12 years Intangible assets recognised
in 2013 have the following useful economic lives customer lists, contracts and relationships 3-17 years, and trademarks

and brands two years
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30 Business combinations continued
Allfigures in £ millions 1014 2013
Cash flow on acquisitons
Cash — current year acquisitions {437) (25)
Deferred payments for prior year acquisitions and other items (5) (6)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 3 2
Acquisition costs and other acquisiion habilities paid 9 (19)
Net cash outfiow {448) 48)

In total, acquisitions completed in the year contributed an additional £70m of sales and £29m of adjusted operating
profit If the acquisiions had completed on | January 2014 then the Group estimates that sales for the year would have
been £4,880m and total adjusted operating profit would have been £725m

31 Dusposals including business closures

2014 2013

Allfigures in £ millans Mergermarket Penguin Other Total Perguin Other Total

Disposal of subsidiaries

Property, plant and equipment (2) - (1) (3) (39 (3) 42)
Intangible assets (12) - - (12) (43) - (43)
Investrnents In joint ventures and associates ~ - - - (22) - (22)
Other financial assets - - - - [§)) - (O
Intangible assets — pre-publication - - - - (20) (6) {26)
Inventories - - - - =0 3) (94)
Trade and other receivables (23) - (2) (25) {447) (6)  (453)
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding

overdrafts) (1%) - (i (30) (34) 3) (37)
Net deferred income tax labilities/(assets) ! - - | (22) - (22)
Retirernent benefit obliganons - - - - - 4 4

Provisions for other liabilities and charges 4 - - 4 7 - 7

Trade and other hzbilities £9 - 12 81 224 10 234

Currentincome tax habilities 6 - - 6 - - -

Non-controlling interest - - (2) (2) 3 - 3

Attributable goodwill (156) - (y (157 (370) () (376)
Cumulative translation adjustment 2 - 2 18 - 18

Met assets disposed {130) - 5y (135 (837) {13y (850)
Cash received 375 - - 375 - 3 3

Deferred proceeds - - 6 6 - - -

Far value of associate acquired - - - - 1,160 - 1,160

Costs n 29 {2) 26 (121 (4 (135
Gamn/(loss) on disposal 244 29 n 272 202 (24) 178

The gain on disposal of Penguin in 2013 arises from the measurement at farr value of the associate investment acquired
in Penguin Random House Determinaucn of fair value 1s described in note 12
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

31 Disposals ncluding business closures continued

All figures in £ milions 2014 2013
Cash flow from disposals

Cash — current year disposals 375 3
Cash and cash equivalents disposed {30) (37)
Costs and other disposal habiliues paid (18) (98)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 327 (132)
32 Held for sale

Assets classified as held for sale in 2013 relate to Mergermarket

All figures in £ millions Notes 2014 2013
Property, plant and equipment 10 - 2
Intangible assets n - 158
Deferred income tax assets 13 - I
Trade and other receivables - 26
Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts) 17 36
Assets classified as held for sale - 223
Deferred income tax habilities 13 - (2)
Prowvisions for other habilities and charges - 4
Trade and other liabiities - @n
Current ncome tax habilives - (5}
Liabilities directly associated with assets classified as held for sale - (82)
Net assets classified as held for sale - 141

33 Purchase of non-controlling interest

There were no purchases of non-controlling nterests in 2014 In 2013 the Group purchased non-controlling interests

in the South African business for £65m, and in the Indian business for £11m
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34 Cash generated from operations
All figures n £ millions Notes 2014 2013
Profit 470 539
Adjustments for
Income tax 110 90
Depreciation 10 74 82
Amortisation and impairment of acquired intangibles and goodwaill n 264 168
Amortisation of software It 63 59
MNet finance costs 93 75
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 12 Gn (54)
Profit on disposals {272) (187)
Acquisition costs 6 12
Net foreign exchange adjustment from transactions 27 (40)
Share-based payment costs 2 32 37
Pre-publication (52) (77
Inventories 6 18
Trade and other receivables (69) (50)
Trade and other habiliues 72 72
Reurement benefit obligations {58) {57)
Provisions for other habilities and charges (i) (3)
Net cash generated from operatons 704 684
Dividends from jomt ventures and associates 120 64
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (75) (118)
Purchase of ntangible assets {107} (64)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9 28
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 2
Finance lease principal payments (4) (8)
Operaung cash flow 649 588
Operating tax paid {163) (e
Net operaung finance costs paid {73) 73
Operating free cash flow 413 324
Non operating tax paid - (55)
Free cash flow 413 269
Dividends paid (including to non-controlling interests) (398) (372)
Net movement of funds from operations 15 (103)
Acquisitions and disposals (net of tax) (137) (326)
Loans advanced (including to related partes) (12) (49)
Purchase of treasury shares 28 (9} 47
New equity I 14
Other movements on financial instruments 15 (%
Net movernent of funds (17 (520
Exchange movements on net debt (143) 59
Total movement in net debt (260) (46l)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

34 Cash generated from operations continued

Net cash generated from operations is translated at an exchange rate approximating to the rate at the date of cash
flow The difference between this rate and the average rate used to translate profit gives rse to a currency adjustment
in the reconcliation between net profit and net cash generated from operations This adjustment reflects the timing
difference between recognition of profit and the related cash receipts or payments

Operating cash flow, operating free cash flow and total free cash flow are non-GAAP measures and have been
disclosed as they are part of Pearson’s corporate and operating measures

In the cash flow statement, proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment comprise

Al figures in £ millions 2014 2013
Net book amount i2 19
(Loss)/profit on sale of property, plant and equiprment (3) 9
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2 28

35 Contingencies

There are contingent Group habilities that arise in the normal course of business in respect of Indemnities, warranties
and guarantees in relation to former subsidianies and in respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates In addiuon there are contingent labilities of the Group in respect of legal claims, contract disputes,
royalties, copyright fees, permissions and other rights None of these claims are expected to result in a material gain
or loss to the Group

36 Commitments
At the balance sheet date there were no commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred

The Group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases
have varying terms and renewal rights The Group also leases various plant and equipment under operating lease
agreements, also with varying terms Lease expenditure charged to the income statementwas £157m (2013 £183m)

The future aggregate minimum fease payments in respect of operating leases are as follows

All figures in £ mullions 2014 2013
Not later than one year 161 161
Later than one year and not later than two years 150 149
Later than two years and not later than three years 126 133
Later than three years and not later than four years 122 118
Later than four years and not later than five years 5 105
Later than five years 701 737

1,375 1,403
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37 Related party transactions

Jont ventures and associates

Armounts advanced to joint ventures and associates during the year and at the balance sheet date are set out innote 12
Apart from transacticns with the Group’s joint ventures and associates, there were no cther materal related party
transactions

Key management personnel

From | January 2014 the key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the Pearson Executive
(see page 9} Itis this commuttee which had responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Group in 2014 Key management personnel compensation is disclosed below

All figures in £mitlions 2014
Short-term employee benefits to
Reurement benefits I
Share-based payment costs 2
Total 13

There were no other material related party transactions No guarantees have been provided to related parties
38 Events after the batance sheet date

There were no material events after the balance sheet date
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

39 Accounts and audit exemptions

The Pearson plc subsidiary comparnies hsted below are exempt from the requirements of the Comparies Act 2006
relaung to the audit of individual accounts by virtue of secuon 479A

Company number Company number
Aldwych Finance Limited 04720439 Pearson Education Limited 00872828
ASET Limited 04231636 Pearson Funding Four plc 07970304
ASET Group Limited 03964551 Pearson Funding One plc 02911143
ASET Management Limited 03139404 Pearson Funding Two plc 07210654
ASET Soluucns Limited 03849880 Pearson Heinemann Limited 03099304
Blue Wharf Limited 04344573 Pearson in Practice ATA Limited 07679091
Burmedia Investments Limited 03060487 Pearson in Practice Holdings Limited 06337129
Edexcel Limited 04496750 Pearson in Practice Skills Based

Education Development International plc 03914767 Learning Limited 03755464
Embankment Finance Limited 04460625 Pearson in Practice Technology Limited 03786989
eNVQ Limited 03985948 Pearson Internatuonal Finance Limited 02496206
EQL Assessment Limited 05224778 Pearson Loan Finance Na 2 Unlimited 05632021
Financial Times (ASC) Limited 00519261 Pearson Loan Finance No 3 Limited 05052661
Financial Times Group Limited 0087953 | Pearson Loan Finance No 4 Limited 02635107
Fronter UK Limited 05737591 Pearson Loan Finance Unlimued 05144467
FT Business Information Limited 00758738 Pearson Management Services Limited 00096263
FT Labs Limited 04701650 Pearson Overseas Holdings Limited 00145205
FT Personal Finance Limited 03855520 Pearson PRH Holdings Limited 08561316
Goal Limited 03566588 Pearson Professional Holdings Limited 00149375
Green Wharf Limited 07009228 Pearson Services Limited 01341060
lcodeon Limited 05068195 Pearson Shared Services Limited 04623186
Joint Exarnining Board Limited 03278422 Peter Honey Publications Limited 03754757
Longman Group (Overseas Holdings) Sector Training Limited 05342448
Limited 00690236 St Clements Press (1988) Linited 02174119
Midlands Educational Technology Limited 01448842 Testchange Limited 02496240
Pearson Affordable Learning Fund Limited 08038068 The Coaching Space Limited 05333023
Pearson Amsterdam Finance Limited 03041245 The Financial Times (Benelux) Limited 01613899
Pearson Australia Finance Unhimited 05578463 The Financial Times (France} Limited 00867316
Pearson Books Limited 02512075 The Financial Times (Japan) Limited 01613900
Pearson Brazil Finance Ltd 08848374 The Financial Times (M-M UK) Limted 01398449
Pearson Canada Finance Unlimited 05578491 The Financial Times (Spain) Limited 01214411
Pearson Dollar Finance plc 05111013 TQ Catahs Limited 07307943
Pearson Dollar Finance Twao plc 06507766 TQ Clapham Limited 07307925
Pearson Education Holdings Limited 00210859 TQ Global Limited 07802458

Pearson Education Investments Limited

08444933




39 Accounts and audit exemptions continued
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The Pearson plc subsidiary companies hsted below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

to prepare individual accounts by virtue of section 394A

Company number Company number
Exec-Appomtments Limited 04010964 Medley Global Advisors Limited 00931507
FDI Intelligence Limited NI040{29 The Financial News Limited 00607228
Financial Times Business Limited 0020228| The Financial Times (Switzerland) Limited 01613901
Financial Times Electronic Pubhshing Limited 02749250 The Financial Times (Zhongwen) Limited 01900030
Financial Times Investor Limited 04005565 Throgmarton Publications Limited 00905696
Mandatewire Limited 03855296
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

Al figures in £ millions Notes 2014 2013
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 2 8,740 8,537
Amounts due from subsidiaries 27 2,009
Financial assets — derivative financial mstruments 6 84 (R}
8851 10,657
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 5220 380
Amounts due from related parties 54 44
Current incorme tax assets 28 24
Financial assets — derivative financial instrumenits 6 24 13
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 4 13 394
Other assets 2 -
5,341 855
Total assets 14,192 11,512
Liabiities
MNon-current habilivies
Amounts due to subsidiaries (2,346) (3,553)
Financial habilies — borrowtngs 5 (210) (202
Financial liabihities — dervative financial instruments 6 (73) (48)
(2.629)  (3.803)
Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries {4414) (1,256)
Financral llabihties — borrowings 5 (629) (766)
Financial habilities — dervative financial instruments 6 (" -
Other habiities 2 -
Provisions for other habiliies and charges 7 - (42)
(5.046) (2.064)
Total kabilities (7.675) (5.867)
Net assets 6,517 5,645
Equity
Share capital 8 205 205
Share premium 8 2,579 2,568
Treasury shares 9 | 22)
Special reserve 447 447
Retained earnings 3,285 2,447
Total equity ateributable to equity holders of the company 6517 5,645

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 9 March 2015 and signed on its

behalf by

Robin Freestone Chef financial officer
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Company statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2014

Equizy attributable to equity helders of the company

Share Share Treasury Special Retained

Ali figures in £ mdlions eyptal premium shares reserve €arnings Total
At | January 2014 205 2,568 (22) 447 2,447 5,645
Profit for the year - - - - |,267 1,267
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes* - I - - - il
Purchase of treasury shares - - (%) - - (%)
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32) -
Dmdends - - - - (397) (397)
At 31 December 2014 205 2,579 | 447 3,285 6517

Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the company

Share Share Treasury Special Retaned

Allfigures in £millions capital premium shares reserve earnings Toual
At | January 2013 204 2,555 chH 447 2,069 5248
Profit for the year - - - - 802 802
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes™® I I3 - - - 14
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47) - - 47
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) -
Dividends - - - - (372) (372)
At 3] December 2013 205 2,568 (22) 447 2,447 5,645

The special reserve represents the cumulative effect of cancellation of the company’s share premium account

Included within retained earnings is an amount of £131m (2013 £13Im) relating to profit on intra-Group disposals that

1s not distributable

*Full details of the share-based payment plans are disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
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Company cash flow statement
Year ended 3| December 20i4

Altfigures in £ mullions Notes 2014 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit 1.267 802

Adjustments for

Income tax (9) (5N
Net finance costs 24 167

Amounts due to subsidiaries (1,058) {1,053
Net cash generated/(used 1n} from cperations 224 (135)
Interest paid 73) (82)
Tax recerved 6 14

Net cash generated/(used in} from operating activities 157 (203)
Cash flows from investng activities

Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed - 482

Loans to related parues (10} (44)
Interest received 15 10

Net cash received from investing activities 5 448

Cash flows from financing activiies

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 8 I 14

Net purchase of treasury shares ® (48)
Repayment of borrowmngs {250} -

Dividends paid to company’s shareholders (397) (372)
Net cash used in financing activities {645) (406)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (15) 18

Net decrease In cash and cash equivalents (498) (143)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year (118) 25

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 4 (616) (118}
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Notes to the company financial statements

| Accounting policies
The financial statements on pages 196 to 204 comprise the separate financial statements of Pearson plc

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, only the consolidated income statement and statement
of comprehensve income have been presented

The company has no employees

The accounting policies applied in the preparation of these company financial statements are the same as those set
outn note | to the consolidated financial statements with the addition of the following

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment, with the exception of certain hedged
investments that are held in a foreign currency and revalued at each balance sheet date

2 Investments in subsidiaries

Allfigures in £ milions 2014 2083
At beginning of year 8,537 9.108
Subscription for share capital in subsidiaries 138 424
Disposals/hquidations - (985)
Currency revaluations 65 {10
At end of year 8,740 8,537

3 Finanaal nsk management

The company's financial Instruments comprise amounts due to/from subsidiary undertakings, cash and cash
equivalents, derivative financial instruments and current and nen-current borrowings Derivative financial instruments
are held at fair value, with all other financial instruments held at amortised cost The company’s approach to the
management of financial risks 1s consistent with the Group’s treasury policy, as discussed in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements The company believes the value of its financial assets to be fully recoverable

The company designates certain qualifying derivative financial instruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds (fair
value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these dervative finanoial nstruments are recorded in the Income statement
together with any change in the fair value of the hedged liability attributable to the hedged nisk

The carrying value of the company’s financial instruments 1s exposed to movements 1n interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates {primarily US dollars) The company estimates that a 1% increase in interest rates would
result in a £66m decrease in the carrying value of its financial instruments, with a 1% decrease in interest rates resulung
in a £85m increase in their carrying value The company also estimates thata |0% strengthening in sterling would
decrease the carrying value of ts financial instruments by £169m, while a 10% weakening in the value of sterling would
increase the carrying value by £89m These increases and decreases in carrying value would be recorded through the
Income statement Sensitivities are calculated using estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation models Where modelling an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negatve interest rates, these points on the
yield curve were adjusted to 0%
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

3 Financial nsk management continued

The maturity of contracted cash flows on the company's borrowings and all of its derivative financial instruments

are as follows

2004
All figures in £ mlhons UsD GBP Other To1al
Not later than one year 172 (212) (16) (56)
Later than one year and not later than five years 224 - (97) 127
Later than five years 418 - (403) 15
Total 84 (212) (516) 86
Analysed as
Bonds 224 - - 224
Rate derivatives — inflows (303) (656) {537} {1,496)
Rate dervatives — outflows 893 444 21 1,358
Total 814 (212) (516) 86

2013
Allfiguresn £ millions usD GBP Other Total
Not later than one year (20) 233 6 229
Later than one year and not later than five years 287 (212) - 75
Later than five years (39) - - (39)
Tortal 228 21 16 265
Analysed as
Bonds 219 268 - 487
Rate derivatives — inflows {350} (248) - (598)
Rate derivatives — outflows 359 | 16 376
Total 228 21 16 265

All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floating rate are

calculated using Interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Where this 1s not possible, floating rates are based
on interest rates prevailing at 3| December in the relevant year All derivative amounts are shown gross, although the

company net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facilities and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the maturity date
of the relevant facility, with interest calculated as payable in each calendar year up to and including the date of matunity

of the facihty
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4 Cash and cash equivalents {excluding overdrafts)

All figures in £ malkans 2014 2013 ,%
Cash at bank and in hand 2 %9 &
Short-term bank deposits H 125 é
I3 394

Short-term bank deposits are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates
Atz the end of 2014 the currency spht of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 33% (2013 76%), sterling 54% (2013
24%) and other 13% (2013 nil)
Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to therr carrying amounts due to their short-term nature e
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow staterment g
All figures in £ millions 2014 00 %
Cash and cash equivalents 13 394 %
Bank overdrafts (629) (512) "

(616} {118}
5 Financial liabthtes —borrowings
Allfigures in £ eullions 2014 2013 0
Non-current o
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 (nominal amount $300m) 210 202 §

210 202 %
Current 5
Due within one year or on-demand
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 (norninal amount £250m) - 254
Bank loans and overdrafts 629 512
629 766 o

Total borrowings 839 968 g
Included in non-current borrowings above s £mil of accrued interest (2013 £nil} Includedin current borrowings above %

1s £nil of accrued interest (2013 £3m)
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

5 Financial habilities —borrowings continued

The maturity of the company’s non-current borrowings is as follows

All figures in £ millions 2014 2013
Between one and two years - -
Between two and five years 210 202
Over five years - -

210 202

Asat 3| December 2014 the exposure to interest rate changes of the borrowings and amounts due to subsidiaries

when the borrowings re-price 1s as follows

Less than Oneto More than

Al figures n £ miflions one year five years five years Toral
Re-pricing profile of borrowings 629 210 - 839
Amounts due to subsidiaries 4414 960 1,386 6,760
Effect of rate dervatives |,254 {225} (1,029) -
6,297 945 357 7.599

The carrying amourits and market values of borrowings are as follows
2014 2013
Effectve Carrying Markat Carrying Market
Allfigures in £ mullions Incerest rage amount value amount value
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 629 629 562 512
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 720% - - 254 262
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 4 69% 210 205 202 195
839 834 968 369

The market values are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available, on the quoted

market prices of comparable debt 1ssued by other companies The effective interest rates above relate to the

underlying debt instruments

The carrying amounts of the company’s borrowings are denominated in the following currencies

All figures an £ milhons 2014 2013
US dollar 477 202
Sterling 354 762
Euro 8 4

839 968
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6 Derwvative financial instruments

o)
<
The company’s outstanding derivative financial instruments are as follows E
2014 2013 z
Gross notional Gross notional 4
Alifigures in £ millians ameunts Assots Lizbilicies amounts Assets Liabihues
Interest rate derivatives —
in a fair value hedge relatonship 192 e - 231 22 -
Interest rate derivatives — notin a
hedge relationship 2,404 &7 a3n 1,842 63 (48)
Cross-currency dervatives 952 23 (43) 220 39 - 0
Toral 3,548 {08 {74 2,293 124 (48) E
=
o
Analysed as expiring g
In less than one year 200 24 ) 312 13 - Z
Later than one year and not later than
five years 1,314 6l (8) 1,377 l§l -
Later than five years 2,034 23 (65) 604 - (48)
Total 3,548 108 74 2,293 24 (48) -
[ =y
The carrying value of the above dervative financial iInstruments equals their fair value Fair values are determined g
by using market data and the use of established estmation techniques such as discounted cash flow and opuon O
valuation models E
3
7 Provisions for other habilities and charges z
2
Provisions in the pricr year were comprised of habilties assumed on the closure of the business of a Group subsidiary
As anticipated, the provisions were utihsed during the year
8 Share capital and share premium
MNumber of Ordinary Share _Cﬁ__
shares shares premium o
000s £m £m b3
At | January 2013 817,403 204 2,555 g
Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes 1,537 | 13 E
At 3| December 2013 818,580 205 2,568
Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes 1,303 - i
At 3] December 2014 819,883 205 2579

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2013 25p per share) Allissued shares are fully patd All shares
have the same rights
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

9 Treasury shares

Number of
shares

000s £m
At | January 2013 10,102 27
Purchase of treasury shares 4,111 47
Release of treasury shares 4,231 (52)
At 3| December 2013 9,282 22
Purchase of treasury shares 907 9
Release of treasury shares (2.997) (32)
At 3| December 2014 7,192 {hH

The company holds 1ts own shares in trust to satisfy its obligations under its restricted share plans These shares are
treated as treasury shares for accounting purposes and have a par value of 25p per share The nominal value of the
company’s treasury shares amounts to £ 8m (2013 £2 3m) At 3 December 2014 the market value of the company’s
treasury shares was £85 6m {2013 £124 4m) The gross book value of the shares at 31 December 2014 amounts 1o
£75m This value has been netted off with contributions received from operating companies of £76m, resultingina
net credit value of £1m

10 Contingencies

There are contingent labilities that arise in the normal course of business in respect of Indemnrties, warranties and
guarantees in relation to former subsidiaries and in respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries In addition there
are contingent habiliues in respect of legal claims None of these claims are expected to resultin a material gain or
loss to the company

Il Audit fees
Statutory audit fees relating to the company were £35,000 (2013 £35,000)
|2 Related party transactions

Subsidiaries
The company transacts and has outstanding balances with its subsidiaries Amounts due from subsidiaries and
amounts due to subsidiaries are disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet

These loans are generally unsecured andinterest s calculated based on market rates The company has interest
payable to subsidiaries for the year of £143m (2013 £144m) and interest receivable from subsidiaries for the year

of £73m (2013 £59m) Management fees payable to subsidiaries in respect of centrally provided services amounted
to £19m (2013 £55m) Dividends received from subsidiaries were £1,300m (2013 £1,363m)

Associates

Amounts due from related parties, disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet, relate to loans to Penguin
Random House, an associate of the Group These loans are unsecured and interest Is calculated based on
marketrates The amount outstanding at 31 December 2014 was £54m (2013 £44m) Theloans are provided under
a working caprtal facility and fluctuate during the year The loan outstanding at 3| December 2014 was repaid in its
entirety In January 2015

Key management personnel
From | January 2014, key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the Pearson Executive

Itis this committee which had responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the company in 2014
Key management personnel compensation is disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements

There were no other material related party transactions No guarantees have been provided to related parties
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Principal subsidiaries

The principal operating subsidiaries at 31 December 2014 are listed below They operate mainly in the countries
of Incorporation or registration The investments are in equity share capital and they are all [00% owned

Couritry of InCorporation or registration

Pearson Education Inc us
Pearson Education Lid England
NCS Pearson Inc us
The Financial Times Ltd England

The company has taken advantage of the exempuon under Section 410(2) of the Compantes Act 2006 by providing
informanon only in relaton to subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial posiuon, in the opimon of the
directors, principally affected the financial statements A complete list of subsidiary and associated undertakings
will be included in the next Pearson ple annual return filed with the Registrar of Companies
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Five-year summary

2013
Altfigures i £ millians 2010 2011 012 restated 2014
Sales By gecgraphy*®
North America 3,073 2,974
Core 1,258 t. 154
Growth 738 746
Conunuing 4532 4,728 4,959 5,069 4,874
Discontinued 1,427 1,134 1,153 621 9
Total sales 5,959 5,862 6,112 5,690 4,883
Sales By line of business*
School 2,303 2,027
Higher Education 1,664 [.695
Professional 1,102 1152
Continuing 4532 4,728 4,959 5,069 4,874
Discontinued 1,427 1,134 1,153 621 9
Total sales 5,959 5,862 6112 5,690 4,883
Adjusted operating profit By geography™
North America 474 464
Core 120 152
Growth 38 35
Penguin Random House - - - 50 69
Continuing 732 808 809 682 720
Discontinued 206 132 i23 54 2
Total adjusted operating profit 938 938 932 736 722
Adjusted operating profit By line of business™
School 268 236
Higher Education 295 309
Professional 69 106
Penguin Random House - - - 50 69
Continuing 732 806 809 682 720
Discontinued 206 132 123 54 2
Total adjusted operating profit 938 938 932 736 722

*Pervods prior to 2013 have not been restated to reflect the new orgamisation structure as there i1s no appropriate basis for restatement of those periods
2011 onwards reflect the adopuion of IAS 19 revised and have been restated, as appropriate  Prior pertads have not beenrestated
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2013 o}
All figures i £ millions 2010 200 2012 restated 2014 <
Operating margin — continuing 16 2% 17 0% 16 3% 13 5% 14 8% §
Zz
Adjusted earnings ”
Total adjusted operating profit 938 938 932 736 722
Net finance costs (85) (55) {65) (72) (64)
Income tax (215) (196) (200 {97 (118)
Non-controlling interest (17) I 3 (N ! —
Adjusted earnings 62! 688 664 566 541 2
Weighted average number of shares (millions) 8012 8002 8043 8078 8109 B
Adjusted earnings per share 77 5p 86 0p 82 6p 70 1p 66 7p g
All figures in £ miilions 210 20N w012 2013 2014
Cash flow
Operating cash flow 1,057 983 788 588 649
Operating cash conversion 113% 105% 85% 80% 90% 8—
Operating free cash flow 904 772 657 324 413 g
Operaung free cash flow per share 1128p 96 5p 817p 40 Ip 509 g
Total free cash flow 904 72 657 269 43 3
Total free cash flow per share [128p 96 5p 8t 7p 333p 50 9p E
Net assets 5,605 5,962 5710 5706 5,985
Net debt 430 499 918 1,379 1639 o
<
Return on invested capital (gross basis) g
Total adjusted operaung profit 938 938 932 736 722 q
Cash tax paid (85) {151) (65) {191) {163)
Return 853 787 867 545 559
Average invested capital 8315 8.73} 9,578 10,130 9900
Return on invested capital 103% 9 0% 91% 54% 56%
Dwvidend per share 387p 42 Op 450p 48 Op 510p
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Corporate and operating measures

Pearson’s corporate and operating measures include the results of Mergermarket throeughout 2013 as the business
was wholly-owned during that period

Sales — underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Sales movements exclude Penguin, the impact of acquisiuons, disposals and movements in exchange rates

Al figures in £ millions 2014
Underlying decrease (2}
Portfolio changes 79
Exchange differences (272)
Total sales decrease (195)
Underlying decrease 0%
Constant exchange rate increase 2%

Adjusted income statement

Reconaliation of the consolidated income statement to the adjusted numbers presented as non-GAAP measures
in the financial statements

2014
Statutory Other net Other net Tax Adjusted
income  Dhscontinued gainsand  Acquisition Intangible finance amorusation income
All figuras an £ millwons statement  Operauons losses oSS charges wncomefcosts benefic sttement
Operating profit 398 2 (@) 6 ii8 - - 722
Netfinance costs (93) - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 305 P (2) 6 318 29 - 658
Income tax (63) (N I (1) (73) (5 24 (118)
Profit for the year from
CONUNUINE Operations 242 [ (n 5 245 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 228 (1} {227) - - - - -
Profit for the year 470 - {(228) 5 245 24 24 540

Non-controlling interest | - - - - - - I
Earnings 471 - (228) 5 245 24 24 541
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Adjusted income statement continued

o
c
2013 =
Statutory Other net Qthernet Tax Adjusted 5
weome  Discontinued pains and  ACGUISIDON Intangible finance amorusanon meome z
Allfiguresin £ millions statement aperauons losses costs charges income/scosts benefit statement m
Operating profit 458 54 16 12 196 - - 736
Net finance costs {76) - - - - 4 - {72)
Profit before tax 382 54 16 12 196 4 - 664
Income tax (87) (18) 32 2 Gn Q) 30 97)
Profic for the year from -
continuing operations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 567 e
x
Profit for the year from B
discontinued operations 244 (36) (209) - 2 (1) — - a
Profit for the year 539 - (161} 10 147 2 30 567 g
Non-controlling interest (N - - - - - - (n 5
Earnings 538 - (161) 10 147 2 30 566
Adjusted operating profit — underlying and constant exchange rate movement
Operating profit movement excluding the impact of acquisitons, disposals and movements in exchange rates =
Ali figures in £ milions 2014 %
Underlying increase 35 §
Portfolio changes - =
Exchange differences (49 E
Total adjusted operating profit decrease (14 -
Underlying increase 5%
Constant exchange rate increase 5%
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Corporate and operating measures continued

Free cash flow per share

Operating cash flow for contnuing and discontinued operations before tax and finance charges, divided by the
weighted average number of shares inissue

Al figures i £ millions 2014 2013
Adjusted operating profit 722 736
Cash conversion S90% 80%
Operatng cash flow 649 588
Operaung tax paid {163) (sn
Net operating finance costs paid (73) 73)
Total operaung free cash flow 413 324
Non operating tax paid - (535)
Total free cash flow 413 269
Weighted average number of shares in 1ssue (miflions) 8109 8078
Operating free cash flow per share 50 9p 40 Ip
Total free cash flow per share 509 333p

Return on invested capital

Invested capital

Al figures in £ millions 2004 2013
Total adjusted operating profit 722 736
Operating tax pard (163) (191
Return 559 545
Average goodwill and other intangibles 8,557 8,503
Average net operating assets 1,343 1,227
Average invested capital 9.900 1C,130
Return on invested capital 56% 54%

Return on invested capttal s calculated as total adjusted operatng profit less operating cash tax pard expressed as
a percentage of average invested capital Invested capital includes the onginal unamortsed goodwill and intangibles




Shareholder information

Pearson ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock
Exchange and on the New York Stock Exchange in the
form of American Depositary Receipts

Corporate website

The investors’ secticn of our corporate website

www pearson com/investors provides a wealth of
information for shareholders It1s also possible to sign
up to receive emall alerts for reports and press releases
relating to Pearson at www pearson com/news/
newsletter-subscribe html

Shareholder information online

Shareholder information ¢an be found on our website
www pearson com/investors/shareholder-information

Our registrar, Equiniti also prowides a range of shareholder
information online You can check your holding and find
practical help on transferring shares or updating your
detads at www shareview co uk. Far more informauon,
please contact our registrar, Equiriti, Aspect House,
Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN9% 6DA
Telephone 0871 384 2233* or, for those shareholders
with hearing difficulties, textphone number

0871 384 2255+

Informauon about the Pearson share price

The company's share price can be found on our website
at www pearson com It also appears in the financal
columns of the national press

2014 dividends

Payment date Amount pershare
Interim 12 September 2014 17 pence
Final | May 2015 34 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Should you elect to have your dividends paid through
BACS, this can be done directly into a bank or bullding
society account, with the tax voucher sent to the
shareholder’s registered address Equinitican be
contacted for informaton on 0871 384 2043*

Dmvidend reinvestment plan (DRIF)

The DRIP gives shareholders the night to buy the
company's shares on the London stock market wath their
cash dividend For further infformation, please contact
Equinition 0871 384 2268*

Section S Financial statements 21

Indrvidual Savings Accounts (ISAs)

Equiruti offers 1SAsin Pearson shares For more
information, please go to www shareview co uk/dealing
or call customer services on 0845 300 0430*

Share dealing faciliuies

Equinity offers telephone and internet services for
dealing in Pearson shares For further information,
please contact their telephone dealing helpline on
08456 037 037* (weekdays only) or, for online dealing,
log on to www shareview co uk/dealing You will need
your shareholder reference number as shown on your
share certificate

A postal dealing service 1s also avalable through Equinitu
Please telephone 0871 384 2248* for detalls or log on to
www shareview co uk to download a form

ShareGift

Shareholders with small holdings of shares, whose
value makes them uneconomic to sell, may wish

to donate them to ShareGift, the share denation
charity (registered charity number 1052686)

Further information about ShareGift and the charites

it has suppoerted may be obtained from their website,
www ShareGift org or by contacting them at ShareGift,
PO Box 72253, London, SWIPILQ

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Pearson’s ADRs are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and traded under the symbof PSO Each ADR
represents one ordinary share For enquiries regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and dividends, please
contact Bank of New York Mellon, Shareholder
Correspondence (ADR), PO Box 30170, College
Station, TX 77842-3170, telephone | (866) 259 2289
(tollfree within the US) or 001 201 680 6825

(outside the US) Alternatively, you may email
shrrelations@cpushareownerservices com Voting
rights for registered ADR holders can be exercised
through Bank of New York Mellon, and for benefical
ADR holders (and/or nominee accounts) through your
US brokerage insutution Pearson will file wath the
Securities and Exchange Commission a Form 20-F

*Calls to these numbers are charged at 8p per minute plus network extras
Lines open 8 30am to 5 30pm Monday to Friday
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Shareholder information continued

Share register fraud protecting your investment

Pearson does not contact ts shareholders directly

to provide recommendation advice and neither does

it appoint third parties to do so As required by law,

our shareholder register 1s available for public inspection
but we cannot control the use of informauon obtained
by persons inspecting the register Please treat any
approaches purporting to originate from Pearson

with caution

For more information, please log onte our
website at www pearson com/investors/
shareholder-information html

Tips on protecting your shares

> Keep any documentation that contains your
shareholder reference number in a safe place and
shred any unwanted documentation

» Inform our registrar, Equiniti, promptly when you
change address

» Be aware of dividend payment dates and contact the
registrar if you do not receive your dividend cheque or
better sull, make arrangements to have the dividend
paid directly intc your bank account

» Consider holding your shares electronically in a CREST
accountvia a nominee

2015 financial calendar

Ex-dvidend date 2 Apnil
Record date 7 April
Last date for dividend reinvestment election {0 Apnl
Payment date for dividend and share

purchase date for dividend reinvestment I May
Annual General Meeting 24 Apnl
Interim results 24 July

Payment date for interim dividend {1 September




Rehance on this document

Our strategic report on pages 2 to 56 has been

prepared in accordance with section 414 (‘Duty to
prepare a strategic report’) of the Companies Act 2006
(Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations
2013 halso incorporates much of the guidance set out in
the Accounting Standards Board’s Reporting Statement
on the Operating and Financial Review

The intention of this document is to provide information
to shareholders and is not designed to be relied upon by
any other party or for any other purpose

Forward-looking statements

Except for the historical nformation contained herein,
the matters discussed in this document include forward-
tooking statements In particular, all statements that
express forecasts, expectauons and projections with
respect to future matters, ncluding trends in results
of operations, margins, growth rates, overall market
trends, the impact of interest or exchange rates, the
avallability of financing, anticipated costs savings and
synergies and the execution of Pearson's strategy, are
forward-looking statements By their nature, forward-
looking statements involve risks and uncertainties

Y MIX @
Papieb{ from
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Designed and Produced by Friend www friendstudio com
Print Pureprint Group

Pearson has supported the planung of 167 square metres of new natve
woodland wath the Woodland Trust helping to remove 6 7 tonnes of
carbon dicxide emissions generated by the preducuon of this report
and assoctated documents

because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that will occur in future They are based
on numerous assumptions regarding Pearson’s present
and future business strategies and the environment

in which it will operate inthe future Therearea
number of factors which could cause actual results and
developments to differ materially from those expressed
orimplted by these forward-looking statements,
including a number of factors outside Pearson’s
control These include international, national and local
conditions, as well as competition They also include
other risks detailed from ume to time in Pearson's
publicly-filed documents and you are advised to read,
in particular, the risk factors set out in this document
or otherwise in Pearson’s latest annuai report

and accounts, which can be found on its website
(www pearson com/investors) Any forward-looking
statements speak only as of the date they are made,
and Pearson gives no undertaking to update forward-
looking statements to reflect any changes in its
expectations with regard thereto or any changes to
events, conditions or circumstances on which any such
statement s based No reliance should be placed on
forward-looking statements

This report has been printed on Edmion Challenger Offset which

15 FSC® certified and made from 100% Elemental Chlorine Free
{ECF) pulp The mull and the printer are both cerufied ta ISO 14001t
environmental management system and registered to EMAS the
eco management Audit Scheme The report was printed using
vegetable based inks by a CarbonNeutral® printer
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